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RELXis a global provider of information-based
analytics and decision tools for professional and
business customers.

We help scientists make new discoveries, doctors and
nurses improve the lives of patients and lawyers win
cases. We prevent online fraud and money laundering,
and help insurance companies evaluate and predict risk.
Our events enable customers to learn about markets,
source products and complete transactions.

In short, we enable our customers to make better
decisions, get better results and be more productive.

Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 1933, asamended, and Section 21E of the US
Securities Exchange Actof 1934, asamended. These statements are subject torisks and uncertainties that could cause actual results or outcomes of RELXPLC
(togetherwithits subsidiaries, “RELX", “we” or “our”] to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement. The terms “outlook”, “estimate”,
“project”, “plan”, “intend”, “expect”, “should”, “will", “believe”, “trends” and similar expressions may indicate a forward-looking statement. Important factors that
could cause actualresults or outcomes to differ materially from estimates or forecasts contained in the forward-looking statements include, among others, current
and future economic, politicaland market forces; changesinlawand legalinterpretations affecting RELX intellectual property rights and internet communications;
regulatoryand other changesregarding the collection, transfer or use of third-party content and data; demand for RELX products and services; competitive factorsin
theindustriesinwhich RELX operates; ability to realise the future anticipated benefits of acquisitions; significant failure or interruption of our systems; compromises
of our data security systems or other unauthorised access to our databases; legislative, fiscal, taxand regulatory developments and political risks; exchange rate
fluctuations; and other risks referenced fromtime to time in the filings of RELX PLC with the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
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2018 Financial highlights

Underlying revenue growth of 4%

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth of 6%

Reported operating profit £1,964m (£1,905m)

Adjusted EPS growth at constant currency up 7%; in sterling up 6% to 84.7p
Reported EPS 71.9p (81.6p)

Full-year dividend up 7% to 42.1p

Strong financial position and cash flow; cash flow conversion at 96%

£m £m Pence
Underlying growth +4% Underlying growth +6% Constant currency growth +7%
73417 7,492 2,2841 2,346 oot 847
2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
Pence
Growth +7%
129%t  13.2% 96%* 96%
39.4 421
2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

RELXPLCandits subsidiaries, jointventures and associates are together knownas "“RELX"
t 2017 restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16. See note 1 on page 126 for further details.

RELXusesadjusted and underlying figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted figures primarily exclude the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and other
items related toacquisitionsand disposals, and the associated deferred tax movements. In 2018 and 2017, we also excluded exceptional tax credits, see note 9 on page 138.
Reconciliations between the reported and adjusted figures are setout on page 176. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, excluding the results of
acquisitions untiltwelve months after purchase, and excluding the results of disposals and assets held for sale. Underlying revenue growth rates also exclude exhibition
cycling. Constantcurrency growth ratesare based on 2017 full-year average and hedge exchange rates.
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Chairman’s statement

Sir Anthony Habgood
Chairman

RELX continued to execute its strategy aimed atachieving more
predictable revenues, a higher growth profile and improving
returns. Asaresult, underlying revenue growth was again 4%.
Underlying adjusted operating profits grew 6%, as we continued
togrow revenues ahead of costs. Adjusted earnings per share

in constant currencies grew 7% and in sterling 6% to 84.7p (80.2p).
Reported earnings per share were 71.9p (81.6p).

Dividends
We are proposing a full year dividend increase of 7% to 42.1p.
The long-term dividend policy is unchanged.

Balance sheet

Netdebt, including leases as per IFRS 16, was £6.2bn at 31
December 2018, compared with £5.0bn last year. Net debt/ EBITDA
including pensions and leases was 2.4x, compared with 2.2xin
2017. Capital expenditure represented 5% of revenues.

Share buybacks

In 2018, we deployed £700m on share buybacks. In 2019, we intend
todeploy a total of £600m. By 20 February, £100m of thisyear’s
total had already been completed, leaving a further £500m to be
deployed during the year.

The Board

We continue to refresh the Board. Benvan der Veer will stand
down from the board after nineyears’ service. He was replaced
as Chairman of the Audit Committee, a position he had held since
2010, by Adrian Hennah. Adrian is Chief Financial Officer of Reckitt
Benckiser,and was previously Chief Financial Officer of Smith &
Nephew. Andrew Sukawaty will be appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of RELX, subjectto shareholder approval, with effect
after the 2019 Annual General Meeting. Andrew has had a 30 year
careerinthetelecomsindustry. He is Chairman of Inmarsat

and was a Non-Executive Director and the Senior Independent
Director of Sky between 2013 and 2018. | would like to thank Ben
for his advice over manyyears and am delighted that Andrew will
bejoining RELX.

Parent company structure

In September 2018, we completed the simplification of the
company’s corporate structure by moving fromadual toasingle
parentstructure. In June, shareholders of both parent companies,
RELXPLCand RELXNYV, voted 99.9% in favour of the measures
which were cost and profit neutral on an ongoing basis and did
notimpact the economicinterest of any shareholder. RELXNV
shareholdersreceived one new RELXPLC share in exchange for
each RELXNV share, and can continue to trade their new shares
on Euronext Amsterdam, priced in euros. They are also entitled
toreceive dividend paymentsin euros. RELXNV ADRs were
converted one-for-one to RELXPLC ADRs. Sharesin the single
parentcompany are now listed in London, Amsterdam and New
York, and itwas confirmed in December that RELX will have a full
weighting inthe AEXindex in addition to the FTSE 100.

This latest change was a natural step for RELX, removing
complexityandincreasing transparency. In 2015, the company
simplified its structure by combining all assets below the two
parentcompaniesinto a single new group entity and eliminated
parent company cross-shareholdings. We also increased share
price transparency by moving all share listings to an equalisation
ratio of one toone.

Corporate responsibility

We take our commitment to human rights seriously as evidenced
by our Modern Slavery Act Statement, which outlines how we
work to avoid slavery and trafficking in our direct employment
andinoursupply chain. Intheyear, we held RELXRule of Law
Cafésinthe US, Europe and Asia to bring together the legal
community, corporate peers, government representatives and
non-governmental organisations to share information on going
beyond legal minimums to advance the rule of law.

We also created Access to Justice Law360, free content to
support the legal community, including legal aid organisations,
in helping citizens gain equal treatment within civiland criminal
justice systems. As a United Nations Global Compact LEAD
company, we joined the action platform, Peace, Justice & Strong
Institutions, ensuring business supports good governance and
legal frameworks.

Another critical priority for RELXis data privacy and security and
in 2018 we expanded security incident response preparedness
through technology, awareness training and simulations.

Anthony Habgood
Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s report

Erik Engstrom
Chief Executive Officer

Strategicdirection

Our numberone strategic priority is the organic development
of increasingly sophisticated information-based analytics and
decision tools that deliver enhanced value to professional and
business customers across the industries that we serve.

Our goalisto help our customers make better decisions, get better
results and be more productive. We do this by leveraging a deep
understanding of our customers to create innovative solutions
which combine content and data with analytics and technologyin
global platforms. These solutions often account for about 1% of
our customers’ total cost base but can have a significantand
positive impact on the economics of the remaining 99%.

We aim to build leading positionsin long-term global growth
markets and leverage our skills, assets and resources across
RELX, both to build solutions for our customers and to pursue
cost efficiencies.

We are systematically migrating all of ourinformation solutions
across RELXtowards highervalue-add decision tools, adding
broader data sets, embedding more sophisticated analytics and
leveraging more powerful technology, primarily through
organicdevelopment.

We are transforming our core business, building out new products
and expandinginto higher growth adjacencies and geographies.
We are supplementing this organic development with selective
acquisitions of targeted data sets and analytics, and assets in
high-growth markets that support our organic growth strategies,
and are naturaladditions to our existing businesses.

By focusing on evolving the fundamentals of our businesswe
believe that, overtime, we are improving our business profile

and the quality of our earnings. This has led to more predictable
revenues through a better asset mixand geographic balance; a
higher growth profile as we expand in higher growth segments,
exit from structurally challenged businesses, and gradually
reduce the drag from print format declines; and improved returns
by focusing on organic development with strong cash generation.

+3% +3%

+4%

+4%

+4%

2014 2015

2016

2017

2018

0, 0, 0,
- - +6% +6% +6%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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2018 progress

We achieved anotheryear of good underlying revenue growth

in 2018, and continued to generate underlying adjusted operating
profitgrowth ahead of underlying revenue growth, and adjusted
earnings per share growth at constant currencies ahead of
underlying profit growth. We also had an active year for
acquisitions, focusing on targeted data sets, analytics and assets
that support our organic growth strategies. The underlying
growth rate reflects good growth in electronic and face-to-face
revenues (90% of the total), and the further development of our
analytics and decision tools.

With a strong balance sheetand aninherently cash-generative
business, the strategic priority order for using our cash is
unchanged. First, toinvestin the organic development of our
businesstodrive underlying revenue growth; second to support
ourorganic growth strategy with targeted acquisitions; third to
growdividends predictably, broadly in line with EPS growth; fourth
tomaintain our leverage ina comfortable range; and finally use
any remaining cash to buy back shares. As part of this we bought
back shares for £700min 2018, and announced £600m in buybacks
for 2019.

In 2018 we completed nine acquisitions of content, data analytics
and exhibition assets for a total consideration of £978m, and
disposed of eight assets foratotal of £45m. Thisincluded the
acquisition of ThreatMetrix, a leaderin the global risk-based
authentification sector for £580m. Since the year end we have
agreedtoacquire Mack Brooks, a leading organiser of over 30
highly complementary events across key geographies and
industrialverticals.

Financial performance

Our positive financial performance continued throughout 2018,
with underlying revenue and adjusted operating profit growth
acrossallfourbusiness areas. Underlying revenue growth was
4%. Underlying operating profit growth was 6%, and adjusted
earnings per share grew 7% at constant currencies.

Key business trends in Scientific, Technical & Medical
remained positive, with underlying revenue growth in line with
the prioryearand underlying profit growth matching underlying
revenue growth.

AtRisk & Business Analytics, underlying revenue growth
remained strong, in line with the prioryear. Underlying profit
growth matched underlying revenue growth.

In Legal, underlying revenue growth was in line with the prior
year, with continued efficiency gains driving strong underlying
operating profit growth.

Exhibitions achieved strong underlying revenue growth, with
underlying operating profit growth reflecting cycling-in effects.

Corporate responsibility

Businessactionis crucial to achieving the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), 17 goals for the world
by 2030. Among the ways RELX s contributing is through the free
SDG Resource Centre, which aggregates essential content from
across the Group to advance the SDGs. In 2018, we produced
originalresearch, available on the Resource Centre, on the state

128%  127%  13.0%  129%T  13.2%
+10%
0y 0,
+8% +8% o o
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Pence
96% 9% 9%t 96wt 96% grgs 3% 42.1
260 29.7
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

1 2017and 2016 restated for the adoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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of science underpinning SDG 3, good health and well-being,
and also launched the SDG Perspectives Project on the site
showcasing how the SDGs are influencing scholarly debates.

Inthe year, we used our convening power to bring awide range

of stakeholders togethertoinspire collaboration on the SDGs
including one on partnershipsin Amsterdam and one on disruptive
technology toadvance the goalsin Silicon Valley. In 2019, we
willhold an SDG Inspiration Day on sustainable cities in Delhi.

We conducted ourtriennial Employee Opinion Survey to
understand the views of our people. There was a 90% response
rate, up three percentage points from 2015, with a three
percentage pointincrease in engagement and a five percentage
pointincrease in satisfaction; 85% of employees said we were a
company that supports community involvement. All managers

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

have received theirteam’s scores and | will be reviewing progress
onresponding to employee feedback. In 2018, we updated our
diversity andinclusion strategy, held our first-ever Diversity

& Inclusion Awareness Month, and advanced our Women in
Technology mentor programme.

Outlook

Key businesstrendsinthe early part of 2019 are consistent with
2018, and we are confident that, by continuing to execute on our
strategy, we will deliver anotheryear of underlying growth in
revenue and in adjusted operating profit, together with growth in
adjusted earnings per share on a constant currency basis.

Erik Engstrom
Chief Executive Officer

REVENUE BY TYPE

£7,492m £7,492m

10% 2

M Electronic
16% [l Face-to-face
M Print
74%

1%

24%
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1%
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[ Advertising

52%

47%

55%
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RELX business overview

The Group serves customers in more than 180 countries and has offices in about 40 countries. It employs over 30,000 people, of whom

almost halfarein North America.

Changeat

2018 2017t constant Change
Fortheyearended31December £m £m Change currencies underlying
Revenue 7,492 7,341 +2% +4% +4%
Operating profit 1,964 1,905 +3%
Profit before tax 1,720 1,721 0%
Net profitattributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1,422 1,648 -14%
Net margin 19.0% 22.L%
Net borrowings 6,177 5,042
Reported earnings pershare 71.9p 81.6p -12%
Ordinarydividend per RELXPLC share 42.1p 39.4p +7%

Changeat

2018 2017t constant Change
Fortheyearended31December £m £m Change currencies underlying
Operating profit 2,346 2,284 +3% +4% +6%
Operating margin 31.3% 31.1%
Profit before tax 2,145 2,101 +2% +3%
Net profitattributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1,674 1,620 +3% +5%
Net margin 22.3% 22.1%
Cash flow 2,243 2,197 +2%
Cash flow conversion 96% 96%
Returnoninvested capital 13.2% 12.9%
Adjusted earnings per share 84.7p 80.2p +6% +7%

1 2017 numbers have beenrestated to reflect the adoption of newaccounting standards. See note 1 on page 126 for further details.

The sharesof RELXPLC aretraded onthe London, Amsterdamand New York stock exchanges. RELXPLC and its subsidiaries, jointventures and associates are together

knownas ‘RELX".
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Market segments*

Segment position

Scientific, Technical & Medical provides information and analytics that help institutions and Global #1
professionals progress science, advance healthcare and improve performance

Risk & Business Analytics provides customers with information-based analytics and decision Key verticals #1
tools that combine public and industry-specific content with advanced technology and algorithms
toassistthemin evaluating and predicting risk and enhancing operational efficiency

MBIAIBAQ

Legal provides legal, regulatory and business information and analytics that helps customers US #2
increase their productivity, improve decision-making and achieve better outcomes Outside US #10r2
Exhibitionsis a leading global events business. It combines face-to-face with data and digital tools Global #2

to help customers learn about markets, source products and complete transactions at over 500
eventsinalmost30 countries, attracting more than 7m participants

* Foradditionalinformation regarding revenue from our business activities and geographical markets, see market segments section startingon page 13.

Financial summary by market segment

Revenue Adjusted operating profit
2018 Change 2018 Change
£m underlying £m underlying
Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,538 +2% 942 +2%
Risk & Business Analytics 2,117 +8% 776 +8%
Legal 1,618 +2% 320 +10%
Exhibitions 1,219 +6% 313 +10%

Unallocateditems (5)

7,492 +4% 2,346 +6%

RELXusesadjusted and underlying figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted figures primarily exclude the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and
otheritemsrelatedtoacquisitions and disposals, and the associated deferred tax movements. In 2018 and 2017, we also excluded exceptional tax credits, see note 9 on page 138.
Reconciliations betweenthe reported and adjusted figures are setouton page 176. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, excluding the results of
acquisitions until twelve months after purchase, and excluding the results of disposals and assets held for sale. Underlying revenue growth rates also exclude exhibition cycling.
Constantcurrency growth rates are based on 2017 full-year average and hedge exchange rates.

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£7,492m . £2,346m
o o 13%
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Harnessing technology
across RELX

Around 8,000 technologists, half
of whom are software engineers,
work at RELX. Annually, the
company spends $1.4bn on
technology. The combination of
our rich data assets, technology
infrastructure and knowledge

of how to use next generation
technologies, such as machine
learning and natural language
processing, allows us to create
effective solutions for our customers.

Helping research chemists with
Elsevier’s Reaxys

Reaxys enables the shortest path to chemistry
research answers, supporting the early stages of
drugdevelopmentin the pharmaceuticalindustry,
exploratory chemistry research inacademia,

and product developmentinindustries such

as chemicalsandoil & gas.

The amount of chemicalinformation published
eachyearisincreasing exponentially, making it
more and more challenging for research chemists
to quickly find targeted and actionable information
to help supporttheirresearch.

To help researchers stay on top of theirfield,
Elsevier developed a new chemistry text mining
engine, using state-of-the-art natural language
processing thatidentified 4.9m key substancesin
5.2m documents from more than 15,000 journal
titlesin 2018.

This significantly increased the content coverage
and substance information searchable on Reaxys,
addressing a key pain pointin customer efforts

to find the data they need for drug discovery.



LR 2
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1

Making legal research faster and more
intuitive with Lexis Answers

Everyyear,animmense volume of legal data is
generated, adding to the existing collection of

more than 16m case law legal decisionsand 9Tm
statutes, regulations, constitutions and legislative
documentsin the US alone. As the amount of
electronic dataincreases, legalresearch, analysis
and discovery has become increasingly challenging
and time-consuming.

Traditional legal database searches require legal
researchersto make their query using precise key

words or phrases. This can often produce multiple
responses which may not give the specific
answer needed.

As partof the Lexis Advance online legal research
tool, LexisNexis developed the Lexis Answers
service which allows users to enter their queryin
the form of a natural language question. Using
machine learning, cognitive computing and
advanced naturallanguage processing
technologies, Lexis Answers anticipates a

user’s research path, curating and delivering
relevantanswers based on their question type.
Theresultis fasteranswers in fewer searches.

T EET

Lexis Answers is one of several
features within Lexis Advance

that brings the power of artificial
intelligence and machine learning
to our customers - ultimately
improving their research efficiency,
enhancing their legal workflow
and transforming legal research.

Jeff Pfeifer
Vice President of Product Management,
LexisNexis

RELX data centre

MBIAIBAQ
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Scientific, Technical & Medical

We helpresearchers make newdiscoveries,
collaborate with their colleagues and give them
the knowledge they need to find funding. We help
governments and universities evaluate and

improve their research strategies. We help
doctorsand nursesimprove the lives of patients,
providinginsight to find the right clinical
answers.

= Weenhance the quality of scientific research
output by organising the review, editing and
dissemination of 18% of the world’s
scientificarticles

= ScienceDirect, the world’s largest database
dedicated to peer-reviewed primary scientific
and medicalresearch, has 16m monthly
unique visitors

= Scopusisaleadingabstractand citation
database of research literature, with over 73m
records across 24,000 journals, sourced from
more than 5,000 publishers

= SciVal offersinsightsinto the research
performance of over 10,000 research
institutions

= ClinicalKey, the flagship clinical reference
platform, isaccessed in over 90 countries and
territories, and by over 1,900 institutionsin
North Americaalone

= Elsevierjournals have at some point featured
articles by 183 of 184 science and economics
Nobel prize winners since 2000

1 2016and 2017 restated for adoption of newaccounting standards
IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.

Business overview

Scientific, Technical & Medical provides information and analytics
that help institutions and professionals progress science, advance
healthcare and improve performance.

Elsevieris headquarteredin Amsterdam, with further principal
operationsin Boston, New York, Philadelphia, St. Louis and
Berkeleyin North America, London, Oxford, Frankfurt, Munich,
Madrid and Parisin Europe, Beijing, Chennai, Delhi, Singapore and
Tokyo in Asia Pacificand Rio de Janeiro in South America. It has
7,900 employees and serves customersinaround 180 countries.

Revenues fortheyearended 31 December 2018 were £2,538m,
comparedwith £2,473m*in 2017 and £2,318m™*in 2016.In 2018,
44% of revenue came from North America, 24% from Europe
and the remaining 32% from the rest of the world. Subscription
sales generated 74% of revenue, transactional sales 24% and
advertising 2%.

Elsevier servesthe needs of scientific, technicaland medical
markets by organising the review, editing and dissemination of
primary research, reference and professional education content.
Building onits heritage of high-quality publishing, Elsevier today
appliestechnology to authoritative information, providing tools
that enable fasterand more efficient ways of working, freeing up
userstofocus ontheirgoals.

Elsevier's customers are scientists, academic institutions,
research leadersand administrators, medical researchers,
doctors, nurses, allied health professionals and students,
aswellas hospitals, researchinstitutions, health insurers,
managed healthcare organisations, research-intensive
corporations and governments.

Elsevierservicesfallinto four market categories: Primary
Research, Databases & Tools, Reference and Pharma Promotion.

Primary Research, accounts foraround half of revenues. Elsevier
serves the global scientific research community, publishing over
470,000 articlesin 2018, 60% more than a decade ago. 2018 saw
continued strong growth both in article submissions and usage,
with 1.8m articles submitted and 1bn articles downloaded by
researchers.In 2018, Elsevier published over 34,000 gold open
accessarticles, adouble-digit growth on the previous year,
makingitone of the largest open access publishersin the world.

Elsevier’s portfolio of 2,500 journals is managed by more than
20,000 editors and many are the foremost publications in their
field. Theyinclude flagship titles such as Celland The Lancet
family of journals. In 2018, Elsevier's article output accounted
for 18% of global research output while garnering a 25% share
of citations, demonstrating Elsevier's commitment to delivering
research quality significantly ahead of the industry average.

In 2018, Elsevier launched 9 new subscription and 45 full open
accessjournals, includingiScience and One Earth from Cell Press
and the Lancet’s Eclinical Medicine.

Research contentisdistributed and accessed via ScienceDirect,
theworld’s largest database dedicated to peer-reviewed primary
scientificand medical research, hosting over 16m pieces of
contentaswellas 39,000 e-books.

In 2018, Elsevier acquired Aries Systems, a best-in-class
publication solutions provider, used for manuscript submission,
peerreview, production trackingand e-commerce of journals,
books and other publications.
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In Databases & Tools, Elsevier offers a suite of products for
academic and corporate researchers. Significant products

include Scopus, Reaxys and Knovel. Scopus is the largest abstract
and citation database of peer reviewed literature curated by
independent externalacademic advisers, with over 73m records

across 24,000 journals, sourced from more than 5,000 publishers.

Itallows researcherstotrack, analyse and visualise the world's
research output with features such as CiteScore, providing
comprehensive, transparentand currentinsightsinto journal
impact. Reaxys enables the shortest path to chemistry research
answers, supporting the early stages of drug developmentin the
pharmaceuticalindustry, exploratory chemistry researchin
academia, and product developmentin industries such as
chemicalsand oil & gas. Knovelis a decision supporttool for
engineersthat helps themto select the right materials, a
mission-critical use case in product development across
chemicals, oil & gas and other engineering-focused industries.

Elsevier serves academicand governmentresearch
administrators through its Research Intelligence suite of
products. Leveraging bibliometric data from Scopus and other
datatypessuch as patent citations and usage data, SciValisa
decision tool that helpsinstitutions to establish, execute and
evaluateresearch strategies. Pureisan enterprise research
management solution thataggregates an organisation’s research
information from numerous sources into a single platform,
enabling research networking and expertise discovery while
reducing the administrative burden for faculty and staff.

Elsevier's flagship clinical reference platform, ClinicalKey,
provides physicians, nurses and pharmacists with access to
leading Elsevier and third-party reference and evidence-based
medical content, including over 490 clinical overviews that provide
quick clinicalanswers and summaries; over 4mimages and
51,000 medicaland surgicalvideosinasingle, fully integrated site.

Cell

ClinicalKeyis growing wellandis accessed in over 90
countries and territories, and by over 1,900 institutionsin
North Americaalone.

In medical education, Elsevier serves students of medicine,
nursing and allied health professionsin multiple formats
including electronic books and electronic solutions. For example
Sherpath, an adaptive teaching and learning solution for nursing
and health education, now provides highly focused, personalised
and adaptive learning paths at over 400 institutions, supporting
more than 37,000 enrolments.

For healthcare professionals, Elsevier’s clinical solutions include
Interactive Patient Educationand Care Planning. Arezzo, an active
clinicaldecision support engine integrated with clinical care
systems, matches evidence-based guidelines with patientand
disease information and dynamically evaluates best-practice
treatment options.

In 2018, Elsevier acquired Via Oncology, which provides decision
supportand best practices in cancer care management, bringing
additionaltechnology and innovation to Elsevier’s strengthin
clinical pathways.

Incommercial healthcare, consumer, provider and medical claims
datais usedto deliver leading identity, fraud, compliance and
health risk analytics solutions for payers, providers, pharmacies
and life sciences organisations.

In Reference, Elsevierisagloballeaderin providing authoritative
and current professional reference content to scientific, technical
and medical reference markets. Flagship titles include Gray’s
Anatomy, Nelson's Pediatrics and Netter’s Atlas of Human
Anatomy. Reference contentis delivered in both electronic and
printformats, with print reference now accounting for less than
10% of Elsevier revenues.

Mendeley

ScienceDirect ClinicalKey

Premier life sciences journal with the
highestimpact factorin biochemistry
and molecular biology

Aninnovative research management
and social collaboration platform

CiteScore”

Theworld's largest database dedicated to
peer-reviewed primary scientificand
medicalresearch

or pharmacists

Scival

Combines leading reference and evidence based
medical contentintoits fully integrated clinical
insightengine specialised for doctors, nurses,

CiteScore™ metrics are a set of
comprehensive, transparent, currentand
free metricsto help measure the citation
impact of journals

Aries

This chemical compound and reaction
synthesis database enables the shortest path
tochemistryresearchanswers, supporting
drugdiscovery, chemical R&D and education

Scopus

Ready-to-use tools to analyse the world of
research, and establish, execute and evaluate
the best strategies for research organisations

THE LANCET

Aleaderin scientific publication workflow
solutions used by journals, books and other
publications for manuscript submission, peer
review, production trackingand e-commerce

Via Oncology”

Aleading abstractand citation database of
peer-reviewed literature featuring smart
tools totrack, analyse andvisualise research

since 1823

One of the world’s leading medicaljournals

Designed to helpimprove patient outcomes,
Via Oncology provides clinical pathways
delivering personalised, evidence-based
guidance at the point of care
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Pharma Promotion offers customised commercial marketing
services to pharmaceuticaland medical device companies,
building on Elsevier’s trusted global content brands to connect
and engage with doctors, nurses and other healthcare
professionalswho are influential decision makers.

Scientific, technicaland medicalinformation markets have good
long-term growth characteristics. The importance of research
and developmentto economic performance and competitive
positioning is well understood by governments, academic
institutions and corporations. This is reflected in the long-term
growthinresearch and development spending andinthe number
of researchersworldwide. Growth in health marketsisdriven
by ageing populationsin developed markets, rising prosperity

in developing markets and the increasing focus onimproving
medical outcomes and efficiency. Given that a significant
proportion of scientific research and healthcare is funded
directly orindirectly by governments, spendingis influenced by
governmental budgetary considerations. The commitment to
research and health provision does, however, remain high,
evenin more difficult budgetary environments.

Elsevier's strategic priorities are to: continue toincrease
contentvolume and quality; expand content coverage, building
outintegrated solutions and decision tools combining Elsevier,
third-party and customer data; increase content utility, using
‘Smart Content” to enable new e-solutions; combine content
with analytics and technology, focused on measurably improved
productivity and outcomes for customers; and continue to drive
operational efficiency and effectiveness.

Inthe primary research market, Elsevier aims to deliver journal
and article quality above the industry average at below average
cost, leveraging the scale of its platform. We work directly with our
customers tounderstand their objectives and help them reach
theirresearch goalsin away thatis satisfactory from acontent,
service and economic perspective. Elsevier looks to enhance
quality by building on our premium brands and grow article
volume through new journallaunches, the expansion of open
accessjournalsand growth from emerging markets; and add
value to core platforms by implementing new capabilities such
asadvanced recommendations on ScienceDirect and social
collaboration through reference manager and collaboration
tool Mendeley.

Inreference markets, Elsevier’s priorities are to expand content
coverage and ensure consistentand seamless linking of content
assetsacross products.

Inevery market, Elsevieris applying advanced machine learning
(ML) and natural language processing (NLP) techniques to help
researchers, engineers and clinicians performtheir work better.
Forexample, inresearch, MLand NLP techniques classify scientific
contentand organise it thematically, enabling users to get faster
accesstorelevantresults and related scientific topics. In parallel,
advanced information extractionand NLP techniques are applied
to extract the mostimportantinformation for scientific conceptsin
concise summaries. Elsevieralso applies advanced ML techniques
that detect trending topics per domain, helping researchers make
more informed decisions about their research. Coupled with the
automated profiling and extraction of funding body information
from scientificarticles, this process supports the whole
researcherjourney; from planning, to execution and funding.

Similarly, in health, Elsevieris developing clinical decision
supportapplications utilising cognitive technologies to map
patientand claims data sets, and large image and text content
repositories. These applications embedded in technology
platforms willenhance the delivery of the right content, in the right
care setting, to the right care providers. This will help health
professionals perform their work better, make more accurate
diagnoses, ensure appropriate care delivery, and save more
human lives.

InPrimary Research, science and medicalresearchis principally
disseminated on a paid subscription basis to the research facilities
of academic institutions, governments and corporations and,
inthe case of medicaland healthcare journals, to individual
practitionersand medical society members.

While researchers may continue to prefer paid subscription as the
primarydistribution model, alternative payment models for the
dissemination of research have evolved over the past twenty
years. Elsevier has longinvestedin all business models to serve
researchersand research institutions. Author pays openaccess
isone example, with over 1,900 of Elsevier’s journals now offering
the option of funding publication and distribution via a sponsored
article fee. In addition, Elsevier now publishes around 250 gold
open access titles.

£2,538m £2,538m
Print 17%
Rest of
world
32%

Electronic
83%
Europe 24%

Advertising

£2,538m
2%

Transactional

24%
North

America
4LL%

Subscription
74%
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Forwelloveradecade, contenthas been provided free or atvery
low costin more than 100 countries and territories in the developing
world through Research4Life, a United Nations partnership
initiative. For some journals, advertisingand promotionalincome
representsasmall proportion of revenues, predominantly from
pharmaceutical companies in healthcare titles.

Next tojournals, Elsevier hasalsoinvested in other solutions
toserve the needs of the research community. SSRN isan open
accessonline preprintcommunity where researchers post
early-stage research, prior to publication inacademic journals.
Mendeley data enables researchers to make their research data
publicly available by providing an open research data repository,
while bepress helps academic libraries showcase and share
theirinstitutions’ researchviainstitutional repositories for
greatestimpact.

Electronic products, such as ScienceDirect, Scopus and ClinicalKey,
are generally sold direct to customers through a dedicated sales
force that has offices around the world. Subscription agents
sometimes facilitate the sales and administrative process for
remaining print sales. Reference and educational contentis sold
directly toinstitutions and individuals and accessed on Elsevier
platforms. Sometimesitis still sold in printed book form through
retailers, wholesalers ordirectly to end users.

Competition within science and medical reference contentis
generally on a title-by-title and product-by-product basis and

is typically with learned societies and professionalinformation
providers, such as Springer Nature, Clarivate Analytics and
Wolters Kluwer. Decision tools face similar competition, as well
as from software companies and internal solutions developed
by customers.

2018 2017t Underlying Portfolio Currency Total

£m £m growth changes effects growth

Revenue 2,538 2,473 +2% +2% -1% +3%
Adjusted operating profit 942 914 +2% 0% +1% +3%

Key business trends remained positive in 2018, with underlying
revenue growthin line with the prior year,and underlying
profit growth matching revenue growth.

Underlying revenue growth was +2%. The difference between
the constant currency and underlying growth rates reflects the
impact of portfolio changes and the transfer of a small number of
healthcare products from Risk & Business Analytics.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth was +2% with
underlying cost growth marginally below underlying revenue
growth. The reported marginincreased by 0.1 percentage points,
with currency impacts largely offset by portfolio effects.

Electronic revenues saw continued good growth. In primary
research we continued to enhance customervalue by providing
broader content setsacross ourresearch offering, increasing
the sophistication of our analytics, and evolving our technology
platforms. Databases & tools continued to drive growth

across market segments through enhanced functionality

and content development.

Print book sales, which representaround 10% of divisional
revenues, reverted to historical levels of decline for the main
selling season, with return rates also at historical levels. Print
pharma promotion revenues, which represent less than 5%

of the divisional total, saw a slightly steeper decline thanin
recentyears.

In 2018 we made three smallacquisitions in support of our
organic growth strategy, Via Oncology, Aries Systems and
Science-Metrix, and disposed of a minor pharma business
inJapan.

Our customer environment remains largely unchanged, and
we expect anotheryear of modest underlying revenue growth,
with underlying operating profit growth exceeding underlying
revenue growth.

£m

Underlying growth +2%

2473t 2,538

—

2017 2018

Underlying growth +2%

914t 942

—

2017 2018

1 2017 restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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Via Oncology

helping The Center for
Cancer and Blood Disorders
improve patient treatment

The Center for Cancer and Blood Disorders
in Fort Worth, Texas, treats more than 6,000
new cancer patients annually. That equates
to more than 300,000 patient visits every
year. It has over 25 specialist oncologists and
150 healthcare professionals across nine

locations throughout North Texas.

Elsevier's Via Oncology partnered with The Center
overtenyearsago after oncologists at the clinic
identified a need to ensure that patients experience
consistent, standardised treatment across their
many locations and oncologists.

ViaOncology’s sophisticated online clinical pathway
system, Via Pathways, is an advanced clinical
decision support system that provides points of
care recommendations for diagnostics and
treatment. By using Via Pathways, oncologists

can follow evidence-based care maps based upon
the most current medical evidence and reduce
unwarranted care variability.

Oncologists also are presented with all locally
available clinicaltrials prior to starting a
treatment pathway for new patients, ensuring
they are presented with all options for treatment.

Since implementing Via Pathways, The Center’s
oncologists can review more data on their
patients’ outcomes, demonstrating that the care
they deliveris consistentacross their network.
Forexample, The Center’s capture rate, which
measures how consistently doctors use Via
Pathways and tracks all patient visits, has
reached 89% across 34 disease pathways
representing over 95% of cancer types.

The Center considers Via Oncology to be at the
cruxof its value-based care initiatives, enabling
participation in studies of new care models.




{3
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Oncology doctor and nurse
at The Center for Cancer
and Blood Disorders

Via Pathways is a great tool that we

can use to standardize our therapies.
We can show that physicians are being
congruent with standards of care and
are taking into account the effectiveness,
toxicity and cost, and making appropriate
treatment choices. That means we're
providing the highest standard of care

to our patients.

Dr RayPage, DO, PhD
President of The Center for Cancer
and Blood Disorders, Texas
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Risk & Business Analytics

We combine data and analytics with deep
industry expertise to help customers make
better decisions and manage risk. We deliver

insighttoinsurance companies and help detect
and preventonline fraud and money laundering.
We provide digitaltools that help airlines and
farmersimprove their operations.

More than 80% of new US auto insurance
policiesissuedto consumersin 2017 benefited
from our products

LexisNexis Risk Solutions performs over 100m
identity verification checks and over 100bn
customerand transaction screening requests
annually, supportingindustries such as
banking, fintech and e-commerce

LexisNexis Risk Solutions works with more
than 75% of Fortune 500 companies, seven out
of ten of the world's top banks and 95 out of the
top 100 personallines insurance companies

With insight into over 900m ThreatMetrix ID
anonymised useridentities, ThreatMetrix
deliverstheintelligence behind over 30bn
annual authentication and trust decisions to
differentiate legitimate customers from
fraudstersinrealtime

Accuity has information on over 22,000 banks,
and hosts over 600,000 financial counterparty
due diligence documents. Over 95 of the world’s
largest 100 banks use its data

Cirium tracks 100,000 commercial flights every
dayand more than 70m passengeritinerariesa
year, while analysing 2.5bn travel segments per
annumworth about $300bn. Cirium holds data
onmore than 100,000 commercial aircraft

1 2016and 2017 restated for adoption of newaccounting standards
IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.

Business overview

Risk & Business Analytics provides customers with information-
based analytics and decision tools that combine publicand
industry-specific content with advanced technology and
algorithmsto assistthemin evaluating and predicting risk and
enhancing operational efficiency.

Risk & Business Analytics, headquartered in Alpharetta, Georgia,
has principal operationsin California, Florida, Illinois and Ohio

in North Americaaswellas London in Europe and Beijing in Asia
Pacific. It has about 8,700 employees and serves customersin
more than 170 countries.

Revenues for theyearended 31 December 2018 were £2,117m,
comparedwith £2,073mtin 2017 and £1,905m™in 2016.1n 2018, 79%
of revenue came from North America, 15% from Europe and the
remaining 6% from the rest of the world. Subscription sales
generated 36% of revenues, transactional sales 63% and
advertising 1%.

Risk & Business Analytics comprises the following market-facing
industry/sector groups: Insurance Solutions, Business Services,

Data Services [including banking, energy and chemicals, aviation,
agriculture and human resources) and Government Solutions.

Insurance Solutions, the largest segment, provides
comprehensive data, analytics and decision tools for personal,
commercialand lifeinsurance carriersinthe US toimprove
critical aspects of their business. Information solutions, including
the most comprehensive US personal loss history database,
C.L.U.E., helpinsurers assessrisks and provide importantinputs
to pricingand underwriting insurance policies. Additional key
productsinclude LexisNexis Data Prefill, which provides
information on customersdirectly into the insurance work stream
and LexisNexis Current Carrier, which identifies insurance
coverage details and any lapsesin coverage.

The focusis on deliveringinnovative decision tools through
asingle point of accesswithinaninsurer’sinfrastructure.
LexisNexis Active Insights, our solution for active risk
management, connects proprietary linking algorithms with vast
amounts of data to proactively inform insurers of key events
impacting their policyholders. Insurance Solutions is advancing
its strategy to drive more consistency and efficiency in claims
through its solution suite, Claims Compass, with Claims Datafill
providing data and decisions at first notice of loss and throughout
the claim life cycle. Risk Classifier solution, which uses publicand
motor vehicle records and predictive modelling, is used by around
aquarter ofthetop 50 life insurers to better understand risk and
improve underwriting efficiency.

Insurance Solutions continues to make progress outside the US.
Inthe UK, contributory solutions including No Claims Discount
module, which automates verification of claims history and Policy
Insights, a predictor of motor claims loss, are delivered through the
LexisNexis Informed Quotes platform to provide real-time datain
the quoting process. In China, Genilexis delivering key vehicle data
toautoinsurersandis looking toadd more analytics solutions. In
India, our Intelligence Exchange contributory platform and Risk
Insights solution are used by life insurers to predict, betterassess
and manage risk within the underwriting and claims management
processes. In Brazil, Insurance Solutions is delivering telematics
solutions, dataand analytics to help motorinsurersin underwriting
andworking with health insurers to reduce claims costs and make
faster, more focused decisions.
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Business Services works with customers to solve key issues,
suchas financial exclusion and financial transparency. Business
Services leverages technology, data, advanced linking and
analytics to help banks, telecommunications and e-commerce
companies, retailers and other organisations to prevent fraud,
manage identity risk, comply with financial crime regulations,
assess creditriskand collectdebt.

Customersrely on Business Services for identify verification,
watch-list screening, due diligence, credit scoring and skip
tracing. It leverages machine learning (ML) and artificial
intelligence (Al algorithmsinits products to provide customers
with clarity, enabling faster decisions with a greater degree

of confidence.

In 2018, Business Services added digital identity data to its physical
identity dataset through the acquisition of ThreatMetrix. Asaresult
of the transaction, customers gained access to solutions that
provide a 360-degree view into anidentity. This perspective helps
customers make decisions that thwart bad actors while enabling
legitimate consumers to transact frequently in africtionless
environment. The ThreatMetrix integration continues to hitits
acquisition milestones, including: the creation of a combined
go-to-market organisation that consists of global sales and
marketing teams; the initiation of work to combine our physical
and digitalidentity solutionsinto a holistic fraud prevention
andidentity management solution; and the undertaking of
development efforts to expand the Digital Identity Network into
financial crime compliance and credit risk assessment for
developing economies.

VerifyHCP

Business Services continued to make progressininternational
markets outside the US, building scale in key geographies
including the UK and Brazil.

DataServices providesindispensable businessinformation, data
and analytics solutions to professionals in many of the world’s
biggestindustries, including: Accuity, a provider of services and
solutions to the banking and corporate sectors focused on
payment efficiency, Know Your Customer (KYC), anti-money
laundering (AML) and compliance; ICIS, aninformation and data
service in chemicals, energy and fertilisers; Cirium, a leading
provider of data and analytics for the global commercial aviation
and travelindustry; Proagrica, a provider of software, connectivity
solutions, data, analytics and media streams for the global
agriculture sector; XpertHR, an online service providing
regulatory guidance, best practices and tools for human resource
professionals; EG, which delivers a mix of high-quality data,
decision tools and high-value news and information to the UK’s
commercial real estate market; and Nextens, a provider of tools
and services for tax professionals.

In 2018, Data Services completed the acquisitions of Safe Banking
Systems, a specialist provider of AML and KYC compliance
solutions with a particular focus onaccountscreeningand SST
Solutions, a leading provider of precision agriculture technologies
andtoolsinthe US. Data Services also continued to reshapeits
portfolio, exiting areas not core toits strategy, divesting Boerderij,
a Netherlands-based agriculture title, during the course of
theyear.

World Compliance

6 Lexisﬂq:gtiS'

RS SO

LexisNexis Active Insights A

The VerifyHCP solution provides a proven
approachto help payers keep their provider
directories currentand improve compliance
with US state and federalregulations

Our leading-edge curated content related
toeconomic sanctions, financial crime
enforcementactions, politically exposed
persons (PEPs), and adverse media enables
customers to comprehensively and efficiently
protecttheir enterprises from reputational,
regulatory, legaland enforcement risks

Risk Defense Platform

An active risk management solution that
providestimely alerts of recent changes
occurringinthe householdto helpinsurers
enhance customer relationships with
betterservice

Claims Compass

Innovative solutions for payments and compliance
professionals, from comprehensive dataand
software to manage risk and compliance, to
flexible tools that optimise payments pathways

Accurint® Virtual Crime Center

Aninnovative fraud prevention and identity
management platform that seamlessly
delivers the broadest of solutionsincluding the
latestin machine learning that adapts to ever-
changing fraud schemes, simplifying efforts
todetectand preventrisks associated with the
merging of digitaland physicalidentities

ThreatMetrix® Digital Identity Network®

Data analytics suite with LexisNexis Claims
Datafilland LexisNexis Police Records that
improves the claims process from first notice
of loss, triage, investigation and resolution
through recovery

CCIRIUM YICIS

Policing platform used foranalytics, crime
analysis and investigations linking public
records to national law enforcement data
foracomplete picture acrossjurisdictions

Anetwork that providesinsightinto true
digitalidentity, by analysing global shared
intelligence across more than 30bn annual
transactionsto distinguish legitimate
consumersversus fraudsters

Dataand analytics for the global commercial
aviationand travelindustry

Global provider of news, price benchmarks,
dataandresearchtothe energy, chemical
and fertiliserindustries
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Government Solutions provides avariety of identity management,
fraud detection and prevention, collections and investigation
solutions to US federal, state and local law enforcement and
governmentagencies. These solutions help verify beneficiaries
for government programmes, solve criminal cases, support
national security initiatives and identify fraud, waste and abuse

in government benefit programmes, as well as identity theft
solutions fortaxagencies to help ensure legitimate taxpayers
receive refunds and business intelligence solutions allowing
governmentagencies to find additional fraud and property tax.

Market opportunities

We operate in markets with strong long-term growth in demand
for high-quality advanced analytics based on industry information
andinsight, including: insurance underwriting transactions;
insurance acquisition, retention and claims handling; healthcare,
taxand public benefits fraud; financial crime compliance; business
risk; fraud and identity solutions; due diligence requirements
surrounding customer enrolment; security and privacy
considerations; and dataand advanced analytics for the banking,
energy and chemicals, aviation and human resources sectors.

Intheinsurance segment, growth is supported by increasing
transactionalactivity in the auto, commercialand life insurance
markets and the increasing adoption by insurance carriers of
more sophisticated dataand analyticsin the prospecting,
underwriting and claims evaluation processes, to assessrisk,
increase competitiveness and improve operating cost efficiency.
Transactionalactivityis driven by growth ininsurance quoting and
policy switching, as consumers seek better policy terms.

This activity is stimulated by competition among insurance
companies, high levels of carrier advertising and rising levels of
internet quoting and policy binding. We continue to expand our
services to make it easier for the consumerto transact withan
insurer throughout the insurance process. We are developing
solutions thatbridge insurers and automakers, utilising
connectivityas ameansto leverage and monetise the data from
Advanced Driver Assistance Systems (ADAS) and connected cars,
and engage consumers with driving behaviour information,
collision detectionand otherinsurance-related services.

Mounting fraud losses, continuing AML fines, high-profile
anti-briberyand corruption cases, growth through consumerand
business credit expansion, and heightened regulatory scrutiny

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

create growth opportunities. The rise of fintech, alternative lending
and digital economy companiesis also creating opportunities.
Anumber of factors support growth for compliance solutionsin
banking and financial services markets, including cross-border
payments and trade finance levels. In collections, demandis driven
mainly by the ongoing escalation of consumer debt and the prospect
of recovering that debt.

Theincreasing demand for our contributory solutions to combat
criminalactivity, fraud and tax evasionis driving growth in
government markets. The leveland timing of demand in this market
isinfluenced by government funding and revenue considerations.

Growthinthe globalenergy and chemicals markets s led by
increasing trade and demand for more sophisticated information
solutions. Aviation information markets are being driven by increases
inairtrafficand in the number of aircraft transactions. Growth in
agriculture marketsis being driven by adoption of technology and
data solutions plus increasing supply chain connectivity.

Strategicpriorities

Our strategic goalis to help businesses and governments achieve
better outcomes with information and decision supportin their
individual markets through better understanding of the risks and
opportunities associated with individuals, other businesses,
transactions and regulations. By providing high quality industry
dataand decision tools, we assist customersin understanding their
markets and managing risks efficiently and cost effectively. To
achieve this, we are focused on: delivering innovative new products;
expanding the range of risk management solutions across adjacent
markets; addressing international opportunitiesin selected
markets to meet local needs; further growing our data services
businesses; and continuing to strengthen our content, technology
and analytical capabilities.

Risk & Business Analytics has been developing Aland ML
techniques foranumber of years to generate the actionable insights
thathelp our customers to make accurate, betterinformed and
more timely decisions. The successful deployment of Aland ML
techniques starts with a deep understanding of customer needs,
leveragesthe breadth and depth of our data sets, coupled with the
expertise and domain knowledge to discern which Al/ML algorithm
touse, inwhat context, to solve our customers’ business problems
effectively.

REVENUE BY TYPE

£2,117m Face-to- Print £2,117m
Europe

15%

Electronic
96%

Rest of world
face 2% 2% 6%

Advertising
1%

£2,117m

Subscription
36%

North
America

79%

Transactional
63%
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Business model, distribution channels and competition Servicesand Government Solutions segments include the major
Our products are mainly sold directly, typically on a subscription credit bureaus, which in many cases address different activitiesin
ortransactional basis. Pricing is predominantly on atransactional  these segmentsaswell.
basisfori i d ti dpri il . . . . )
aijjlssg:ilnt?(?r:ir;cs?scfzrrrlE(}):/Seerlrr:mceirtzonrt?tizjsns' andprimartty on Data Services competes with a number of information providers
P g ' onaservice and title-by-title basisincluding S&P Global Platts,
Intheinsurance sector, our competitor Verisk sells dataand Thomson Reuters and IHS Markit as well as number of niche and
analytics solutions toinsurance carriers butlargely addresses privately owned competitors.
differentactivities to ours. Principal competitors in the Business
2018 financial performance
2018 2017* Underlying Portfolio Currency Total
£m £m growth changes effects growth
Revenue 2,117 2,073 +8% -3% -3% +2% e
Adjusted operating profit 776 760 +8% -2% -4% +2% §
2
Underlying revenue growthwas strongin 2018, in line with the across the financialand corporate sectors continued to drive §
- . . - . . . . ®
prior year. Underlying profit growth matched underlying growth, inarobust US and international market environment. z
revenue growth. . . . .
9 In Data Services, organic development of innovative new
Underlying revenue growth was +8%. The difference between products and expansion of the range of risk management
the constant currency and underlying growth rates reflects solutions drove growth across market verticals. In Government,
portfolio changes and the transfer of a small number of which accounts foraround 5% of divisional revenues, we
healthcare products to Scientific Technical & Medical. continued to drive customervalue through the introduction of
. . . . . histicated analytics.
Underlying adjusted operating profit growth matched underlying sophisticated anatytics
revenue growth as we continued to pursue our strategy, with a Risk & Business Analytics acquired three dataand analytics
primary focus on organic development. businesses that supportour organic growth strategyin 2018, ©
. . ThreatMetrix, SST and Safe Banking Syst ddi dof 2
Insurance grew strongly. We continued to drive growth through nu;?k?erc?f:wxihor :li:tanadithaer;e:gsgetzs S, A LSRR el s %
the roll-out of enhanced analytics, the extension of data sets, and P ’ §
o

by further expansioninadjacentverticals, in US market
conditions that, over the year as awhole, were neutral to mildly
positive. Internationalinitiatives continued to progress well.

In Business Services, further development of analytics that help
our customers to detectand prevent fraud and to manage risk

REVENUE

2019 outlook

The fundamental growth drivers of Risk & Business Analytics
remain strong, and we expect underlying operating profit growth
to continue to broadly match underlying revenue growth.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m

Underlying growth +8%

2,073t 2,117

2017 2018

£m
Underlying growth +8%
7601 776

2017 2018

1 2017 restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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Cirium
managing the cost
of disrupted flights

Gant Travel Management is an innovative travel
management company based in Bloomington,
Indiana, with more than 80 years of experience.
Itis expertin optimising the performance of the
world’s largest travel and expense reporting
platform. Its people and technology help
manage the expense and experience of
corporate travel.

Labour strikes, natural disasters and extreme
weatherall cause flight disruption, which has a
significantimpact on traveller experience and
travelindustry costs. In 2017, 3.6m flights were
cancelled or delayed by over 30 minutes. Everyyear,
airlines lose approximately $35bn because of these
irregular operations. This cost jumps to more than
$60bnwhen considering the impact to travellers
and the broader ecosystem.

When disruption happens, most airlines publish
waivers to allow travellers to change their flight
plans ahead of the disruption with no change fee.
Most waivers are handled manually on a reactive
basis. Thereisn'tastandardised formatand
travellers often aren'talerted effectively or
quickly enough.

Cirium’s Travel Waiver Services automate the
process of matching trips to waivers, making it
easier and quicker for agents to find waiver details
and understandifatraveller’s flight qualifies.

These services allow agents to reallocate travellers
proactively with new travel plans when needed,
reducing the average handling time forincoming
callsand ultimately saving the traveller time and
worry about flight changes.

By integrating Cirium’s service, Gant reduced the
amount of time needed to resolve atraveller’s
disrupted flight by a third. Italso contributed toa
reduction in the number of calls agents had to make
toairlines to solve problems by an average of 50%.
Having the right information at the right time means
that Gant could save costs and provide a superior
level of service for travellers affected by disruption.



Annual report and financial statemen

Cirium holds data on more than
100,000 commercial aircraft
including the Airbus A330

Cirium worked in concert with us
and the travel ecosystem suppliers
to fix a broken process that we all
thought was unfixable. The results
were innovation that saved us over
10% labor costs during key periods
of disruption. This gave us a
significant advantage in staffing
and directly benefited our traveller
experience. Cirium made our new
process possible.

Patrick Linnihan
President & CEO of
Gant Travel Management
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ThreatMetrix

identitying and blocking {
fraud in real time

Gumtree was founded in 2000 as a classified v i
adverts site for travellers arriving in London.

From these modest beginnings, Gumtree.com

is now the UK's leading classifieds site, with i
16.4m unique visitors and 12.6m replies

to adverts each month.

Gumtree brings togetheran eclectic collection

of like-minded buyers, sellers and other users
ranging from flat-sharers looking to filla vacant
room to cars, clothes and vintage furniture sales.
The platform does not process any payment
transactions and therefore relies on the safety,
trustworthiness and authenticity of users.

Historically fraudsters have seen aclear
opportunity to exploit the platform. They sign up
foraccountsinorderto make fake listings or dupe
unsuspecting usersinto transferring money for an
item that never materialises. Gumtree needed a
solution that could maintain the integrity of the
platform while keeping fraudsters out. It
harnessed intelligence from the ThreatMetrix
Digital Identity Network to betteridentify high-risk
users before they opened a Gumtree account.

The ThreatMetrix Digital Identity Network
crowdsources intelligence from millions of daily
consumerinteractions including logins, payments,
and new account applications across thousands
of global businesses. Using this information,
ThreatMetrix creates a unique digitalidentity for
each user by analysing the myriad connections
between devices, locations and anonymised
personalinformation.

Behaviour that deviates from this trusted digital
identity can be accurately identified in real time,
alerting Gumtree to new users who may be using
stolen identity data, obfuscating their location or
attempting to sign up for multiple accounts from the
same device.
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The ThreatMetrix team has been
really proactive in helping us improve
our rules for detecting fraud, so
much so that we have seen a
significant increase in the fraud
detection rate since we worked
together to improve the performance
of the model.

Fergus Campbell
Head of Communications,
Gumtree
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Legal

Business overview

Legal provides legal, regulatory and business information

and analytics that helps customersincrease their productivity,
improve decision-making and achieve better outcomes.

We help lawyers win cases, manage their work
more efficiently, serve their clients better and
grow their practices. We assist corporations
inbetter understanding their markets and LexisNexis Legal & Professionalis headquarteredin New York
and has further principal operationsin Ohio, North Carolina and
Torontoin North America, London and Parisin Europe, and cities

inseveral other countries in Africa and Asia Pacific. It has 10,500

preventing bribery and corruption within their
supply chains. We partner with leading global
associations and customers to help advance

the rule of law across the world.

The LexisNexis legaland news database
contains 109bn documents and records

1.7m new legal documents are added daily to
the database from 52,000 sources, generating
43bn connections. Inall, 20m legal documents
are processed daily

Nexis news and business contentincludes
40,000 premium sourcesin 30 languages,
covering more than 150 countries. It has data
including 320m company profiles with a content
archive that dates back 40 years

The LexisNexis database includes more than
226m courtdockets and documents, 122m
patentdocuments, 2.1m State Trial Orders, and
1.2m Juryverdict and settlement documents

PatentSight’s database includes objective
ratings of the innovative strength (Patent Asset
Index) of more than 88m patent documents
from more than 80 countries

In 2018, Law360 produced over 50,000 news
and analysis articles

Legalanalytics tool Lex Machina has
normalised over 22m counsel mentions and
18m party mentions since 2016

LexisNexis is committed to advancing the rule
of law through operations and solutions that
provide transparency into the law in more than
130 countries

1 2016and 2017 restated for adoption of newaccounting standards
IFRS9,IFRS 15and IFRS 16.

employeesworldwide and serves customers in more than
130 countries.

Revenues fortheyear ended 31 December 2018 were £1,618m,
comparedwith £1,686mtin 2017 and £1,619m*in 2016.1n 2018,
67% of revenue came from North America, 21% from Europe and
the remaining 12% from the rest of the world. Subscription sales
generated 77% of revenue and transactional sales 23%.

LexisNexis Legal & Professionalis organised in market-facing
groups. These are supported by global shared services
organisations providing platform and product development,
operationaland distribution services, and other supportfunctions.

In North America, electronic reference, decision tools and
analytics help legaland business professionals make better
informed decisionsin the practice of law and in managing their
businesses. The flagship product for legalresearch and analytics
is Lexis Advance, which provides statutes and case law together
with analysis and expert commentaries from secondary sources,
such as Matthew Bender. Furthermore, Lexis Advance includes
the leading citation service, Shepard’s, which advises on the
continuing relevance of case law precedents. In North America,
LexisNexis also provides customers with news and business
information, ranging from daily news to company filings, public
records information, legalanalytics tools, practical guidance,
and efficiency solutions. LexisNexis also partners with law
schools to provide services to students as part of their training.

In 2018, LexisNexis continued to release new versions of Lexis
Advance, aninnovative web and mobile application designed to
transform how legal professionals conduct research and use
analytics and data to drive decision making. Built on the New Lexis
advanced technology platform, Lexis Advance allows customers
within legaland professional organisations to find relevant
information more easily and efficiently, helping to drive better
outcomes. Future releases will further expand contentand add
new innovative analytical tools extensively using machine learning
(ML) and natural language processing (NLP). LexisNexis employs
lawyers and trained editors with professional legal backgrounds
who review, annotate, and update its legal content to help ensure
the collectionis currentand comprehensive. Thisdomain
expertise combined with artificialintelligence (Al)and RELX's big
data HPCC technology enables LexisNexis to update its entire
legal collection faster and more efficiently than before, while also
identifying and linking content, enabling customers to identify
previously undiscovered relationships between documents.

LexisNexis continues to investinadvanced ML and Al capabilities
thathelp power Lexis Advance. In 2018, these technologies were
used to enhance the Lexis Answers solution which leverages
advanced NLP technologies, with the introduction of additional
questiontypesand features.
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In 2018, LexisNexis enhanced Lexis Advance by incorporating
advanced visualisationsincluding ‘Ravel View', a visualisation
enhanced by Shepard’s treatment insights that transforms
traditional case law search lists into a map of the most
authoritative cases. In 2018, LexisNexis also introduced Shepard’s
Case Card, whichvisually displays key Shepard’s data such as the
number of citing references, type of treatmentand most cited
headnote for case law search results.

LexisNexis also continues to expand the reach of its decision tools
and analytics. In 2018, LexisNexis launched Lexis Analytics, a suite
of analytics tools thatincorporates the capabilities of Lex Machina,
Intelligize, and Ravel Law. In conjunction with the launch of Lexis
Analytics, LexisNexis also launched Context, a legal language
analytics solution that enables users to extract language deemed
most persuasive by judges from court opinions, challenges,

and motions.

The legalanalytics tool Lex Machina also extended its reach with
the addition of four new modulesin 2018, including Trade Secret
and Insurance, taking the total number of practice areas covered
to 13. Lexis Practice Advisor rolled out an additional eight
modules, including Antitrust, Data Privacy and Security, and
Trusts and Estates, taking the total to 17 active modules.

Inthe Intellectual Property analytics space, LexisNexis
proprietary Patent Asset Index, created by PatentSight, is used
by corporations worldwide to manage and value their intellectual
property portfolios.

In 2018, LexisNexis also launched a State Law Comparison Tool
on Lexis Practice Advisor, which covers four practice areas and
51jurisdictions. The tool compares differencesin the law across
state jurisdictions and produces a customisable report to support
complexresearch projects.

In Canada, LexisNexis enhanced Lexis Advance Quicklaw by
incorporating advanced data visualisation with the introduction
of Search Term Maps.

@ LexisNexis Lexis®PSL

LexisNexis also supplies Business of Law Software Solutions
tolawfirmsand corporate legal departments. These solutions
include practice management solutions, case management,
and costrecovery services.

Ininternational markets outside North America, LexisNexis
serves legal, corporate, government, accounting and academic
marketsin Europe, Africaand Asia Pacific with local and
international legal, regulatory and business information.

The most significant of these businesses are inthe UK, France,
Australiaand South Africa.

Inthe UK, LexisNexisis aleading legalinformation provider
offering an extensive collection of primary and secondary
legislation, case law, expert commentary, practical guidance,
and currentawareness. Its extensive portfolio includes a number
of leading brands: Halsbury’s, Butterworths, Tolley, MLex, and
Jordan Publishing.In 2018, LexisNexis has continued to bring
increasingly sophisticated analytics to market, such as Tolley.Al,
aquestion-and-answer research tool thatuses NLP to
understand and answer customer questions within the tax
practice area.

In 2018, LexisNexis furtherincreased practical guidance
functionality. Thisincluded adding greater depth and practical
overlaytothe core content set, launching new content types such
asinteractive workflow documents, as well as further investment
in LexisPSLs search capability. Contract productivity and
proofreading tool LexisDraftis widely used among the largest law
firms, while MLex has become a leading source of regulatory
news and insight for legal professionals. Tolley, the LexisNexis tax
intelligence suite, continued to expand its reach in 2018, with tax
firms of all sizes leveraging TolleyLibrary and TolleyGuidance.

In France, LexisNexis" main offering, Lexis360, is an integrated
solution combining legalinformation, in-depth analysis with
JurisClasseur content, and practical guidance. In 2018, LexisNexis
enhanced the Lexis360 solution, improving user experience,
performance and search relevance.

Matthew Bender

LexisNexis UK legal practical

guidance service

Lexis Practice Advisor”

Shephard’s” Citations Service

Criticalanalysis, checklists, forms and
practice guides authored by industry experts
covering over 50 major practice areas

Intelligize’

LexisNexis North American Research
Solution’s practical guidance service

Lexis Advance’

Premier citations service

Lexis*Library

Provides analytics and benchmarking of
SEC filings to optimise compliance strategies

(& PATENTSIGHT

Flagshiponline legalresearch tool that
transforms the way legal professionals
conductresearch

online product

Lex Maching’

LexisNexis UK flagship legal

Patentanalytics solution that provides
insights into the strength, quality
andvalue of patent portfolios

Provides Legal Analytics to companiesand
law firms, enabling them to craft successful
strategies, win cases and close business

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ BIDUBULS

9J0UBUJIBA0G

UOI1BWIO0JUI J3Y}0 PUB SJUBWSIR]S (BIDURUIS




30 RELX Annual report and financial statements 2018 | Business review

In South Africa, LexisNexis launched a regulatory monitoring
service for 13 African countries, throughiits online Lexis
Assure product.

In Austria, LexisNexis launched two modules for Lexis360,
targeting the taxand corporate segments, adding video content
and webinar capabilities.

Inthe Middle East, LexisNexis launched Gulf Legal Advisor,
anintegrated practical guidance solution.

Inthe Asia Pacific region, LexisNexis continued its focus on
providing authoritative local online content embedded in decision
tools for legal professionals. In Australia, the New South Wales
Courtof Appeal Analyser was launched with data visualisation,
and New Zealand launched ComplyHub, which is a regulatory
compliance tool for smalland medium sized businesses.

Lexis Chinareleased a newversion of its flagship online legal
research platform with improved user experience features and
expanded content.

Supporting our Rule of Law mission, LexisNexis has been named
among the top ten companies for corporate social responsibility in
the 2018 Annual Review of the State of CSRin Australia and New
Zealandforasecondyearrunning. LexisNexis Australiaisalsoan
official project partnerinalandmarkinquiry led by the Australian
Human Rights Commissionerinto the challenges to human rights
and freedoms presented by technologies such as Al, social media,
and big data.

Market opportunities

Longertermgrowthinlegaland regulatory markets worldwide is
driven by increasing levels of legislation, regulation, regulatory
complexity and litigation, and anincreasing number of lawyers.
Additional market opportunities are presented by the increasing
demand for online information solutions, legal analytics and other
solutions aswellas decision support solutions thatimprove the
quality and productivity of research, deliver better legal outcomes
and improve business performance. Notwithstanding this, legal
activityand legalinformation markets are also influenced by
economic conditions and corporate activity, as has been seen with

the continued subdued environmentin North Americaand Europe.

Strategicpriorities

LexisNexis Legal & Professional’s strategic goalis to enable
better legal outcomes and be the leading provider of productivity-
enhancing information, analytics and information-based decision

toolsinits market. To achieve this, LexisNexis is focused on
introducing next-generation products and solutions on the global
New Lexis platform and infrastructure; incorporating advanced
technologiesincluding ML and NLP; leveraging New Lexis globally
todrive print-to-electronic migration and long-term international
growth; and upgrading operationalinfrastructure, improving
process efficiency and gradually improving margins.

Inthe US, LexisNexis is focused on the ongoing development of
legalresearch and practice solutions that help lawyers make
data-driven decisions. Over the comingyears, progressive
productintroductions, based on the New Lexis platform and
powered by big data HPCC Systems technology, will combine
advanced technologies, enriched contentand sophisticated
analytics to enable LexisNexis customers to make data-driven
legaldecisionsand drive better outcomes for their organisations
and clients.

Outside the US, LexisNexis is focused on growing online services
and developing further high-quality actionable contentand
decision tools, including the development of additional practical
guidance and decision tools. In 2019, LexisNexis will continue to
expand the New Lexis platform globally, including launchesin
Malaysia and Singapore. Additionally, LexisNexis is focusing on
the expansion of its activities in emerging markets.

LexisNexis is also continuing the mission of spreading equality,
transparency and access to legal remedies globally through the
recently formed LexisNexis Rule of Law Foundation, a non-profit
entity thatwill help provide financial and other support for projects
thataimtoadvance the Rule of Lawaround the world.

Business model, distribution channels and competition
LexisNexis Legal & Professional products and services are
generally sold directly to law firms and to corporate, government,
accountingand academic customers on a paid subscription basis,
with subscriptions with law firms often under multi-year contracts.

Principal competitors for LexisNexis in US legal markets are
Westlaw (Thomson Reuters), CCH (Wolters Kluwer) and
Bloomberg. In news and business information key competitors
are Bloomberg and Factiva (News Corporation).

Significantinternational competitorsinclude Thomson Reuters,
Wolters Kluwer and Factiva.

REVENUE BY FORMAT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET REVENUE BY TYPE
£1,618m £1,618m  Rest of world £1,618m
. 12% ,
Print Transactional

17%
Europe

21%

Electronic
83%

23%

North

America Subscription
67% 77%
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2018 financial performance
2018 2017* Underlying Portfolio Currency Total
£m £m growth changes effects growth
Revenue 1,618 1,686 +2% -3% -3% -4%
Adjusted operating profit 320 328 +10% -10% -2% -2%

Underlying revenue growthin 2018 was in line with the prior
year, with continued efficiency gains driving strong underlying
operating profit growth.

Underlying revenue growth was +2%. The difference between
the constant currency and underlying growth rates reflects
portfolio changes.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth was +10%. The
increase in operating profit margin reflects ongoing organic
processimprovements as we enter the latter stages of systems
decommissioning. This more than offset the absence of a profit
contribution from joint ventures, and other portfolio effects.

REVENUE

The market environment for legal services, and for legal
information providers, remained stable. Electronic revenues
saw continued growth, partially offset by print declines.

The roll-out of new platform releases with broader data sets
and tools continued across our US and international markets.

In 2018 we supported the organic expansion of our leading legal
analytics services with the acquisition of the German IP analytics
business Patentsight, and disposed of two minor assets.

2019 outlook

Trendsin our major customer markets are unchanged,
continuing to limit the scope for underlying revenue growth.
We expect good underlying profit growth.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m

Underlying growth +2%

1,686 1,618

2017 2018

£m

Underlying growth +10%

3287 320

2017 2018

1 2017 restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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complex financial discl

Mayer Brown is a global law firm that advises
the world’s leading companies and financial
institutions on their most complex deals and
disputes. With extensive reach across four
continents, itis the only integrated law firmin
the world with approximately 200 lawyersin
each of the world’s largest financial centres
- New York, London and Hong Kong.

Mayer Brown advises issuers, investment banks
and investors in making disclosures to the US
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Thesedisclosures relate to transactions such
as public offerings. The firm’s clients are under
constant pressure to stay up to date with
regulatory change. They depend on Mayer Brown
partner Anna Pinedo and her colleagues to help
them ensure the disclosures are accurate and
thatthey are aware of disclosure trends, peer
company disclosures and related matters.
However, researching relevant precedents
cantake a lot of time - so finding a more efficient

way of workingis critical to Mayer Brown and
its clients.

When Mayer Brown is engaged on a new securities
offering, it regularly uses Intelligize to quickly find
peer companiesinthe same industry forinsights
onsimilardisclosures. Intelligize instantly
provides links to relevant SEC comments and
responses from multiple peer companies. This
puts clientsina position to anticipate potential
problems and put forward disclosures that avoid
expensive and time consuming comment letters
from the regulator.

About Intelligize

Intelligize pulls together and
automatically links a broad set of SEC
disclosure documents from filings
tocomment letters, agreements and
other exhibits - enabling customers
to navigate between related content
with ease.

With advanced search tools and
graphicalanalytical views, the solution
rapidly delivers deep insights into filing
anddisclosure characteristics that
would otherwise require extensive
research effort. Intelligize makes it
easy to identify market standard
language and mitigate risk in
disclosures by benchmarking output
from multiple peer companies.
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Mayer Brown LLP's
offices in New York

Intelligize makes it easy to find the
precedents you know are out there
for specific transaction types and
peer companies. It allows us to very
efficiently analyze massive amounts
of disclosure documents, efficiencies
we can pass on to our clients.

AnnaPinedo
Partner, Mayer Brown LLP
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Exhibitions

Our events leverage industry expertise, large

datasetsandtechnologyto enable our customers

to generate billions of dollars of revenues for the
economic development of local markets and
national economies around the world.

= Morethan500eventsareinthe Reed
Exhibitions portfolio

= 43industrysectorsare servedinalmost 30
countries across the globe

= Eachyearwehostaround 130,000 exhibitors

attracting more than 7m participants

= |n2018 Reed Exhibitions launched 44
new events

= Ourdigital productsincrease the value of our
events to participants, enabling them to make

new contactsand meet face-to-facetodo

business. In 2018, 247 events offered proactive

matchmaking and the vast majority of
customers using the matchmaking service
reported highervalue and satisfaction

1 2016and 2017 restated for adoption of newaccounting standards

IFRS9,IFRS 15and IFRS 16.

Business overview

Exhibitionsis aleading global events business. It combines
face-to-face with data and digital tools to help customers

learn about markets, source products and complete transactions
atover 500 eventsinalmost 30 countries, attracting more than
7m participants.

Reed Exhibitions hasits headquartersin Londonand has further
principal officesin Paris, Vienna, Disseldorf, Moscow, Norwalk
(Connecticut), Mexico City, S3o Paulo, Abu Dhabi, Beijing,
Shanghai, Tokyo, Singapore and Sydney. Reed Exhibitions has
4,200 employees worldwide and its portfolio of events serves 43
industry sectors.

Revenues fortheyearended 31 December 2018 were £1,219m
compared with £1,109mtin 2017 and £1,047m7in 2016.In 2018,
18% of Reed Exhibitions’ revenue came from North America, 44%
from Europe and the remaining 38% from the rest of the world on
anevent location basis.

Reed Exhibitions organises influential events in key markets
focused on addressing the needs of the industry, where
participants from around the world meet face-to-face todo
business, to network and to learn. Its events encompass awide
range of sectors. They include construction, cosmetics,
electronics, energy and alternative energy, engineering,
entertainment, gifts and jewellery, healthcare, hospitality, interior
design, logistics, manufacturing, media, pharmaceuticals, real
estate, recreation, security and safety, transportand travel.

Market opportunities

Growthin the exhibitions marketis influenced both by
business-to-business marketing spend and by business
investment. Historically, these have been driven by levels of
corporate profitability, which inturn has followed overall growth
in gross domestic product. Emerging markets and higher growth
sectors provide additional opportunities. Reed Exhibitions’
broad geographical footprintand sector coverage allows it to
effectively and efficiently capture growth opportunities globally
astheyemerge.

As some events are held other than annually, growthinany one
yearis affected by the cycle of non-annual exhibitions.

Strategic priorities

Reed Exhibitions’ strategic goalis to deliver measurably higher
value and improved outcomes toits customers. Itis achieving this
organically by being focused on understanding and responding
toindividual customers’ needs and business objectives and the
changing markets it serves.

Reed Exhibitions delivers a platform for industry communities
toconduct business, to network and to learn through arange
of market-leading events in all major geographic markets and
higher growth sectors, enabling exhibitors to targetand reach
new customers quickly and cost effectively.
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Organic growth will be achieved by continuing to generate greater
customervalue through combining the best of face-to-face with
dataand decision tools, launching new events, and by leveraging
its global network and technology platforms for fasterand more
agile developmentand deployment of innovation. Reed Exhibitions
isalsoactively shapingits portfolio through a combination of

new launches, strategic partnerships and selective acquisitions
infaster growing sectors and geographies, as wellas by
withdrawing from markets and industries with lower long-term
growth prospects.

Reed Exhibitions is committed to continuously improving
customer solutions and experience by developing global
technology platforms based onindustry databases, digital tools
and analytics. By providing avariety of services, including its
integrated web platform, the company continues to drive up
customer value and satisfaction by proactively putting the right
buyersand sellerstogether on the eventfloor. Increasingly,
digital and multichannel services such as active matchmaking are
becominganormal part of the customer expectation and product
offering, enhancing the value delivered through attendance at the
event. Using customerinsights, Reed Exhibitions has developed
aninnovative product offering that underpins the value proposition
for exhibitors by broadening their options in terms of the type and
location of stand they take and the channels through which they
can address potential buyers.

In 2018 Reed Exhibitions launched 44 new events. These included
many events which delivered on the strategy of taking sector
expertise, customer relationships and leading brands from one
market and extending them into new geographies using local
operational capability.

Strong brands and value propositionsin long established sectors
continued to expand into new geographic markets with FIBO USA
joining FIBO China and the original FIBO Germany in the fitness
sector. There was also rapid extension of successful launches and
recentlyacquired brands into new markets. Bar Convent Berlin, in
the bar equipment sector, was extended into the USAin 2018 with
Bar Convent Brooklyn. In property, the successful launch of MIPIM
Property Tech Summitin New York was followed in 2018 by MIPIM
Propertyin Paris.

The POP culture portfolio continued to grow strongly with
launches inthe USA (KeyStone Comic Con), South Africa (Comic
Con Africa) and France (Play), and a further acquisitionin the UK
(Gamer Network].

Emerging high potential sectors and the evolution of existing
industries were served through innovative and highly curated
launches such as Al Expo (artificialintelligence), the Functional
Fabric Fair (advanced fabrics), Lightweight Asia (advanced
materials), Esports BAR (e-sports] and Travel Forward
(traveltechnology).

Reed Exhibitionsis active in developing exhibition markets with
launchesin Mexico, Brazil, South Korea, South Africa, Vietham,
SaudiArabiaand Chinaduring 2018.

Two smallacquisitions were completed during 2018. As wellas
Gamer Network in the UK, Reed Exhibitions became the majority
owner of the Automotive Manufacturing Technology & Material
Show [AMTS] show in China and the co-located Shanghai
International Assembly & Handling Technology Exhibition (AHTE]).

Inaddition, in January 2019, Reed Exhibitions announced the
acquisition of Mack Brooks, a business with a portfolio of more
than 30 eventsin 14 countries, including Germany and the
United Kingdom, serving nine industry sectors. Flagship brands
include EuroBLECH (sheet metal working technology); inter
airport (airportinfrastructure and technology); Fastener Fair
(fastenerand fixing technology); and Chemspec (fine and
speciality chemicals).

Business model, distribution channels and competition

Over 70% of Reed Exhibitions’ revenue is derived from

exhibitor fees, with the balance primarily consisting of admission
charges, conference fees, sponsorship fees and online and
offline advertising. Exhibition space is sold directly or through
localagents where applicable. Reed Exhibitions often works in
collaboration with trade associations, which use the events to
promote access for members to domestic and export markets,
and with governments, for which events can provide important
support to stimulate foreign investmentand promote regional
and national economic activity. Increasingly, Reed Exhibitions is
offeringvisitors and exhibitors the opportunity to interact before
and after the show through the use of digital tools such as online
directories, matchmaking and mobile apps.

Reed Exhibitionsis one of the largest global events organisersin
afragmented industry, holding a global market share of less than
10%. Other international exhibition organisers include Informa,
Clarionand some of the larger German Messen, including Messe
Frankfurt, Messe Disseldorfand Messe Munich. Competition
also comes fromindustry trade associations and convention
centre and exhibition hall owners.
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MIPIM: The world's property market

Everything about information security

SALAO INTERNACIONAL

DO AUTOMOVEL DE SAO PAULO

China (Shenzhen) International Gifts,
Handicrafts, Watches & Houseware Fair:
One of the largest business gifts & home
fairsin China

3C3

World Travel Market: Premier global event
forthe travelindustry

NATIONAL
HARDWARE
@® B SHOW

Sal3o Internacional do Automovel: Brazil's
automobile event

INTERPHEX JAPAN

INT'LPHARMACEUTICAL R&D AND MANUFACTURING EXPO

Bar Convent Berlin: International bar &
beverage trade show

ExXpe

PROTECTION

National Hardware Show: US home
improvementand DIY trade fair

THE 24TH PRESENTATION.
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Interphex Japan: Japan’s pharmaceutical R&D
and manufacturing show

mipcom.

Expoprotection: The exhibition for risk
prevention & management

EXPO

/Ai_rcraft

interiors

Oneof the largest & longest standing
electronics manufacturing trade shows

in-cosmetics’global

Paris « 2-4 April 2019

The world’s entertainment content market

INTERNATIONAL SECURITY
‘CONFERENCE & EXPOSITION

The destination for the global aircraftinteriors
industry

RAX

WEST

Leadinginternational exhibition for personal
careingredients

PGA

MERCHANDISE SHOW

International security conference

EQUIPEAIE!

Produits, savoir-faire et tendances

Focused on the culture & community that
isgaming

The golf business show

REVENUE BY FORMAT

The trade show for the doors and windows
industry

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

New York Comic Con: The East Coast’s largest
pop culture convention

EVENTS REVENUE BY SOURCE

Electronic
4%

£1,219m

Face-to-face
96%

£1,219m North
America
18%
Rest of
world
38%

Europe
446%

£1,219m

Admissions
and other
29%

Exhibitor
fees
71%
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2018 financial performance

2017* Underlying Portfolio Currency Total

£m growth changes effects growth

Revenue 1,109 +6% +1% -2% +10%
Adjusted operating profit 287 +10% +1% -2% +9%

Underlying revenue growth rates exclude exhibition cycling effects.

Exhibitions achieved strong underlying revenue growthin
2018, withunderlying operating profit growth reflecting

cycling-in effects.

Underlying revenue growth was +6%. After portfolio changes

and five percentage points of cycling-in effects, constant

currency revenue growth was +12%.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth was +10% reflecting

cycling-in effects.

In 2018 we continued to pursue organic growth opportunities,
launching 44 new events and piloting and rolling out several data

analyticsinitiatives.

Underlying growth was good in Europe and strongin Japan and
China. The US continued to see differentiated growth rates by

industry sector, and Brazil returned to growth. Most other

markets continued to grow well.

REVENUE

We expect the Tokyo Olympic Games to constrain local venue
capacity over the next 18 months, after which new and expanded
exhibition space will become available. This could reduce the
overalldivisionalunderlying revenue growth rate by around one

percentage point thisyearand next.

In 2018 we completed two smallacquisitions, Gamer Network
and AMTS, and made two minor disposals. Since the year end we
have acquired Mack Brooks, a leading organiser of over 30 highly
complementary events across key geographies and industrial

verticals.

2019 outlook

We expectunderlying revenue growth trends to continue, the
above temporaryvenue constraints aside, and we expect
cycling-out effects to reduce the reported revenue growth rate

by around five percentage points.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m

Underlying growth +6%

1100t k219

2017 2018

£m

Underlying growth +10%

g7t 313

2017 2018

1 2017 restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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Vision Expo

bringing clarity and vision
to small business growth

Coco and Breezyis a designer glasses and
sunglasses brand co-founded, owned and
designed by twins Corianna and Brianna
Dotson. The sisters launched their brand

in 2009 at the age of 19 and in a few short
years have built a successful and high-profile
business with innovative eyewear designs
that have been worn by celebrities including
Prince, Beyoncé, Lady Gaga and Rihanna.

Based in New York, the twins channel their

unique style to create frames using a variety of

materials, patterns and colours. Over the past

fouryears, Cocoand Breezy have presented

theirbrand and unveiled new frames and

products toanaudience of experts at Vision

Expo. They attribute acomponent of their

growth to showcasing their productsvia

multiple platforms at the show including 9
fashion shows, paneldiscussions, style events, A
interviews, and press previews. Vision Expo has

enabled Coco and Breezy to make the shift from
being a fashion brand, sold only in fashion
stores, to embedding their company into the
eyewear and eye care industry.
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Coco and Breezy at
Vision Expo West
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Before we started showing at Vision
Expo our eyewear was sold in about
30 fashion stores. Now our eyewear is
sold in about 400 optical practices in

. P | I"f F North America.

i ; .75 Coriannaand Brianna Dotson
ol .
Co-founders, Owners and Designers,
Cocoand Breezy
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Corporate
Responsibility

The Corporate Responsibility Reportis
anintegral part of our Annual Report

and Financial Statements. This section
highlights progress on our 2018 corporate
responsibility objectives. The full 2018
Corporate Responsibility Reportis
available atwww.relx.com/go/CRReport

Non-financialinformation statement
RELXis required to comply with the
reporting requirements of sections 414CA
and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006, which
relate to non-financialinformation. The list
below outlines for our stakeholders where
this information for RELX can be found:

Reporting Requirement:

Environmental matters 51-52
Employees 47

Social matters 43,45,49,50
Human rights, 42,46,49,50
Anti-corruption and

anti-bribery matters, 42,46,49,50
Policies, due diligence

processes and outcomes 45-46

Description and management
of principal risks and impact

of business activity, 60-63
Description of

business model 16,23, 30, 35
Non-financial metrics 14-52
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Corporate responsibility

It means performing to the highest commercialand ethical
standards and channelling our knowledge and strengths, as
globalleadersinourindustries, to make a difference to society.
We regularly survey key stakeholders, including in 2018,
shareholders, employees, governments and communities
where we operate, to help us identify our material CRissues
andtosetandtestour CR objectives. The Board of Directors,
senior managementand our Corporate Responsibility Forum
oversee CRobjectives and performance.

We concentrate on the contributions we make as a business
and on good management of the material areas that affect
all companies:

Our unique contributions
Governance

People

Customers

Community

Supply chain

Environment

We are committed to the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC])
towhich we are a signatory and are dedicated to advancing the
UN’s Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) by 2030.

We make a positive impact on society through our knowledge,
resources and skills, including:

Universal sustainable access to information

Advance of science and health

Protection of society

Promotion of the rule of law and justice

Fostering communities

Scientific, Technical & Medical

Elsevier, the world’s leading provider of scientific, technicaland
medicalinformation, plays animportant role in advancing human
welfareand economic progress throughiits science and health
information, which spursinnovation and enables critical
decision-making. To broadenaccesstoits content, Elsevier
supports programmes where resources are often scarce. Among
themis Research4Life, a partnership with UN agencies and up to
175 publishers; we provide core and cutting-edge scientific
information to researchersin more than 100 developing countries.
Asafounding partnerand the leading contributor, Elsevier
provides over a quarter of the material available in Researché4Life,
encompassing approximately 3,000 Elsevier journals and 20,000
e-books.In 2018, there were over 1.8m Research4Life downloads
from ScienceDirect.

In 2018, Elsevier launched Scientific African, an open access
collaboration between the Next Einstein Forum and the NEF
Community of Scientists, which will provide African researchers
with a new platform to boost the impact and discoverability of their
research. Elsevier also continued involvement with Innovate

for Life, an accelerator launched by Amref, an Africa-driven
international health NGO, to help African entrepreneurs develop
solutions to African health challenges. To support early-stage
innovators, the Elsevier Foundationis providing funding, as well
asaccess toknowledge and scientific networks.

Risk & Business Analytics

Risk & Business Analytics” tools and resources help law
enforcement keep communities safe and help protect society by
detectingand preventing fraud across a range of business sectors
and at US federal, state and local government levels. In the year,
LexisNexis Risk Solutions provided the Police Departmentin
Keene, Texas with a free Community Crime Map tool, enabling
citizens toview incidences of crime in their neighbourhood.

Risk and Business Analytics colleagues developed the ADAM
programme in 2000 to help the National Center for Missing and
Exploited Children find missing children. ADAM distributes
missing child alert posters to law enforcement, hospitals,
libraries and businesses within specific geographic search areas.
In 2018, we expanded an email alert function to allow those opting
in, toreceive an email notificationwhen a child is reported missing
nearthem.In 2018, five children were found through ADAM,
bringing the total number of children recovered to 182 since the
start of the programme in 2000. During the year, we supported the
launch of a newtraining course for UK police to help find missing
children more quickly, working with Amber Alert Europe’s Charlie
Hedges and Missing People. We hosted pilot training for the
London Metropolitan Police at our head office in London which
covered such themes as mental health, child sexual exploitation,
homelessness and family breakdown and how to provide
additional support, including Missing People’s free, 24/7 helpline.

To address the US opioid epidemic, LexisNexis Risk Solutions is
taking a multi-faceted approach to help customers address the
problem.Using our healthcare, identity, and law enforcement data
sets, we proactively identify risky providers and individuals,
complex prescription drug diversion schemes, and aid care
coordination efforts for the addicted.
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REACT

Digital expertise to deploy
educational resources
quickly in emergencies
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The private sector wants to support
children’s education in emergencies
with their skills and expertise, but do
not know how to be most effective.
REACT matches leading corporations
with education needs on the ground in
real time. We are using tech solutions

to tackle the global education crisis.” WD ENE SR
for Education uses the
collective power of business
and other stakeholders to
Sarah Browp i . address education challenges
GBC-Education Executive Chair around the world
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In 2018, LexisNexis Risk Solutions launched To date more than 60 firms have signed up to
the Rapid Education Action (REACT] online the digital platform. One of them, software
platform for the Global Business Coalition for company Cerego, brokered a partnership with
Education (GBC-Education) to allow companies  Thaki, a charity supporting education for
topledge and deploy their resources quickly refugee and migrant childrenin Lebanon.
inemergencies and disasters. Theaimis to Thakifounder, Rudayna Abdo, says: “Providing
get millions of displaced and marginalised online literacy training for dispersed migrant
childrenwhose learning has been disrupted communities comes with many challenges.

by humanitarian crises back into education. We were introduced to Cerego through REACT
whichis helping us pursue a successful,
scalable, affordable, self-paced solution that
canbereplicated across geographies.”

REACT was established to channel private
sectorengagementin support of Education
CannotWait, afund dedicated to education
inemergencies launched at the 2016 World
Humanitarian Summitin Istanbul, Turkey.
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Legal
LexisNexis Legal & Professional promotes the rule of law and
accesstojustice throughits products and services.

Inthe year, we expanded our Rule of Law Cafés - which bring
arange of stakeholders together, including customers,
government, NGOs and law societies to discuss opportunities to
go beyond legal minimums to advance the rule of law - to new
jurisdictions. In addition to London, there were Cafésin New York,
Washington DC and Kuala Lumpur.

Inthe year, we supported the launch of the UNGC’s Peace,

Justice & Strong Institutions Action Platform during UN General
Assembly week and also hosted senior women lawyers from the
Middle Eastregionin London, Washington DC and New York City.
Delegates metwith judges, lawyers, law professors and
representatives of professional organisations, legislative bodies,
and governmentalinstitutions and explored the approach of peers
tohumanrights, intellectual property and sustainability.

Exhibitions

Reed Exhibitions” events strengthen communities and support
our CRfocus areas.In 2018, we advanced show sustainability
including with the launch of Proud Experiences in London, the first
event of its kind focusing on the LGBTQ+ travel market, which will
move to New York Cityin 2019. Over three days, attendees were
matched with international exhibitors to explore opportunities
ina LGBTQ+ global marketplace estimated by media partner The
Telegraph, inattendance throughout the event, to be worth

$211 billion. There were masterclasses on issues surrounding
issues arising for LGBTQ+ travellers, including whether they
should boycott or support local populations in destinations
where LGBTQ+ rights are curtailed. In the year, Reed Exhibitions
introduced Bio-Mass Innovation Expo in Milan. PS12018, for

the promotional productsindustry, became one of the first

trade shows to ban plastic cups. Pollutec also celebrated its

40th anniversary, a showcase for environmental equipment,
technologies and services. Circular economy was a key theme
toreduce the health and environmentalimpacts of plastic waste
and pollution.

Across RELX

We created new functionality for the free RELXSDG Resource
Centre, which advances awareness, understanding and
implementation of the UN’s 17 SDGs to end poverty, protect the
planetand ensure prosperity forall people by 2030, with a new
content management system to make it faster and easier to
upload contentonto the site. The RELXSDG Resource Centre site
featuresarticles, tools, news, events, networking and original
research, includingin 2018, areview of SDG 3 which showed that
related research resulting froma collaboration between
academicinstitutions and private industry represents a fraction
of the total scholarly output (average of 1.5% over the period),
however it has afield-weighted citation impact, a measure of
quality, nearly four times that of research undertaken by academic
institutions alone. We held two SDG Inspiration Days in the year
which brought together business, governmentand civil society
toscale engagement on the SDGs. To advance the SDGs, the theme
in Silicon Valley was the role for disruptive technology and in
Amsterdam, building partnerships. The SDG Resource Centre
was a tool forwomen entrepreneurs participating in the WE
Empower UN SDG Challenge, a global business competition for
women entrepreneurs advancing the SDGs.

2018 marked the eighth year of the RELX Environmental
Challenge, focused on providing improved and sustainable access
towater and sanitation where itis presently at risk. The $50,000
first-prize winner, Flexcrevator, will progress an innovative pit
latrine emptying device developed by North Carolina State
University. The $25,000 second-prize winner was Handypod,
an affordable sanitation solution by Cambodia-based social
enterprise, Wetlands Work, developed for floating communities
and those seasonally affected by flooding. The prize was
announced duringthe UNGC’s CEO Water Mandate meeting
during 2018 World Water Week in Stockholm; we supported the
attendance of three former RELX Environmental Challenge
winners at World Water Week, allowing them to meet founders
and build networks in their field.
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Achievement

Advance and make
publicly available
research on the state of
science underpinning
the SDGs

Partnerwiththe =

National Center for
Missing and Exploited
Childrento expand
ADAM programme
emailalertstoUS
consumers; advance
course for UK policingon

missing cases training

Rollout RELX Rule
of Law Cafes across
multiple jurisdictions

Advance sustainability =

contentacross show
portfolios

Newfunctionalityfor = |

SDG Resource Centre
including integration of
UN and other partner
content

Scientific African launched at the
Next Einstein Forum in Kigali,
Rwanda

Launched SDG Perspectives
project, showcasing the impact of
the SDGs on scholarly debate
Produced RELXSDG Graphicon
the state of science underpinning

'Enabled ADAM email alerts; 500

registrations

Supported course for UK policing
on missing cases, encompassing
engaging the mediaandright to
privacy, return processesand
ongoing supportand prevention

New York, Washington DC and
Kuala Lumpur; quarterlyin London

Advanced Rule of Law activities,
including Middle Easternwomen
lawyer study tours and support for
mobile courts in Malaysia

Committee comprised of Reed
Exhibitions portfolio directors

Developed Environmental Event
Charter

system

Reached 100 partner content
sources from UN Development
Programme, among others

Meaningful support to advance SDG 3 (good health and
wellbeing], including Elsevier Foundation Women in Water in
Africaleadership workshops

Workstream onimproving financialinclusion for low-income

citizens

Meaningful support of SDG 16 (peace, justice and strong
institutions), including support for UNGC SDG 16 Action

Platform

Meaningful support of SDG 11 (sustainable cities), including
focus of Reed Exhibition’s World Efficiency Solutionsand a
‘Good Cities’ 2019 Inspiration Day India

Create new RELXSDG Graphics on the state of science

underpinning the SDGs

Broaden RELXSDG Resource Centre to include content from
new partners and enhance functionality, including of SDG

News Tracker

Use our products and expertise to advance the SDGs, among them:
SDG3: Good health and wellbeing
SDG4: Quality education
SDG10: Reduced inequalities
SDG13: Climate action
SDG16: Peace, justice and strong institutions

Enrichthe SDG Resource Centre to ensure essential content, tools
andevents onthe SDGs are freely available to all

* 2030isthedeadline forthe UN's Sustainable Development Goals; we aim to do our
parttowards theirachievement.

In 2018, we launched the newly revised and updated RELX Code
of Ethics and Business Conduct (the Code) with a message toall
staff. The Code provides the standards for our corporate and
individual conduct and, among key issues, covers fair
competition, anti-bribery, conflicts of interest, employment
practices, data protection and appropriate use of Company
propertyandinformation. Italso encourages reporting of
violations —with an anonymous reporting option where legally
permissible —and prohibits retaliation against anyone for
reporting aviolation he or she believes may have occurred.

The Code supports the principles of the UNGC and stresses our
commitment to human rights. Inaccordance with the UN's Guiding
Principles on Business and Human Rights, we have considered
where and how we operate to determine how we can have the
greatest positive impact on the human rights issues of modern
slavery and human trafficking. For more information on human
rights see Supply chain on page 50.1n 2018, we updated our
Modern Slavery Act Statement which highlights how we are
working internally through our supply chain and externally with
partnerstoaddress the risk of slaveryand human trafficking.

We maintain a comprehensive set of compliance policies and
proceduresin supportof the Code. These are reviewed at least
annually to ensure they remain current and effective. Our policies
and procedures help us comply with the law and conduct our
businessinanopen, honest, ethicaland principled way. In the case
of our anti-bribery efforts, they comprise part of our adequate
procedures for compliance with applicable laws.

Employees receive mandatorytraining onthe Code - both as new
hiresandatregularintervals during their tenure —inorderto
maintain a respectful workplace, prevent bribery and protect
personaland Company data. Mandatory periodic training covers key
Codetopicsindepthandis supplemented by advancedin-person
training for higher-risk roles.

In 2018, we took a number of steps to further enhance and embed
our culture of compliance across RELX, including the global
delivery of multiple culture of compliance training sessions across
the Company. We offer employees a confidential reporting line,
managed by anindependent third party, accessible by telephone
oronline 24 hours aday, 365 days ayear (as allowed under
applicable law, employees may submit reports to the confidential
line anonymously).

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ BIDUBUL

90UBUJIBA0G

UOI1BWIO0JUI J3Y}0 PUB SJUBWSIR]S (BIDURUIS




46 RELX Annual report and financial statements 2018 | Business review

Reports of violations of the Code or related policies are promptly
investigated, with carefultracking and monitoring of violations
and related mitigation and remediation efforts by Compliance
teams acrossthe business.

We remained diligentin our ongoing efforts to comply with
applicable bribery and sanctions laws and to mitigate risks in
these areas. Ouranti-briberyand sanctions programincludes
the enforcement of detailed, risk-based internal policies and
procedures on topics such as doing business with government
officials, giftand entertainment limits, gift registers, and
complying with complex sanctions requirements. Relationships
with third-parties and acquisition targets are evaluated for risk
using questionnaires, references, detailed electronic searches,
and Know Your Customer screening tools. We monitor and assess
the implementation of our anti-briberyand sanctions programs by
continually reviewing and updating our policies and procedures;
conducting periodic programmatic risk-assessments, and
conducting quality assurance reviews and internal audits on the
operationalaspects of the programmes.

Following the 2017 roll-out of a Company email ‘PhishMe button’,
which allows employees to make immediate reports, we marked
ourannual Cyber Security Awareness Month with the Great
Phishing Challenge to help staff identify the difference between
‘phishy’ and legitimate emails. In the year, RELX won the PwC
Building Public Trust Award for Cyber Security Reportingin the
FTSE 350.

As asignatorytothe UNGC and its principles, encompassing
labour, environment, anti-corruption and human rights, we
demonstrated leadership by maintaining our LEAD company
status, participatingin UNGC SDG Action Platforms: Health is
Everyone’s Business; Decent Work in Global Supply Chains;
Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions; and Water Security through
Stewardship. We serve on the boards of the UNGC networks in the
UKand Netherlands. We produce an annual Communication on
Progressreport, required of signatories annually, where we
attained the Advanced Level.

Globally, in 2018, RELX paid £415min corporate taxes. We are a
responsible corporate taxpayerand conduct our tax affairs to
ensure compliance with all laws and relevant regulationsin the
countries inwhich we operate. Taxis animportantissue for our
stakeholders and society at large. We have set out our approach to
taxinour globaltax strategy. Thisincorporates our Tax Principles
along with additional disclosures around where we pay taxes and
our broader contribution to society, available on our corporate
website: www.relx.com/go/TaxPrinciples.

Intheyear, the RELX Tax team continued to engage with arange
of policy makers and specialinterest groups to share practical
experience of corporate engagement on tax laws and the ways
such laws can advance government policy objectives. Inthe year,
we also scoped projects on the rule of tax law both in the United
Kingdom and South Africa.

The Statement of Investment Principles for the RELX UK pension
scheme indicates that social, environmental or ethicalissues that
may have a financialimpact on the portfolio or a detrimental effect
onthe strength of the employer covenant, are taken into account
when making investment decisions. CRissues are relevant to
otherinvestment decisions we make. Among our sustainable
investmentsis Agworld, afarm management software platform
thatallows farmers, agronomists and agricultural contractors to
capture, manage and share on-farm data and recommendations
toimprove land management sustainability and increaseyields.

Achievement

Business unit simulation training
andresponse plan
enhancements; updates to RELX
Board

PwC Building Public Trust Award
for Cyber Security Reportingin
the FTSE 350

Completed enterprise-wide legal
compliancerisk assessment,
identifying key risks and
mitigation controls

Expand corporate
securityincident response
preparednessusinga
combination of technology,
awareness training and
simulations

Establish risk mitigation

framework for monitoring
operational effectiveness
of keyinternal compliance

controls Executed 2018 Compliance

Testingand Monitoring Plan
including completing quality
assurance reviews of GDPR
compliance and intermediary
duediligence

RELXTaxand LexisNexis Legal &
Professional South Africa
collaboration on tax law
codificationin Africa

Supported Tax Aid and Tax Help
for Older People, who provide
free taxadvice for low-income
and other beneficiaries

Engagementonrule of
tax law

Continue corporate security incident response
preparedness; expand IS0 27001 data protection
compliance certification

New Culture of Compliance manager communications,
trainingandresources

Advance work on African tax law codification project

Continued progressive actions that advance excellence in
corporate governance within our business and the marketplace
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Ourover 30,000 people are our strength. Our workforceis 51%
female and 49% male, with an average length of service of 9.2 years.
There were 42% female and 58% male managers, and 28% female
and 72% male senior operational managers.

Female Male
Board of Directors 4 36% 64%
Semorope:atlonal 99 28% 25 799%
managers ; ;
Allemployees** 16,400 51% 15700  49%

*  Senioroperationalmanagers are defined as those managersup toand including

threereporting lines from the CEO witharolein planning, directing or controlling
theactivities of the company.
** Full-time equivalent.

Atyear end 2018, women made up 36% of the members of the
Board. The two Executive Directors on the Board are male. The
Nominations Committee considers the knowledge, experience
and background of individual Board directors.

Our Diversity and Inclusion (D&I) Statement articulates

our commitment to a diverse workforce and an environment
thatrespectsindividuals and their contributions, regardless

of gender, race or other characteristics. We updated our D&I
Strategytoinclude nine progressindicatorsincluding pursuing
best practice in candidate assessment to prevent unconscious
biasinrecruiting processes and ensuring positive gender
portrayalin our marketing.

We maintain a D&I Advisory Group composed of a senior business
and HR leader from each business unit, supported by a broader
D&l Working Group with more than 150 participants. In 2018, our
Employee Resource Groups grew to over 40 networks, such as
women’s forums and pride groups, to facilitate support,
mentoring and community involvement. We held our first-ever
Diversity Awareness Month with a competition opentoall
employeesinordertoshowcase commitmentto D&lacross RELX
and avideo with testimonials from senior leaders on why D&l
matters tothem.

RELXis asignatorytothe Women’'s Empowerment Principles,
aUNGC and UN Women initiative to help companies empower
women and promote gender equality. In 2018, we became a

member of the Business in the Community Gender Campaign.

We comply with employee-related reporting requirements and, in
2018, we published our first UK gender pay gap data as part of the
UK legislation. At RELXwe commit to raising awareness and
educate our employees on pay principles and equal pay. We invest
inresearch toidentify causes of pay differences and regularly
evaluate our policies and processes to ensure they are aligned to
our D&l vision. We commit to building a robust framework for
monitoring pay equity across the enterprise. We have formally
made these pledges to the Equal Pay International Coalition UN
General Assembly week in New York.

Our employees have the right to a healthy and safe workplace,
asoutlined in our Global Health and Safety Policy. We concentrate
onareas of greatest risk for example, warehouses, events and
exhibitions. As a primarily office-based company, we also focus
onmanual handling, slips, trips and falls. To reduce our severity
rate (lost days per 200,000 hours worked), we conduct risk
assessments and work with a third party inthe US to assigna
nurse case manager to each complex or severe claim. There
were 8 losttimeincidentsintheyear.

Inthe US, where we have the largest concentration of employees,
our programmes promote workplace wellbeing through health
screenings, online assessments, stress awareness training and
smoking cessation courses, with financialincentives for
participation.

Dedicated health and wellbeing programmes are now available
to more than 70% of our employees. We also maintain a network
of more than 90 Wellness Champions. We provide a workplace
wellbeing award scheme which allows allemployees, in
partnership with their local Wellbeing Champion, to submita
proposal for awellbeing initiative at their location. The proposals
are judged with the winning proposals granted funding. In the
year, we developed a partnership with Shaw Mind Foundation to
deliveraseries of webinars to all staff on supporting mental
health atwork.

Achievement

Conducta Global Employee
Opinion Surveyincluding
questionson culture, ethics
and wellbeing

Survey conducted globally; 90%
response rate, highest to date

CEOreview of results; cascaded to
business leaders —-actionplansin
development

Update D&I Strategy
including the launch of D&l
progressindicators

D&I Strategy approved by senior
leadership; nine priority actions

D&l governance updates

First global Diversity Awareness
Month

Engagementwith Shaw Mind
Foundation; webinar made
available toallemployees

External partnership to
raise awareness of mental
healthacross RELX

Research support for Foundation’s
mental health and the SDGs project

Progress UN Equal Pay International Coalition commitments
Establish a dashboard for D&l metrics

Develop mental health metrics and response plans

Continued high-performing and satisfied workforce through
talent development, D&l and wellbeing; scale support for
external human capitalinitiatives
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Advancing the RELX SDG
Resource Centre

Accessto critical knowledge

to advance the United

Sustainable Development Goals

The RELX SDG Resource Centre

was an essential tool for the women
entrepreneurs who took part in the
We Empower UN SDG Challenge

for women from around the wor

supporting the SDGs through their

businesses who are helping to ¢
the world we want by 2030.

AmandaEllis

Former New Zealand Ambassador to
the United Nations in Geneva, Senior

Special Adviser for International
Diplomacy and the SDGs at the
Julie Ann Wrigley Global Institute
of Sustainability

Nations

ld

reate

The RELX SDG Resource
Centre advances awareness,
understanding and
implementation of the
17 global goals

The free RELXSDG Resource Centre
(sdgresources.relx.com) advances
awareness, understanding and
implementation of the 17 UN SDGs which
aimto end poverty, protectthe planetand
ensure prosperity for all people by 2030.

The site provides leading edge articles,
reports, tools, events, videos and legal
practical guidance fromacross RELX.

Italso features content from partners,
including the UNGC and the United Nations
Development Programme.

In 2018, we released originalresearch on the
state of science underpinning SDG 3 (good
health and well-being) and added content from
Scientific African. Thisis a partnership
between the Next Einstein Forum and Elsevier,
bringing state-of-the-arttechnologyand
processesto create anopenaccess
megajournal toaccelerate scientific
capacity-building across Africa.

Scientific African will provide African
researcherswith a new platformto boost the
impactand discoverability of their research.

Alsointheyear, we held two RELXSDG
Inspiration Days to showcase the SDG
Resource Centre and theimportance of
knowledge to advance the SDGs bringing
together more than 100 business colleagues,
governmentrepresentatives, NGO leaders,
andyoung people.

RELXSDG Inspiration Day Silicon Valley
focused on disruptive technology toadvance
the SDGs and SDG Inspiration Day Amsterdam
concentrated on The Power of Partnerships to
advance the SDGs: what partners, what
responsibilities, whatinnovation, and how to
scale and measure impact. Partnerson the
eventsincluded the UNGC, the Ban Ki-Moon
Centre for Global Citizens and the Responsible
Media Forum.
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In 2018, we surveyed more than 533,000 customers through
Net Promoter Score [measuring customer advocacy) and
business dashboard programmes. This allows us to deepen our
understanding of customer needs and drives improvements.
Results are reviewed by the CEO and senior operational
managers and communicated to staff.

Inthe year, we updated our Editorial Policy toincorporate respect
for human rights and to encourage pluralism of sources, ideas
and participants. We strengthened the privacy provision, added
inresponsible use of artificial intelligence and our commitment
totransparency. We are developing training to help colleagues
understand the Editorial Policy in action.

The RELX Quality First Principles Working Group focuses on
qualityin content, data and business processes. In 2018, our
operationsin the Philippines won the Philippine Quality Award -
Proficiencyin Quality Management (Level 2}, the highest national
qualityawardin the Philippines for businesses demonstrating
excellence in managing and delivering quality.

We are committed to improving access to our products and
services forallusers, regardless of physical ability. Our
Accessibility Policy aims to lead the industry in providing
accessibility solutions to customers, with products thatare
operable, understandable and robust. In 2018, members of the
Accessibility Working Group logged over 200 accessibility projects
and Elsevier’s Global Books Digital Archive fulfilled more than
5,000 disability requests, 84% of them through AccessText.org,
aservice we helped establish.

In 2018, we launched the first RELX Accessibility Awards to
showcase how accessibility ensures more accessible products
and servicesand a better user experience forall our customers,
including people with disabilities. Among the winners were

two colleagues from LexisNexis Risk Solutions who created a
computer-automated, web accessibility code scanner that checks
product code against the leading international accessibility
standard: Section 508/WCAG 2.0AA.

Forthefirsttime,in 2018, Forbes named RELX as one of the
World's Most Innovative Companies, one of only 20 European
companies to place among the top 100.

Achievement

RELXEditorial Policy
update and training

RELX Editorial Policy Working
Group, internaland external
stakeholders, contribute to
updated Policy

RELXEditorial Policyin Action

training in development

New CR as a Sales Tool
curriculum: Customers
andthe SDGs

CRasaSales Tool Working Group

demos

Outreach to business unit sales
directorsand employees from
newly acquired companies

Recommendationtoinclude the
RELXSDG Resource Centrein

client materials

Introduce RELX
Accessibility awards to
recognise exceptional
employee efforts to
advance accessibility

Winners choéen for fhe firstu
Accessibility Leadership Award
and Practioners Award

All-employee communications

MBIAIBAQ

Roll out new Editorial Policy

Expand online content for CR as a Sales Tool

Develop Accessibility Advisory Board

Continue to expand customer base across our four business
units through excellence in products and services, the result
of active listening and engagement, editorial and quality
standards, and accessibility; a recognised advocate for ethical

marketplace practice

RE Cares, our global community programme, supports employee
volunteering and giving that makes a positive impact on society.
In addition to localinitiatives of importance to employees, the
programme’s core focus is on education for disadvantaged young
people thatadvances one or more of our unique contributions as
abusiness. Staff have up to two days’ paid leave peryear for their
own community work. We donated £3.7m in cash (including
through matching gifts) and the equivalent of £13.9min products,
services and staff time in 2018. 42% of employees were engaged
involunteering through RE Cares and we reached 25,000
disadvantagedyoung people through time, in-kind and cash
donations. Anetwork of 215 RE Cares Champions ensures the
vibrancy of our community engagement.
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Each September, we hold RE Cares Month to celebrate our
community commitment. During the Month, we raised funds
($159,949 to date] to help global fundraising partner, SOS

Children’s Villages, enable girls working in dangerous conditions in

Yamoussoukro, Cote d'lvoire to pursue an education. By the close
of 2018, 50 girls were in school or receiving vocational training.
Participants alsoreceived child rights training, with companion
sessions for parents to help them safeguard their children’s
rights. An awareness campaign involving parents and local
leaderswas conducted in collaboration with three community
level committees, where girlsinvolvedin the project spoke out
aboutthe dangers of child labour based on their own experience.

We held our annual global book drive, yielding 7,200 books for
localand developingworld readers and announced the winners
of the eighth Recognising Those Who Care Awards to highlight the
exceptional contributions to RE Cares of tenindividuals and three
RE Cares teams. Individual winners fromacross the business
travelled to RELX-supported projectsin Phnom Penh, Cambodia
with VOICE (www.voice.org.au/), a humanitarian organisation
working with people in crisis in Cambodia.

Achievement

Focus of RE Cares, RELX global
community programme, in 2018

Foster development of
youth employability skills
Partnerships with charities
focused onyouth employability
skills

$300,000 seed funding, over
threeyears, through the Elsevier
Foundation for Imperial College
London’s Invention Rooms

Researchimpact of RE
Caresonstaffretention positive correlation between
volunteering and tenure, with

reduced attrition

Average tenure: 10years for
volunteersvs 7years RELX
average

Studi( of 9,0'00 employeeé show'éuty:i |

New RELX global fundraising partnership
Create guidance for calculating pro bono contributions

Through our unique contributions, significant, measurable
advancement of education for disadvantaged young people;
investments with partners for maximum impact

Given the importance of maintaining an ethical supply chain,

we have a Socially Responsible Supplier (SRS) programme
encompassing all our businesses, supported by colleagues with
expertisein operations, distribution and procurementanda
dedicated SRS Director from our global procurement function.

We have a comprehensive Supplier Code of Conduct (Supplier
Code), availablein 16 languages, which we ask suppliers to sign
and display prominently in the workplace. It commits them to
following applicable laws and best practice inareas such as
humanrights, labour and the environment. We ask suppliers
torequire the same standards in their supply chains, including
requesting subcontractors to enterinto a written commitment to
uphold the Supplier Code. The Supplier Code states that where
localindustry standards are higher than applicable legal
requirements, we expect suppliers to meet the higher standards.

Through our SRS database, we track key suppliers and those
located in medium and high-risk countries as designated by our
supplierrisk tool. Thisincorporates eightindicators, including
human trafficking information from the US State Department and
Environmental Performance Index results produced by Yale
University and partners. The tracking list changes year-on-year
based onthe suppliers we engage to meet the needs of our
business. We ended 2018 with 89% of suppliers onthe SRS
tracking list as signatories to the Supplier Code. We have
embedded the Supplier Code into our sourcing process asa
criterion for doing business with us and have a total of 3,082
supplierswho have agreed to the Supplier Code in 2018, up from
2,937in2017.

We engage a specialist supply chain auditor who undertook
84 external audits on our behalfin 2018. Anincidence of
non-compliance triggers continuous improvement reports
summarising audit results, with remediation plans and
submission dates agreed and signed by both the auditor
and supplier.

The roll-out of our US Supplier D&l programme continued in 2018
with efforts to improve the mix of diverse suppliers, with a focus on
minority-, woman- and veteran-owned businesses. In total, 11%
of US spend was with diverse suppliers. Among them was SHI
International. SHIis both a minority-owned and woman-owned
enterprise and provider of IT products and services. Their
Diversity Business Development Initiative builds and maintains
acommunity of diverse suppliers and partners. They continue to
grow an effective Tier Il program by accessing their Services
Partner database utilising certified HUBZone, minority-, woman-,
veteran-and small disadvantaged-owned businesses.

Achievement

Increase number of 3,082(2017:2,937)
suppliersas Code

signatories

84 addits cc')‘mplet'éd, inckl‘udingw )
six 2nd tier audits

Continue using audits
toensure continuous
improvementin supplier
performance and
compliance

34% reduction since 2017 in open
audit findings

Proactive engagementwith
diverse supplierswith afocuson
minority-, women-and
veteran-owned businesses

Continue to advance
the US Supplier D&l
programme

11% diversity spend; increasesin
spend with veteran-and
minority-owned businesses
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Increase the number of suppliers as Code signatories

Continue using audits to ensure continuous improvement
insupplier performance and compliance

Continue toadvance US Supplier D&| programme

Reduce supply chain risks related to humanrights, labour, the
environmentand anti-bribery by ensuringadherence to our
Supplier Code of Conduct through training, auditing and
remediation; drive supply chain innovation, quality and
efficiencies through a strong, diverse network of suppliers

Our environmental targets reflect our environmentalimpacts and
were set following input from stakeholders. Targets are set using
the science-based target methodology and include a commitment
to certify 50% of the business against the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System standard by 2020. In 2018, we purchased
81% of our electricity from renewable energy and Renewable
Energy Certificates. Full performance data can be found in the
2018 Corporate Responsibility Report (www.relx.com/go/
crreport). We attained an Ain CDP’s Climate Change programme.

In 2018, RELXwas one of 11 businesses which partnered with
the Mayor of London on ambitious projects to cut pollution and
emissions in excess of UK government thresholds.

Our Environmental Champions network, employee-led Green
Teams and networks, such as the Publishers’ Database for
Responsible Environmental Paper Sourcing, also provided
significantinsight into managing our environmentalimpacts.
Our Environmental Standards programme sets benchmark
performance and inspires green competition between offices.
In 2018, 36 sites (41% of key locations) achieved five or more
standards and attained green status. The RELX CFO, our most
senior environmental champion, wrote to all staff on World
Environment Day, sharing our environmental priorities and
recognising environmental achievements across the business.

We have a positive environmentalimpact through our
environmental products and services, which spread good
practice, encourage debate and aid researchersand decision
makers. The most recentresults from the independent Market
Analysis System show that our share of citations in environmental
science represented 42% of the total marketand 63% in energy
and fuels.

The €50,000 winner of Elsevier’'s 2018 Green and Sustainable
Chemistry Challenge was Prajwal Rabhindari, President of the
Research Institute for Bioscience & Biotechnology in Nepal. He
is creating a water-based leaf extract of the guava plant - which
possesses antioxidantand antibacterial properties —as a natural
alternative to fungicides and chemical preservatives to minimise
post-harvest food loss affecting smallholder farmers.

o
s
S
Achievement
40% of locations to 41% achieved
achieve five or more RELX
Environmental Standards
Purchase renewable Reached through purchase
electricity equal to 80% of of European green tariff, US
global consumption Green-e certified and Asian Gold
Powerrenewable energy
certificates
Achieve ISO 14001 Certification achieved at
Environmental additional sites (Philadelphia,
Management System Raleigh and Boca Raton)
cert.lf.lcatlon at t.hree Equivalentto 25% of employee
additional locations
headcount
55% of locations to achieve five or more RELX Environmental
Standards
Purchase renewable electricity equal to 90% of global
consumption
Achieve IS0 14001 Environmental Management System 3
certification at three additional locations 3
23]
Further environmental knowledge and positive action through g
our products and services and, accordingly, conduct our
business with the lowest environmentalimpact possible
Absolute performance Intensity ratio
2018 \Variance 2017 2018 Variance 2017
Scope 1 (direct 7,477 -9% 8,231 1.00 -11% 1.12
Scope 2 74,279 -12% 84,590 9.91 -14% 11.50 @
(location-based 3
Scope?2 16,006 -27% 21,831 214 -28% 2.97 ®

(market-based
emissions] tCOze

Water(m?) 332490  -4% 344,918 4438  -5% 46.90
Waste sent to 12% -1%pts 13% 0.09 -10% 0.10
Production 35,555 -3% 36,484 475 -4% 4.96
paper (t)

* Fromreporting locations. Intensity metric shows tonnes of waste sent to
landfill/Em revenue.
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2018

Focusarea Targets 2020 Performance
Climate change Reduce Scope 1and 2 location-based carbon emissions by 40% againsta 2010 baseline -49%
Energy """"""""""""""""""""""" Reduce energy and fuel consumption b‘)'/mi%O% againsta 2010baseline -35%
Purchase renewable electricit)'/”é‘duivalent to 100% of RELX's global electricity coné(jﬁwption 81%

Waste " Decrease total waste generated atreporting locations by 40% againsta 2010 baseline -52%
90% of waste from reporting locations to be diverted from landfillt 88%

Productlonpaper* """" 100% of RELX produé{ibn papers,gradéain PREPS, to be rated as 'known and responsible sources’ 100%
Environmental Achieve ISO 14001 certification for 50% of the businessby 2020 25%
Management System Reportlng locations achievingf'i‘\')é‘or more RELXEnvironmental Standards L%

* Allpaperwe gradedin 2018 - 90% of total production stock - was graded 3 or 5 stars (known and responsible sources).

We have reported onallemission sources required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Reportand Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013. We have included emissions
fromalloperating companies within the Group.

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) and the data has been assured by anindependent third party, EY. Details on
methodology and the assurance statement can be viewed in the 2018 Corporate Responsibility Report at www.relx.com/go/CRReport.

F— S S—

weop Fide >

POWER e
OISCLOSURE INSIGHT ACTION FARTHER FTSE4Good
Constituent of the Ethibel CDP EPAGreenPower Leader FTSE4Good Index
Sustainability Index - Climate programme score: A -Top 100 Includedin
Includedin - Forest programme score: B -FTSE4Good Global Index
- Excellence Europe - Water programme score: B- -FTSE4Good UK Index

- Excellence Global

RE|[100

-FTSE4Good Europe Index

© =k

Dow Jones

Sustainability

Indexes
RE100 Dow Jones Sustainability 1S0 14001 STOXX Global ESG
- Member Index Europe - Certified LeadersIndices

- Constituent -Included

‘ ense in
EC P I E’ Eurs{ainabllil,y Forbes

= ( 2

L L LT R

ECPlIndices
-Included

Forbes Oekom Corporate Philippine Quality Award
- The World’'s Most Innovative Responsibility Rating - Recipient
Companies 2018 - Prime status

The full 2018 Corporate Responsibility Reportis available at www.relx.com/go/CRReport
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Chief Financial Officer’s report

Nick Luff
Chief Financial Officer

Comparative financialinformation in the following commentary
has been restated following the adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments, IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and IFRS 16 - Leases. See note 1 to the consolidated financial
information on page 126 for further details.

Underlying growth of revenue was 4%, with all four market
segments contributing to underlying growth. The underlying
growth rate reflects good growth in electronic and face-to-face
revenues, partially offset by continued print revenue declines.

Reported revenue, including the effects of exhibition cycling,
portfolio changes and currency movements, was £7,492m
(2017: £7,341m), up 2%.

Exhibition cycling effects increased revenue growth by 1%, and the
netimpact of acquisitions and disposals reduced revenue growth
by 1%. The impact of currency movements was to decrease
revenue by 2%, principally due to the US dollar being weaker
againststerling on average during 2018.

Underlying adjusted operating profit grew ahead of revenue at 6%,
reflecting the benefit of tight cost controlacross the Group.

The netimpact of acquisitions and disposals decreased adjusted
operating profit by 2%. Currency effects decreased adjusted
operating profit by 1%.

Totaladjusted operating profit, including the impact of acquisitions
and disposals and currency effects, was £2,346m (2017: £2,284m),
up 3%.

Underlying operating cost growth was 4%, reflecting investment
in globaltechnology platforms and the launch of new products
and services, partly offset by continued processinnovation.
Actions continue to be taken across our businesses toimprove
cost-efficiency. Total operating costs, including the impact of
acquisitions, disposals and currency effects, increased by 2%.

The overalladjusted operating margin of 31.3% was 0.2
percentage points higherthaninthe prioryear. Onanunderlying
basis, including cycling effects, the marginimproved by 0.4
percentage points. Acquisitions and disposals reduced the margin
by 0.5 percentage pointsand currency effects increased the
margin by 0.3 percentage points.

£m

5,773 5971

6,8891

7,341%

7,492

2014 2015

2016

2017

2018

£m

o 1147 2,284% 2,346

1,739 1,822

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

1 Restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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Restated Change
2018 2017 atconstant Change
£m £m Change  currencies underlying

Reported figures
Revenue 7,492 7,341 +2% +4% +4%
Operating profit 1,964 1,905 +3%
Profit before tax 1,720 1,721 0%
Net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,422 1,648 -14%
Net margin 19.0% 22.L%
Net borrowings 6,177 5,042
Earnings per share 71.9p 81.6p -12%
Adjusted figures
Operating profit 2,346 2,284 +3% +4% +6%
Operating margin 31.3% 31.1%
Profit before tax 2,145 2,101 +2%
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1,674 1,620 +3%
Net margin 22.3% 22.1%
Cash flow 2,243 2,197 +2%
Cash flow conversion 96% 96%
Returnoninvested capital 13.2% 12.9%
Earnings pershare 84.7p 80.2p +6% +7%

RELXusesadjusted and underlying figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted figures primarily exclude the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and
otheritemsrelatedtoacquisitions and disposals, and the associated deferred tax movements. In 2018 and 2017, we also excluded exceptional tax credits, see note 9 on
page 138. Reconciliations between the reported and adjusted figures are set out on page 176. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, excluding the
results of acquisitions until twelve months after purchase, and excluding the results of disposals and assets held for sale. Underlying revenue growth rates also exclude
exhibition cycling. Constant currency growth ratesare based on 2017 full-year average and hedge exchange rates.

Reported operating profit, afteramortisation of acquired
intangible assets and acquisition-related costs, was £1,964m
(2017:£1,905m).

The amortisation chargeinrespectof acquired intangible assets,
including the share of amortisationinjoint ventures, decreased
to £288m (2017: £314m), the reduction primarily reflects certain
assets becoming fullyamortised. Acquisition-related costs were
£84m (2017: £56m), higher than the prioryear as a result of
increased transaction activity.

Adjusted interest expense, excluding the net pension financing
charge of £9m (2017: £15m) and including finance income in joint
ventures of £1m (2017: £1m), was £201m (2017: £183m). The
increase primarily reflects a higher level of borrowingsin 2018,
partly offset by currency translation effects.

Reported net finance costs were £211m (2017: £199m).

Net pre-tax disposal losses were £33m (2017: £15m gain) arising
largely from the write down of Legal businesses classified as held
for sale and revaluation of investments held. These losses are
offset by an associated tax credit of £14m (2017: £16m charge).

Adjusted profit before tax was £2,145m (2017: £2,101m), up 2%.
The reported profit before taxwas £1,720m (2017: £1,721m).

The adjusted effective tax rate on adjusted profit before taxwas
21.7%, 0.8 percentage points lower than the prior year rate of
22.5%.The adjusted effective tax rate excludes movementsin
deferred taxation assets and liabilities related to goodwill and
acquired intangible assets, butincludes the benefit of tax
amortisation where available on those items. Adjusted operating
profits and taxation are grossed up for the equity share of taxes
injointventures. The application of tax law and practice is subject
tosome uncertainty and amounts are provided in respect of this.

30.1% 30.5% 30.7%* 31.1%" 31.3%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

96% 94% 96%* 96%* 96%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

T Restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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Discussions with tax authorities relating to cross-border
transactions and other matters are ongoing. Although the
outcome of open items cannot be predicted, no significantimpact
on profitability is expected.

Thereported tax charge was £292m (2017: £65m). The 2017 tax
chargeincluded a one-off £346m creditin relation to the US Tax
Cutsand Jobs Act. The year-on-yearimpact of this creditis
partially offset by the recognition of a £112m exceptional tax credit
in 2018 as aresult of the substantial resolution of certain prioryear
tax matters during the year and the deferred tax effect of tax rate
reductionsinthe Netherlands and the US. On the basis of their size
and non-recurring nature these tax credits have been treated as
exceptionalitems and excluded from the adjusted tax charge.

The adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders of
£1,674m (2017: £1,620m]) was up 3%. Adjusted earnings per share
was up 6% at 84.7p (2017: 80.2p). At constant rates of exchange,
adjusted earnings per share increased by 7%.

Thereported net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders
was £1,422m (2017: £1,648m).

Adjusted cash flowwas £2,243m (2017: £2,197m), up 2% compared
with the prioryearand up 3% at constant currencies. As aresult of
the adoption of IFRS 16, adjusted cash flow includes the principal
element of lease repayments. The rate of conversion of adjusted
operating profit to adjusted cash flow was 96% (2017: 96%).

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Adjusted operating profit 2,346 2,284
Depreciation and amortisation of internally

developed intangible assets 287 268

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 77 75

Capital expenditure (362) (354)

Repayment of lease principal [net]* (81) (76)

Working capitaland otheritems (24) -

Adjusted cash flow 2,243 2,197

Adjusted cash flow conversion 96% 96%

* Excludesrepaymentsandreceiptsinrespect of disposal-related vacant property
andisnetofsubleasereceipts.

Capital expenditure was £362m (2017: £354m), including

£306m (2017: £303m) in respect of capitalised development costs.
Thisreflects sustained investmentin new products and related
infrastructure across the business. Depreciation and the
amortisation of internally developed intangible assets was £287m
(2017: £268m). Capital expenditure was 4.8% of revenue

(2017: 4.8%). Depreciation and amortisation was 3.8% of revenue
(2017:3.7%). These percentages exclude depreciation of leased
right-of-use assets of £77m (2017: £75m) and principal lease
repayments under IFRS 16 of £81m (2017: £76m).

Tax paid, excluding tax relief on acquisition-related costs and
disposals, of £428m (2017: £472m) decreased due to the timing of
payments and movementsin exchange rates. Interest paid was
£155m (2017: £163m).

Payments madein respect of acquisition-related costs amounted

to £77m (2017: £42m).

Free cash flow before dividendswas £1,593m (2017: £1,534m).
Ordinarydividends paid to shareholdersin the year, being the
2017 finaland 2018 interim dividends, amounted to £796m (2017:
£762m). Free cash flow after dividends was £797m (2017: £772m).

Restated
2018 2017
£m £m

Cash generated from operations 2,555 2,526
Dividends received from joint ventures 30 38
Purchases of property, plantand

equipment (56) (51)
Expenditure oninternally developed

intangible assets (306) (303)
Paymentsin relation to acquisition-

related costs/other 97 62
Repayment of lease principal (81) (76)
Proceeds from disposals of property,

plantand equipment 4 1
Adjusted cash flow 2,243 2,197

Restated
2018 2017
£m £m

Adjusted cash flow 2,243 2,197
Interest paid (net) (155) (163)
Tax paid (428) (472)
Acquisition-related costs* (67) (28)
Free cash flow before dividends 1,593 1,534
Ordinary dividends (796) (762)
Free cashflow post dividends 797 772

* Including cash tax relief.

Total consideration on acquisitions completed in the year was
£978m (2017: £123m). Cash spent on acquisitions was £960m
(2017: £141m), including deferred consideration of £16m (2017:

£13m) on past acquisitions and spend on venture capital

investments of £13m (2017: £10m).

Total consideration for the disposal of non-strategic assets
in 2018 was £45m (2017: £87m). Net cash inflow after timing
differences and separation and transaction costs was £5m

(2017: £41m inflow).

Share repurchasesin 2018 were £700m (2017: £700m), with a
further £100m repurchasedin 2019 as at 20 February. In addition,
the Employee Benefit Trust purchased shares of RELXPLC to
meet future obligations in respect of share based remuneration
totalling £43m (2017: £39m). Proceeds from the exercise of share

optionswere £21m (2017: £32m).
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Restated
2018 2017
£m £m
Netdebtat 1 January (5,042) (5,050)
Free cash flow post dividends 797 772
Netdisposal proceeds 5 41
Acqmsmon c.ash spgnd[lnclludlng (960) (141)
borrowingsin acquired businesses)
Share repurchases (700) (700)
Purchase of shares by the Employee
Benefit Trust (43) (39)
Other* 12 34
Currencytranslation (246) 41
Movementin netdebt (1,135) 8
Netdebtat 31 December (6,177) (5,042)

* Cashtaxreliefondisposals, distributions to non-controlling interests, pension
deficit payments, leases and share option exercise proceeds.

Debt

Net borrowings at 31 December 2018 were £6,177m, an

increase of £1,135m since 31 December 2017. The majority of our
borrowings are denominated in US dollars and euros, and sterling
being weaker atthe end of the year contributed to higher net
borrowings when translated into sterling. Excluding currency
translation effects, net borrowingsincreased by £889m.
Expressedin USdollars, netborrowings at31 December 2018
were $7,874m, anincrease of $1,055m.

Gross borrowings of £6,365m (31 December 2017: £5,253m) are
comprised of bank and bond borrowings of £6,005m (31 December
2017:£4,862m) and lease liabilities under IFRS 16 of £3460m

(31 December 2017: £391m). The fair value of related derivative
netassetswas £25m (31 December 2017: £43m), finance lease
receivables totalled £49m (31 December 2017: £57m) and cash
and cash equivalents totalled £114m (31 December 2017: £111m).
Inaggregate, these give the net borrowings figure of £6,177m

(31 December 2017: £5,042m).

The effective interest rate on gross bank and bond borrowings was
3.2%in 2018, in line with the prioryear. This reflectsincreasesin
market interest rates offset by the benefit of refinancing historical
bondsthat had higher rates of interest. As at 31 December 2018,
gross bank and bond borrowings had aweighted average life
remaining of 4.1 years and a total of 45% of them were at fixed
rates, after taking into accountinterest rate derivatives.

The ratio of net debt (including leases and pensions) to 12-month
trailing EBITDA (adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation) was 2.4x (31 December 2017: 2.2x), calculated in
US dollars. Excluding leases and pensions, the ratio was 2.2x (31
December 2017: 1.9x].

Liquidity

During July 2018, the Group’s $2.0bn undrawn committed bank
facility, maturing in July 2020, was cancelled and replaced with a
new $3.0bn facility, consisting of a $1.75bn tranche maturingin
July2023anda $1.25bn tranche maturing in July 2021. This facility
provides security of funding for short-term debt.

In March 2018, $700m of dollar denominated fixed rate term debt
was issued with a coupon of 3.5% and a maturity of five years, and
€500m of euro denominated fixed rate term debt was issued with
a coupon of 1.5% and a maturity of nine years. The Group has
ample liquidity and access to debt capital markets, providing the
ability to repay or refinance borrowings as they mature and to fund
ongoing requirements.

Net capital employed was £9,435m at 31 December 2018 (2017:
£8,241m), anincrease of £1,194m. The carrying value of goodwill
and acquiredintangible assetsincreased by £1,193m, reflecting
increased acquisition spendin 2018 and the strengthening of the
dollaragainst sterling from the beginning to the end of 2018. An
amount of £423m was capitalised inthe yearin respect of acquired
intangible assetsand £626mwas recorded as goodwill.

$m

993

850 819 859

783 773

630 573 573

7

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 >2027

Term debt translated at 31 December 2018 exchange rates, stated at par value

12.8% 12.7% 13.0% 12.9%7 13.2%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

T Restated foradoption of newaccounting standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15and IFRS 16.
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Restated
2018 2017
£m £m

Goodwilland acquired intangible assets* 9,216 8,023
Internally developed intangible assets* 1,217 1,136
Property, plantand equipment*,

right-of-use assets*andinvestments 716 724
Net assets held for sale (3) -
Net pension obligations (433) (328)
Working capital (1,278) (1,314)
Net capital employed 9,435 8,241

* Netofaccumulated depreciation and amortisation.

Development costs of £304m (2017: £304m) were capitalised
withininternally developed intangible assets, most notably
investmentin new products and related infrastructure in the
Legaland Scientific, Technical & Medical businesses.

Net pension obligations, i.e. pension obligations less pension
assets, increased to £433m (2017: £328m). There was a net
deficit of £203m (2017: £89m) in respect of funded schemes,
which were on average 96% funded at the end of the year on
anIFRS basis. The higher deficit mainly reflects weaker asset
performance inthe UK scheme. An £11m past service cost
was recognisedinthe UKinrelation to GMP equalisation.

The post-tax return on average invested capitalin theyear
was 13.2% (2017: 12.9%].

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Adjusted operating profit 2,346 2,284
Tax at effective rate 509 514
Effective tax rate 21.7% 22.5%
Adjusted operating profit after tax 1,837 1,770
Average invested capital* 13,924 13,733
Return oninvested capital 13.2% 12.9%

* Average of invested capital atthe beginningand the end of the year, retranslated
ataverage exchangeratesfor theyear. Invested capitalis calculated as net capital
employed, adjusted toadd back accumulated amortisation, impairment of acquired
intangible assetsand goodwilland to exclude the gross up to goodwillin respect of
deferredtax.

Restated

2018 2017
£m £m Change
Reported earnings per share 71.9p 81.6p -12%
Ordinary dividend pershare 42.1p 39.4p 7%

The reported earnings per sharewas 71.9p (2017:81.6p). The
decrease year-on-year reflects theimpact of the exceptional tax
creditrecognisedin 2017 as aresult of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

The final dividend proposed by the Board is 29.7p per share, 7%
higherthan the dividend for the prioryear. This gives total
dividends for the year of 42.1p (2017: 39.4p).

Dividend cover, based on adjusted earnings per share and the
totalinterim and proposed final dividends for the year, is 2.0x.

Thedividend policyis, subject to currency considerations, to grow
dividends broadly in line with adjusted earnings per share while
maintaining dividend cover (being the number of times the annual
dividend is covered by the adjusted earnings per share) of at least
two times over the longerterm.

On8September 2018, the corporate simplification was effective
and RELX NV shareholders received one new RELXPLC sharein
exchange for each RELXNV share held. During 2018 a combined
total of 44.4m of RELXPLC and RELXNV shareswere
repurchased (17.5m of these were repurchased by RELXNV prior
tothe corporate simplification). Total consideration for these
repurchaseswas £700m. Afurther 2.9m shares were purchased
by the Employee Benefit Trust. During 2018, 45m RELXPLC
shares heldintreasurywere cancelled. Asat 31 December 2018,
total sharesinissue, netof shares held intreasuryand shares
held by the Employee Benefit Trust, amounted to 1,962m. A further
6.0m RELXPLC shares have beenrepurchasedin2019 as at

20 February.

Asat 31 December 2018, RELXPLC had distributable reserves
of £2.7bn. In line with UK legislation, distributable reserves are
derived from the non-consolidated RELX PLC balance sheet.
The consolidated reservesreflectadjustments such as

the amortisation of acquired intangible assets thatare not
takenintoaccountwhen calculating distributable reserves.

Furtherinformation onthe distributable reserves can be found
inthe parent company financial statements on page 171.

RELXuses adjusted figures, which are not defined by generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP’) such as IFRS. Adjusted
figuresand underlying growth rates are presented as additional
performance measures used by management, as they provide
relevantinformationinassessingthe Group’s performance,
position and cash flows. We believe that these measures enable
investors tomore clearly track the core operational performance
of the Group by separating outitems of income or expenditure
relating to acquisitions, disposals and capitalitems, and by
excluding exceptionaltax credits. This provides ourinvestors with
aclearbasisforassessingourability toraise debtand investin
new business opportunities.

Management uses these financial measures, along with IFRS
financial measures, in evaluating the operating performance

of the Group asawhole and of the individual business segments.
Adjusted financial measures should not be considered inisolation
from, or as a substitute for, financialinformation presentedin
compliance with IFRS. The measures may not be directly
comparable to similarly reported measures by other companies.
Please see page 176 for reconciliations of adjusted measures.

The following changes to alternative performance measures have
been made forthe 2018 year end:

The definition of adjusted cash flow was updated as a result of the
adoption of IFRS 16 toinclude the principal element of lease
repayments. This is consistent with the inclusion of capital
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expenditure inrelation to property, plantand equipmentin this
adjusted measure. Prior year comparatives have been restated
on page 176.

Underlying growth rates now include the results of acquisitions
starting twelve months after completion of a transaction.

This change, which has brought usinto line with comparable
companies, had noimpacton the 2018 underlying revenue
growth rates at either the divisional or Group level.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union and asissued by the International Accounting
Standards Board following the accounting policies shown in the
notesto the financial statements on pages 126 to 167. The
accounting policies and estimates which require the most
significant judgement relate to the valuation of goodwill and
intangible assets, the capitalisation of development costs,
taxation and accounting for defined benefit pension schemes.
Further detailis provided in the accounting policies on pages 126
to 128 andintherelevant notes to the accounts.

RELXadopted IFRS 9, 15and 16 from 1 January 2018. For IFRS 16
thisis oneyearearlier thanits mandatory adoption date. Please
see note 1tothe consolidated financial statements for further
details onthe impact of these new standards.

Taxationisanimportantissue for usand our stakeholders,
including our shareholders, governments, customers, suppliers,
employees and the global communities inwhich we operate. We
have set out our approach totaxin our global tax strategy. This
incorporates our Tax Principles along with additional disclosures
around where we pay taxes and our broader contribution to
society. Thisisall made publicly available on our website:
www.relx.com/go/TaxPrinciples

We maintain an open dialogue with tax authorities, and are vigilant
in ensuring thatwe comply with current tax legislation. We have
clearand consistent tax policies and tax matters are dealt with
by a professionaltax function, supported by externaladvisers. We
proactively seek to agree arm’s-length pricing with tax authorities
to mitigate tax risks of significant cross-border operations. We
actively engage with policy makers, tax administrators, industry
bodies and internationalinstitutions to provide informed input on
proposed tax measures, so thatwe and they can understand how
those proposals would affect our businesses. In addition, we
participate in consultations with the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development ('OECD’), European bodies and the
United Nations.

The Board of RELXPLC agrees policies for managing treasury
risks. The key policies address security of funding requirements,
the target fixed/floating interest rate exposure for debt and foreign

currency hedgingand place limits on counterparty exposures.
Amore extensive summary of these policiesis provided in note 18
to the financial statements on pages 150 to 155. Financial
instruments are used to finance the RELX businesses and to
hedge transactions. The Group’s businesses do not enterinto
speculative transactions.

The capital structure is managed to support RELX's objective of
maximising long-term shareholder value through appropriate
security of funding, ready access to debt and capital markets,
cost-effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business and
acquisition opportunities while maintaining appropriate leverage
toensure an efficient capital structure.

Overthe long-term, RELX seeks to maintain cash flow conversion
of 90% or higher and credit rating agency metrics thatare
consistentwith a solid investment grade credit rating. These
metrics as defined by the rating agenciesinclude net debt to
EBITDA, including and excluding pensions and leases, and various
measures of cash flow as a percentage of net debt.

RELXuses the cash flowit generates to fund capital expenditure
required to drive organic growth, to make selective acquisitions
and to provide a growing dividend to shareholders, while retaining
balance sheet strength to maintain access to cost-effective
sources of borrowing. Share repurchases are undertaken to
maintain an efficient balance sheet. Further detail on capital and
liquidity management is provided on pages 150 and 151.

Achieving our 2018 environmental objectives moves us closer to
meeting our 2015-2020 environmental targets. Inthe year, these
included reaching 42% of our locations (by employee headcount)
achieving five or more of our Group Environmental Standards,
which set environmental performance levels, and we purchased
renewable electricity equivalent to 81% of our global consumption
through a mixture of European green tariff, and green-e certified
US and Asian Gold Power renewable energy certificates. In
addition, 35% of our locations were covered by ISO 14001
environmental certification by year-end.

Our most significant environmentalimpactisin the scientific
knowledge and resources we provide thatinform action and
debate.In 2018, thisencompassed the Journal of Environmental
Management’s specialissue on sustainable waste and wastewater
managementand the Oceanology International North America
exhibition and conference which covers exploring, monitoring,
developing and protecting the world’s oceans.

Alongside managing supply chain costs, we concentrate on
ensuring an ethical supply chain. In 2018, we tracked 344 key
suppliers and lowered audit non-compliance findings with our
Supplier Code of Conduct by 34%. We also increased our spend
with veteran and minority owned business as part of on going
effortstoincrease supplier diversity.

Nick Luff
Chief Financial Officer
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Principalrisks

RELXhas established risk management practices thatare
embedded into the operations of the businesses, based on the
Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The principalrisks facing the business, which have been
assessed by the Audit Committee and Board, are described
below. The Directors confirm this processis robustandincludes
consideration of risks, including emerging risks, that could
threaten RELX's business models, future performance, solvency,
liquidity or reputation

Itis not possible to identify every risk that could affect our
businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the risks described
below cannot provide absolute assurance thata risk will not

processesare described in the Corporate Governance section.
Adescription of the business and a discussion of factors affecting
performance is set outin the Chief Executive Officer’s reportand
the Business Review. Treasuryrisks are further discussed in the
Chief Financial Officer’s reportandin note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements. Ourassessment of RELX’s prospects and
viability ison page 82. The Data Resources risk has been
expanded as a Data Resources and Data Privacy risk which
combines elements previously described in the Data Resources
and Cyber Security risks. Given RELX's reduced exposure, net
of mitigation, to Environmentalrisk, thisis no longer classified
asaPrincipal Risk. Our approach to managing corporate
responsibility, environmentaland other non-financial risks

materialise and/or adversely affect our business or financial
performance. Our risk managementand internal control

issetoutinthe Business Review and the separate Corporate
Responsibility Report.

Risk Description and impact Mitigation
Economy Demand forourproducts and services may be adversely Our businesses are focused on professional markets which
and market impacted by factors beyond our control, such as the have generally been more resilientin periods of economic
conditions economic environmentin the United States, Europe and downturn. We deliver information solutions, many on
other major economies, political uncertainties (includingthe ~ asubscriptionand recurring revenue basis, which are
potential consequences of the United Kingdom's withdrawal importantto our customers’ effectiveness and efficiency.
from the European Union under Article 50 of the Treaty of We operate diversified businessesin terms of sectors,
Lisbon ("Brexit”)), acts of war and civilunrestas well as markets, customers, geographies and products and
levels of governmentand private funding provided to services. We have extended our position in long-term global
academicand research institutions. growth markets through organic new launches supported
by the selective acquisition of small content and data sets.
We continue to dispose of businesses that no longer fit
our strategy.
We continuously monitor economic and political
developments to assess theirimpacton our strategy which
isdesigned to mitigate these risks. Inresponse to specific
uncertainties, such as Brexit, our businesses engage
inscenario planning and develop contingency plans
where relevant.
Intellectual Our products and servicesinclude and utilise intellectual We actively engage in developing and promoting the legal
property property. We rely on trademark, copyright, patentand other protection of intellectual property rights. Our subscription
rights intellectual property laws to establish and protect our contracts with customers contain provisions regarding the

proprietaryrightsinthisintellectual property. Thereisa
risk that our proprietaryrights could be challenged, limited,
invalidated or circumvented, which may impact demand
forand pricing of our products and services. Copyright
laws are subject to national legislative initiatives, as
wellas cross borderinitiatives such as those from the
European Commission and increased judicial scrutiny

in severaljurisdictions in which we operate. This creates
additional challenges forusin protecting our proprietary
rightsin content delivered through the internetand
electronic platforms.

use of proprietary content. We arevigilant as to the use of our
intellectual propertyand, as appropriate, take legalaction
tochallengeillegal content distribution sources.
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Risk Descriptionand impact Mitigation
Data Our businesses rely extensively upon content and data from We seek as faras possible to have proprietary content.
resources externalsources. Datais obtained from public records, Where contentis supplied to us by third parties, we aim to
and data governmental authorities, customers and other information have contracts which provide mutual commercial benefit.
privacy companies, including competitors. The disruption or loss of We also maintain an active dialogue with regulatory
data sources, either because of data privacy laws, such as authorities on privacy and other data related issues,
the European Union’s General Data Protection Regulation and promote, with others, the responsible use of data.
("GDPR"), relating to internet communications, privacy and ) . .
data protection, e-commerce, information governance and We have established data privacy prlnup_les, governance
use of publicrecords, or because data suppliers decide not str_ucturesapd controlprogrammesdeS|gn-edtoensure data
to supply them, mayimpose limits on our collectionand use privacyrequirements are ”.‘et: We have putlnplacgandtest
of certain kinds of information about individuals and our re§ponseplansto njanagemudentswhere datla privacy
ability to communicate such information effectively with ml'ght' be cgmprom|sed. We_embgd ourdlata privacy
our customers. principlesinagreements with third parties.
Compromise of data privacy, through a failure of our cyber We haveassura'ncle programmes to monitor compliance
security measures (see “Cyber security” below), other data and conducttraining and awareness programmes.
loss incidents or failure to comply with requirements for
proper collection, storage and transmittal of data, by
ourselves orourthird-party service providers, may damage
our reputation and expose us to risk of loss, fines and
penalties, litigation and increased regulation.
Paid Our Scientific, Technical & Medical ("STM”) primary research ~ We engage extensively with stakeholdersin the STM

subscriptions

content, like that of most of our competitors, is sold largely
ona paid subscription basis. There is continued debate in
government, academic and library communities, which are
the principal customers for our STM content, regarding to
what extent such content should be funded instead through
fees charged to authors or authors’ funders and/or made
freely available in some form after a period following
publication. Some of these methods, if widely adopted, could
adversely affect our revenue from paid subscriptions.

community to better understand their needs and deliver
value to them. We are opento serving the STM community
under any payment model that can sustainably provide
researcherswith the criticalinformation tools that they
need. In particular, the number of articles we publishonan
author pays, openaccess basisis growing rapidly. We focus
ontheintegrity and quality of research through the editorial
and peerreview process; we investin efficient editorialand
distribution platformsandininnovation in platforms and
tools to make contentand data more accessible and
actionable; and we develop our research systems to provide
capabilities to manage different payment models. We ensure
vigilance on plagiarism and the long-term preservation

of research findings.

Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation
Customer Ourbusinesses are dependent on the continued acceptance We are focused on the needs and economics of our
acceptance by our customers of our products and services and the value customers. We leverage user centred designand
of products placed onthem. Failure to meet evolving customer needs development methods and customeranalytics and invest
couldimpactdemand for our products and services and innewand enhanced technologies to provide contentand
consequently adversely affect our revenue or the long-term innovative solutions that help them achieve better outcomes
returns from our investmentin electronic productand and enhance productivity.
platforminitiatives.
Market Our businesses operate in highly competitive and dynamic We gaininsightsinto our markets, evolving customers’
Disruption markets, and the means of delivering our products and needs, the potential application of new technologies and
services, and the products and services themselves, business models, and the actions of competitors and
continue tochangeinresponse to rapid technological disrupters. These insights inform our market strategies
innovations, legislative and regulatory changes, theentrance  andoperational priorities. We continuously invest
of new competitors and other factors. Failure to anticipate significantresourcesin our products and services,
and quickly adapt to these changes could impact the andtheinfrastructure to supportthem.
competitiveness of our products and services and
consequently adversely affect our revenue.
Acquisitions We supplement our organic development with selected Acquisitions are made within the framework of our overall

acquisitions. If we are unable to generate the anticipated
benefits such as revenue growth and/or cost savings
associated with these acquisitions this could adversely
affectreturnoninvested capital and financial condition
or lead to animpairment of goodwill.

strategy, which emphasises organic development. We have
awellformulated process for reviewing and executing
acquisitions and for managing the post-acquisition
integration. This process is underpinned with clear strategic,
financialand ethical criteria. We closely monitor the
integration and performance of acquisitions.
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Risk Descriptionand impact Mitigation

Technology Our businesses are dependent on electronic platforms and We have established procedures for the protection of our

andbusiness networks, primarily the internet, for delivery of our products businessesandtechnologyassets. Theseinclude the

resilience and services. These could be adversely affected if our developmentand testing of business continuity plans,
electronicdelivery platforms, networks or supporting including IT disaster recovery plans and back-up delivery
infrastructure experience a significant failure, interruption systems, to reduce business disruptionin the event of major
orsecurity breach. technology orinfrastructure failure, terrorism or adverse

weatherincidents.
Cyber Our businesses maintain online databases and platforms We have established security programmes with the aim of
security delivering our products and services, whichwe rely on, ensuring thatdatais protected, our business infrastructures

and provide data to third parties, including customers and
service providers. These databases and informationare a
target for compromise and face arisk of unauthorised access
and use by unauthorised parties.

Our cyber security measures, and the measures used

by our third-party service providers, may not detect or
preventallattempts to compromise our systems, which
may jeopardise the security of the data we maintain or
may disrupt our systems. Failures of our cyber security
measures could resultin unauthorised access to our
systems, misappropriation of our or our users’ data, deletion
or modification of stored information or otherinterruption
toour business operations. As techniques used to obtain
unauthorised access to or to sabotage systems change
frequently and may not be known until launched against
us orour third-party service providers, we may be unable
toanticipate orimplement adequate measures to protect
againstthese attacks and our service providers and
customers may likewise be unable to do so.

Compromises of our or our third-party service providers’
systems, or failure to comply with applicable legislation or
regulatoryor contractual requirements could adversely
affectourfinancial performance, damage our reputation
and expose ustorisk of loss, fines and penalties, litigation
andincreasedregulation.

continue to operate and that we comply with relevant
legislative, regulatoryand contractual requirements.

We have governance mechanismsin place to designand
monitor common policies and standards across our
businesses.

We investinappropriate technologicaland physical controls
which are applied across the enterprise in a risk-based
security programme which operates atthe infrastructure,
applicationand user levels. These controlsinclude, butare
not limited to, infrastructure vulnerability management,
application scanning and penetration testing, network
segmentation, encryption and logging and monitoring.

We provide regulartrainingand communication initiatives
to establishand maintain awareness of risks at all levels

of our businesses. We have appropriate incident response
planstorespond tothreatsandattacks. We maintain
appropriate information security policies and contractual
requirements for our businessesand run programmes
monitoring the application of our data security policies by
third-party service providers. We use independent internal
and third-party auditors to test, evaluate, and help enhance
our procedures and controls.

Supply Chain
dependencies

Ourorganisationaland operational structures depend on
outsourced and offshored functions, including use of cloud
service providers. Poor performance, failure or breach of
third parties to whom we have outsourced activities, could
adversely affect our business performance, reputation and
financial condition.

We selectourvendors with care and establish contractual
service levels that we closely monitor, including through
key performanceindicators and targeted supplier audits
and security assessments. We have developed business
continuity plans toreduce disruption in the event of a major
failure by avendor.

Talent

The implementation and execution of our strategies
andbusiness plans depend on our ability to recruit,
motivate and retain skilled employees and management.
We compete globally and across business sectors for
talented managementand skilled individuals, particularly
those with technology and data analytics capabilities. An
inability to recruit, motivate or retain such people could
adversely affect our business performance. Failure to
recruitand develop talent regardless of gender, race or
othercharacteristics could adversely affect our reputation
and business performance.

We have well established management developmentand
talentreview programmes. We monitor capability needs and
remuneration schemes are tailored to attractand motivate
the besttalentavailable atanappropriate level of cost. We
actively seek feedback from employees, which feeds into
planstoenhance employee engagement and motivation.
Our Diversity and Inclusion Strategy creates adiverse
workforce and environment that respectsindividuals

and their contributions.
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Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation
Pensions We operate anumber of pension schemes around the world, We have professional management of our pension schemes
including localversions of the defined benefit type in the UK and we focus on maintaining appropriate asset allocation
andthe United States. The assets and obligations associated ~ and plan designs. We review our funding requirements
with those pension schemes are sensitive to changesin onaregularbasis with the assistance of independent
the marketvalues of the scheme’s investments and the actuariesand ensure that the funding plans are appropriate.
market-related assumptions used to value scheme We seek to manage pension liabilities by reviewing pension
liabilities. Adverse changesto assetvalues, discount rates, benefits provided to staff aswell as the structure of o
longevity assumptions orinflation could increase future scheme arrangements. c
pension costs and funding requirements. 3
[}
Tax Ourbusinesses operate globally, and our profits are subject We maintain an open dialogue with tax authorities and 5
to taxation in many differentjurisdictions and at differing tax arevigilantin ensuring that we comply with current tax =
rates. The Organisation for Economic Co-operationand legislation. We have clear and consistent tax policies and 2
Development ("OECD")'s reports on Base Erosion and Profit tax matters are dealt with by a professional tax function,
Shifting, suggested arange of new approaches that national supported by externaladvisers. As outlined in the Chief
governments mightadopt when taxing the activities of Financial Officer’sreporton page 59 we engage with tax
multinationalenterprises. The OECD continues to explore authorities and international organisations. The principles
options around the taxation of the digitaleconomy. Asaresult ~ weadoptinourapproach totax matters can be found onour
ofthe OECD’s work and other internationalinitiatives, tax website at www.relx.com/go/taxprinciples.
laws that currently apply to our businesses may be amended
bythe relevantauthorities orinterpreted differently by them,
and these changes could adversely affect ourreported results.
Treasury The RELX consolidated financial statements are expressed Ourapproach to capital structure and funding are described
inpounds sterlingand are subjectto movementsinexchange  inthe Chief Financial Officer’s Reporton pages54to59.The
rates on the translation of the financialinformation of approach tothe management of treasury risksis described
businesses whose operational currencies are other than in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
sterling. The United States is our mostimportant market
and, accordingly, significant fluctuationsin the US dollar
exchange rate could significantly affect our reported results.
We also earnrevenuesand incur costsinarange of other
currencies, including the euro and the yen and significant
fluctuations in these exchange rates could also significantly
impactourreported results.
Macroeconomic, politicaland market conditions may
adversely affect the availability and terms of shortand
long-term funding, volatility of interest rates, the credit
quality of our counterparties, currency exchange rates and
inflation. The majority of our outstanding debt instruments ©
are, and any of our future debt instruments may be, publicly %
rated byindependent ratingagencies. Our borrowing costs 3
andaccessto capital may be adversely affected if the credit §
ratings assigned to our debtare downgraded. ®
Risk Description and impact Mitigation
Ethics Asaglobal provider of professionalinformation solutions Our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is provided to every

tothe STM, risk & business analytics, legaland exhibitions
markets we, our employees and major suppliersare
expected toadhere to high standards of independence and
ethical conduct, including those related to anti-briberyand
anti-corruption, sanctions, promoting humanrights and
principled business conduct. Abreach of generally accepted
ethical business standards or applicable anti-briberyand
anti-corruption, sanctions or competition statutes could
adversely affect our business performance, reputationand
financial condition.

employee and is supported by trainingand communication.
Itencompasses such topics as competing fairly, prohibiting
corruptbusiness practices, promoting humanrights and fair
employment practices and encouraging openand principled
behaviour. We have well-established processes for
monitoring, reporting and investigating instances of
unethical conduct. Our major suppliers are required to
adhere toour Supplier Code of Conduct.

The Strategic Report, as set out on pages 2to 63 has been approved by the Board of RELXPLC.

By order of the Board Registered Office
HenryUdow 1-3 Strand
Company Secretary London

20 February 2019 WC2N5JR
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Board Directors

Appointed: Chief Executive Officer of RELX
since November 2009. Joined as Chief
Executive Officer of Elsevierin 2004.

Other appointments: Non-Executive
Director of Smith & Nephew plc.
Pastappointments: Priortojoiningwas a
partnerat General Atlantic Partners. Before
thatwas Presidentand Chief Operating Officer
of Random House Incand President and Chief
Executive Officer of Bantam Doubleday Dell,
North America. Began hiscareerasa
consultantwith McKinsey. Servedas a
Non-Executive Director of Eniro AB and
Svenska Cellulosa Aktiebolaget SCA.
Education: Holds a BSc from Stockholm
School of Economics, an MSc from the Royal
Institute of Technology in Stockholm, and
gained an MBA from Harvard Business
SchoolasaFulbright Scholar.

Nationality: Swedish

Non-Executive Directors

"#h

Sir Anthony Habgood (72)
Chairman

Appointed: June 2009

Otherappointments: Chairman of Pregin
Holding Limited and Deputy Chairman of RG
CarterHoldings Limited.

Pastappointments: Previously was Chairman
ofthe Court of the Bank of England,
Whitbread plc, Bunzl plc, M6lnlycke Health
Care Limited and Norwich Research Partners
LLPandservedas Chief Executive of Bunzlplc,
Chief Executive of Tootal Group plcand a Director
of The Boston Consulting Group. Formerly
Non-Executive Director of Geest plc, Marksand
Spencer plc, National Westminster Bank plc,
Powergen plc, SVG Capital plc, and Norfolk
and Norwich University Hospitals Trust.
Education: Holds an MAin Economics from
Cambridge University,an MSin Industrial
Administration from Carnegie Mellon University
andanHonorary Doctorate of CivilLaw fromthe
University of EastAnglia. He is avisiting Fellow
at Oxford University.

Nationality: British

Robert MacLeod (54)
Non-Executive Director

-

WolfhartHauser (69)

Non-Executive Director

Senior Independent Director

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Appointed: April 2013

Other appointments: Chairman of
FirstGroup plcand a Non-Executive Director
of Associated British Foods plc.

Past appointments: Chief Executive Officer
of Intertek Group plc from 2005 until 2015.
Priortothat he was Chief Executive Officer
of TUVSud AG between 1998 and 2002

and Chief Executive Officer of TUV Product
Service GmbH fortenyears. Formerlya
Non-Executive Director of Logica plc.
Education: Holds a master'sdegreein
Medicine from Ludwig-Maximilian-
University Munich and a Medical Doctorate
from Technical University Munich.
Nationality: German

Carol Mills (65)
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: September 2014

Other appointments: Non-Executive
Director of Rolls-Royce Holdings plc.
Pastappointments: Priortojoining the
Groupwas Group Finance Director of
Centrica plc from 2007. Before that was
Chief Financial Officer at The Peninsular
& Oriental Steam Navigation Company
(P&0) and its affiliated companies, having
previously held a number of senior finance
rolesat P&0. Began his careerasan
accountantwith KPMG. Formerly a
Non-Executive Director of QinetiQ Group plc
and Lloyds Banking Group plc.

Education: Has adegree in Mathematics
from Oxford Universityand is a qualified
UK Chartered Accountant.

Nationality: British

Appointed: April 2016

Other appointments: Appointed as Chief
Executive of Johnson Matthey plcin June
2014 after fiveyearsas Group Finance
Director.

Pastappointments: Priortojoining Johnson
Matthey, spentfive years as Group Finance
Director of WS Atkins plc, having joined as
Group Financial Controllerin 2003. From
1993t02002, held a variety of senior finance
and M&A roleswith Enterprise Oilplcin

the UKand US. Formerly a Non-Executive
Director of Aggreko plc.

Nationality: British

Appointed: April 2016

Other appointments: Independent Director
of ZyngaIncand Entertainment Partners.
Pastappointments: Amember of the Boards
of Adobe Systems, Alaska Communications,
Tekelec Corporation, Blue Coat Systems,
Xactly Corporation, WhiteHat Security

and Ingram Micro. From 2004 to 2006,

was Executive Vice Presidentand General
Manager of the Infrastructure Products
Group at Juniper Networks. From 1998

to 2002 was Chief Executive Officer of

Acta Technology, and before Acta, spent

16 years at Hewlett-Packardinanumber

of executive roles.

Nationality: American
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Adrian Hennah (61) (A
Non-Executive Director
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Marikevan Lier Lels (59)
Non-Executive Director
Workforce Engagement Director

Suzanne Wood (58)
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: April 2011

Other appointments: Chief Financial Officer
of Reckitt Benckiser Group plc.
Pastappointments: Chief Financial Officer
of Smith & Nephew plc from 2006 to 2012.
Before that was Chief Financial Officer of
Invensys plc, having previously held various
senior finance and management positions
with GlaxoSmithKline for 18 years. Formerly,
aNon-Executive Director of Indivior PLC.
Nationality: British

Linda Sanford (66)
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: July 2015

Other appointments: Member of the
Supervisory Boards of NS (Dutch Railways),
DuraVermeerand Innovation Quarterand
amember of the Executive Committee

of Aegon Association.

Pastappointments: Member of the
Supervisory Boards of TKH Group NV, Royal
Imtech NV, Maersk BV, KPN NV, USG People
NVand Eneco Holding NV, and Executive Vice
Presidentand Chief Operating Officer of the
Schiphol Group. Priorto joining Schiphol
Group, was amember of the Executive Board
of Deutsche Post Euro Express and held
various senior positions with Nedlloyd.
Member of various Dutch governmental
advisory boards.

Nationality: Dutch

Benvander Veer (67)
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: December 2012
Other appointments: Anindependent
Director of Consolidated Edison, Inc,

Pitney Bowes, Incand ION Trading UK Limited.

Servesonthe board of trustees of the New
York Hall of Science.
Pastappointments: Senior Vice President,
Enterprise Transformation, IBM Corporation
until 2014, having joined the companyin 1975.
Aconsultantto The Carlyle Group from 2015 to
July2018. Formerlya Non-Executive Director
of ITT Corporation, served on the boards of
directors of The Business Council of New York
State and the Partnership for New York City,
and onthe boards of trustees of the State
University of New York, St John’s University
and Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute.
Nationality: American

Appointed: September 2009

Other appointments: Member of the
Supervisory Boards of Aegon NV, Koninklijke
FrieslandCampina NVand Royal Vopak NV.
Pastappointments: Chairman of the
Executive Board of KPMG in the Netherlands
andamember of the Management
Committee of the KPMG International board
until his retirementin 2008, having joined
KPMGin 1976. Formerly amember of the
Supervisory Boards of Royal Imtech

NV, Siemens Nederland NVand Tom Tom NV.
Nationality: Dutch

Appointed: September 2017

Other appointments: Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of Vulcan
Materials Company.
Pastappointments: Served as Group
Finance Director of Ashtead Group plc from
201210 2018. Chief Financial Officer of
Ashtead Group’s largest subsidiary, Sunbelt
Rentals Inc, from 2003 until 2012. Previously,
shealsoservedas Chief Financial Officer of
two US publicly listed companies, Oakwood
Homes Corporationand Tultex Corporation.
Nationality: American

Board Committee membership key
Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nominations Committee
Corporate Governance Committee

. Committee Chairman
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RELX Business Leaders

Kumsal Bayazit

Chief Executive Officer
Scientific, Technical

& Medicaland Chairwoman,
RELXTechnology Forum

tocurrent positionin 2019.

Previously President, Exhibitions
Europe, Chief Strategy Officer,
RELX, and Executive Vice President
of Global Strategy and Business
Development for LexisNexis. Prior
tothat worked with Bain &
CompanyinNew York, Los Angeles,
Johannesburgand Sydney. Holds
an MBAfrom Harvard Business
SchoolandisaGraduate of the
University of California at Berkeley.

Mark Kelsey
Chief Executive Officer
Risk & Business Analytics

Business Informationin 2010
and CEO Risk Solutionsin 2012.

Has held a number of senior
positions across the Group over
the past30years. Previously Chief
Operating Officer and then Chief
Executive Officer of Reed Business
Information. Studied at Liverpool
Universityand received his MBA
from Bradford University.

Chet Burchett
Chief Executive Officer
Exhibitions

tocurrent positionin 2015.

Previously President of the
Americas for Reed Exhibitions.
Priortothatwas President

and Chief Executive Officer,
USA, for Burson-Marsteller,
aleadingglobal publicrelations
agency. Holds adegree from
Baylor University.

Mike Walsh
Chief Executive Officer
Legal

tocurrent positionin2011.

Previously CEO of LexisNexis US
Legal Marketsand Director

of Strategic Business Development
Home Depot. Priorto thatwas
apractising attorney at Weil,
Gotshaland Mangesin Washington
DCandservedasa consultant

with The Boston Consulting Group.
Holds a Juris Doctor degree

from Harvard Law Schooland
isagraduate of Yale University.
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Youngsuk “YS” Chi
Director of RELX Corporate Affairs
and Chairman Elsevier

positionin2011.

Previouslywas Presidentand
Chief Operating Officer of Random
House, founding Chairman of
Random House Asiaand Chief
Operating Officer for Ingram
Book Group. Holds an MBA from
ColumbiaUniversityandisa
graduate of Princeton University.

Gunjan Aggarwal
Chief Human Resources Officer

tocurrentpositionatthattime.

Previously head of Human
Resources for Ericsson’s global
media businessin Californiaand for
Ericsson North America. Prior
Human Resources positionsin
Asia, Europe and North America at
Unileverand Novartis. Holds an
MBA from Xavier School of
Management, Jamshedpur, India,
andisagraduate from JMl Institute
of Technology.

»

HenryUdow
Chief Legal Officerand
Company Secretary

Joinedin2011. Appointed
tocurrentpositionatthattime.

Previously Chief Legal Officer and
Company Secretary of Cadbury plc
having spent 23yearsworking with
the company. Prior to thatworked
atShearman & Sterlingin New York
and London. Holds a Juris Doctor
degree fromthe University

of Michigan Law Schooland
abachelor’'sdegree fromthe
University of Rochester.

Andrew Matuch
Chief Strategy Officer

tocurrent positionin 2016.

Previously was Executive Vice
President Global Strategyand
Business Development for

LexisNexis Legaland Professional.

PriortothatwasapartneratOC&C
Strategy Consultants. Holds an
MBAfrom Harvard Business
Schooland abachelor’'sdegree
from Williams College.
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Chairman’s introduction to corporate governance

Simplification of our governance framework

2018 was a significantyear for RELXinrespect of its corporate
governance arrangements. After receiving overwhelming
supportat both shareholder meetings held in June, the Group
simplified its corporate structure by way of a cross-border
merger of RELXNVinto RELXPLC. Asaresult, the Group moved
fromadual parent holding company structure to a single parent
company, with RELXPLC as the sole parent company of the
Group (the Simplification). This Simplification has removed
complexity andincreased transparency for our stakeholders,
and followed the significant measures completed in 2015. It was
the natural next stepin the evolution of our corporate governance
arrangements. This has resulted ina simpler structure, with
one Board of Directors, one market capitalisation, one class

of shares and a single tax residence, whilst maintaining a
robust, effective governance framework vital for delivering

our long-term strategy.

Following the fullharmonisation of the RELXPLC and RELXNV
Boardsin 2015, the Simplification did not change our Board
composition or governance framework, and the Board delegatesa
number of its responsibilities to four principal Committees so that
it may continue to dedicate adequate time to fulfilling its remaining
responsibilities within its scheduled annual Board programme.

The Board’'s Committee structureis set out on page 73.

Following the completion of the Simplification, the Company’s
securitiesare listed inthe UK, US and the Netherlands, and
therefore the Companyis subject toapplicable corporate
governance and regulatory requirements of those jurisdictions.
These requirements, which are continually evolving, are reviewed
and monitored by the Corporate Governance Committee.

Role and activities of the Board

Myroleisto lead the Board, ensuring thatit carries outits
principal functions effectively; providing leadership for the
Group, overseeingits strategy and the management of risks

toits delivery, and ultimately being accountable for delivering
appropriate financial returns to shareholders over the long-term.
Thisreport sets out how the Board carried out its principal
functionsduring the year,and summarises its activities and those
of its Committees during that time. It also explains in more detail
the Group’s simplified corporate governance arrangements, and
how the Company has applied the main principles of the 2016 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code] during the year. The Board
continues to prioritise corporate governance across RELX, and
views this as essentialin underpinning the Group’s ability to
deliver long-term success forits shareholders. | am therefore
pleasedtoreportthatthe Company complied with each of the
provisions of the Code during the year.

As partofits leadership role, the Board is responsible for
developing a corporate culture across RELXwhich promotes
integrity and transparency, and an understanding of RELX’s
responsibilities to its stakeholders and the societies inwhich it
operates. In thisregard, the Board sets the tone from the top

of the organisation, by establishing comprehensive systems of
corporate governance, and approving policies and procedures
which promote corporate responsibility, transparency,
accountability and ethical behaviour. Central to these policies
isthe Group’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, which sets
outclearly the standards expected for corporate and individual
behaviour.In 2018, following a comprehensive management
review process, the Board approved an updated Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct, which applies to all Directors and
employees of the Group, isembedded into the Group’s operations
through complementary policies, procedures and training, and
is available on our website at www.relx.com.

Board changes

During the year, the Nominations Committee continued to

keep the compositions of the Board and its Committees under
review to ensure thatthey remained appropriate. There have
beenasmallnumber of changes to the compositions of our
Committees, and a change of chairmanship of the Audit
Committee, with Adrian Hennah succeeding Benvan der Veer
with effect from April 2018. Adrian was also appointed, alongside
Marike van Lier Lels, as a member of the Nominations Committee
from September 2018, with Benvan der Veer steppingdown as a
member of the Nominations Committee and the Audit Committee
atthattime. Having served on the Board for nineyears, Benvan
derVeerwill step down asa Non-Executive Director at the
conclusion of the Company’s Annual General Meeting in April
2019 and, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Ben for

his dedication and major contributions during that time. In
January, we announced that Andrew Sukawaty will join the Board
asaNon-Executive Director, subject to shareholder approval.
Andrew has considerable international experiencein the
technology sector, acquired through his experience in
technology-led businesses throughout his careerin both
executive and non-executive roles. He will be a valuable addition
toour Board.

Biographical details of each of the Directors are set out on
pages 66and 67.
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Succession planning

The Nominations Committee will continue to monitor Board

and Committee composition and review succession planning
arrangements onanongoing basis, ensuring thatappointments
continue to be based principally on merit, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity. It will be led by the Senior Independent
Directorwith respectto succession planning asit relates to the
role of the Chairman. It willalso ensure thatan appropriate
balance between continuity of service and the need for progressive
refreshing of the Board, ina controlled and structured manner,
is maintained.

Board evaluation and effectiveness

As Chairman, lamalsoresponsible for ensuring that the
effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and each individual
Directoris evaluated annually. An externally facilitated evaluation
was completed last year and therefore for 2018/19, an internally
conducted evaluation process has been carried out, overseen

by the Corporate Governance Committee. The outcome of the
evaluation confirmed that the Board and its Committees continue
to function effectively, and that all of our Directors continue to be
effective and demonstrate commitmentto their role. The results
of the evaluation are setout on page 79.

Having considered the results of the review, and taking into account
the changes made to the Board and Committees during the year,

I believe that the Board and its Committees continue to operate
effectively, and have an appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence, knowledge of the Group and diversity to ensure that
they continue todo so. | remain satisfied that the Non-Executive
Directors have sufficienttime to undertake theirroles.

The New Code

The Board has noted the changes made by the new UK Corporate
Governance Code (the New Code), published by the Financial
Reporting Councilin July 2018, and particularlyitsincreased
emphasis on relationships between a companyand awide range
of its stakeholders. The Board has historically recognised and
acknowledged that stakeholder relationships, such as those with
suppliers, customers and our employees, are animportant
consideration atall levels of business interaction, and this has
consistently been reflected in the Board's decision-making.

Inlight of the new requirements, with effect from 1 January 2019,
Marikevan Lier Lels has been appointed by the Board asa
designated Non-Executive Director to facilitate engagement

with the RELXworkforce. In her role, Marike will provide an open
channel of communication with representatives of our workforce,
throughwhichissues can be raised directly with the Board, and
discussed and considered inthe Board’s decision-making process.

Allrequirements underthe New Code willapply to RELX from
1January 2019, and therefore the Companywill reporton these
inits 2019 Annual Report.

Sir Anthony Habgood
Chairman
20 February 2019
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Corporate Governance Review

Corporate simplificationand structure
On8September 2018, the structure of RELXwas further
simplified from a dual parent structure toa single parent
structure by way of a merger of RELX PLC (the Company) and
RELXNV (the Simplification). Under the terms of the
Simplification, RELXNV shareholders received one share in the
Companyin exchange foreach RELXNV share owned. Asaresult
of the Simplification, the Companyis now the sole parent company
ofthe Group, and its shares are traded through its primary
listing on the London Stock Exchange and its secondary listing

on Euronext Amsterdam, with its securities also traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under its American Depositary

Share Programme.

The Board of the Company has implemented standards of
corporate governance and disclosure policies applicable toa UK
incorporated company, with listings in London, Amsterdam and
New York. The Company has already elected the United Kingdom
asits EUhome member state, and therefore, following the
Simplification, most of its regulatory and corporate governance-
related obligations arise inthe UKand in the US.

Corporate governance compliance and statements

The 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code (the UK Code)
appliedtothe Companyduring the year. The Board supports
the principles of corporate governance setoutin the UK Code.
Arevised version of the UK Corporate Governance Code

(the New Code) was published by the Financial Reporting
Councilin July 2018, which applied to the Company from

1 January 2019.

The Company, which hasits primary listing on the main
market of the London Stock Exchange, has complied with
the provisions of the UK Code throughout the year ended
31 December2018.

Adescription of how the Company has applied the main

principles of the UK Code is set out on pages 73 to 82.

A copy of the UK Code can be found on the FRC website at
www.frc.org.uk

The Directors of the Company are required by the UK Code to
make certain statementsinrelation to provisions contained in
the UK Code. The locations of those statements are as follows:

Page 2to 63 forthe Strategic Report explaining the Group's
business modeland the strategy for delivering the objectives
of the Group

Page 60 for confirmation that the Directors have carried out
arobustassessment of the principal risks facing the Group,
including those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity

Page 80 for confirmation thatthe Annual Reportand Accounts
is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
position and performance, business modeland strategy

Page 82 for an explanation of how the Directors have assessed
the prospects of the Group, taking into account the Group’s
current position and its principal risks

Page 80 for the statement on the status of the Group asa
going concern
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Application of UK Corporate Governance
Code Principles

Role of the Board and its Committees

The Boardisresponsible for providing leadership and
stewardship of the Group within a framework of appropriate

and effective controls that enable risk to be assessed, and then
managed ina manner which promotes the success of the Group.
The Boardisalsoresponsible for overseeing the Group’s strategy
and performance, financial reporting, internal controland

risk management framework, and corporate governance
processes. Itisalso ultimately accountable to shareholders for
the long-term performance of the business and the delivery

of shareholder returns.

Inorderto facilitate the oversight role that it providesin these
areas, and to ensure that it retains decision-making powerin
respect of matters which are deemed to be material to the current
or future financial performance of the Group, the Board has putin
placeaclearandrobust corporate governance framework. This
includes a schedule of matters reserved for the approval of the
Board, such as the approval of material acquisitions, major capital
expenditure, Group strategy and budgets, the Group’s financial
statementsand its dividend policy. In order to allow the Board
appropriate time to focus on these key matters within the
constraints of itsannual programme, a number of its other

responsibilities have been delegated to four principal committees.
These are set out within the Terms of Reference foreach
Committee, which were updated during the year, toreflect that,
fromthe time of completion of the Simplification, the former Dutch
entity RELX NV ceased to exist, and to reflect the increased remit
of the Remuneration and Nominations Committees, as prescribed
by the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the New Code). The
current Terms of Reference for each Committee can be found on
our website at (1) www.relx.com. The membership and activities
of these Committees are described on pages 83,85and 106.

There are additionally anumber of approved delegated authorities
in place from the Board to the Chief Executive Officer and other
senior executives which relate principally to the day-to-day
management of the business.

The executive leadership team supports the Chief Executive
Officerinthe performance of his duties.

Chairman and Chief Executive - division of responsibilities
Thereisaclearseparation of the roles of the Chairman, who
leads the Board, and the Chief Executive Officer,whois
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group, which
aresetoutinwritingand included on page 74. The table on page
74 alsoillustrates the key responsibilities of the other Directors.
This division of responsibilities, in addition to the Schedule of
Matters Reserved for the Board and Terms of Reference for each
Committee, ensures thatthere are appropriate controlsin place to
preventanyindividual from having unfettered powers of decision.

The Board has established a number of Committees, to which it has delegated certain powers, and which focus on particular
matters. The structure of these Committees and a summary of their key responsibilities are set out below. Each Committee
hasits own Chairmanwho reports back to the Board onits activities. Details on how these Committees have addressed these
responsibilities are set outin pages 83to 107. Allthe Committees have written Terms of Reference, which are available on our

website,

www.relx. com. Board Committees are principally supported by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,

Chief Legal Officer and Company Secretary, and the Chief Human Resources Officer, although senior managers within the Group
areinvited to attend meetings where appropriate. The Board's annual programme and the agendas for the Committees are
prepared by their respective Chairs with support from the Company Secretary.

Responsible for the oversight
of financial reporting, risk
managementand internal
control policies, and the
effectiveness of theinternal
and externalaudit processes.
The Committee comprises only
independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Report of the Audit
Committee page 106

Responsible forapproving the
remuneration of the Group’s
Executive Directors, the
Chairman, and senior
executives below Board level.
The Committee comprises only
Non-Executive Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration
Report page 85

Responsible for keeping under
review the composition of the
Board and the Board
Committees, and the
recruitment of new Directors.
The Committee comprises only
Non-Executive Directors.

Responsible for reviewing
ongoing developmentsand
best practicein corporate
governance, assessing the
performance of the Directors,
and monitoring the structure
and operation of the Board
Committees. The Committee
comprises only Non-Executive
Directors.

Report of the Nominations
Committee page 83
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Chairman
Provides leadership of the Board, ensuring that it
functions effectively

Ensuresthatall Directors are sufficiently apprised of
matters to make informed judgements, through the
provision of accurate, timely and clear information

Promotes high standards of corporate governance
and a Board culture of openness and debate

Sets the agenda and chairs meetings of the Board

Chairs the Nominations and Corporate Governance
Committees

Facilitates the effective contribution of all of the Directors
Ensures effective dialogue with shareholders

Ensuresthe performance of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directorsis assessed annually

Ensures effective induction and development of Directors

Chief Executive Officer
Day-to-day management of the Group, within the delegated
authority limits set by the Board

Develops the Group’s strategy for consideration and
approval by the Board

Ensures that the decisions of the Board are implemented

Informs and advises the Chairman and Nominations
Committee on executive succession planning

Leads communication with shareholders

Promotes and conducts the affairs of the Company with the
highest standards of integrity, probity and corporate
governance

Board composition

The membership of the Board remained unchanged throughout
theyear, and as at the date of the Annual Reportwas made up

of the Chairman, two Executive Directors and eight other
Non-Executive Directors, who bring a wide range of skills,
experience, industry expertise and professional knowledge to
theirroles. Asummary of the balance and diversity of the skills,
gender, length of tenure and nationality of the Board of Directors,
which the Nominations Committee and Board considered as
important factors when reviewing the composition of the Board,

Chief Financial Officer
Day-to-day management of the Group’s financial affairs

Responsible for the Group’s financial planning, reporting
and analysis

Ensuresthatarobust system of internal control and risk
managementisinplace

Maintains high-quality reporting of financial and
environmental performance internally and externally

Supports the Chief Executive Officerin developing and
implementing strategy

Senior Independent Director
Leads the Board'sannualassessment of the performance
of the Chairman

Available to meet with shareholders on matters where
usualchannels are deemed inappropriate

Deputises for the Chairman, as necessary

Servesasasounding board for the Chairmanandactsasan
intermediary between the other Directors, when necessary

Non-Executive Directors
Bring an external perspective and constructively challenge
and provide advice to the Executive Directors

Effectively contribute to the development of strategy

Scrutinise the performance of managementin meeting
agreed goals and monitor the delivery of the Group’s
strategy

Serve as members of Board Committees and chair the
Auditand Remuneration Committees

can be found on page 75. The Nominations Committee reviews,
onanongoing basis, the composition of the Board and its
Committees to ensure that this balance and diversity remains
appropriate, and has concluded that the current composition of
the Board allows it to discharge its duties to the Company and
governthe Group effectively.

Currently, 36% of the Board is made up of women, compared to the
Group's target of at least 30%.
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Balance of our Board
BALANCE OF EXECUTIVE/NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Executive: 2

Chairman: 1

Non-Executive: 8

LENGTH OF TENURE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Seven to nine years: 1

Less than three years: 3

More than
nine years: 2

Three to six years: 3

Areas of significant skills and expertise of
the Non-Executive Directors onthe Board

Knowledge of corporate governanceissues for listed companies
Operational experience inthe Group’s main geographical markets
Humanresource managementand executive remuneration
Corporate responsibility

Corporate strategy and organisation

Marketing and customer relations

Financialand organisational audit

Executive board experienceinalargeinternationallisted company

Operational experience in the telecommunications and information technology sectors 67%

Legal matters
Banking, taxand corporate finance

Operational experienceinthe Group’s product markets
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Key activities of the Board

The Board met regularly through theyearand, in 2018, held seven scheduled meetings. There was also one additional meeting held in
February 2018, to deal with matters solely related to the Simplification. The Board’'s programme ensures that all relevant matters are
considered during scheduled meetings. Additionally, throughout the year, the Non-Executive Directors meet without the Executive
Directors presentonaregularbasis.

In 2018, the Board considered the following:

Stakeholders
Investorrelations

Risk, legal, governance
and regulatory matters

Business and financial
performance

Strategy, businessand
functional reviews

Reports from the Chief

Executive Officerand

Chief Financial Officer on
the Group's actualand
forecastoperationaland
financial performance

Annualandinterim
financialresults

Annualreview of invested

capital

Strategy and business
presentations, including
two full-day strategy
reviews

Budgetsand Annual
Strategy Plan 2018-2021

Updates on major
acquisitions, investments
anddisposals

Capital structureand
funding requirements
Group tax strategy review

Prospects of the Group
and Viability Statement

The Group's principal
risks and ongoing
monitoring of risk
managementand
internal control

The Group’s operatingand
governance principles

Board successionand
executive talent
management

Appointments and
re-appointmentsto the
Board and appointments
to Board Committees

Litigation update

Reports from the
Committee Chairmenon
the key activities of the
Board’'s Committees

Matters Reserved for the
Board and the Terms of
Reference for each Board
Committee

Corporate structure
simplification

Modern Slavery Act
Statement/Gender Pay
Gap Report/General Data
Protection Regulation
readiness and compliance
with data privacy
legislation
Cybersecurity

Approve updated Group

Ethicsand Business
Conduct Policy

Therequirements of the
New Code and associated
action forthe Group

activitiesincluding
feedback frominvestors

Dividend declarations
and policy

Share buyback
programme

Approval of shareholder
communications, suchas
the Annual Report,
Notices of Meetings, and
the Corporate
Simplification
Prospectusand Circular
Review of Corporate
Responsibility
Programme

Updates on media
relations

Assessing customer
satisfaction

Reviewingthe Group's
Supply Chain

Review of the results of
2018 group-wide
employee engagement
survey
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Independence of the Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors play animportant role in our
corporate governance framework, especially given their
responsibility to constructively challenge the Executive Directors
and monitor the performance of managementin meeting agreed
goalsandobjectives. Inorderto performtheir role effectively,
theirindependence and objectivity are vital. Through their
membership of the Board and Committees, theyalso have a
significant role to play in ensuring the interests of the Executive
Directors are aligned with those of the Company’s shareholders.
The Board and each of its Committees complies with the
independence requirements setoutinthe UK Code. The Board
reviews the independence of the Non-Executive Directors every
year, based onthe criteriaas setoutinthe UK Code. Inaccordance
withthe UK Code, the independence criteriaare notappliedin
respect of the Chairman after his appointment. Sir Anthony
Habgood metthe independence criteria contained in the UK
Corporate Governance Code when he was appointed Chairman

in 2009.

The Board considers all Non-Executive Directors (other than

the Chairman whose independence was not assessed) to be
independent of managementand free from any business or other
relationship which could materially interfere with their ability to
exercise independent judgement. Although Benvan der Veer has
served as a Non-Executive Director for over nine years, and will
not be seeking re-election atthe 2019 AGM, the Board does not
believe that hisindependence has been compromised by the
length of his tenure.

Following a review by the Nominations Committee, the Board

has also noted the changesin externalappointments of the
Non-Executive Directors during the year and does not perceive
these tohave anyimpactontheirindependence or responsibilities
tothe Company.

The Company’s Articles of Association allow the Board to review
and authorise situations where a Director has an interest that
conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with those of the Group, and
furthertoimpose any conditions on that authorisation. The Board
hasin place formal procedures for managing and authorising
actual or potential conflicts of interest.

Succession planning

The Nominations Committee regularly reviews the composition
of the Board and the status of succession plans. The Board is
updated annually on senior management succession planning,
andduring theyear, it received a detailed presentation from

the Chief Human Resources Officer on the first three tiers of
management below the Chief Executive Officer. Directors also
have regular contact with succession candidates for senior

and executive management positions.

Board appointments

The Board may also appoint Directors (subject to a maximum
upper limit) to fillavacancy at any time, although any Director so
appointed shall only hold office until the following Annual General
Meeting of the Company, at which his or herre-election shall be
voted upon by shareholders. Directors are then required to seek
re-election by shareholders at each Annual General Meeting of
the Company, inaccordance with the UK Code. The notice of
meeting for the 2019 AGM will set outinformation on the Directors
standing for election or re-election, including their biographies.

Asageneralrule, letters of appointment for Non-Executive
Directors provide that, subject to annual re-election by
shareholders, individuals will serve for aninitial period of three
years, and are typically expected to be available to serve fora
second three-year period. If invited to do so, they may also serve
forathird period of three years. The Non-Executive Directors’
letters of appointment set out the expected time commitment
required by the Company to fulfil their duties. The notice period
applicable tothe Non-Executive Directorsis one month. The
notice period applicable to the Executive Directorsis 12 months.
Details of the terms of appointment and the remuneration of both
Executive and Non-Executive Directors are setoutin the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, on pages 85to 105.

The Company hasin place arigorous procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board. This involves the
preparation of a search specification by the Nominations
Committee and the engagement of an external search firmto
identify and propose candidates based on that specification.

Any candidates willinitially be interviewed by a number of Board
members, including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
and additionally the Chief Legal Officerand Company Secretary.
The candidates are considered in detail by the Nominations
Committee, and arecommendation made to the Board regarding
any Directorappointment. The Board then has a further
opportunity to discuss and approve the recommended
appointment of any Director.

Board and Committee changes

There were no changesin Board membership during 2018.

The changesin the composition of Board Committee membership
are setoutinthe table on page 78.

Inanticipation of Benvan der Veer having served nineyearson

the Board as of September 2018, a review of the composition of

the Board’s Committees was completed by the Nominations
Committee. Following this, the Board accepted a recommendation
from the Nominations Committee that with effect from 19 April
2018, Adrian Hennah succeed Benvan der Veer as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and also with effect from 1 September 2018:
(i) Adrian Hennah and Marike van Lier Lels join the Nominations
Committee; and (i) Benvan der Veer step down from the Audit
Committee and the Nominations Committee.
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Boardinduction and development

The Chairman and the Company Secretary are responsible for
ensuring thatan effective induction programme takes place for
allnew Directors. Following appointmentand as required, all
Directors receive a full, formaland tailored induction, which is
designed to meet theirindividual needs based on their knowledge
and experience. Itincludes meetings with members of the Group’s
Executive and Senior Management teams, and visits to the offices
of the Group’s main business areasin order to understand how
theyoperate. Italsoincludes the provision of a comprehensive
briefing pack which contains information on the Group’s
businesses, as well as otherinformation to assist that Director

in performing their duties.

To ensure that the Directors continually update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Group, they attend meetings
inaddition to scheduled Board and Committee meetings and
participate in site visits. Additionally, Non-Executive Directors
also have opportunities to meet RELXBusiness Leaders and
other senior executives. As part of the annual Board evaluation,
Directors areinvited to discuss with the Chairman their training
and development needs.

Board information and support

All Directors have complete and timely access to the information
required todischarge their responsibilities fully and effectively.
They have access to the services of the Company Secretary, who
isresponsible for the accurate and timely flow of information to
the Board and advising the Board on all corporate governance
matters, and ensuring thatall Board procedures are followed
correctly. The Company Secretary attends all of the Board and
Committee meetings.

The Directorsalso have access to othermembers of the Group’s
management, staff and externaladvisers, and may take
independent professional advice in the furtherance of their duties,
atthe Company’s expense. Each of the Directorsis expected to
attend all meetings of the Board and Committees of which theyare
amember.

The Nominations Committee assesses the external commitments
of each Board memberto ensure that they have the time to
properly fulfilthe responsibilities to RELX which come with that
position. Where a Directoris unable to attend a Board or
Committee meeting, they are provided with the papersrelating to
that meetingand are able to discuss issues arising with the
respective Chairman and other Board and Committee members.
They are also provided with a copy of the meeting minutes.

The table below shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board and the Board Committees during the year.
Attendanceis expressed as the number of meetings attended out of the numbereligible to be attended.

Committee Corporate
Director appointments Board" Audit Remuneration Nominations Governance
Anthony Habgood [Chairman) 00 8/8 - 4l4 4l4 4f4
Erik Engstrom - 8/8 - - - -
Nick Luff - 8/8 - - - -
Wolfhart Hauser (R) 8/8 - 4Ll4 4Ll4 A
Adrian Hennah? (A) 8/8 44 - 1/1 4/4 Board Committee
Marikevan Lier Lels®® 8/8 TAUA - Al 4/4 membership key
RobertMacleod 8/8 - IAZA - IAZA Audit
CarolMills®¥ 7/8 4/4 - - 4/4 Remuneration
Linda Sanford 8/8 - 4/4 - 4/4 Nominations
BenvanderVeer® 8/8 2/3 - 3/3 4/4 Corporate Governance
Suzanne Wood 8/8 4/4 - - 4/4 . Committee Chairman

(1

strategyand business review meetings.

Inadditionto the seven scheduled meetings, there wasan additional meeting to discuss matters related to the Simplification. Serving Directors also attended two full-day

(2) MrHennahwasappointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from 19 April 2018, and amember of the Nominations Committee with effect from 1 September 2018.

(3) Msvan LierLelswasappointed asamember of the Nominations Committee with effect from 1 September 2018.

(4) Ms Mills was unable to attend the unscheduled February meeting of the Board, held at short notice to discuss matters related to the Simplification. She was provided with
the papersin advance of the meeting for her review and comment (which was provided to the Chairman), and subsequent to the meeting taking place was provided with a

copy of the minutes.
(5

1September2018.

MrvanderVeer stepped down as Chairman of the Audit Committee on 19 April 2018, and asa member of the Audit and Nominations Committees with effect from
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Board evaluation

The Directors consider the evaluation of the Board, its Committees
and memberstobeanimportantaspect of corporate governance.
The Board undertakes anannual evaluation of its own effectiveness
and performance, and that of its Committees and individual
Directors.In 2018, the Board undertook aninternal evaluation,
overseen by the Corporate Governance Committee and supported
by the Company Secretary. Using questionnaires completed by

all Directors, the Committee explored key areas including: the
performance of the Board; Board compositionand succession
planning; talent management and executive leadership succession;
risk management, corporate governance and compliance; quality
of information provided by management; Board Committee
effectiveness; and Board understanding and visibility of the views of
the Group’s stakeholders, andincorporation of theminto the Board’s
decision-making process. The Chairman conducted interviews with
each of the Directors. The review of the performance of the Chairman
was led by the SeniorIndependent Director. The Chairmanwas not
presentduring the discussionamong the Non-Executive Directors
relating to his performance. The conclusions of the review were
presented and considered at the February 2019 meeting of the Board.

Conclusions of the 2018 Evaluation

The evaluation confirmed that, overall, the Directors believe
thatthe Board and each of its Committees continue to function
effectively, are well chaired and receive appropriate levels of
administrative and advisory support. The Board isinvolvedin
key decisions. Itisalso adequately engagedin the development
and approval of the Group’s strategic, financialand business
objectives. The evaluation further confirmed that the Board
believesitisappropriately involved in assessing performance
againstthese objectives. Directors believe that the Board has
the right blend of experience, skills and diversity in the context
of the challenges currently facing the Group, although they
noted that the evolution of the Board and the skills that
individual Directors bring warrant continuing regular review.
The evaluation also focused on the Board's view of how the
Groupis positioned to address the requirements of the New
Code, which apply from 1 January 2019. Directors expressed
their support for a designated Non-Executive Director to

serve as the mechanism for the Board’s engagement with the
Group’semployees, and the appointment of Marike van Lier
Lelstothisrole, drawing on her experience fulfilling a similar
role previously for RELXNV. The evaluation process confirmed
thatthe Board believes it has adequate visibility of the views of
its material stakeholders, such as employees, shareholders,
customers and suppliers and appropriately applies its
understanding of these inits decision making. An area of focus
forthe Boardin 2019 will be further discussion around its role
in settingand ensuring the maintenance of the Group’s culture.

All Directors commended the Chairman on his effective
leadership of the Board, noting amongst other things that he
facilitates: (i) the effective contribution of each NED; and (ii)
the development of constructive relationships and
communications within the Board.

Based on the findings of the review, the Corporate Governance
Committee concluded that the Board and its Committees
function effectively and collaboratively and with an appropriate
level of engagement with management. The Committee also
concluded that the performance of each Director continues to
be effective and that they demonstrate commitment to their
respectiveroles.

Internal control and risk management

RELX has established internal controls and risk management
practices thatare embedded into the operations of the businesses,
based on the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission. Details of the principal risks facing the
Group and how these are mitigated are set out on pages 60to 63.

Additionally, in order to provide reasonable assurance against
materialinaccuracies or loss, and on the effectiveness of the
systems of internal controland risk management, the Group has
adopted the three lines of defence assurance model shown below.

1st line of defence

Group businesses maintain systems of internal
controlwhich are appropriate to the nature and
scale of theiractivitiesand address all significant
strategic, operational, financialand legal
compliance risks that they face

2nd line of defence

Centralfunctions thatare responsible for

1) designing policies, 2] introducing and sharing best
practice, 3) monitoring and evaluating compliance
with RELX policies and relevant legislationand
regulationand appropriate remediation

System of Internal Control

3rd line of defence
Internalauditprovidesindependentassurance on
the effectiveness of the 1stand 2nd lines of defence

RELX Operating and Governance Principles

The Board and Audit Committee

Note: In addition tothe Group’sinternal controls, the Groupis also audited externally.
The reportofthe externalauditor hasbeenincluded from pages 113to 120.

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters which are required
tobe broughttoitfordecision. The Board is responsible for the
system of risk management and internal control of the Group and
hasimplemented an ongoing process foridentifying, assessing,
monitoring and managing the principalrisks faced by its
businesses. This process was in place throughout the year ended
31 December 2018, and up to the date of the approval of the Annual
Reportand Financial Statements 2018. The Board monitors these
systems of internal controland risk management and annually
carries outareview of their effectiveness.

RELXhas an established framework of procedures and internal
control, with which the management of each businessisrequired
to comply. The Group operates authorisation and approval
processesthroughout all of its operations. Access controls exist
where processes have been automated to ensure the security of
data. Managementinformation systems have been developed to
identify risks and to enable assessment of the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control.
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RELXhas a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that provides a
guide forachievingits business goals and requires officers and
employeestobehaveinanopen, honest, ethicaland principled
manner. The Code also outlines confidential procedures enabling
employeestoreportany concerns about compliance, or about the
Group's financial reporting practice. The Code is available on our
website at (=2) www.relx.com.

Eachbusinessarea hasidentified and evaluated its principal
risks, the controlsin place to manage those risks and the levels of
residualrisk accepted. Risk managementand control procedures
areembedded into the operations of the business and include the
monitoring of progressinareas forimprovement that come to
management and Board attention.

The principalrisks facing RELX businesses are regularly reported
toand assessed by the Board and Audit Committee. With the close
involvement of business managementand central functions, the
risk managementand control procedures ensure that the Group
ismanagingits business risks effectivelyandin a coordinated
manner across the businesses with clarity on the respective
responsibilities and interdependencies. Litigation, and other
legaland regulatory matters, are managed by legal directorsin
the businesses.

The Audit Committee also receives regular reports from both
internaland externalauditors oninternal controland risk
management matters. In addition, each business areais required,
atthe end of the financialyear, to review the effectiveness of
internal controls and risk managementand reportits findings

on adetailed basis to the management of RELX. These reports
aresummarised and, as part of the annual review of effectiveness,
submitted to the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee reports to the Board on any significantinternal control
matters arising.

Annualreview

As part of theyear-end procedures, the Audit Committee and
Board reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of internal
controland risk management during the 2018 financial year.
Thisincluded consideration of risk appetite (defined as the Group’s
willingness to take on risk] for each principal risk. Risk appetite
isbased onanassessment of the level of residual risk, taking
account ofinherent risk and mitigation efforts. The assessmentis
rated, inrelation to the Group’s objectives for the current level of
residualrisk, inthree broad categories: reduce, acceptand willing
to extend. The level of residual risk which the Group is prepared
toacceptwillvary, with a high level of mitigation effort over
operational, financialand compliance risks. The residual risk level
for externaland strategic risks may be extended if doing soisin
line with the Group’s strategic objectives, values and stakeholder
interests andif shareholder returns could be increased. As part

of the annualreview, the Board considered the Group’s culture.
The objective of these systems of internal controland risk
managementis to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives. Accordingly, they can only
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
mis-statement or loss. The Board has confirmed, subject to the
above, thatasregards financial reporting risks, the respective risk
managementand control systems provide reasonable assurance

against materialinaccuracies or loss and have functioned
properly during the year. Inaccordance with the Code, the Board
has also considered the Group’s long-term viability, following
arobustandthorough assessmentofits principal risks.

The resulting Viability Statementis set out on page 82.

The Directorsarerequiredto prepare financial statements as at
the end of each financial period, inaccordance with applicable
laws and regulations, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, and of the profit or loss, of the Company and its
subsidiaries, jointventures and associates. They are responsible
for maintaining proper accounting records, for safeguarding
assetsand fortaking reasonable stepsto preventand detect
fraud and otherirregularities.

The Directors arealso responsible for selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying them on a consistent basis,

and making judgements and estimates thatare prudentand
reasonable. Applicable accounting standards have been followed
and the RELX consolidated financial statements, which are the
responsibility of the Directors of the Company, are prepared using
accounting policies which comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and as adopted by the European Union. Having
takenintoaccountall of the matters considered by the Board and
broughtto the attention of the Board, the Directors are satisfied
thatthe Annual Reportand Financial Statements, takenas a
whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
positionand performance, business model and strategy.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
adequate resources exist for the Group to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, itis
appropriate toadopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2018
financial statements. Inreaching these conclusions, the Directors
have had due regard to the Group’s financial position as at

31 December 2018, the strong free cash flow of the Group, the
Group’s ability to access capital markets and the principal risks
facing the Group.

Acommentaryon the Group’s cash flows, financial position and
liquidity for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the Chief
Financial Officer’sreport on pages 54 to 59. This shows that after
taking account of available cash resources and committed bank
facilities that back up short-term borrowings, all of the Group’s
borrowings that mature within the next two years can be covered.
The Group’s policies on liquidity, capital management and
management of risks relating to interest rate, foreign exchange
and credit exposures are set out on pages 150 to 155. The principal
risks facing the Group are set out on pages 60to 63.
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Asrequired by Section 302 of the US Sarbanes-0Oxley Act 2002

and by related rulesissued by the US Securities and Exchange
Commission (the Commission), the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify in the Annual Report
2018 on Form 20-F to be filed with the Commission that they are
responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures and that they have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that materialinformation relating to the Group is made known
to them

evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s disclosure controls
and procedures

based ontheir evaluation, disclosed to the Audit Committee
and the externalauditors all significant deficiencies in the
design or operation of disclosure controls and procedures and
any frauds, whether or not material, thatinvolve management
or other employees who have a significantrole inthe Group’s
internal controls

presentedinthe Annual Report2018 on Form 20-F their
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures

ADisclosure Committee, comprising the Company Secretary and
other senior managers of the Group, provides assurance to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer regarding their
Section 302 certifications.

Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002 requires the

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
to certifyinthe Annual Report 2018 on Form 20-F that they are
responsible for maintaining adequate internal control structures
and procedures for financial reporting and to conduct an
assessment of their effectiveness. The conclusions of the
assessment of internal control structures and financial reporting
procedures, which are unqualified, are presented in the Annual
Report 2018 on Form 20-F.

The Board values regular dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders. The Company reportstoits shareholders through
the publication of the interim and full-year reports, following
which presentations are made by the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officerand Chief Financial Officer on the Group’s business, and
these are simultaneously webcast. In addition, quarterly trading
updates are provided ahead of the Annual General Meeting and
towards the end of the financial year, and a conference call with
investors was held following the third-quarter trading update
for 2018.

In addition, ateach-in focused on developmentsin the Risk &

Business Analytics businesswas held foranalysts and investorsin

November 2018, which was also made available on our website at
www.relx.com.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officerand the
investor relations team meet institutional shareholdersona
regular basis and the Chairman also makes himself available to
major institutions as appropriate. The interim and annual results
announcements and presentations, together with the trading
updates, otherimportantannouncements and corporate governance
documents concerning the Group, are available on our website.

The Board commissions periodic reports on the attitudes and
views of the Company’s institutional shareholders and the results
are presented to the Board. The Board also receives regular
updates from the Head of Investor Relations on the views of
shareholdersthrough a briefing which is a standing agenda item
forall meetings of the Board.

Annual General Meeting

Allholders of RELXPLC ordinary shares may attend the
Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM] in April 2019. The AGM
provides an opportunity for the Board to communicate with
individual shareholders, and for shareholders to provide their
views on the performance and progress of the Group. The
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
the Chairmen of the Board Committees, other Directorsanda
representative of the externalauditors are available to answer
questions from shareholders. The Chief Executive also presents
areview of the key business developments during the year. The
Company offers electronic voting facilities in relation to proxy
voting at shareholder meetings. In line with the UK Code, details of
proxy voting by shareholders, including votes withheld, are given
atthe AGM and are posted on our website following the AGM.

The notice of meeting for the 2019 AGM will set outin full the
resolutions for consideration by shareholders, together with
explanatory notes and information on the Directors standing
forelectionorre-election.
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The UK Corporate Governance Code requires Directors to
assess the prospects of the Group over a period significantly
longerthan twelve months and to state whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to continue
inoperation and meetiits liabilities as they fall due over the period
of theirassessment.

Assessing the Group’s Prospects

The Group develops information-based analytics and decision
tools for professionaland business customersin the Scientific,
Technical &Medical, Risk and Business Analytics, Legaland
Exhibitions sectors. The Group has leading positions in long-term
growth markets, deep customer understanding and has
developed innovative solutions that often account for about 1% of
our customers’ cost base but can have a significant and positive
impacton the economics of the remaining 99%. Having effectively
transitioned the business from print to digital, the Group is
systematically migrating its information solutions toward higher
value-add decision tools, adding broader data sets, embedding
more sophisticated analytics and leveraging more powerful
technology. We believe this evolution isimproving our business
profile and positions the Group for future business success.

The Group’s prospects are assessed through the annual strategy
planning process. This process includes a review of assumptions
made and assesses each business area’s longer-term plan. The
resulting three-year strategy plan forms the basis for Group and
divisionaltargetsandin-year budgets. Objectives are set with
consideration given to the economic and regulatory environment,
and to customertrends, aswellas incorporating risks and
opportunities. The most recent three-year strategy business plan
was agreed by the Directors in September 2018.

Inassessingthe Group's prospects, our current position and
principalrisks are considered as follows:

Current position and business model
Diversified business interms of sectors, markets, customers,
geographiesand products and services so that we are not
dependentonanyone business, customer, region or product

High percentage of subscription and recurring revenue
streams

Leading positionsin long-term global growth markets

Lowworking capitaland capitalinvestment requirements
leading to high levels of cash generation

Clearstrategy focused on organic growth supplemented by
selective acquisitions in higher growth areas

Continued development of increasingly sophisticated
information-based analytics and decision tools

Expansioninto higher growth adjacencies and geographies
primarily through organic investment augmented with
selective acquisitions

Further details on our strategyand 2018 progress are on pages 4
andb5.

Principalrisks related to our business model
Challengestotheintellectual property rights of content
embedded inour products and services

Disruption or loss of data sources that our businessesrely on
due toregulation or otherreasons

Changes to the paid subscription model for our primary
research businesswithin Scientific, Technical & Medical

Technological failure of our electronic platforms and networks

Failure of our cyber security measures resultingin
unauthorised access to our systems and breach of data privacy

Detailed descriptions of all principal risks and mitigations are on
pages 60to 63.

Assessing the Group’s Viability

The three-year strategy plan for our businessesincludes
management’s assessment of the anticipated operational risks
affecting the business and assumes that current economic
conditions broadly persist, financing will be available on similar
terms to those negotiated recently and interest rates will follow
market expectations. Management then considers the viability
of the business should unexpected events, linked to the principal
risks, occur. To first make the assessment, the financial impact
of each principalrisk on revenue and cashflow s estimated.
Owing to the diversified nature of the Group, no individual risk
was estimated to have animpact close to the amount, broadly
estimated at one third of total Group cashflow, necessary for
abreach of the covenantin the Group’s $3.0bn committed

bank facility.

The assessment then considers various stress-test scenarios
under which multiple risks occur simultaneously accompanied

by aninability to access the debt capital markets to refinance
scheduled liabilities as they become due, together with anincrease
ininterestrates much faster than currently expected. The
resulting analysis, which assumes share buybacks are suspended
but dividends continue uninterrupted, then considers the impact
onavailable headroom and whetherany scenario resultsin
breaching the covenantin the committed bank facility.

The worst-case stress case modelled a combination of the
following risks: (a) the inability to use certain third-party data
resources; (b) an adverse impact on revenue from a shift away
from the paid subscription model; and (c) having our systems
disrupted by a cyber security event. The analysis concluded that
even with the simultaneous occurrence of these three risks, no
accesstothe debt capital markets and a sharply rising interest
rate environment, the Group would still have sufficient funds to
trade, settle its liabilities as they come due and remain compliant
with the covenantinits committed bank facility, whilst still paying
forecastdividends.

Inaddition to scenario modelling, the Directors bi-annually review
the Group’s principalrisks, assess the likelihood and impact of
eachrisk togetherwith the effectiveness of mitigating controls,
and consider emerging risks. The Directors also receive regular
updates from management on treasury, tax, acquisitions and
divestments, and significant risk areas including information
security, technology and legaland regulatory matters. Finally,
separate from the annual strategy plan, the Directors periodically
receive updates from business area managementon their
operations, prospects and risks. Whilst these reviews and
discussions naturally focus more closely on the quantifiable risks
facing the business within the three-year planning period, they
also cover longer-termrisks.

As aresult of stress-testing the three-year strategy plan,
supported by regularreviews of risk during the year, the Directors
confirm thatthey have a reasonable expectation that the Group will
be able to continue its operations and meet its liabilities as they fall
due over the next three years and are notaware of any longer-term
operational or strategic risks thatwould resultin a different
outcome from the three-year review.
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Report of the Nominations Committee

Thisreport has been prepared by the Nominations Committee and

has been approved by the Board.

The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors. The
members of the Committee who served during the year were:

Sir Anthony Habgood (Committee Chairman)
Wolfhart Hauser

Benvander Veer (until 1 September 2018)
Adrian Hennah (from 1 September 2018)
Marike van Lier Lels (from 1 September 2018)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Committee are

to provide assistance to the Board by identifying individuals
qualified to become Directors and recommending to the Board
the appointment of such individuals. The responsibilities of the
Committee are set outin written Terms of Reference (available
at (=) www.relx.com) and include:

tokeep underreview the size and composition of the Board

todevelop and agree the specification for the recruitment
of new Directors

to procure the recruitment of new Directors

torecommend to the Board the appointment of candidates
as RELXPLC Directors

torecommend Directors to serve on the Committees of
the Board, having regard to the criteria for service on each
Committee as set outin the Terms of Reference for such
Committees and to recommend membersto serve as the
Chair of those Committees

to make recommendations to the Board in relation to
there-appointment of any Non-Executive Director at the
conclusion of his/her specified term of office and the election
orre-election of Directors atthe AGM

to review and make recommendations to the Board in
relationtoany Directors” actual or potential conflicts
of interest

Activities of the Committee
During the year, the Committee met four times and its main areas
of focus were:

the re-appointment of Sir Anthony Habgood as Chairman at the
conclusion of his specified term of office

the re-appointments of Marike van Lier Lels, Linda Sanford and
BenvanderVeerasNon-Executive Directors at the conclusion
of their specified terms of office

the continued independence of Benvan derVeerasa Director
following his nine years of service, with reference to guidance
provided underthe UK Corporate Governance Code

areview of the composition of the Audit and Nomination
Committeesresulting in the following changes: Benvan der
Veer stepped down as Chairman and member of the Audit
Committee and stepped down as a member of the Nomination
Committee; Adrian Hennah was appointed as the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nominations
Committee; and Marike van Lier Lels was appointed as
amember of the Nominations Committee

areview of the Committee’s Terms of Reference to reflect the
corporate simplification carried out by the Group during the
year, and the increased remit of the Committee proposed by
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (New Code)

succession planning for Non-Executive Directors

the recommendation to the Board of the suitability of Directors’
external non-executive director appointments

areview of the provisions of the New Code impacting
Board appointments and diversity
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Composition and diversity of the Board

The Committee seeks to ensure that the Board and its
Committees comprise an appropriate balance of skills,
experience, independence, knowledge of the Group’s businesses,
anddiversity, including gender, that enable them to execute their
responsibilities. In light of Benvan der Veer steppingdown as a
Non-Executive Director atthe 2019 AGM, the Committee
considered succession planning for the Board. As part of the
ongoing evolution of the composition of the Board, the Committee
deemed thatitwould be desirable to appoint to the Boardan
additional Non-Executive Director with significant executive and
public company experience.

The Committee put togethera specification for candidates, and
engaged the independent global search and leadership advisory
firm, Russell Reynolds (which has no other connection to RELX],
to carryout the search foranew Non-Executive Director.
Followingarigorous process of assessments and interviews, the
Committee recommended to the Board that Andrew Sukawaty be
appointed as a Non-Executive Director. The Board accepted this
recommendation and therefore he will be put forward for election
by shareholders as a Director with effect from the 2019 AGM.

The policy applied by the Board in respect of its diversity replicates
thatapplied across RELX. The Board, and the Group more widely,
are committed to a diverse workforce and an environment that
respectsindividuals and their contributions, regardless of gender,
race or other characteristics, and to ensure the implementation of
that commitment. The Committee takes the policy into
consideration when discussing the composition of the Board and
its Committees, and any appointments or changes to them, and
this helps the Committee ensure that there isan appropriate
balance of skills, experience, independence, knowledge of the
Group, and diversity including gender, background and nationality.
The results of the application of the policy can be found within the
‘Balance of our Board’ section set out on page 75.

The Committee recognises the benefits that diversity on the Board
can bring and will continue to monitor developments inrelation to
Board diversity. Details of the Group’s approach to diversity and
inclusion more generally inits workforce can be found on page 47.

The Committee also considered the continued appointment of the
Chairman, in light of the New Code provision applicable from 2019
relating to length of tenure for that position, and noting that Sir
Anthony Habgood had served as a Non-Executive Director since
1June 2009. Inits deliberations the Committee noted that the
corporate simplificationinvolving the cross-border merger of
RELXNVinto RELXPLC, with the Company becoming the sole
parent company of the Group, had completed in the third quarter of
2018. The Committee felt that continuity of Board leadership under
our current experienced Chairmanisimportant fora period of
time following the merger while the new single parent company
governance structureis established and embedded. Having been
deeplyinvolvedinallaspects of the merger the Committee felt that
the Chairman brings a unique ability to oversee its implementation.
The Committee further took into account the Chairman’s strong
leadership of the Board highlighted in recent Board evaluations,
and alsotherespectand support that he had from the Company’s
shareholders.

Giventhese circumstances, the Committee recommended to the
Board thatitwould notbeinthe bestinterests of the Company or
its shareholders for there to be achange in Chairman at this time
(notwithstanding the New Code provision), provided no
unforeseen circumstances arose, and that the position would be
reviewed after 2019 by the Committee. The Board supported and
approved the Committee’s recommendation.

The charts on page 75 illustrate in more detail the composition
of the Board.

Succession planning

Inlight of the New Code, the Committee recommended to the
Board thatits remit should be widened to include monitoring and
reviewing succession planning for senior management positions
within the Group. This was previously undertaken by the Board,
butwill now be undertaken principally by the Committee, with
detailed reports being provided to the Board from time to time to
enable itto maintain appropriate levels of oversightin this area.

Conflicts of interest

During the year, the Committee monitored Directors’ conflicts of
interestin respect of their externalappointments, and undertook
anannualreview of these. No actual conflicts were identified.
However, situations were identified which could potentially give
risetoaconflict of interest, and the Board authorised those
situationsand putin place appropriate procedures to manage any
potential conflicts at the recommendation of the Committee. More
information on conflicts of interest can be found in the Directors’
Reporton page 110.

Board and Committees Evaluation

The Committee reviewed the results of the evaluation of the
effectiveness and performance of the Board, their Committees
and the individual Directors, which had been overseen by the
Corporate Governance Committee. Details of the 2018 Board
evaluation can be found on page 79.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Directors’ Remuneration Report (the Report) has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee (the Committee) in
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the UK Listing Rules and the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 (the UK Regulations).

The Reportwas approved by the Board.

The attached Reportreflects the 2018 annualincentives earned and the vesting outcomes for multi-year incentives granted under the
remuneration policy applicable to the 2016-2018 cycle of the multi-year plans.

Asyouwill have read inthe Annual Report, the Company’'s strategic priority is the organic development of increasingly sophisticated
information-based analytics and decision tools that deliver enhanced value to professionaland business customers acrossindustries.
During 2018, RELX continued to successfully execute this strategy, whichis aimed at achieving more predictable revenues, a higher
growth profile and improving returns. As aresult, underlying revenue growth was 4%, underlying operating profits grew 6% and
adjusted earnings per share (EPS) at constant currencies grew 7%.

The performance measuresinthe incentive plans align with and support the strategy by focussing on sustained earnings growth, return
oninvested capitaland shareholder returns. The performance measures are based on adjusted figures as they provide relevant
information in assessing the Company’s performance, position and cash flows and we believe they track the core operational
performance of RELXand how it contributes to shareholdervalue creation. The Committee has confirmed that the adoption of new
accounting standardsin 2018 has had noimpact on payouts under the annual or multi-yearincentives. The Annual Reportincludes a
reconciliation of adjusted measures to IFRS measures.

2018 Outcomes

The strong financial performance of the business is reflected in the 2018 annualincentive achievement for Executive Directors of
marginally above the target level. Two-thirds of the amount earned will be paid in cash to the Executive Directors in March 2019 and the
remaining one-third is deferred into RELX shares which will be released in Q1 2022.

The 2016-18 cycle of the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) vested at 68.6%, with similar vesting levels achieved under both the EPS and
total shareholder return (TSR) measures and return on invested capital (ROIC) in 2018 of 13.2%. With respect to the 2016-18 cycle of the
discontinued Bonus Investment Plan (BIP) and the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS), ROIC and EPS performance resulted in
vesting percentages of 87.5% and 90.0% respectively. These outcomes reflect strong returns and earnings growth achieved by the
business and how the challenging targets set by the Committee have been perceived by the market. In determining the level of payout
under the annualincentive and the multi-year incentives, the Committee took into account RELX's overall business performance and
value created for shareholders over the period in review and other relevant factors.

2018 Implementation of simplified Remuneration Policy
The simplified remuneration policy for Executive Directors, which was approved by shareholdersin April 2017 by a vote of 95% of the
sharesvoted, was fully implemented in 2018.

Forthe 2018 annualincentive, itwas decided that the KPOs for the Executive Directors would reflect solely non-financialtargets. Asa
result, the Committee increased the overall weighting of financial measures from 70% to 85% at target achievement and reduced the
weighting of the individual KPOs from 30% to 15%. This was in accordance with our approved remuneration policy which contains
flexibility to change the weightings, provided the financial targets have a weighting of at least 70%. Recognising the desire on the part
of some shareholders for additional disclosures, you will see that we have provided expanded disclosures thisyearin connection with
the KPOs.

Adescription of the Remuneration Policy, as approved by shareholders atthe April2017 Annual General Meetings, isincluded on pages
99 to 105 of this Report.

Corporate simplification

Asaresult of the corporate simplification to merge RELXNVinto RELXPLC, which took effect on 8 September 2018, allawards and
options over sharesin RELXNVwere exchanged for awards and options over shares in RELXPLC on a one-for-one basis. In respect
of the euro TSR comparator group for LTIP awards (including the 2016-18 cycle), RELX NV shares were, subsequent to the merger,
replaced with RELXPLC shares pricedin euros and listed on Euronext Amsterdam. In respect of the US dollar TSR comparator group,
RELXNVADRs were, subsequent to the merger, replaced with RELXPLC ADRs. No other adjustments were made to the performance
conditions attached to outstanding awards and options.
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2018 Corporate Governance Code

Following the publication by the FRC of the new Corporate Governance Code in July 2018, the Committee has reviewed the updated
provisions relating to remuneration matters. The Committee will report on how these have beenimplemented in nextyear’s Report.
You will see that with respect toworkforce engagement, we have decided to designate a non-executive director to take on responsibility
forthisand have introduced a fee for this activity.

2019 Implementation of Remuneration Policy

Inline with increases for the wider employee population, and consistent with the 2019 salary increase guidelines for UK based
employees, the Committee has approved 2019 salaryincreases for the Executive Directors of 2.5%. As the CEQ pays pension
contributions and a participation fee which increase each year, after taking into account these increasing fees, his 2019 salary after these
increasing deductions will decrease againin 2019 compared to 2018.

Followingareviewin 2019, we will propose a directors’ remuneration policy for approval by shareholders atthe AGM in April 2020.

The audited sections of the Reportare clearly marked.

Wolfhart Hauser
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Single Total Figure of Remuneration - Executive Directors (audited)

(a) (b) (c) (d) le) (f)
Annualincentive
Deferred Share based

£000 Salary Benefits!” Cash Shares!? awards® Pension' Total
Erik Engstrom 2018 1,218 85 1,269 635 4,662 545 8,414
2017 1,189 84 1,238 n/a 5,458 779 8,748

Nick Luff 2018 717 14 753 376 2,341 196 4,398
2017 700 17 726 n/a 2,747 204 4,394

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Benefits are typically comprised for each Executive Director of a car allowance and private medical/dentalinsurance and the
company meets the cost of tax return preparation.

Deferred shares earned under the Annual Incentive Plan are deferred for three years and not released to the Executive Directors
untilQ12022. They carry the right to payment of dividend equivalents when released.

The figures for share based awards are calculated in accordance with the methodology set out in the UK Regulations. The figure for
performance-related share based awards includes share price appreciation since the date the award was granted. In the case of
Erik Engstrom’s figures, the amountincluded that directly reflects share price appreciation is £1.7m for 2017 and £1.5m for 2018 (of
which £0.6m relates to the LTIP, £0.3m relates to the BIP and £0.6m relates to the ESOS). For Nick Luff, the amountincluded that
relates to share price appreciationis £0.8m for 2017 and £0.7m for 2018 (of which £0.3m relates to the LTIP, £0.2m relates to the BIP
and £0.3m relates to the ESOS). Please note that these figures add up to £0.8m instead of £0.7m solely due to rounding.

The shared based awards figures for 2017 disclosed in last year’'s Report were, as required by the UK Regulations, based onan
estimate using prescribed average share prices and exchange rates and have been restated in this Report to reflect the actual
amount vested and the actual share prices and exchange rates on the vesting dates of the 2015-17 cycle of BIP, LTIPand ESOS. The
vesting percentages underthese planswere determined on 16 February 2018 and were in line with those disclosed on page 86 in the
2017 Remuneration Report. Using the share prices and exchange rates on the vesting dates and the actual dividend equivalents paid
inrespectof this cycle decreased the 2017 disclosed figure by £1,172k for Erik Engstrom and by £578k for Nick Luff.

The 2018 figures reflect the vesting of the 2016-18 cycle of BIP, LTIP and ESOS. As the BIP, LTIP and ESOS vest after the approval
date of this Report, the average share prices and exchange rates for the last quarter of 2018 have been used to arrive at an estimated
figureinrespectofthese awards.

The exchange rates used to convert share based awards to pounds sterling are (i) those that applied at the vesting dates or, if vesting
has not occurred at the time of sign off of this Report, the average exchange rates for the last quarter of 2018; (i) for dividend
equivalents, the actual gross pounds sterling payment; and (iii) for estimated dividend equivalents in respect of awards for which
vesting has not occurred at the time of sign off of this Reportand which are yet to be paid, the average exchange rates for the last
quarter of 2018.

Erik Engstrom participatesinthe UK legacy defined benefit pension plan on the same basis as other UK executives who are
participantsin this legacy plan and accrues 1/30th of final year pensionable earnings for every year of service up to his 60th
birthday, at which time benefits cease accruing. His annualincrease in pensionable earnings is capped at 2%.

The pension figure disclosed in the table has been calculated in accordance with the prescribed methodology set outin the UK
Regulations. This figure does not represent a contribution by the Company to Mr Engstrom’s pension.

In 2018, the Company contributed £42,338 to the funded portion of Mr Engstrom’s defined benefit pension plan. The remainder of his
accrued pensionis an unfunded liability of the Company. In 2018, Mr Engstrom contributed a total of £151,306 by way of contributions
and a participation fee as part of his ongoing membership of this plan. In line with all participants, his contributions and participation
feeareincreasing eachyear. The pension figure in the table is reduced by these contributions (11% of pensionable base salary up to
the scheme earnings cap until 28 February 2018 and 13% from 1 March 2018) and the participation fee (10% of pensionable base
salaryin excess of the scheme earnings cap until 28 February 2018 and 13% from 1 March 2018).

For details of Mr Engstrom’s accrued pensionas at 31 December 2018, see page 92.

Nick Luff receives a cash allowance in lieu of pension which reduced from 29% of salary to 27% of salary effective 1 March 2018.

The totalremuneration for Directorsis set outin note 27 to the consolidated financial statements on page 162.
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2018 Annual Incentive
Setout belowisasummary of performance against each financial measure and Key Performance Objective and the resulting annual
incentive payout for 2018:

Erik Engstrom Nick Luff

Relative
Performance weighting Payout % Payout %
measure % attarget Achievementvs target oftarget oftarget
Revenue 35% Revenue was £7,492m versus a target” of £7,499m, resulting in 34.5% 34.5%
achievementversus target of 99.9% and a payout? of 98.5% of 35%.
Adjusted net 35% Adjusted net profit after taxwas £1,674m versus a target” of £1,665m, 36.8% 36.8%
profitafter tax resulting in achievementversus target of 100.5% and a payout® of
105.0% of 35%.
Cash conversion 15% Cash flowwas £2,243m (96% conversion) versus a target” of £2,182m, 19.2% 19.2%
resulting in achievementversus target of 102.8% and a payout® of
128.0% of 15%.
Key Performance 15% Adetailed description of the KPOs and achievement against those KPOs  13.75% 14.5%
Objectives (KPQs)® for each Executive Directoris set out below.
Total 100% 104.2% 104.9%
Total AIP payout as % of salary
Cash 100% 104.2% 104.9%
Deferred Shares 50% 52.1% 52.5%
Total 150% 156.3% 157.4%

The Cash AIP (£1,269,277 for the CEO and £752,818 for the CFO) will be paid in Q1 2019 and the Deferred Shares (with a currentvalue of
£634,639in the case of the CEO and £376,409 in the case of the CFO) will be released in Q1 2022. The release of Deferred Shares is not
subjecttoanyfurther performance conditions, butis subject to malus and claw-back.

(1) Onanequivalentbasis (atactual exchange rates and after the netimpact of acquisitions and disposals completed during the year).

(2) Forachievementabove target, each 0.1% of overachievementincreased the payout ratio for that component by 1 percentage point up to a maximum payout ratio
of 150% at 105% achievementvs target. For achievement belowtarget, each 0.1% of underachievement reduced the payout ratio by 1.5 percentage points down
toathreshold payout ratio of 10% at 94% achievement vs target.

KPOs - Erik Engstrom

Relative

weighting Payout %
KPO %attarget Achievementvs KPO oftarget
Risk Mitigation 3% This KPO was almost fully achieved. 2.5%

Cyber security training provided to 100% of employees, social engineering testing (e.g.
phishing simulations) covering RELX globally completed and requirement to continue
re-training and re-testing of employees introduced. Met target.

Three cyber security incident response simulations completed at senior levels within
the business divisions; six security awareness training sessions delivered; four
penetration tests of financial integrity processes performed; lessons learned
incorporated into Incident Response Plan. Met target.

Five out of six elements of the Compliance Testing and Monitoring Plan were
completed and an In-Person Training Assessment was completed and
recommendations forimplementation were agreed. Target almost fully met.

Customers 3% This KPO was almost fully achieved. 2.5%
Expanded use of customer satisfaction and loyalty metrics in business reviews andin
some of the business areas’ annualincentive plans. Target almost fully met.
RELXAccessibilityawards introduced to recognise exceptional employee efforts to
advance accessibility. Met target.
Increased the numberand reach of our business community working groups and
projects which focus onthe advancement of the rule of law. Met target.

People 3% This KPO was fully achieved. 3.0%
Assessed and reported on employee engagementvia employee opinion surveys, with
the highest employee participation rates and employee satisfaction scoresin the last
15years. Exceeded target.
Employee alignment with company strategy and values measured viaemployee
opinion survey and workshops held throughout the business to further drive alignment.
Mettarget.
New diversity and inclusion (D&I) initiatives launched/existing initiatives expanded and
indicators totrack D&l progress established. Met target.
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KPOs - Erik Engstrom

Relative
weighting Payout %
KPO % attarget Achievementvs KPO oftarget
Process 3% This KPO was almost fully achieved. 2.75%
Number of key suppliers signed up to the RELX Supplier Code of Conductincreased by 4.9%; number of
supplieraudits completed remained stable; number of significant audit findings reduced; spend with
veteran and minority-owned businesses under the US Supplier D&l programme increased, with overall
spend with diverse suppliers remaining relatively flat compared to previous year. Target almost fully
met.
Continued product migration to electronic decision tools, continued addition of broader data sets and
expanded use of high performance computing clusteracross all business areas. Met target.
Expanded scale of company-owned shared services by 12%. Met target.
Environment 3% This KPO was fully achieved. 3.0%

Renewable energy purchased as a percentage of total electricity consumptionincreased to

81%. Met target.

Over 40% of locations achieved five or more Group Environmental Standards. Exceeded target.

IS0 14001 Environmental Management System certifications achieved at three additional locations. Met
target.

Total 15%

Payout as % of salary 13.75%

KPOs - Nick Luff

Relative
weighting

Payout %

KPO % at target Achievementvs KPO oftarget

Risk 3%
Mitigation

This KPO was almost fully achieved. 2.5%

Cyber security training provided to 100% of employees, social engineering testing (eg phishing
simulations) covering RELX globally completed and requirement to continue re-training and re-testing
of employeesintroduced. Met target.

Three cybersecurity incident response simulations completed at senior levels within the business
divisions; six security awareness training sessions delivered; four penetration tests of financial integrity
processes performed; lessons learned incorporated into Incident Response Plan. Met target.

Five out of six elements of the Compliance Testing and Monitoring Plan were completed and In-Person
Training Assessmentwas completed and recommendations forimplementation were agreed. Target
almost fully met.

Corporate 3%
Structure
Simplification

This KPO was exceeded. 3.5%

Aproposalfor simplification of the Group’s corporate structure [moving from a dual to a single parent
holding company structure) was developed and proposed to shareholders for approval. The proposal
was approved by over 99.9% of shareholders of both parent companies. Significantly exceeded target.
Simplification of corporate structure completed successfully in September 2018. Met target.
Resulting new single parent company structure embedded, reducing complexity and increasing
transparency. Met target.

Finance 3%
Function

This KPOwas almost fully achieved. 2.5%

D&l actively promoted within the finance function resulting inincreased employee diversity within the
finance function. Target almost fully met.

Gender pay equity review of the finance function completed .. Met target.

Further organisationaland process improvements completed within Treasury and Tax. Met target.

Process 3%

This KPO was fully achieved. 3.0%

Number of key suppliers signed up to the RELX Supplier Code of Conductincreased by 4.9%; number of
supplier audits completed remained stable; number of significant audit findings reduced; spend with
veteran and minority-owned businesses under the US Supplier D&l programme increased, with overall
spend with diverse suppliers remaining relatively flat compared to previous year. Target almost fully
met.

Structure of finance function reorganised to maximise effectiveness, process simplifications completed
inseveralareas of finance and finance function costs reduced. Exceeded target.

Expanded scale of company-owned shared services by 12%. Met target.

Environment 3%

This KPO was fully achieved. 3.0%

Renewable energy purchased as a percentage of total electricity consumptionincreased to 81%. Met
target.

Over 40% of locations achieved five or more Group Environmental Standards. Exceeded target.

IS0 14001 Environmental Management System certifications achieved at three additional locations. Met
target.

Total 15%

Payoutas % of salary 14.5%
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Multi-year incentives (granted under the Remuneration Policyin effect prior to the approval by shareholders of the current
Remuneration Policy at the Annual General Meetings in April 2017)

Multi-yearincentives with a performance period ended 31 December 2018 were the 2016-2018 cycles of BIP, LTIP and ESOS granted to
Executive Directors.

The Committee assessed the performance measures for these awards and made an overall assessment of underlying business
performance and otherrelevant factors. The vesting outcome resulting from this review is summarised below.

LTIP: 2016-18 cycle performance outcome

Performance Performance range and Achievementagainst the Resulting vesting
measure Weighting vesting levels setat grant!” performance range percentage
TSR overthe three-year 1/3 below median 0% Nearthe upper 59.8%
performance period? median 30% quartile of sterling

upperquartile 100% and euro comparator

groups and below
median of US dollar

comparator group

Average growthin adjusted EPS over 1/3 below 5% p.a. 0% 7.0%p.a. 65.0%
the three-year performance period® 5%p.a. 33%
6%p.a. 52.5%
7% p.a. 65%
8% p.a. 75%
9% p.a. 85%
10% p.a. 92.5%
11% p.a.and above 100%

ROIC in the third year of the 1/3 below 12.3% 0% 13.2%"% 81.0%
performance period® 12.3% 33%
12.55% 52.5%
12.8% 65%
13.05% 75%
13.3% 85%
13.55% 92.5%
13.8% and above 100%

Totalvesting percentage: 68.6%

(1) Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the points.

(2) Inrespectofthe euro TSR comparator group, RELXNV shares were, subsequent to the merger of RELXNVinto RELXPLC, replaced with Euronext Amsterdam

listed RELXPLC shares pricedineurosand, inrespect of the US dollar TSR comparator group, RELXNVADRs were, subsequent to the merger, replaced with

RELXPLCADRs.

Growth inadjusted EPS at constant currencies and ROIC are calculated as set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report on pages 54 to 59 and note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements on page 141, with adjustments made to remove the effect on ROIC of changes in exchange rates, pension deficits and

accounting standards over the three-year performance period.

(4) For2018,ROIC on pages 57 to 58 of the Chief Financial Officer’s report of 13.2% is the same as ROIC under the plan methodology after adjustments for changes
inexchange rates, pension deficits and accounting standards.

(3

BIP: 2016-18 cycle performance outcome

Performance Performance range and Achievement against the Resulting vesting

measure Weighting vesting levels setat grant!" performance range percentage

Average growthin adjusted EPS over 50% below 4% p.a. 0% 7.0%p.a. 80.0%
the three-year performance period? 4%p.a. 50%
6.5%p.a. 75%
9% p.a.orabove 100%

ROIC inthe third year of the 50% below 12.3% 0% 13.2%% 95.0%
performance period? 12.3% 50%
12.8% 75%
13.3% or above 100%

Totalvesting percentage: 87.5%

(1) Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the points.

(2) Growthinadjusted EPSat constant currenciesand ROIC are calculated as set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report on pages 54 to 59 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 141, with adjustments made to remove the effect on ROIC of changes in exchange rates, pension deficits and
accounting standards overthe three-year performance period.

For 2018, ROIC on pages 57 to 58 of the Chief Financial Officer's report of 13.2% is the same as ROIC under the plan methodology after adjustments for changes
inexchange rates, pension deficits and accounting standards.

3
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ESOS: 2016-18 cycle performance outcome

Performance Performance range and Achievement against the Resulting vesting
measure Weighting vesting levels set at grant!” performancerange percentage
Average growthin adjusted EPS over 100% below 4% p.a. 0% 7.0% p.a. 90.0%
the three-year performance period®? 4% p.a. 33%
6% p.a. 80%
8% p.a.orabove 100%

(1) Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the stated average adjusted EPS growth percentages.
[2) Growthinadjusted EPS at constant currenciesis calculated as set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report on pages 54 to 59 and note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 141.

Single Total Figure of Remuneration - Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Totalfee Benefits!! Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Anthony Habgood £650,000 £625,000 £2,360 £2,381 £652,360 £627,381
Wolfhart Hauser £159,500 £140,000 £780 £780 £160,280 £140,780
Adrian Hennah £118,990 £90,000 £780 £780 £119,770 £90,780
Marike van Lier Lels'? €126,651 €115,000 €949 €958  €127,600 €115,958
Robert MacLeod £107,000 £90,000 £780 £780 £107,780 £90,780
Carol Mills £125,000 £101,000 £1,620 £1,620 £126,620 £102,620
Linda Sanford £125,000 £90,000 £1,620 £1,620 £126,620 £91,620
BenvanderVeer®? €124,696 €142,500 €949 €958 €125,645 €143,458
Suzanne Wood® £116,000 £24,000 £116,000 £24,000

(1) Benefits comprise the notional benefit of tax filing support provided to Non-Executive Directors for filings outside their home country resulting from their
directorshipswith RELX. The incremental assessable benefit charge per tax return for 2018 was £840 (unchanged from 2017) for a UK tax return and £780
(unchanged from 2017) for a Netherlands tax return. Anthony Habgood's benefits alsoinclude £1,580 (£1,601in 2017) in respect of private medicalinsurance.
Further, the Company meets allreasonable travel, subsistence,accommodation and other expenses, including any tax where such expenses are deemed
taxable, incurred by the Non-Executive Directors and the Chairmanin the course of performing their duties.

The pound sterling equivalent of the total fees and benefits for Marike van Lier Lels and Benvan der Veer (converted at the average exchange rate applicable to
theyears of reporting) were £112,920(£101,717in 2017) and £111,190 (£125,8401in 2017) respectively for 2018. For the purposes of reporting the total fees and
benefits for these two Directors, the pound sterling benefit relating to the UK tax return preparation has been converted into euros at the average exchange rate
fortherelevantyear.

(3) Appointed on 26 September 2017.

(4) Thetotalremuneration for Directorsis setoutinnote 27 to the consolidated financial statements on page 162.

(2

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
The feesinthe Single Total Figure table for Non-Executive Directors reflect the following feesin 2018:

Annualfee 2019 Annualfee 2018
Chairman £650,000 £650,000
Non-Executive Directors £85,000 £85,000/€97,500
Senior Independent Director £30,000 £30,000
Chairman of:
- Audit Committee £30,000 £30,000/€37,500
- Remuneration Committee £30,000 £30,000
Workforce engagement fee £17,500
Committee membership fee:
- Audit Committee £17,500 £17,500/€20,000
- Remuneration Committee £17,500 £17,500
-Nominations Committee £10,000 £10,000/€12,500

In addition, an intercontinental travel fee of £4,500/€5,000 was payable to any Non-Executive Director (excluding the Chairman)in
respect of each transatlanticjourney made in order to attend a RELX Board or Committee meeting. In 2019, this fee will be £4,500.

From 2019, we have introduced a workforce engagement fee which is payable to the Non-Executive Director who undertakes the UK
Corporate Governance Code responsibility to engage with the workforce across RELXand report back to the Board.

Fees may be reviewed annually, although in practice they have changed on a less frequent basis. There are no changes to Non-Executive
Directorand Chairman fees for 2019. The last review took place at the end of 2017, as a result of which a number of changes were
approved which took effecton 1 January 2018 as set out above.
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Total pension entitlements (audited)

Erik Engstromisa member of the legacy UK defined benefit
pension plan. Mr Engstrom pays contributions on the amount of
his pensionable base salary up to the scheme earnings cap, which
were 11% until 28 February 2018, 13% from 1 March 2018 and will
be 15% from 1 March 2019. He also pays a participation fee on the
amount of his pensionable base salary which exceeds the scheme
earnings cap. This fee was 10% until 28 February 2018, increased

Pension - Standard information

to 13% on 1 March 2018 and will be 16% from 1 March 2019.

Mr Engstromisalso subjecttoa cap of 2% onannualincreases
in pensionable earnings. Further details are providedin the
Remuneration Policy on page 99.

Nick Luff receives a cash allowance in lieu of pension, which
reduced from 29% of salary to 27% of salary on 1 March 2018
andreduces to 25% of salary on 1 March 2019.

Pension - UK Regulations

Ageat Normal Totalof Director’s Accruedannual Accruedannual
December retirement Director’s Participation contributionsand pensionat pensionat Single figure
2018 age contributions fee participation fee 31December2017 31December2018 pensionsvalue
55 60 £19,777 £131,529 £151,306 £414,683 £449,519 £545,409M
(1) Netof Director’s contribution and participation fee.
Schemeinterests awarded during the financial year (audited)
Value of awards Percentage of maximum that End of
Basis onwhich Face value of ifvestinlinewith  would be received if threshold performance
award is made award atgrant!” expectations®? performance achieved® period
Erik Engstrom  450% of salary £5,348,499 £2,674,250 Ifthe measure with the lowest 31 December
payout atthreshold pays out at 2020
threshold, the overall payout
is 2%. If each measure pays out
atthreshold, the overall payout
is 25%
Nick Luff 375% of salary £2,624,636 £1,312,318

(1) Thefacevalue of the LTIP awards granted in February 2018 was calculated using (i) the middle market quotation of a PLC ordinary share (£14.915); (i) the closing
price ofan NVordinary share (€16.87); and [iii] the GBP:EUR exchange rate on the trading day before the date of grant of 19 February 2018. These share prices
were used to determine the number of awards granted. Subsequent to the corporate simplification which took effect on 8 September 2018, each award overan
NVordinary share has been exchanged foran award over the same number of PLC ordinary shares.

(2) Vestingin line with expectations for LTIP is as per the performance scenario chart disclosed on page 87 of the 2016 Remuneration Report, i.e. 50%.

(3) Threshold payout levels for each measure under LTIP have beenincluded asitis possible to achieve threshold, and hence payout, in respect of just one of the

measures (or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three TSR comparator groups).

The LTIP awards grantedin 2018 are based on ROIC, EPS and TSR weighted 40%:40%:20% respectively and assessed independently.
The targets and vesting scales applicable to these awards are set out on page 94 of the 2017 Remuneration Report.
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Externalappointments

The Committee believes that the experience gained by allowing
Executive Directors toserve as Non-Executive Directors on the
boards of other organisations is of benefit to RELX.

Accordingly, Executive Directors may, subject to the approval
of the Chairman and the CEO (or the Chairman only in the case
of the CEQ), serve as Non-Executive Directors on the boards of
up to two non-associated companies (of which only one may be a
major company) and they may retain remuneration arising from
such appointments.

Erik EngstromisaNon-Executive Director of Smith & Nephew plc
and received fees of £69,500 for 2018 (£75,135in 2017).

Nick Luff has beena Non-Executive Director of Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc since 3May 2018, for which he received fees of
£46,159 fortime servedin 2018 (in 2017 he received fees of £69,007
fortime served as a Non-Executive Director of Lloyds Banking
Group plcuntil 11 May 2017).

Payments to past Directors and payments for loss of office
(audited)
There have been no payments for loss of office in 2018.

Statement of Directors’ shareholdings and other share
interests (audited)

Shareholding requirement

The Committee believes thata closeralignment of interests can
be created between senior managementand shareholders if
executives build and maintain a significant personal stake in
RELX. The shareholding requirements applicable to the Executive
Directorsare set outinthe table below. Shares that count for this
purpose are any type of RELX security of which the Director, their
spouse, civil partner or dependent child has beneficial ownership
onanunencumbered basis. There has been no change to the
interestsreported below between 31 December 2018 and 20
February 2019.

Meeting the shareholding requirementis both a vesting condition
for LTIP awards granted and a requirement to maintain eligibility
for future LTIP awards.

On 31 December 2018, the Executive Directors’ shareholdings
were as follows (valued using the middle market closing prices of
the relevant securities):
Shareholding
requirement (% of

31December2018
annualbase salary)

Actualshareholding
asat31December2018
(% of 31 December 2018

annual base salary)

Erik Engstrom 400% 1,304%

Nick Luff 300% 594%
Share interests [number of RELX ordinary shares held)"

1January 2018 31December2018

Erik Engstrom 1,004,671 1,010,617
Nick Luff 260,942 265,971
Anthony Habgood 88,450 88,450
Wolfhart Hauser 14,633 14,633
Adrian Hennah 10,508 10,508
Marikevan Lier Lels 8,000 8,000
Robert MacLeod 6,950 6,950
Carol Mills 9,700 9,700
Linda Sanford 9,700 9,700
BenvanderVeer 10,766 10,766
Suzanne Wood 3,500 5,100

(1) Asaresultof the corporate simplification to merge RELXNVinto RELX PLC, which took effect on 8 September 2018, all shares in RELX NV were exchanged for
sharesin RELXPLC onaone-for-one basis. Therefore, all shares owned as at 31 December 2018 are RELXPLC shares. The number of shares held by each
Directorasat 1 January 2018 which were RELXPLC shares were as follows: Erik Engstrom: 200,490, Nick Luff: 124,847, Anthony Habgood: 50,000, Wolfhart
Hauser: 11,542, Adrian Hennah: 10,508, Marike van Lier Lels: 0, Robert MacLeod: 6,950, Carol Mills: 9,700, Linda Sanford: 6,700, Benvan der Veer: 0, Suzanne

Wood: 3,500. The remainder were RELXNVshares.
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Multi-year incentive interests (audited)
The tables belowand on page 95 set out vested but unexercised and unvested options and unvested share awards held by the Executive
Directorsincluding details of awards granted, options exercised and awards vested during the year of reporting.

Alloutstanding unvested options and share awards are subject to performance conditions. For disclosure purposes, any PLC ADRs
awarded under the multi-yearincentive plans are included as ordinary shares. Between 31 December 2018 and the date of this Report,
there have been no changesinthe options or share awards held by the Executive Directors.

As aresult of the corporate simplification to merge RELXNVinto RELX PLC, which took effect on 8 September 2018, all outstanding
options and awards which were granted over shares in RELX NV were exchanged for outstanding options and awards over sharesin
RELXPLC pricedineuros and listed on Euronext Amsterdam on a one-for-one basis.

OPTIONS No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options Option options Market options
heldon granted priceon exercised price per heldon Unvested Options
Year of 1Jan during date of during shareat 31Dec options exercisable
grant 2018 2018 grant 2018 exercise 2018 vestingon until
2014 145,604 £9.245 145,604 07 Apr 24
158,166 €10.286 158,166 07 Apr 24
2015 119,771 £11.520 114,584 02 Apr25
126,358 €15.003 120,886 02 Apr25
2016 112,690 £12.550 112,690 Mar19  15Mar2é6
119,312 €15.285 119,312 Mar19  15Mar2é6
2017 96,996 £14.945 96,996 Feb20  27Feb27
102,405 €16.723 102,405 Feb20  27Feb27
Total 981,302 970,643
SHARES No. of No. of No. of No. of
unvested shares Market shares Market unvested
shares awarded price per vested price per shares End of
Year of heldon during shareat during shareat heldon  performance Date of
grant 1Jan2018 2018 award 2018 vesting 31Dec2018 period vesting
BIP 2015 97,607 €15.003 90,608 €16.870
2016 94,965 €15.285 94,965 Dec2018 Feb 2019
2017 81,781 €16.723 81,781 Dec 2019 Feb 2020
LTIP 2015 119,771 £11.520 105,518 £14.915
126,359 €15.003 111,322 €16.870
2016 112,690 £12.550 112,690 Dec?2018 Feb 2019
119,312 €15.285 119,312 Dec 2018 Feb 2019
2017 96,996 £14.945 96,996 Dec2019 Feb 2020
102,405 €16.723 102,405 Dec?2019 Feb 2020
2018 179,318 £14.915 179,318 Dec 2020 Feb 2021
178,482 €16.870 178,482  Dec 2020 Feb 2021
Total 951,886 357,800 307,448 965,949

(1) The performance outcomes forthe 2015 ESOS options, BIP and LTIP were disclosed on pages 86 and 87 of the 2017 Remuneration Report.
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OPTIONS No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options Option options Market options
heldon granted priceon exercised price per heldon Unvested Options
Year of 1Jan during date of during shareat 31Dec options exercisable
grant 2018 2018 grant 2018 exercise 2018 vestingon until
ESOS 2014 65,656 £9.900 65,656 02Sep 24
72,228 €11.378 72,228 02Sep 24
20151 56,423 £11.520 53,979 02 Apr25
59,526 €15.003 56,948 02Apr25
2016 53,087 £12.550 53,087 Mar19  15Mar2é6
56,207 €15.285 56,207 Mar19  15Mar2é6
2017 45,694 £14.945 45,694 Mar20  27Feb27
48,242 €16.723 48,242 Mar20  27Feb27
Total 457,063 452,041
SHARES No. of No. of No. of No. of
unvested shares Market shares Market unvested
shares awarded price per vested price per shares End of
Year of heldon during shareat during shareat heldon  performance Date of
grant 1Jan2018 2018 award 2018 vesting 31Dec2018 period vesting
BIP 20151 28,187 £11.520 26,165 £14.915
29,520 €15.003 27,403 €16.870
2016 26,543 £12.550 26,543 Dec2018 Feb 2019
28,103 €15.285 28,103 Dec2018 Feb 2019
2017 22,847 £14.945 22,847 Dec 2019 Feb 2020
24,121 €16.723 24,121 Dec2019  Feb2020
LTIP 20151 56,423 £11.520 49,708 £14.915
59,526 €15.003 52,442 €16.870
2016 53,087 £12.550 53,087 Dec2018 Feb2019
56,207 €15.285 56,207 Dec2018 Feb 2019
2017 45,694 £14.945 45,694 Dec2019 Feb 2020
48,242 €16.723 48,242 Dec2019  Feb2020
2018 87,996 £14.915 87,996  Dec2020 Feb 2021
87,585 €16.870 87,585 Dec 2020 Feb 2021
Total 478,500 175,581 155,718 480,425

(1) The performance outcomes forthe 2015 ESOS options, BIPand LTIP were disclosed on pages 86 and 87 of the 2017 Remuneration Report.
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Performance graphs

The graphs below show total shareholder returns for RELX calculated on the basis of the average share price in the 30 trading days
before the respective year end and assuming dividends were reinvested. RELX's performance is compared with the FTSE 100. The

three-year chart covers the performance period of the 2016-18 cycle of the LTIP.
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The table below shows the historical CEO pay over an eleven-year period. The year 2008 has been included to show the pre-2009

position, as 2009 was a transition year with three CEO incumbents.

£000 2008 2009 2010 20M 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Sir Sir

Crispin | Crispin lan Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik
CEO Davis Davis ~ Smith Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom
Annualised 1,181 1,181 900 1,000 1,000 1,025 1,051 1,077 1,104 1,131 1,160 1,189 1,218
base salary
Annualincentive 61%  30% 37% 1% 67% 66% 73% 70% 7% 70% 68% 69% 78%
payoutasa%
of maximum
Multi-year 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 70%? 96%2 90%"? 97%? 97%? 92%? 81%?
incentive vesting
asa % of
maximum
CEO total 7193 706 1,033 426 3,140 2,738 11,1458 5463 17,447% 11,4165 11,399 8,7487 8,414

(1) SirCrispin Daviswas CEO from 1January to 31 March, lan Smith was CEO from 1 Aprilto 10 November and Erik Engstromwas CEO from 11 November

to31December.

(2) The2018,2017,2016and 2015 percentages reflect BIP, LTIP and ESOS. The 2014 percentage reflects the final tranche of the discontinued Reed Elsevier Growth
Plan (REGP), BIPand ESOS. The 2013 percentage reflects BIP and ESOS only and the 2012 figure reflects BIP and the first tranche of the discontinued REGP.

(3) The2012figure reflects the vesting of the first tranche of the discontinued REGP and includes the entire amount that was performance tested over the 2010-12
period, including the 50% of shares deferred until 2015 in accordance with the plan rulesincluding £3m attributed to share price appreciation.

(4) The 2014 figureincludes the vesting of the second and finaltranche of the discontinued REGP and includes £8.8m attributed to share price appreciation.

(5) The2015figureincludes £4.4m attributed to share price appreciation.
(6) The2016figureincludes £4.2m attributed to share price appreciation.

(7) The2017figureincludes £1.7m attributed to share price appreciation. The share award value has been restated for actual share prices and exchange rates

applicable on the dates of vesting (see page 87 for further detail).
(8) The2018figureincludes £1.5m attributed to share price appreciation.
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Comparison of change in CEO pay with change in employee pay
The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration
(salary, benefits and annual cash incentive] from 2017 to 2018 for
the CEO compared with the average employee.

% change from 2017 t0 2018

Average

CEO employee!
Salary 2.5%? 3.0%
Benefits 0.2% 3.1%
Annual cashincentive 2.5%9 3.1%

(1) Theaverage employee for salaryand benefits has been determined based
onareviewof employeesinourtop five countries by number of employees.
Thisrepresents over 70% of the total employee population. The average
employee forannualcashincentiveis based onallemployees globally who
receivedanannualcashincentive. Theaverage salaryincreasein the UK,
wherethe CEOQis based, was 2.5%.

Thesalaryincrease forthe CEOwas 2.5%. However, when theincrease in
his pension contributions and participation fee are taken into account, his
salaryafterthese deductions decreased by 0.6% between 2017 and 2018.
As partofthe simplified incentive structure for Executive Directors which
was approved by shareholdersatthe April 2017 Annual General Meetings,
with effect from 2018, a deferred share componentwas added to the AIP.
Thiswas to partly offset the discontinuation of the BIP. The percentage
shown forthe CEO inthe table above relates to the cash AIP. If the deferred
share component, which willbe paid outin Q12022 isincludedin the 2018
AlPvalue, the percentage change from 2017 to 2018 for the CEO would be
53.8%. Inthetable above, the deferred share component of the AIP for
senior managementisalso excluded from the calculation of the average
employees”AlP.

(2

(3

Relative importance of spend on pay

The following table sets out the total employee costs forall
employees, as well as the amounts paid in dividends and share
repurchases.

2018 2017 % change

£m £m
Employee costs!” 2,350 2,273 +3%
Dividends 796 762 +4%
Share repurchases 700 700 -

(1) Employee costsinclude wages and salaries, social security costs, pensions
andsharebasedandrelated remuneration.

Implementation of remuneration policyin 2019

Salary: The Committee has awarded asalaryincrease of 2.5% to
each Executive Director, which means that, from 1 January 2019,
Erik Engstrom’s salaryroseto £1,248,863 and Nick Luff’'s salary to
£735,415. Thisisin line with the guidelines for 2019 for the general
UK-based employee population. When theincreasesinthe CEO’s
pension contributions and participation fee are taken into account,
his salary after these deductions will decrease againin 2019
compared to 2018.

Benefits: The benefits provided to the Executive Directors are
unchanged for 2019.

Annualincentive: The operation of the AIPin 2019 will be in
accordance with the terms of the policy set out on page 100 of this
Report. Details of the 2019 annual financial targets and KPOs will
bedisclosedinthe 2019 Remuneration Report.

Pension: Erik Engstrom’s contributions to the pension plan on the
amount of his pensionable base salary up to the scheme earnings
capincrease from 13%to 15% from 1 March 2019 and his
participation fee, which he pays on the amount of his pensionable
earnings above the scheme earnings cap, increases from 13% to
16% from 1 March 2019 and willincrease furtherin 2020. Mr
Engstromisalso subjecttoa 2% caponannualincreasesin
pensionable earnings. The CFO’s cash allowance in lieu of pension
reduces from 27% to 25% of salary from 1 March 2019 and will
reduce below 25% in 2020.

Share based awards: Asin 2018, we will be granting LTIP awards
with face values of 450% of salary to Erik Engstrom and 375%

to Nick Luffin2019. The awards are subject to a three-year
performance period and the net (after tax] vested shares are to be
retained for a further two-year holding period.

The following metrics, weightings, targets and vesting scales
apply to LTIP awards grantedin 2019.

Thevesting of LTIP awards is dependent on three separate
performance measures: ROIC, EPS and TSR weighted
40%:40%:20% respectively and assessed independently.

The TSR measure comprises three comparators (sterling, euro
and US dollar] reflecting the fact that RELX accesses equity
capital markets through three exchanges - London, Amsterdam
and New York —inthree currency zones. RELX's TSR performance
is measured separately against each comparator group and

each rankingachieved will produce a payout, ifany, in respect of
one-third of the TSR measure. The proportion of the TSR measure
thatvests will be the sum of the three payouts.

The averaging period applied for TSR measurement purposesis
the three months before the start of the financial yearin which the
award is granted and the last three months of the third financial
year of the performance period.

The companies for the TSR comparator groups for the 2019-21
LTIP cycle were selected on the following basis (substantially
unchanged from prioryear):

(a) theywereinarelevant marketindex orwere the largest listed
companiesontherelevant exchanges atthe end of the year
before the start of the performance period: the FTSE 100 for
the sterling group; the Euronext100 (including the AEX] and
DAX30forthe eurogroup; and the S&P 500 for the US dollar
group;

(b) certain companieswere then excluded:

those with mainly domestic or single country revenues (as
they do not reflect the global nature of RELX's customer
base);

those engaged in extractive industries (as they are exposed
to commodity cycles); and

financial services companies (as they have a different risk/
reward profile).

(c)] theremaining companieswere thenranked by market
capitalisation and, for each comparator group, up to 50
companies with market capitalisations above and below that
of RELXwere taken; and

(d) relevantlisted global peers operating in businesses similar to
those of RELX, but not otherwise included, were added.
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Vesting percentage of each third TSRrankingwithinthe relevant

ofthe TSRtranche TSR comparator group
0% Below median
25% Median
100% Upper quartile

(1) Vesting is on a straight-line basis for performance between the minimum
and maximum levels.

The calculation methodology for the EPS and ROIC measures
issetoutinthe footnotes on page 90 and inthe 2013 Notices of
Annual General Meetings, which can be found on RELX’s website.
Thetargets andvesting scales applicable tothe EPSand ROIC
tranches of the 2019 LTIP awards reflect the company’s approach
toacquisitions, disposals and share buybacksand are
setout below. The ROIC targets for the 2019 LTIP awards reflect
the adoption of IFRS 16 (lease accounting), which effectively makes
the ROIC targets 20 basis points higher than under previous
accounting standards.

Average growth

inadjusted EPS over
thethree-year

ROICin the third
yearofthe

Vesting percentage
of EPSandROIC

tranches! performance period performance period
0% below 5% p.a. below 12.0%
25% 5%p.a. 12.0%
50% 6% p.a. 12.4%
65% 7% p.a. 12.8%
75% 8%p.a. 13.2%
85% 9% p.a. 13.6%
92.5% 10% p.a. 14.0%
100% 11% p.a. orabove 14.4% or above

(1) Vestingis onastraight-line basis for performance between the stated
average adjusted EPS growth/ROIC percentages.

Shareholder voting at 2018 Annual General Meeting

Remuneration Committee advice

The Committee consists of independent Non-Executive Directors
and the Chairman of RELX. Details of members and their
attendance are contained in the Corporate Governance section
on page 78. The Chief Legal Officer & Company Secretary attends
meetings as secretary to the Committee. At the invitation of the
Chairman of the Committee, the CEQO attends appropriate parts
of the meetings. The CEO is not in attendance during discussions
about his remuneration.

The Chief Human Resources Officer advised the Committee
during theyear.

Willis Towers Watson is the external adviser, appointed by

the Committee through a competitive process. Willis Towers
Watson also provided actuarialand other humanresources
consultancy services to some RELX companies during the year.
The Committee is satisfied that the firm’s advice continues to be
objective and independent, and that no conflict of interest exists.
The individual consultants who work with the Committee do

not provide advice to the Executive Directors, oracton their
behalf. Willis Towers Watson is a member of the Remuneration
Consultants’ Group and conducts its work in line with the UK Code
of Conduct for executive remuneration consulting. During 2018,
Willis Towers Watson received fees of £10,500 for advice given to
the Committee, charged onatime and expense basis.

Atthe Annual General Meeting of RELXPLC, on 19 April 2018, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors’

remuneration were as follows:

Resolution Votes For

% For

Votes Against % Against Totalvotes cast Votes Withheld

Remuneration Report (advisory) 562,551,352

83.62%

110,216,944 16.38% 672,768,296 169,795,175

Wolfhart Hauser
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
20 February 2019
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Setoutinthis sectionisadescription of the Company’s remuneration policy for Directors, as approved by shareholders at the April 2017
Annual General Meetings. Itswording has been updated solely to reflect the passage of time since the policy was first published and the
corporate simplification to merge RELXNVinto RELXPLC, which took effect on 8 September 2018. The original wording, as first
published, can be found on pages 84 to 90 of the 2016 Annual Reports and Financial Statements.

Remuneration policy table - Executive Directors
Allfootnotes to the policy table can be found on pages 101 to 102.

Purpose and link to strategy

Torecruitand retain the best executive talent globally to execute our strategic objectives atappropriate cost.

Operation

Salaries for Executive Directors are set and reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee (the Committee] with changes typically
taking effecton 1 January. In exceptional circumstances, the Committee may review salaries more frequently.

When reviewing salaries, the Committee considers the executive’s role and sustained value to the company in terms of skill, experience
and overall contribution and the Company’s guidelines for salaries for all employees for the year. Periodically, competitiveness with
companieswhichare comparable in respect of industry, size, international scope and complexity is also considered in order to ensure
the Company’s ability to attract and retain executives.

Forthe last sevenyears, Executive Directors’ salaryincreases have been 2.5% perannum.

Performance framework

N/A

Maximum value

Salaryincreases to Executive Directors will remain within the range of increases for the wider employee population. However, the
Committee hasdiscretion to exceed this to take account of individual circumstances such as change in responsibility, increasesin scale
or complexity of the business, inflation oralignment to market level.

Recovery of sums paid

No provision.

Purpose and link to strategy

Retirement plans are part of remuneration packages designed to recruitand retain the best executive talent at appropriate cost.
Operation

Our policyis to offer competitive long-term sustainable defined contribution plans. Anyamount above applicable limits, for example
HMRC’s annual allowance in the UK, will be paid in cash and will be subject to tax and social security deductions. In certain
circumstances, executives can take cash instead of pension contributions.

The UK defined benefit schemes are closed to new hires. Continued membership of legacy defined benefit schemes requires annual
increases to contributions and participation fees from all members, who have a choice to switch to the defined contribution plan atany time.

The CEOisa member of a UK legacy defined benefit pension arrangement, accruing 1/30th of final year pensionable earnings for each
year (pro-rated for partyears] of service, with anormal retirement age of 60. In line with all UK defined benefit scheme members, the
CEOQ’s contributions have been increasing annually since 2011 and were 13% of pensionable earnings up to the base scheme’s earnings
capasof 1 March 2018. The contribution rate increases by two percentage points each year during the policy period to 15% as of 1 March
2019 and 17% as of 1 March 2020. The CEO also pays a participation fee which, from 1 March 2018, was 13% of the amount of his
pensionable earnings in excess of the base scheme’s earnings cap. The participation fee increases by three percentage points each year
during the policy period to 16% as of 1 March 2019 and 19% as of 1 March 2020. In addition, since March 2017, a cap applies of 2% per
annumon theincreaseinthe CEO’s pensionable earnings.

Performance framework

N/A

Maximum value

Defined contribution plan - maximum company contribution of 25% of salary perannum or equivalent cashin lieu. The CFO received
30% of salaryunderanarrangement which was made pursuant to the previous remuneration policy, which contained a 30% of salary
maximum. During the policy period, the CFO’s company contribution decreased by one percentage point to 29% from March 2017, by two
percentage points to 27% from March 2018 and will decrease by a further two percentage points to 25% from March 2019.

Defined benefit scheme - accrual of 1/30th of final year pensionable earnings for every year of service up to a maximum of 2/3rds of
pensionable earnings. As noted above under ‘Operation’, the CEQ is subject to increases in his contributions and in the participation fee,
aswellasacaponannualincreasesin pensionable earnings, as part of his ongoing membership of this scheme.

Recovery of sums paid

No provision.
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Purpose and link to strategy

To provide competitive benefits at appropriate cost.

Operation

Other benefits, subject to periodic review, may include private medical and dental cover, life assurance, tax return preparation costs,
car benefits, directors” and officers’ liability insurance, relocation benefits and expatriate allowances and other benefits available to
employees generally, including, where appropriate, the tax on such benefits.

Performance framework

N/A

Maximumvalue

The maximum for ongoing benefits for Executive Directors will not normally exceed 10% of salary (excluding relocation benefits and any
tax related charge on benefits which is met by the Company). However, the Committee may provide reasonable benefits beyond this
amountin exceptional situations, such asachangein the individual's circumstances caused by the Company, or if there is a significant
increase in the cost of providing the agreed benefit.!

Purpose and link to strategy

Theannualincentive provides focus on the delivery of annual financial targets and the achievement of annual objectives and milestones
whichare chosen toalign with the company’s strategy and create a platform for sustainable future performance. The compulsory
deferral of one-third of any annualincentive earned into RELX shares for three years promotes longer-term alignment of Executive
Directors’interests with shareholders’interests, including an element of post-termination shareholding.

Why performance measures are chosen and how targets are set

Performance measures include a balanced set of financial targets and Key Performance Objectives (KPOs), which are appropriately
weighted and which support current strategy and incentivise the Executive Directors to achieve the desired outcomes without undue risk
of focusing on any one financial measure.

The targets are designed to be challenging. They are set with reference to the previous year’s performance and internal and external
forecasts for the following year.

Operation

The Committee reviews and sets the financial targets and KPOs annually, taking into account internal forecasts and strategic plans. It
approves four to six KPOs for each Executive Director, reflecting critical business priorities for which eachis accountable. At least one
KPOwillrelate to the achievement of sustainability targets.

Followingyear end, the Committee compares actual performance with the financial targets and assesses the achievement of individual
KPOs. Two-thirds of any annualincentive earned is paid in cash to the Executive Director and the remaining one-third is deferred into
RELXshares, which are not released to the Executive Director for three years.

Dividend equivalents accrued during the deferral period are payable in respect of the shares that vest.

Onachangeincontrol, the default position is that deferred shares vest. Alternatively, the Committee may determine that deferred
shareswill notvestand willinstead be exchanged for equivalent awards in the acquiring company.

Performance framework

The measuresinclude financial targets, which have a weighting of at least 70%, and individual KPOs, with each element assessed
separately.

The minimum payoutis zero.

Ifthreshold is reached for each of the financial measures, the overall payout for the financial measuresis 10.5% of salary. If the
financial measure with the lowest weighting pays out at threshold and the others do not pay out at all, the overall payout for financial
measuresis 1.5% of salary. Thereis no threshold level for KPOs.

Payout for target performanceis 150% of salary.

Following an assessment of achievementand scoring of KPOs, the Committee agrees the overall level of earned incentive for each
Executive Director.

Committee discretion applies.?3#

Maximum value

The maximum potentialannualincentive is 200% of annual base salary. This includes the deferred share element but excludes dividend
equivalents payable inrespect of the deferred shares.

Recovery of sums paid

Claw-back applies.®
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Purpose and link to strategy

The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) is designed to provide a long-term incentive for Executive Directors to achieve the key performance
measures that supportthe company’s strategy, and to align their interests with shareholders.

Why performance measures are chosenand how targets are set

Our strategic focusis on continuing to transform the core business through organic investment and the build out of new products

into adjacent markets and geographies, supplemented by selective portfolio acquisitions and divestments. The performance
measuresinthe LTIP are chosen to support this strategy by focusing on sustained earnings growth, return on invested capital and
shareholder return.

Targets are setwith regard to previous results and internal and external forecasts for the performance period and the strategic plan for
the business. Theyare designed to provide exceptional reward for exceptional performance, whilst allowing a reasonable expectation
thatreward at the lower end of the scale is attainable, subject to robust performance.

Operation
Annualawards of performance shares, with vesting subject to:

performance measured over three financialyears

continued employment (subject to the provisions set outin the Policy on payments for loss of office section)

meeting shareholding requirements (400% of salary for the CEO and 300% of salary for the CFO)
Executive Directors are to retain their net (after tax] vested shares for a holding period of two years after vesting.
Dividend equivalents accrued during the performance period are payable inrespect of the performance shares that vest.

Onachange of control, the default position is that awards vest on a pro-rated basis, subject to an assessment of performance against
targets atthat time. Alternatively, the Committee may determine that the awards will not vest and will instead be exchanged for
equivalentawards inthe acquiring company.

Performance framework
The performance measuresare EPS, ROIC and relative TSR, weighted 40%:40%:20% respectively and assessed independently, such
that a payout can be received under any one of the measures (or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three comparator groups).

The minimum payoutis zero.

If each of the measures vests at threshold, the overall payout is 25% of the award. If the measure with the lowest weighting vests at
threshold and the others do notvest atall, the overall payout is 2% of the award.

Payoutin line with expectations is 50% of the maximum award.
Dividend equivalents are not taken into account in the above payout levels.

Committee discretion applies.?34

Maximum value

The maximum grantin anyyearis up to 450% of base salary for the CEO and up to 375% of base salary for other Executive Directors (not
including dividend equivalents).

Recovery of sums paid

Claw-back applies.®

(1) Other benefits: Maximum value was increased from 5% under the previous policy to 10% under the current policy to reflectincreasesin the cost of providing the
agreed benefits. The level of benefits provided to Executive Directors was not changed.

Discretioninrespectof AIP and LTIP payout levels: In determining the level of payout under the AIP and vesting under the LTIP, the Committee takes into
account RELX's overall business performance and value created for shareholders over the period in reviewand other relevant factors. It has discretion to adjust
the vesting and payout levels (subject always to the maximum individual limits) if it believes this would resultin a fairer outcome. This discretion will only be
usedin exceptional circumstances and the Committee will explainin the next Remuneration Report the extent towhich ithas been exercised and the reasons
fordoing so.

Discretiontovary performance measures under the AIP and the LTIP: The Committee mayvary the financial measures applying toa currentannualincentive
yearand performance measures for LTIP awards already granted ifa change in circumstances leads it to believe thatthe arrangementis no longer a fair
measure of performance. Any new measures will not be materially less, or more, challenging than the original ones.

Discretion on termination of employmentunder the AIP and the LTIP: The Committee’s discretion on termination of employmentis described under the "Policy
on payments for loss of office’ section on page 104.

Malus and claw-back under the AIP and the LTIP: Under the AIP and the LTIP, the Committee has discretion to apply malus and claw-back (i) if the payout
(including the AIP deferred shares element) was calculated on the basis of materially misstated financial or other data, in which case it can withhold a payout
and can seek torecover the difference in value between the incorrect payout and the amount that would have been paid had the correct data been used or (ii) if
there hasbeen serious misconduct on the part of the individual, in which case the Committee maywithhold an AIP payout, lapse unvested LTIP awards and may
require repayment of AIPand LTIP gains arising during a specified period. Under the LTIP, the Committee also has discretion to apply malus and claw-back ifa
participantbreaches post-termination restrictive covenants, in which case unvested awards would lapse and the Committee may require repayment of gains
arising during the period beginning six months before termination and ending on the date the post-termination restrictive covenants are stated to expire.
Serious misconduct hasbeenadded asatrigger eventunderthe AIP and the LTIP since the previous policy toincrease the circumstances in which we can apply
malus and claw-back.

(2

(3

(4

(5
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(6) Explanation of differences between the company’s policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration and the policy for other employees: Incentives: Alarger
percentage of Executive Directors’ remunerationis performance related than that of other employees. Allmanagers participate inan annualincentive plan,
but participation levels, measures and targetsvaryaccording to their role, seniorityand local business priorities. Approximately 100 senior executives
currently participate inthe LTIP and about 1,000 participate in the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS). Grant levels under the plansvaryaccording to role
and seniority. In considering the remuneration policy for Executive Directors, under which the Executive Directors only participate in the AIPand the LTIP, the
Committee considered the incentive plan participation for the wider senior management population. Other benefits: The range and level of retirementand other
benefits provided to employeesvaryaccordingtorole, seniority and local market practice. Thisis to ensure that we provide competitive packages which are
appropriate to specificroles. In reducing the maximum company contribution for Executive Directors under the defined contribution pension plan, the
Committee took into account the contribution rates for Executive Directors and for the wider employee population.

Changes to pay components: The changes whichwere made since the previous remuneration policy, together with the rationale for the changes, are described
inthe Committee Chairman’sintroduction on pages 81to 83 of the Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2016 and in notes 1and 5above.

(7

Remuneration outcomes indifferent performance scenarios

The Committee considers the level of remuneration that may be paid in the context of the performance delivered and value added for
shareholders. The charts beloware anillustration of howthe CEO’s and CFO’s regular annual remuneration could vary under different
performance scenarios. The salary, benefits and pension levels are the samein allthree scenarios in each chart. Salaryis based on 2017
salary. Benefitsis based onthe 2016 Single Total Figure table. Pension, annualincentive and LTIP are all based on the policy table’s award
levels and percentages applied to the 2017 salary. Annualincentive amounts include the one-third portion whichis subject to compulsory
deferralinto RELX shares for threeyears, although the deferral portion is separately identified within the annualincentive amountin the
charts. The performance assumptions which have been used are as follows: Minimum means no AIP payout and no LTIP vesting. In line with
expectations means AIP payout at 150% of salary (of which one-third is deferred into shares) and LTIP vesting at half of the award. Maximum
means AIP payout at 200% of salary (of which one-third is deferred into shares) and LTIP vesting at 100% of the award.

No share price movementisassumed and any dividend equivalents payable in respect of the AIP deferred shares and the LTIP are
notincluded.

9,664
LTIP LTIP
AIP deferred shares AIP deferred shares
AIP cash AlP cash
55% i i i i
6,395 o Salary, benefits, pension Salary, benefits, pension
42% 4,915
o 3253 g
28% :
1,937 40%
0 29%
100% 30% 20% 890 L
100% 28% 18%
Minimum Inline with  Maximum Minimum Inline with Maximum
expectations expectations
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Approach torecruitment remuneration - Executive Directors

When agreeing the components of a remuneration package on the appointment of a new Executive Director, or an internal promotion
tothe Board, the Committee would seek to align the package with the remuneration policy stated in the policy table. However, onan
internal promotion to the Board, any existing contractual obligations and commitments may continue to be honoured, even if not
consistent with the prevailing policy. For example, if the individualis a member of the legacy defined benefit pension scheme, the
Committee will consider the pension arrangements in the context of the package as awhole and may allow continued participation.

The Committee’s general principle on recruitmentis to offer a competitive remuneration package to attract high-calibre candidates
froma globaltalent pool. Basic salarywould be setat an appropriate level for the candidate, takinginto account all relevant factors.
As adataanalytics and technology-driven business, with half of its revenue in the US, the Company primarily competes for talent with
US-based information and technology companies.

Thevarious components and the Company’s approach are as follows:

Standard package onrecruitment*

To offer remuneration in line with the policy table (including the limits), taking into account the principles set out above.

Compensation for forfeited entitlements

The Committee may make awards and payments on hiring an external candidate to compensate him or her for entitlements forfeited

on leaving the previous employer. If such a decision is made, the Committee will attempt to reflect previous entitlements as closely as
possible using avariety of tools, including cash and share based awards. Malus and claw-back provisions willapply where appropriate.
If necessaryto facilitate the grant of awards, the Committee may rely on the one person exemption from shareholder approvalin the UK
Listing Rules.

Relocation allowances and expenses

The type and size of relocation allowances and expenses will be determined by the specific circumstances of the new recruit.

* The standard package comprisesannual base salary, retirement benefits, other benefits, AIPand LTIP.

Shareholding requirement

The Executive Directors are subject to shareholding requirements. These are a minimum of 400% of annual base salary for the CEO and
300% of annual base salary for other Executive Directors. Onjoining or promotion to the Board, Executive Directors are given a period of
time, typically up to five years, to build up to their requirement.

Policy on payments for loss of office
In line with the company’s policy, the service contracts of the existing Executive Directors contain 12-month notice periods.

The circumstances in which an Executive Director’s employmentis terminated will affect the Committee’s determination of any
payment for loss of office, but it expects toapply the principles outlined in the table on the next page. The Committee reserves the right
todepartfromthese principles where appropriate in light of any taxation requirements to which the Company or the Executive Director
is subject (including, without limitation, section 409A of the US Internal Revenue Code), or other legal obligations. Treatment of legacy
awards granted under multi-yearincentive plans in which the Executive Directors no longer participate will be in accordance with those
plans and the policy on payments for loss of office summarised in the Remuneration Policy Reportin the 2013 Annual Reports and
Financial Statements.
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Policy on payments for loss of office (continued)

Mutually agreed termination/termination by the Company other than for cause?

The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits
and other contractual paymentsin the normalway up tothe
termination date and would be paid for any accrued but
untaken holiday.

Salary: Payment of up to 12 months’ salary to reflect the notice
period or paymentin lieu of notice.

Other benefits: Where possible, benefits would be continued for
up to the duration of any unworked period of notice [not exceeding
the maximum stated in the policy table) or the Executive Director
would receive a cash payment (not exceeding the cost to the
company of providing those benefits).

Pension: Deferred orimmediate pensionin accordance with
schemerules, with acreditin respect of, or payment for up to, the
full period of any unworked period of notice. There is provision
underthe defined benefit pension scheme formembers leaving
company service by reason of permanentincapacity to make an
application to the scheme trustee for early payment of

their pension.

Other: The company may pay compensation in respect of any
statutory employment rights and may make other appropriate
and customary payments.

The companywould have due regard to principles of mitigation
of loss. Reductions would be applied to reflect any portion of the
notice period thatis worked and/or spent on gardening leave.

Oninjury, disability, ill-health or death, the Committee reserves
therighttovarythe treatmentoutlined in this section.

Annualincentive: Any unpaid annualincentive for the previous year
and apro-ratapaymentinrespectof the part of the financial year
up to the termination date would generally be payable (subject to
the deferral provisions), with the amount being determined by
reference tothe original performance criteria. However, the
Committee has discretion to decide otherwise depending on the
reason for termination and other specific circumstances. The
company would not pay any annualincentive inrespect of any part
of the financialyear following the termination date (e.g. for any
unworked period of notice). Any unvested AIP deferred shares
would vestin fullatthe end of the deferral period. The annual
incentive claw-back provisions would apply.

LTIP: The default positionis that unvested LTIP awards would be
pro-rated to reflect time employed and would vest subject to
performance measured at the end of the relevant performance
period and subject to the Executive Director continuing to meet his
shareholding requirement on a pro-rated basis. The Committee
has discretionto allow unvested LTIP awards to vest earlier and
toadjustthe application of time pro-rating and performance
conditions, subject to the planrules.

Employee instigated resignation

The Executive Director would not receive any payments for loss of
office. The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits
and other contractual paymentsinthe normalway up tothe
termination date and would be paid for any accrued but

untaken holiday.

Pension: A deferred orimmediate pension would be payable
inaccordance with the schemerules.

Annualincentive: The Executive Director would be entitled to
receive anannualincentive fora completed previous year (subject
to the deferral provisions), but nota pro-rated annualincentive
inrespectofapartyearup tothe termination date, unlessthe
Committee decides otherwise in the specific circumstances. Any
unvested AIP deferred shares would vestin full at the end of the
deferral period. Annualincentive claw-back provisions would apply.

LTIP: All outstanding LTIP awards would lapse on the date of notice.

Dismissal for cause

The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits and
other contractual paymentsin the normalway up to the
termination date and would be paid for any accrued but untaken
holiday, but would not receive any payments for loss of office.

Pension: Adeferred orimmediate pension would be payable in
accordance withthe schemerules.

Annualincentive: The Executive Director would not receive any
unpaid annualincentive. Any unvested AIP deferred shares lapse
on the date of dismissal.

LTIP: Alloutstanding LTIP awards would lapse on the date
of dismissal.

(1) Inadditiontowhatis setoutinthis section, ontermination forany reason, Erik Engstrom will be entitled to payment of amounts held in his ‘Retirement Account’.
Before he joined the company’s UK defined benefit scheme, he was nota member of any company pension scheme and RELX made annual contributions of
19.5% of base salary toadeferred compensation plan. Contributions to this Retirement Account ceased when he became a member of the UK defined benefit

arrangement.

(2) Incaseswherethe approved leavertreatmentapplies, the AIPand LTIP have a default position as well as giving the Committee discretion to adjust the default
treatmentwithin certain parameters. The Committee would only expect to exercise such discretion where the Committee believes the personal circumstances

of the Executive Directorsorequire.
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Remuneration policy table - Non-Executive Directors

Purpose and link to strategy

Toenable RELXto recruit Non-Executive Directors with the right balance of personal skills and experience to make a major contribution
tothe Board and Committees of a global business which is listed in London, Amsterdam and New York.

Operation

RELX Chairman: Receives an aggregate annual fee with no additional fees, for example, Committee Chairman fees. The Committee
determines the Chairman’s fee on the advice of the Senior Independent Director.

Other Non-Executive Directors: Receive an aggregate annual fee. Additional fees are payable to the Senior Independent Director and
Committee Chairmen. Fees are also payable for membership of Board Committees and, with effect from 1 January 2018, international
travelfees. Infuture, attendance fees may be paid. The Board determines the level of fees, subject to applicable law.

Fees maybe reviewed annually, although in practice they have changed on a less frequent basis. When reviewing fees, consideration is
given to the time commitment required, the complexity of the role and the calibre of the individual. Periodically, comparative market data
isalsoreviewed, the primary source for which is the practice of FTSE 30 companies, with reference also to the Euronext Amsterdam

(AEX)index and US-listed companies.

Maximumvalue

The aggregate annual fee limit for fees paid to the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors is £2m. Additional fees for membership of
or chairing Board Committees and assuming additional responsibilities such as acting as Senior Independent Director, are not subject to

this maximum limit.

Purpose and link to strategy
To provide competitive benefits at appropriate cost.

Operation

Other benefits for Non-Executive Directors are reviewed periodically and mayinclude private medical cover, tax return preparation
costs, secretarial benefits, car benefits, travel and related subsistence costs, including, where appropriate, the tax on such benefits.

Maximum value
Thereisno prescribed maximum amount.

Approachtorecruitment remuneration -

Non-Executive Directors

Following recruitment, a new Non-Executive Director will be
entitled to fees and other benefitsin accordance with the
Company’s remuneration policy. No additional remunerationis
paid onrecruitment. However, any reasonable expensesincurred
during the recruitment process will be reimbursed.

Policy on payments for loss of office - Non-Executive Directors
Inaddition to unpaid accrued fees, the Non-Executive Directors
are entitled to receive one month’s fees for loss of office if their
appointmentis terminated before the end of its term.

Service contracts and letters of appointment

There are nofurther obligationsin the Directors’ service contracts
and letters of appointment which are not otherwise disclosed in
this Reportwhich could give rise to aremuneration paymentor
loss of office payment. All Directors’ service contracts and letters
of appointment are available forinspection atthe Company’s
registered office. The Executive Directors’ service contracts do
not have a fixed expiry date.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere

inthe company

When the Committee reviews the Executive Directors’ salaries
annually, ittakes into account the Company’s guidelines for
salaries forallemployees for the forthcoming year. We do not
currently use any other remuneration comparison metrics when
determining the quantum and structure of Directors’ pay. We have
not consulted with employees in connection with our policy on
Directors’ remuneration.

Consideration of shareholder views

Our practiceisto consult shareholders and consider their views
when formulating, or changing, our policy. Before the current
policy was approved by shareholders at the 2017 AGMs, the
Committee consulted extensively with shareholders (representing
atotal of over 45% of the company’s combined PLC and NVissued
share capital) and shareholder representative bodies in the UK,
the Netherlands and the US on the proposed new remuneration
policy. We were grateful for the constructive feedback, which was
takenintoaccountinourfinal proposals.

Previous remuneration policy and prior commitments

Any payments which are still to be made underarrangements
made and awards granted under the previous remuneration
policy (whichisincludedinthe 2013 Annual Reports and Financial
Statementsand was approved by RELXPLC shareholders at the
2014 Annual General Meeting] will be made consistent with that
policy. The provisions of the previous policy which relate to
arrangements and awards granted under the previous policy will
therefore continue to apply untilall paymentsin relation to those
arrangements and awards have been made.

The Committee alsoreserves the right to make any remuneration
or loss of office payments if the terms were agreed prior to the
approval of the previous policy or prior to anindividual being
appointed as a Director.
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Report of the Audit Committee

Thisreport has been prepared by the Audit Committee of
RELXPLC and has beenapproved by the Board. It provides
anoverview of the membership, responsibilities and activities
of the Committee.

The Committee comprises at least three independent
Non-Executive Directors. The members of the Committee
who served during the year were:

Adrian Hennah (Chairman of the Committee from
19 April 2018)

BenvanderVeer (Chairman until 19 April 2018, member
until 1 September 2018)

Marikevan Lier Lels
Carol Mills

Suzanne Wood

Of the current members of the Committee, Adrian Hennah, a
UK chartered accountantand Suzanne Wood, a US chartered
accountantare considered to have significant, recentand
relevant financial experience.

The Committee asawhole is deemed to have competence
relevanttothe sectorsinwhich RELX operates.

Please see pages 66 and 67 for full profiles of Audit Committee
members.

The mainrole and responsibility of the Committee is to assist
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities regarding:

the integrity of the interim and full-year financial
statements and financial reporting processes;

risk managementand internal controls, and the
effectiveness of the internal auditors; and

the performance of the external auditors and the
effectiveness of the externalaudit process, including
monitoring the independence and objectivity of Ernst
& Young.

The Committee reportstothe Board onits activities,
identifying any mattersinrespect of which it considers
thataction orimprovementis needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are reviewed
annuallyanda copyis published on the RELX website,
www.relx.com

Committee meetings

The Committee met four times during 2018. The Audit Committee
meetings are typically attended by the RELX Chief Executive
Officer, the RELX Chief Financial Officer, the RELX Financial
Controller, the RELX Chief Legal Officer, the RELX Head of Audit
and Risk, and audit partners from the external auditors.

Financialreporting
Indischargingits responsibilitiesin respect of the 2018 interim
and full-year financial statements, the Committee has:

reviewed and discussed areas of significantjudgementin the
preparation of the financial statements, including in particular:

i. thecarryingvaluesof goodwillandintangible assets - the
significantjudgementsinrespect of asset carrying values
relate to the assumptions underlying the value in use
calculationsincluding discount rates and long-term growth
assumptions. The Committee received and discussed
reports fromthe RELX Financial Controller onthe
methodology and the basis of the assumptions used;

ii. capitalisation of internally generated intangible assets -
the capitalisation of costs related to the development of new
productsand businessinfrastructure, together with the useful
economic lives applied to the resulting assets, requires the
exercise of judgement. The Committee received reports
from the RELX Financial Controller on the amounts
capitalised and asset lives selected for major projects;

uncertain tax positions - assessing potential liabilities
across numerous jurisdictionsis complex and requires
judgementin making tax determinations. The Committee
received and discussed reports from the RELX Head of
Taxation on the potential liabilities identified and
judgements applied, including the exceptional tax credit;

iv. reviewed the recognition of certain pension scheme
liabilities which are subject tojudgement. The Committee
received and discussed reports from the RELX Financial
Controller on the methodology and the basis of the
assumptions used;

reviewed the critical accounting policies and compliance
with applicable accounting standards, including for the
adoption of IFRS 9, 15and 16, reviewed other disclosure
requirements and received regular update reports on
accounting and regulatory developments;

reviewed the disclosures made in relation to internal control,
risk management, the going concern statementand the
viability statement. The Committee received and discussed
reports fromthe RELX Head of Auditand Risk and the RELX
Treasurer onthe processes undertaken and assumptions used
in formulating these disclosures;

considered the calculation and presentation of alternative
performance measures (including the exclusion of the
exceptional tax credits) in the Annual Reportand Accounts and
results announcement; and

considered whetherthe Annual Reportand Accounts taken
asawhole are fair, balanced and understandable.

The Committee also received detailed written and verbal reports
from the externalauditors on these matters. The Committee was
satisfied with the explanations provided and conclusions reached.
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Risk managementand internal controls
With respect to their oversight of risk managementand internal
controls, the Committee has:

received and discussed regular reports summarising the
status of the Group's risk management activities, including
identification of emerging risks and actions to mitigate risks,
and the findings from internal audits and the status of actions
agreed with management. Areas of focusin 2018 included:
cyber security; data privacy (including compliance with the EU
General Data Protection Regulation); the operational, financial
and IT control environment; regulatory compliance; business
continuity and resilience; post acquisition integration; integrity
of published non-financial data; and continued compliance
with the requirements of Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley
Actrelating to the documentation and testing of internal
controls over financial reporting;

reviewed and approved the internalaudit plan for 2019 and
monitored execution of the 2018 plan, including progressin
respect of recommendations made;

reviewed the resources, terms of reference and effectiveness
ofthe RELX risk managementand internalaudit functions;

received presentations from: the RELX Chief Compliance
Officer onthe compliance programmes, including the
operation of the RELX Code of Conduct, training programmes
and whistleblowing arrangements and the RELX Chief Legal
Officer on legalissues and claims;

received updates from the RELX Treasurer on pension
arrangements and funding, treasury policies and risk
managementand compliance with treasury policies;

received presentations from the RELX Head of Taxation
ontax policies and related matters;

received regular updates from the RELX Chief Financial
Officer on developments within the finance function; and

received presentations from chief financial officers of major
RELXbusinesses; and

received areportonthe majorfinance IT systemsacross
RELX, together with an overview of the control environment.

External audit effectiveness

The Group has awell-established policy on audit effectiveness
and independence of auditors that sets outamongst other things:
the responsibilities of the Audit Committee in the selection of
auditors to be proposed for appointment or re-appointment and
foragreement on the terms of their engagement, scope and
remuneration; the auditorindependence requirements and the
policy on the provision of non-audit services; the rotation of audit
partners and staff; and the conduct of meetings between the
auditors and the Audit Committee. The policy is available on

the website, www.relx.com

The auditors are precluded from engaging in non-audit services
that would compromise theirindependence orviolate any
professional requirements or regulations affecting their
appointment as auditors. The auditors may, however, provide
non-audit services which do not conflict with theirindependence,
and where their skills and experience make them a logical
supplier, subject to approval by the Audit Committee.

The Committee will continue to review the policy on the
provision of non-audit services in the light of ongoing
regulatory developments.

The Committee has, each quarter, reviewed and agreed the
non-audit services providedin 2018, together with the associated
feeswhich are setoutin note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The non-audit services provided were in the areas

of audit-related activities, such as royalty assurance, and
compliance, due diligence and othertransaction-related services.
The non-auditfeesin 2018 were higher than previous years as
aresultof work relating to the corporate simplification and
increased transaction-related activity. The fees remain below the
70% threshold as per the most recent FRC guidance.

The external auditors have confirmed theirindependence and
compliance with the policy on auditorindependence to the
Audit Committee.

Ernst &Young LLP were first appointed auditor of RELXPLC
forthe financialyear ended 31 December 2016. The auditor
isrequired to rotate the lead audit partnersresponsible

forthe auditengagements every five years. The year ended

31 December 2018 was the firstyear for the lead engagement
partner Hywel Ball. The Audit Committee confirms that they were
in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial year ended

31 December2018.

The Committee has conducted its review of the performance of the
externalauditors and the effectiveness of the externalaudit process
fortheyearended 31 December2018. The reviewwas basedon a
survey of key stakeholders across RELX, consideration of public
reports by regulatory authorities on key Ernst & Young member
firms and the quality of the auditors’ reporting to and interaction
with the Audit Committee. Based on this review, the

Audit Committee was satisfied with the performance of the
auditors and the effectiveness of the audit process.

Audit Committee effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Audit Committee was reviewed as part
of the 2018 evaluation of the Board which confirmed that the
Committee continues to function effectively. Details of the
evaluationare setouton page 79.

Adrian Hennah
Chairman of the Audit Committee
20 February 2019
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present theirreport, together with the financial
statements of the Group and RELX PLC (the Company]), for the year
ended 31 December2018. The Companyisincorporatedasa
public limited companyandisregisteredin England and Wales
with registered number 77536. Its registered office is 1-3 Strand,
London, WC2N 5JR.

Corporate structure

Following the simplification of the Group’s corporate structure,
the Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock
Exchange and Euronext Amsterdam. Italso hasinplacean
American Depositary Share programme, under whichiits
securities are traded onthe New York Stock Exchange. The
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
together knownas 'RELX" or ‘the Group'.

Financial statement presentation

This Directors’ Reportand the financial statements of the Group
and Company should be read in conjunction with the other reports
setouton pages2to 107. Areview of the Group’s performance
during theyearis set out on pages 8to 59, the principalrisks facing
the Group are set out on pages 60to 63, and the Group statement
on corporate responsibility is set out on pages 42 to 52.

In addition to the reportedfigures, adjusted figures are presented
asadditional performance measures used by management to
assess the performance of the business. These exclude the
Group’s share of amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
acquisition-related costs, tax injointventures, disposal gains and
lossesand other non-operatingitems, related tax effects, and
movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities related to
acquiredintangible assets, and include the benefit

of taxamortisation where available on acquired goodwill and
intangible assets.

Company financial statements
Theindividual company financial statements of the Company
are presented on page 170, and were prepared under Financial
Reporting Standard 101 (FRS 101). Distributable reserves as at
31 December2018were £2,689m (2017: £1,518m), comprising
reserves less shares held intreasury. Shareholders’ funds as at
31 December2018were £19,739m (2017: £3,174m).

Strategic Report

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to presenta fair
review of the Group during the financial year. The Strategic Report
whichincludes a review of the Group’s business areas, a financial
review, the principalrisks facing the Group, any important events
affecting the Group since 31 December 2018, and the likely future
developmentsinthe Group’s business, is set out on pages 2to 63
which areincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.
The Directors’ Report, inclusive of the Strategic Report
incorporated therein, forms the management report for the
purposes of the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rule 4.1.8R.

Dividends

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 29.7p (2017: 27.7p)
perordinary share to be paid on 4 June 2019 to shareholders
appearing on the Register at the close of business on 3 May 2019.
Payment of this final dividend remains subject to the approval of

the Company’s shareholders atits 2019 Annual General Meeting
(AGM]. Together with the interim dividend of 12.4p (2017: 11.7p) per
ordinary share, paid in August 2018, the total ordinary dividends
fortheyearwillbe 42.1p (2017: 39.4p). Details of dividend cover and
dividend policy are set out on page 58.

Corporate governance

The Company has complied throughout the year with the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (the Code), which

is publicly available onthe Financial Reporting Council website
(www.frc.org.uk). Details of how the main principles of the Code
have been applied and the Directors’ statement oninternal control
are setoutinthe corporate governance review on pages 72 to 81,
which areincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.
The 2018 Corporate Governance Code, published by the Financial
Reporting Councilin July 2018, applied to the Company with effect
from 1 January 2019.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company is required to state the annual quantity of emissions

intonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent from Group operational

activities. Details of our emissions during the year ended

31 December 2018 and the actions being taken to reduce them

are setoutinthe Corporate Responsibility section of the

Strategic Reporton pages51and 52, which areincorporated

into the Directors’ Report by reference. Further details can

be foundinouronline Corporate Responsibility Report at
www.relx.com/go/CRReport.

Directors

The names of the Directorswho served on the Board during the
yearare setouton pages 66, 67, and 78, which are incorporated
into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Share capital

The Company’sissued share capital comprises a single class
of ordinary shares, all of which are listed on the London and
Amsterdam stock exchanges. Italso has securities, in the form
of American Depositary Shares, traded on the New York Stock
Exchange. Allissued shares are fully paid upand carry no
additional obligations or specialrights. Each share carries the
rightto one vote at general meetings of the Company.

Inageneralmeeting, subjecttoanyrights and restrictions
attachedtoany shares, onashow of hands every memberwho is
presentin personshallhave onevote and every proxy presentwho
has been duly appointed by one or more members entitled to vote
onthe resolution has one vote (although a proxy has one vote for
and one vote against the resolution if: (i) the proxy has been duly
appointed by more than one member entitled to vote on the
resolution; and (i) the proxy has been instructed by one or more
of those members tovote for the resolution and by one or more
other of those members to vote against it). Subject to any rights or
restrictions attached toany shares, onavote onaresolution on
apolleverymemberpresentin person or by proxy shall have

one vote for every share of which he/she is the holder.

Proxy appointments and voting instructions must be received by
theregistrars not lessthan 48 hours before a general meeting.
There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding noron
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the Articles and prevailing legislation. The Company
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is notaware of any agreements between shareholders that may
resultinrestrictions on the transfer of shares or onvoting rights
attachedto the shares. Atthe 2018 AGM, shareholders passed a
resolution authorising the Directors to issue shares for cash
onanon-pre-emptive basis up toanominalvalue of £8.1m,
representing less than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
and authorising the Directors toissue up to an additional 5% of
theissued share capital for cash onanon-pre-emptive basisin
connectionwith an acquisition or specified investment. Since the
2018 AGM, no shares have beenissued under this authority. The
shareholder authority also permitted the Directors toissue
sharesinorderto satisfy entittements under employee share
plans and details of such allotments are described below.

In addition to these authorities, at the general meeting of the
Company held in June 2018, held for shareholders to approve
certain mattersrelating tothe cross-border merger between
RELXPLC and RELXNV (the Merger), the Directors were
unconditionally authorised to allot sharesinthe Companyuptoa
nominalvalue of £136.3m only in connection with the Merger. As
announced by the Company on 10 September 2018, following the
completion of the Merger, 930,780,110 new RELXPLC shares were
issued under this authority. To the extent that they are unused,
each of the authorities toissue shares set out above will expire at
the 2019 AGM. Resolutions authorising the Directors to: (i) issue
shares for cash onanon-pre-emptive basis up to 5% of the issued
share capital; and [ii) issue up to 5% of the issued share capital for
cash onanon-pre-emptive basisin connection with an acquisition
or specified investment, subject to certain conditionsin
accordance with the Pre-Emption Group’s Statement of
Principles, will be put forward for approval by shareholders
atthe Company’s 2019 AGM.

Duringtheyear, 2,465,983 ordinary shares in the Company were
alsoissuedinorderto satisfy entitlements under employee share
plansas follows: 603,094 under a UK Sharesave option scheme at
prices between 439.20p and 1251.20p per share; 362,401 under the
former RELXNV Dutch Debenture Schemein place priorto the
mergerat prices between EUR4.781 and EUR18.47, which is now
satisfied by way of Company shares; and 1,500,488 under
executive share option schemes at prices between 466.50p and
1494.50p per share. The issued share capitalas at 31 December
2018is shownin note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Authority to purchase shares

Atthe 2018 AGM, shareholders passed a resolution authorising
the purchase of up to 112.3m ordinary sharesin the Company
(representing less than 10% of the issued ordinary shares) by
market purchase. During theyear, 26,945,234 ordinary shares
withanominalvalue of 1451/116p (representing 1.4% of the ordinary
sharesinissue on 31 December 2018) were purchased under

this and the previous authority, for a total consideration of £425m,
including expenses, and subsequently transferred to be held in
treasury. This represents the RELXPLC proportion of the £700m
deployed by the Group on share buybacks during the year. The
purpose of the share buyback is to reduce the capital of

the Company.

On 6 December 2018, the Company cancelled 45m ordinary shares
heldintreasury. Therefore,asat 31 December2018there were
42,023,020 ordinary shares held in treasury, representing 2.1% of
theissued ordinary shares. Afurther 5,960,856 ordinary shares
were purchased between 2 January 2019 and the date of this

report. The authority to make market purchases will expire at the
2019 AGM, at which a resolution to further extend the authority will
be submitted to shareholders.

Substantial shareinterests

Asat31 December 2018, the Company had been notified by the
following shareholders that they held aninterest of 3% or more
invoting rights of its issued share capital pursuant to Rule 5 of the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR):

Notifications received asat31 December2018 % of voting rights

Black Rock Inc 10.89%
Invesco Limited 5.03%
Legaland General Group plc 3.40%

The percentage interests stated above are as disclosed at the
date onwhich the interests were notified to the Company, and
are based onvoting rights prior to the corporate simplification.
Between 31 December 2018 and 20 February 2019, the Company
did not receive any notificationsunder DTR 5.

Employee Benefit Trust

The trustee of the Employee Benefit Trust held aninterestin
7,130,366 ordinary shares in the Company (representing 0.3% of
theissued ordinary shares) as at 31 December 2018. The trustee
may vote or abstain from voting any shares it holds in any way it
seesfit.

Significantagreements - change of control
Thereareanumberof borrowing agreementsincluding credit
facilities that, in the event of a change of control of RELXPLC
and, in some cases, a consequential credit rating downgrade to
sub-investment grade may, at the option of the lenders, require
repayment and/or cancellation as appropriate. There are no
arrangements between the Companyandits Directors or
employees providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs specifically because of a takeover,
merger or amalgamation with the exception of provisions in the
Company’s share planswhich could resultin options or awards
vesting or becoming exercisable on a change of control.

Articles

The Company’s Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’]), which were
notamended during the year, may only be amended by a special
resolution of shareholders passed ata general meeting of the
Company. Atthe general meeting of shareholders held in
connectionwith the corporate simplificationon 27 June 2018,
shareholders approved the increase in the maximum aggregate
amount of ordinary remuneration payable to Directors who do not
hold executive office for their services, as set outin Article 142 of
the Articles, from £500,000 to £2,000,000.

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The appointment, re-appointmentand replacement of Directors
is governed by the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and related
legislation. Shareholders maintain their right to appointand
re-appoint Directors by way of an ordinary resolutionin
accordance with the Articles. The Directors may appoint
additional or replacement Directors, who may only serve until the
following AGM of the Company, at which time they must retire and,
ifappropriate, seek election by the Company’s shareholders.
ADirector may be removed from office by the Company as
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provided for by applicable law, in certain circumstances set outin
the Articles, and ata general meeting of the Company by the
passing of an ordinary resolution.

The Articles provide for a Board of Directors consisting of not
fewer than two, but not more than 20 Directors, who manage the
business and affairs of the Company.

Powers of Directors

Subjectto the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the Articles
and anydirections given by special resolutions, the business of the
Company shall be managed by the Board which may exercise all
the powers of the Company.

Directors’ indemnity

Inaccordance withits Articles, the Company has granted
Directorsanindemnity, to the extent permitted by law, in respect
of liabilities incurred as a result of their office. This indemnity was
in place for Directors that served atany time during the 2018
financialyear, and also for each serving Director as at the date

of approval of this report. The Company also purchased and
maintained throughout the year directors”and officers’ liability
insuranceinrespect of itselfand its Directors.

Related party transactions

Internal controls arein place to ensure thatanyrelated party
transactionsinvolving Directors or their connected persons are
carriedoutonanarm’s-length basisand are properly recorded
anddisclosed where appropriate.

Conflicts of interest

Under the Companies Act 2006, the Directors have a duty to
avoid situations in which they have, or could have, adirector
indirectinterest that conflicts with the interests of the Company.
The Board has established formal procedures foridentifying,
assessing and reviewing any situationswhere a Director hasan
interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests
of the Company.

The Nominations Committee considers any such conflict or
potential conflictand makes a recommendation to the Board
onwhetherto authoriseit, as permitted under the Company’s
Articles. Inreachingits decision, the Boardis required toact
inaway it considers would be most likely to promote the
success of the Company and may impose limits or conditions
when giving its authorisation, if it thinks this is appropriate.
Actual or potential conflicts of interest are reviewed annually
by the Nominations Committee.

No contract existed during the yearinrelation tothe Company’s
businessinwhich any Director was materially interested.

FinancialInstruments

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies,
including hedging activities and exposure torisks, are described
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 150
to 155.

Political donations

The Group does not make donations to European Union (EU)
political organisations orincur EU political expenditure. In the

US, Group companies donated £58,763 (2017: £62,791) to political
organisations. In line with US law, these donations were not made
atfederallevel, butonly to candidates and political parties at state
and local levels.

Employee relations

The Group is committed to employee involvement and
participation. Where appropriate, majorannouncements are
communicated to employees through internal briefings.
Information on performance, development, organisational
changes and other matters of interestis communicated through
briefings and electronic bulletins.

The Companyisan equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate onthe grounds of race, gender or other characteristics
inits recruitment or employment policies. The Group seeks
opinions from employees through a triennial survey. The last
employee surveywas carried outin 2018. Certain employees
throughout the Group are eligible to participate in the Group’s
shareincentive plans.

Disabled persons

RELXhas a positive approach to diversity and inclusion. Details of
the Group's Diversity and Inclusion policy are set out on page 47,
whichisincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference. The
Groupis committed to the fulland fair treatment of people with
disabilities inrelation tojob applications, training, promotion and
career development. Where existing employees become disabled,
our policyis to provide continuing employment, supportand
trainingwherever practicable.

Disclosuresrequired under UK Listing Rule 9.8.4
The information required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 is setouton the
pages below:

Information required Page
(1) Interest capitalised by the Group n/a
(2) Publication of unaudited financial information n/a
(4) Long-termincentive schemes n/a
(5) Waiver of emoluments by a director n/a
(6) Waiver of future emoluments by a director n/a
(7) Nonpro-rataallotments for cash (issuer) n/a

(8) Non pro-rataallotments for cash (major subsidiaries) n/a

(9) Parentparticipationina placing by a listed subsidiary n/a

(10) Contracts of significance n/a
(11) Provision of services by a controlling shareholder n/a
(12) Shareholder waiver of dividends 144
(13) Shareholder waiver of future dividends 144

(14) Agreements with controlling shareholders n/a
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Financial statements and accounting records

The Directorsareresponsible for preparing the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financialyear. Under that law the Directors
arerequired to prepare the consolidated financial statementsin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. The
Directors have elected to prepare the individual company financial
statementsinaccordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law the
Directors must notapprove the accounts unless they are satisfied
thatthey give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the individual company financial statements, the
Directorsare required to: select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently; make judgements and accounting
estimates thatare reasonable and prudent; state whether
Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
has been followed, subject to any material departures being
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and prepare
the financial statements onagoing concernbasis unlessitis
inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
inbusiness.

In preparing the Group financial statements, IAS1 requires that
Directors: properly selectand apply accounting policies; present
information, including accounting policies, ina manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements of IFRS are insufficient to enable users
tounderstand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and make an assessment of the Company’s ability
to continue asagoing concern.

The Directors areresponsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
Theyarealsoresponsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

Directors’ responsibility statement
Each of the Directors, whose names and roles can be found on
pages 66 to 67, confirms that, to the best of their knowledge:

the consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards asissued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted
by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group;

the individual company financial statements, preparedin
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101), give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company; and

the Directors’ Reportincludes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
togetherwith a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties thatit faces.

Having takenintoaccountall the matters considered by the Board
and broughtto the attention of the Board during the year, the
Directors are satisfied that the Annual Reportand Financial
Statements, taken asawhole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholderstoassess the Company’s position and performance,
business modeland strategy.

Neither the Company nor the Directors accept any liability toany
personinrelation tothe Annual Report except to the extent that
such liability could arise under English law. Accordingly, any
liability to a personwho has demonstrated reliance on any untrue
or misleading statement or omission shall be determined in
accordance with Section 90A of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Inaccordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each
Directorin office at the date the Directors’ Reportis approved,
confirms that:

sofarasthe Directorisaware, thereis norelevantaudit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
auditinformation and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of thatinformation.

Going concern

The Directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of
adopting the going concern basis of accounting is set out on page
80, whichisincorporatedinto this Directors’ Report by reference.

Viability statement

The Directors’ statement regarding the long-term viability of
the Groupis setouton page 82, whichisincorporated into this
Directors’ Report by reference.

Auditors

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
auditors of the Company and to authorise the Audit Committee,
on behalf of the Board, to determine their remuneration will be
submitted to shareholders at the 2019 AGM.

Annual General Meeting
The 2019 Annual General Meeting will be held at 10.00am on
25April 2019 at Amba Hotel, Strand, London, WC2N 5HX.

By order of the Board

HenryUdow
Company Secretary
20 February 2019

Registered Office
1-3Strand
London
WC2N5JR
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of RELXPLC

Inour opinion:

RELX PLC and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (‘RELX")'s group financial statements and parent company financial
statements (the “financial statements”] give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
31 December2018and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of RELX PLC which comprise:

Group Parentcompany

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year Related notes 1to 3 to the financial statementsincluding
thenended asummary of significant accounting policies

Related notes 1to 30to the financial statements, includinga
summary of significantaccounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been
appliedinthe preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report below. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statementsin the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We have nothing to reportin respect of the following information in the annual report, in relation to which the ISAs(UK] require us to
report toyouwhether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

thedisclosuresintheannualreportsetouton pages 60 to 63 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

the directors’ confirmation set out on page 60 in the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the entity, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

the directors’ statement set out on page 80in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the entity’s ability to
continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements;

whether the directors’ statementin relation to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule
9.8.6R(3])is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

the directors’ explanation set out on page 82 inthe annual reportas to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity, over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of
theirassessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications orassumptions.
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Key audit matters

Uncertain tax positions

Internally developedintangible assets
Aspects of revenue recognition
Carryingvalue of goodwilland acquired intangible assets

Finance systems

Accounting for the corporate simplification
Acquisition accounting for significant new business combinations

Audit scope

We performed an audit of the complete financial information of six components and audit

procedures on specific balances for a further seven components. We also instructed two locations
to perform specified procedures.
The components where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for 81%
of absolute profit before tax, 80% of revenue and 75% of total assets.

Materiality

Overall Group materiality of £20m which represents 5% of profit before tax.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These mattersincluded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resourcesin the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statementsasawhole,andin our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Uncertain tax positions

Refer to the Audit Committee Report [page 106] and Note
9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements (page 138)

The groupis subject to taxin numerous jurisdictions.
Its complex organisation and operational structure
givesrise to potential tax exposures that require
management to exercise significantjudgementin
making determinations as to the amount of tax
thatis payable.

The group reports cross-bordertransactions
undertaken between subsidiaries onanarm’s-length
basisintaxreturnsinaccordance with Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)
guidelines. However, transfer pricing relies on the
exercise of judgementanditis frequently possible
fortheretobearange of legitimate and reasonable
views.

The groupis subjectto taxauthority audits as
amatter of routineand hasanumber of open
taxenquiries.

Asaresult, ithasrecognised anumber of provisions
againstuncertain tax positions, the valuation of which
requires significant judgement.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the
balance and the subjectivity in the quantification of
the provision and the judgementaround the trigger
forrecognitionorrelease. Thereisarisk that the tax
provisions may be incorrectly quantified, impacting
the provisionand the effective tax rate.

Our procedures onthe uncertain tax positions were
performed centrally by the group team supported by
overseas teamsincluding specialists, and included
the following:

We assessed the processes and tested controls over the
tax provisioning process.

We metwith tax management to understand the group
cross-border transactions, status of all significant
provisions, and any changes to management’s
judgementsin theyear.

We read correspondence with tax authorities and
externaladvisors toinform ourassessment of recorded
estimates and evaluate the completeness of the
provisions recorded.

We evaluated management’s methodology torecord or
release provisions following tax audits, settlements and
the expiry of timeframes.

We tested the calculation of the year end provisions by
inspecting underlying documentation and supporting
schedules.

We reported our
conclusionstothe
Audit Committee that
we challenged the
robustness of the

key management
judgements. We
confirmed that we
were satisfied that
management’s
judgementsin
relation to the extent
of provisions for
uncertain tax positions
are appropriate. We
noted further that there
continues to be a high
degree of uncertainty
about the eventual
outcome of many of
these provisions.
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Internally developed intangible assets

Refer to the Audit Committee Report [page 106] and Note
150f the Consolidated Financial Statements [page 144)

The group capitalised internally developed intangible
assets of £304 million inthe currentyear (2017: £304
million) and has ayearend netbook value of £1,217
million (2017: 1,136 million). The capitalisation of
costsrelated tothe development of new products and
businessinfrastructure, together with the useful
economic lives applied to the resulting assets,
requiresthe exercise of judgement.

We focused on thisarea asthe group has invested
significantly in several projects across the business.
Itisinherently judgemental with respect to technical
feasibility, intention and ability to complete the
intangible asset, ability to use or sell the asset, ability
to generate future economic benefits and ability to
measure the costs reliably. This resultsinarisk that
expenditures may be inappropriately capitalised,
amortised orvalued.

We performed fulland specific scope audit procedures
overinternally developedintangible assetsin 4 locations,
which covered 75% of the account balance, including the
following:

We assessed the processes and tested controls for the
capitalisation of internally generated intangible assets.

We assessed the accounting policy and methodology for
capitalisation of expenditures.

We evaluated the accuracy and valuation of amounts
capitalised to assess that costs are directly attributable
and necessaryto create, produce, and prepare the asset
tobe capable of operating in the mannerintended by
management.

Aspects of revenue recognition

Referto Note 2 ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements
[page 128)

The group earns revenue from avariety of sources
among the differentbusinessareas, including annual
subscriptions, transactional usage and exhibition
fees. The nature of the risk associated with the
accuraterecording of revenue varies.

We recognise that revenue is a key metric upon which
thegroupisjudged, thatthe group has annualinternal
targets, and thatthe group has incentive schemes
thatare partiallyimpacted by revenue growth.

We have determined thatthereisariskin relation to
each ofthe business areasrelated to the opportunity
tocommit fraudinthe respective revenue streams
through manualadjustments or override of controls
by management.

Basedonthe
procedures performed,
we did notidentify any
evidence of material
misstatementinthe
capitalisation of
internally developed
intangible assets.

We performed fulland specific scope audit procedures
overrevenuein 12 locations, which covered 80% of
revenue. We performed procedures to address the
specificriskin each businessarea, including the following:

We assessed the processes and tested controls over
each significant revenue stream.

We evaluated the appropriateness of journal entries
impacting revenue, as well as other adjustments made
inthe preparation of the financial statements. We also
evaluated management’s controls over such
adjustments.

Weinspected asample of contracts to check that
revenue recognition wasinaccordance with the
contracttermsandthe group’s revenue recognition
policies.

We tested asample of transactions around period end to
test that revenue was recorded in the correct period.

Forrevenue streams that have judgemental elements,
we evaluated management’s assumptions.

Basedonthe
procedures performed,
we did notidentify
evidence of material
misstatementin the
revenuerecognisedin
theyear.
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Carryingvalue of goodwilland acquired
intangible assets

Refer to the Audit Committee Report [page 106) and Note
14 of the Consolidated Financial Statements (page 144]

We focused on this area because of the size of the
goodwill balance of £6,899 million (2017: £5,965
million); the size of the acquired intangible assets net
book amount of £2,317 million (2017: £2,058 million);
and the factthat management’'s assessment of the
valuein use of the group’s Cash Generating Units
('CGU’)and any possible consequential impairment
involves judgementabout the future results of the
relevant CGUs and the discount rates applied to cash
flow forecasts.

Proceduresonthe carrying value of goodwilland acquired
intangible assets were performed centrally by the group
team supported by overseas teamsincluding specialists,
andincluded the following:

We assessed the processes and tested controls over the
goodwilland acquired intangible asset process.

We assessed the key information and assumptions used
indetermining the valuation including the weighted
average cost of capital, cash flow forecasts and the
implicit growth, utilising our specialist supportas
necessary. We also conducted a sensitivity analysis to
understand by how much these projections would need
tochange by forthere tobe animpairment.

We assessed management’s annual goodwilland
indefinite lived acquired intangible assetimpairment
review as well as management’s consideration as to
whetherindicators of impairment existed for finite lived
acquiredintangible assets. Where indicators were
present foracquired intangible assets, we focused on
the keyjudgementsin the impairmentreview
calculations, for example, the expected cash flows and
future benefits as compared to the costs where
applicable.

Finance systems

The group has many IT systems that are vital

tothe ongoing operations and to the integrity of the
financialreporting process. Owing to the global
nature of the group and its operations, the
applications, associated infrastructureand IT
processes that support significant business and
financial processes are spread acrossanumber of
locations. These are delivered by a mix of in-house
teamsand third party support providers some of
whom reside in different countries from the physical
location of the IT infrastructure or the location of the
RELXbusiness users. Understanding the IT
environmentincludinginterfaces betweenthemwas
anareaofauditfocustoassessiftransactions were
being processed accurately.

We reported our
conclusions to the Audit
Committee that the
assumptions relating to
the impairment models
fellwithinacceptable
ranges.

Basedonthe
procedures performed,
we agree with
management’s
conclusionthatno
materialimpairment of
goodwill orintangible
assetswasrequiredin
theyear.

We utilised IT specialists to supportour evaluation of the
designand operation of IT controls to address the group’s
controlobjectives and financial reporting risks, including
the following:

We made enquiries of managementtounderstand the IT
environment and walked through the financial
processes end-to-endinordertounderstand where IT
systems were integral to the group accounting
processes, asapplicable.

We performed data analytic proceduresin certain
locations and business areas to understand the flow of
transactions and perform specific test procedures.

We tested the IT general controls environment for the
key applications.

Where appropriate, we received reports from the
service auditors of the outsourced systems and
evaluated the adequacy of the work performed and
followed up on mattersarising, performing further
proceduresas necessary.

Where required, we tested compensating controls or
performed alternative procedures to complement the
controls based auditapproach.

Accounting for the corporate simplification

Referto Note 1 ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements
[page 126]

On8September 2018, the structure of group was
further simplified froma dual parent structuretoa
single parent structure by way of amerger of RELX
PLCand RELXNV. Following the completion of the
Simplification, RELXPLC is the sole parent company
of the group. Itowns 100% of the sharesin RELX Group
plcwhich, inturn, holds the operating businesses,
subsidiaries and financing activities of the group.

We focused on this areaasitwasasignificantand
unusualtransaction.

Based onthe
procedures performed,
we have not identified
any misstatementsin
the financial statements
due to any limitations of
the IT environment. Our
understanding and
testing of IT systems and
controls supported our
auditapproach.

Procedures onthe accounting for the corporate
simplification were performed centrally by the group team
supported by ourteamin the Netherlands and specialists,
asnecessary.

We assessed the accounting for the transaction including
whetherthe transaction was considered a merger or
acquisition, theimpact on earnings per share, share based
payments and share capital.

We also evaluated the disclosure in the financial

statementsincluding accounting for the restructure in the
parent company financial statements.

Basedonthe
procedures performed,
we reported to the Audit
Committee that
management’s
judgementsin relation
tothe accounting forthe
corporate simplification
ofthegroupare
appropriate, asare the
related disclosures.
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Acquisition accounting for significant new We performed audit procedures on 7 of the acquisitions We did not identify
business combinations made during the year, including ThreatMetrix. For each of evidence of material
Referto Note 12 of the Consolidated Financial the acquisitions tested: misstatementinthe
Statements (page 143] We assessed the processes and tested controlsin the allocation of the
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the business combination process where acquisitions were %Urcthﬁsslprlcet(;
group made several acquisitions totalling £955 significant. laceTJilrlead aizsiisaebislities
million as detailed in Note 12. The most significant We assessed with the assistance of ourinternal asgumedinthese
acquisition was ThreatMetrix for total consideration valuation specialists as necessary, the methodology acquisitions recognised
of £585 million. an_d keyassu_mptionsusedindeterminingthe purchase inthe year.

The company assessed, with the assistance of third price allocation made by management. Key )

partyvaluation specialists where required, the assumptions evaluated were d|§count rates, termmgl

completeness and fair value of identifiable assets growthrates, cash flow projections, netassets acquired

acquired and liabilities assumed in these and usefullives assigned.

acquisitions. We read documents such as saleand purchase

We focused on this area due to the materiality of the agreements, board papers and due diligence reports to

acquisitions and because the assessment of fairvalue assess the consistency and completeness of the fair

of identifiable assetsis inherently judgemental. value adjustments recorded.

We evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures provided by
thegroupin Note 12inrelationtoits acquisitions.

Inthe currentyear, our key audit matters introduced the Accounting for the corporate simplification of the group as itis a significant one-time
transaction. Additionally, our key audit matters also introduced Acquisition accounting for significant new business combinations due to the total
consideration expendedin theyear.

Tailoring the scope

Ourassessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for
each entity within the group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We take into
accountsize, risk profile, the organisation of the group and effectiveness of group-wide controls, changes in the business environment
and other factors such as recent Internal audit results when assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity.

The group has centralised processes for key judgements and determination of accounting policies. Certain areas of audit focus, namely
internally developedintangible assets, revenue recognition, and IT system management are decentralised processes delineated by
business area. We have tailored our audit response accordingly and procedures for the areas of focus were performed or directed by the
group audit team.

Inassessing the risk of material misstatement to the group financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage
of significantaccounts in the financial statements, we selected thirteen components covering entities within United Kingdom, the
Netherlands, the United States, France, Switzerland, and Japan, which represent the principal business units within the group.

Of the thirteen components selected, we performed an audit of the complete financialinformation of six components (“full scope
components”] which were selected based on their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining seven components (“specific scope
components”), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had the potential for the
greatestimpact on the significantaccountsin the financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.
We alsoinstructed two locations to perform specified procedures over certain aspects of acquisition accounting for significant new
business combinations, as described in the Risk section above.

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures accounted for 81% (2017: 79%) of the group’s profit before tax on an
absolute basis', 80% (2017: 78%] of the group’s Revenue and 75% (2017: 78%) of the group’s Total assets. For the current year, the full
scope components contributed 57% (2017: 57%) of the group’s profit before tax on an absolute basis, 70% (2017: 70%) of the group’s
Revenue and 67% (2017: 70%) of the group’s Total assets. The specific scope components contributed 23% (2017: 22%) of the group’s
profit before tax on an absolute basis, 10% (2017: 8%) of the group’s Revenue and 8% (2017: 8%) of the group’s Total assets. The audit
scope of these components may not have included testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to the
coverage of significant tested for the group.

Of the remaining components that together represent 19% of the group’s profit before tax on an absolute basis, none are individually
greaterthan 2% of the group’s profit before tax on an absolute basis. For these components, we performed other procedures, including
analyticalreview, review of internalaudit reports, and testing of consolidation journals, intercompany eliminations and foreign currency
translationrecalculations at the group level to respond to any potential risks of material misstatement to the group financial statements.

(1) Coverage of profit before tax measured on an absolute basis for each component (components with a loss would be added to both the numerator and denominator).
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The charts belowillustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed by our audit teams.

17% 2le 25%

10%
0,
57% 8%
23%
70%

67%

Full scope Specific scope Other procedures

Changes fromthe prioryear

Changesfromthe prioryearinclude increasing scope of one component from other procedures scope to specific scope as part of risk
focused approach. We have also added one component to specific scope and instructed two locations to perform specified procedures
asaresultof acquisitions. The corporate structure has also been simplified in the year to a single parent company structure, with RELX
PLC as the surviving company.

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overallapproach to the group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by component auditors from other EY global network firms operating
under ourinstruction. Of the six full scope components, audit procedures were performed on three of these directly by the primary audit
team. For the seven specific scope components and two specified procedure locations, where the work was performed by component
auditors, we determined the appropriate level of involvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit evidence had been obtained
asabasis forour opinion on the group asawhole.

The group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory
Auditor, or another group audit partner, meet with the all full scope locations and specific scope locations on a rotational basis. During
the currentyear’s audit cycle, visits were undertaken by the primary audit team to component teams in the United Kingdom, the
Netherlands, the United States, France, Switzerland, and Japan. These visits involved meeting local management and discussing the
auditapproach and anyissues arising with the component audit team. The group audit team also participated in key discussions, via
conference calls with all fulland specific scope locations. The primary team interacted regularly with the component teams where
appropriate during various stages of the audit, reviewed key working papers and were responsible for the scope and direction of the
audit process. This, together with the additional procedures performed at group level, gave us appropriate evidence for our opinion on
the group financial statements.

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit
andin forming our audit opinion.

Materiality
The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the group to be £90 million (2017: £86.7 million), which is 5% (2017: 5%) of profit before tax. We believe that
profitbefore tax provides us with the best assessment of the requirements of the users of the financial statements.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £90 million (2017: £63.4 million), which is 0.5% (2017: 2%) of equity. Materiality
hasincreased due to the changesin equity following the corporate simplification.

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individualaccount or balance level. It is setat an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

Onthe basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the group’s overall control environment, our judgement was that
performance materiality was 75% (2017: 75%) of our planning materiality, namely £67.5 million (2017: £65.0m). We have set performance
materiality at this percentage due to our assessment of the control environment and the historic lack of significant audit findings.

Auditwork at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accountsis
undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each componentis based on
the relative scale and risk of the component to the group as awhole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that component.
Inthe currentyear, the range of performance materiality allocated to components was £19.4 million to £48.4 million (2017: £19.5 million
to £48.7 million).
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Reportingthreshold
Anamount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £4.5 million
(2017: £4.35 million), which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of
otherrelevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

The otherinformation comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2to 111, other than the financial
statementsand ourauditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
inthisreport, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with ouraudit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whetherthe otherinformation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatementin the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
arerequired toreportthat fact.

We have nothing to reportinthisregard.

In this context, we also have nothing to reportinregard to our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other
information and to reportas uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we conclude that those items meet
the following conditions:

Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 80 - the statement given by the directors that they consider the annual report and
financial statements takenasawhole s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
toassessthe group’s performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit;
or

Audit committee reporting setouton page 106 - the section describing the work of the audit committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the audit committee; or

Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 72 - the parts of the directors’
statementrequired under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing
provisions specified for review by the auditorin accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inouropinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Inouropinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
the information givenin the strategicreportand the directors’ report for the financialyear for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the strategic reportand the directors’ report have been preparedin accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters onwhichwe are required to report by exception
Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to reportin respect of the following mattersin relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report toyou if,
inouropinion:
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not beenreceived
from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are notin agreement with
theaccountingrecordsandreturns;or
certaindisclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 108, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determineis necessaryto enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parent company’s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors eitherintend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditor’s report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatementwhen it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
orinthe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Explanation as towhat extent the audit was considered capable of detectingirregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit, inrespect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through
designingand implementing appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance

of the entityand management.

Ourapproachwas as follows:
We obtained an understanding of the legaland regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that the most
significant are those that relate to the reporting framework (IFRS, FRS 101, the Companies Act 2006 and UK Corporate Governance
Code) and the relevant tax compliance regulationsin the jurisdictions in which the group operates.
We understood how RELXPLC is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of management, internal audit, those
responsible for legaland compliance procedures and the company secretary. We corroborated our enquiries through our review of
board minutes and papers provided to the Audit Committee.
We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by
meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where it considered there was susceptibility to fraud.
We also considered performance targets and their propensity to influence on efforts made by management to manage earnings. We
considered the programmes and controls that the group has established to address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter
and detect fraud; and how senior management monitors those programmes and controls. Where the risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These proceduresincluded testing manualjournals and
were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error.
Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our
proceduresinvolved: journal entry testing, with afocus on manual consolidation journals and journalsindicating large or unusual
transactions based on ourunderstanding of the business; enquiries of legal counsel, Group management, internal audit, country
management atall full and specific scope management; and focused testing. In addition, we completed procedures to conclude on
the compliance of the disclosuresinthe annual reportand accounts with allapplicable requirements.
Anyinstances of non-compliance with laws and regulations were communicated by/to components and considered in our audit
approach, ifapplicable.

Afurtherdescription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matterswe arerequired toaddress
We were appointed by the company on 21 April 2016 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December and subsequent
financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagementincluding previous renewals and reappointments is three years, covering the years
ending 2016 to 2018.
The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent company in conducting the audit.
The audit opinionis consistent with the additional report to the audit committee.

Thisreportis made solely to the company’s members, as abody, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
auditwork has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state totheminan
auditor’'sreportand for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept orassume responsibility to anyone
otherthan the companyand the company’s members as a body, for ourauditwork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Hywel Ball (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

20 February 2019

Notes:

(1) The maintenance and integrity of the RELX PLC web site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does notinvolve consideration
ofthese mattersand, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility forany changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the web site.

(2) Legislationinthe United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Consolidated income statement
Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Note £m £m £m
Revenue 2 7,492 7,341 6,889
GOS0 SaleS Lo2,668) (2,628) (2,488)
Gross profit 4,848 4,713 4,401
Selling and distribution costs (1,191) (1,163) (1,109)
Administration and other expenses (1,725) (1,682) (1,621)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, R T -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3 agehigos 1708
Financeincome 7 6 6 10
Financecosts 7 2me0s) (229
Netfinancecosts B ) S (L) NP )
Disposals and other non-operatingitems R T ) L L- O 1)}
Profit before tax 1,720 1,721 1,459
Current tax (297) (439) (374)
Deferred tax 5 374 73

L)

les)

)

Netprofitfortheyear 1,428 1656 1,158
Attributable to:
RELXPLC shareholders 1,422 1,648 1,150
Non-controllinginterests o b 88
Net profit for theyear 1,428 1,656 1,158
Earnings per share
Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016
Basicearnings per share
RELXPLC 10 71.9p 81.6p 55.8p
Diluted earnings per share
RELXPLC 10 71.4p 81.0p 55.3p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Note £m £m £m
Net profit for theyear 1,428 1,656 1,158
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 6 (91) 233 (262)
Taxonitemsthatwill notbe reclassified toprofitorloss LA LT 1) B
Totalitems that will not be reclassified to profitor loss (76) 174 (217)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences ontranslation of foreign operations 207 (507) 667
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 18 (59) 137 (165)
Transferto net profitfrom cash flow hedge reserve 18 17 25 46
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, LA AN ) I o
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Lo ATh L 878) 56T
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e 98200 350
1,526 1,455 1,508
Attributable to:
RELXPLC shareholders 1,520 1,447 1,500
NN COMt O lin g O tS o eee - 6 8 8.

Total comprehensiveincome for the year ) 1,526 1455 1508
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Note £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 11 2,555 2,526 2,311
Interest paid (including lease interest) (179) (169) (178)
Interest received 24 6 10
Taxpaid(netl Lo ws) (sh9) (402)
Net cash from operatingactivities a985 i9l4 1741
Cash flows frominvesting activities
Acquisitions 11 (935) (131) (361)
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (56) (51) (51)
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (306) (303) (282)
Purchase of investments (13) (10) (6)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand equipment 4 1 1
Gross proceeds from business disposals 34 84 18
Payments on business disposals (29) (43) (23)
Dividends received fromjointventures 3038k
Netcashusedininvestingactivities Cr27i ) 60
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders 13 (796) (762) (683)
Distributions to non-controlling interests (8) (10) (9)
Increase/(decrease) in short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper " 147 (148) 271
Issuance of term debt " 958 873 603
Repayment of term debt 11 (211) (712) (474)
Repayment of leases 11 (95) (89) (82)
Receiptsinrespectof subleases " 14 " 8
Repurchase of ordinary shares 25 (700) (700) (700)
Purchase of shares by Employee Benefit Trust 25 (43) (39) (29)
Proceedsonissueofordinaryshares LA %223
Netcashusedinfinancingactivites (713) s (1,072)
Increase/(decrease) in cashand cash equivalents 1 1 (45) 9
Movementin cash and cash equivalents
Atstartofyear MM 162 122
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 (45) 9
Exchangetranslationdifferences S S ) N1
Atend of year 114 111 162
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Note £m £m £m
Non-currentassets
Goodwill 14 6,899 5,965 6,392
Intangible assets 15 3,534 3,194 3,604
Investmentsinjointventures 16 104 102 102
Otherinvestments 16 151 141 137
Property, plantand equipment 17 198 194 223
Right of use assets 23 263 287 326
Deferredtaxassets 9 455 431 469
Net pension assets 6 6 22 -
Derivative financialinstruments . .37 . 8 49
444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444 Me47 10422 11302
Currentassets
Inventories and pre-publication costs 19 212 197 209
Trade and otherreceivables 20 2,015 1,873 2,015
Derivative financialinstruments 18 10 29 20
Cashandcash equivalents e Wo..ma A e2,
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L2351 2210 2406
Assetsheldforsale e M T B
Totalassets 13,999 12,632 13,714
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 3,432 3,298 3,479
Derivative financialinstruments 18 32 32 85
Borrowings 22 1,392 762 1,169
Taxation 450 560 612
Provisions 24 15 12 17

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 5321 466l 5362

Non-current liabilities

Derivative financialinstruments 18 37 25 110
Borrowings 22 4,973 4,491 4,087
Deferred tax liabilities 9 830 738 1,137
Net pension obligations 6 439 350 636
POy S OIS e 2 .36 08T
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L8315 5655 6039
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, D
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L.1,640 10,319 11,406
Netassets 2,359 2,313 2,308
Capitalandreserves
Share capital 25 290 224 226
Share premium 25 1,415 3,104 3,003
Shares heldin treasury 25 (734) (1,631) (1,471)
Translationreserve 374 170 727
T 26 984 425 [215]
Shareholders’ equity 2,329 2,292 2,270
Non-controllinginterests 30 o138
Total equity 2,359 2,313 2,308

The consolidated balance sheet as presented as at 31 December 2016 is equivalent to the balance sheetas at 1 January 2017 and as such
fulfils the requirements of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to the retrospective application of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and
IFRS 16.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 20 February 2019.
Theywere signed onits behalf by:

A JHabgood N L Luff
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Non-
Share Share Sharesheld Translation Other Shareholders’ controlling Total
capital premium intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2016 224 2,748 (1,393) 224 341 2,144 34 2,178
Impact of adoption of new
standards - - - - (36) (36) - (36)
Totalcomprehensive income
fortheyear - - - 667 833 1,500 8 1,508
Dividends paid 13 - - - - (683) (683) (9) (692)
Issue of ordinary shares,
net of expenses - 23 - - - 23 - 23
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (722) - - (722) - (722)
Cancellation of shares (6) - 713 - (707) - - -
Increasein share based
remuneration reserve
(net of tax] - - - - L4 L4 - L4
Settlement of share awards - - 39 - (39) - - -
Exchange differences on
translation of capital
..andreserves . 8 L2232 s ed) 82 T TR
Balance at 1 January 2017
(restated) 226 3,003 (1,471) 727 (215) 2,270 38 2,308
Total comprehensiveincome
fortheyear - - - (507) 1,954 1,447 8 1,455
Dividends paid 13 - - - - (762) (762) (10) (772)
Issue of ordinary shares,
net of expenses - 32 - - - 32 - 32
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (737) - - (737) - (737)
Cancellation of shares 25 (4) - 570 - (566) - - -
Increasein share based
remuneration reserve
(net of tax) - - - - 42 42 - 42
Settlement of share awards - - 37 - (37) - -
Acquisitions - - - - - - 1 1
Disposal of business - - - - - - (15) (15)
Exchange differenceson
translation of capital
Balance at 1 January 2018 224 3,104 (1,631) 170 425 2,292 21 2,313
Total comprehensive income
fortheyear - - - 207 1,313 1,520 6 1,526
Dividends paid 13 - - - - (796) (796) (8) (804)
Issue of ordinary shares,
net of expenses 25 134 14 - - (227) 21 - 21
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (743) - - (743) - (743)
Cancellation of shares 25 (68) (1,795) 1,601 - 262 - - -
Increaseinshare based
remunerationreserve
(net of tax] - - - - 35 35 - 35
Settlement of share awards - - 35 - (35) - - -
Acquisitions - - - - - - 1 11
Exchange differences on
translation of capital
Balance at 31 December 2018 290 1,615 (734) 374 984 2,329 30 2,359
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Basis of preparation
Theshares of RELXPLC are traded on the London, Amsterdam and New York stock exchanges. RELXPLC and its subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are together known as ‘RELX".

Up untilthe corporate simplification, consolidated accounts were prepared on the basis thatall shareholders were regarded as having
interestsin asingle economic entity, and as such the dual parent Group formed a single reporting entity for the presentation of consolidated
financial statements. The corporate simplification as described on page 72 therefore has had noimpact on the basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, subsidiaries are accounted for under the acquisition method and investments in
associates andjointventures are accounted for under the equity method. Allintra-group transactions and balances are eliminated.

Onacquisition of a subsidiary, or interestin an associate or joint venture, fair values, reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition, are
attributed to the netassets, including identifiable intangible assets acquired. Adjustments are made to bring accounting policies into line
with those of the Group. The results of subsidiaries sold or acquired are included in the consolidated financial statements up to or from
the date that control passes from or to the Group.

Non-controlling interestsin the net assets of the Group are identified separately from shareholders’ equity. Non-controlling interests
consist of theamount of those interests at the date of the original acquisition and the non-controlling share of changes in equity since the
date of acquisition.

The Directors of RELXPLC, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that adequate resources exist for the Group to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, itis appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Accounting policies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union and asissued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The accounting policies under
IFRS areincludedinthe relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies below are applied throughout
the financial statements and are unchanged from those applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016, with the exception of policies relating to the adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, IFRS 15 - Revenue
from Contracts with Customersand IFRS 16 - Leases.

Restatement
The consolidated financial statements have been restated for the retrospective adoption of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16. Each note
identifies where comparatives have been restated.

Foreign exchange translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling.

Transactionsinforeign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. At each statement of financial position date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Exchange differences arising are recorded in theincome
statement other thanwhere hedge accounting applies, as set out on pages 150 to 155.

Assetsand liabilities of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Income
and expense items and cash flows of foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Significant individual
items of income and expense and cash flows in foreign operations are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Exchange differences arising are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve. When foreign operations are disposed
of, the related cumulative translation differences are recognised within the income statement in the period.

The Group uses derivative financialinstruments, primarily forward contracts, to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks.
Details of the Group’s accounting policies inrespect of derivative financialinstruments are set out on page 150.

Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The most significantaccounting policies in determining the financial condition and results of the Group, and those requiring the most
subjective or complexjudgement, relate toandareincludedin the following notes:

valuation of goodwilland intangible assets - notes 14 and 15;

capitalisation of development spend - note 15;

taxation - note 9; and

accounting for defined benefit pension schemes - note 6.
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Other significant accounting policies

The accounting policy inrespect of revenue recognition is also significant in determining the financial condition and results of the Group,

although the application of this policy is more straightforward. This policyis included in note 2.

Standards and amendments effective for the year

New accounting standards and amendments effective for the period and adopted by the Group in 2018 are IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
and IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers. IFRS 16 - Leases has also been adopted in the period, ayear earlier thaniits

mandatory effective date of 1 January 2019.

The impact of the adoption of these standards on the fullyear 2016 and full year 2017 results is as follows:

2016as IFRS 9 IFRS 15 IFRS 16 2016as
reported impact impact impact restated
£m £m £m £m £m

Income statement
Revenue 6,895 - (6) - 6,889
Reported operating profit 1,708 - (6) 6 1,708
Net finance costs (195) (2) - (16) (213)
Reported net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,161 (2) (4) (5) 1,150
Reported EPS 56.3p (0.1p) (0.2p) (0.2p) 55.8p
Statement of financial position
Right-of-use assets 20 - - 306 326
Borrowings (including lease liability) (4,843) 17 - (430) (5,256)
Finance lease receivable - - - 63 63
Deferredincome (1,941) - (67) - (2,008)

2017as IFRS 9 IFRS 15 IFRS 16 2017as

reported impact impact impact restated
£m £m £m £m £m

Income statement
Revenue 7,355 - (14) - 7,341
Adjusted operating profit 2,284 - (11) 11 2,284
Reported operating profit 1,905 - (11) 11 1,905
Net finance costs (182) (2) - (15) (199)
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,635 (2) (9) (4) 1,620
Reported net profitattributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,659 (2) (9) - 1,648
Adjusted EPS 81.0p (0.1p) (0.5p) (0.20)  80.2p
Reported EPS 82.2p (0.1p) (0.5p) - 81.6p
Statement of financial position
Right-of-use assets 16 - - 271 287
Borrowings (including lease liability) (4,886) 14 - (381) (5,253)
Finance lease receivable - - - 57 57
Deferredincome (1,834) - (76) - (1,910)

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the classification and measurement requirementsin IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
RELXhas applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, with the exception of hedge accounting, which has been applied prospectively. The main impact
on previously reported numbers results in a reduction to borrowings of £14m as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: reduction of
£17m), arising from a retrospective change in the treatment under IFRS 9 of certain debt modifications undertakenin 2012 and 2013.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 provides a single point of reference for revenue recognition, including guidance in relation to identification of the contract and
licensingarrangements. RELX has adopted IFRS 15 on a fully retrospective basis. The mainimpact of IFRS 15is a change in the timing of

revenue recognition as aresult of the guidance on identification and satisfaction of performance obligations under IFRS 15. The impacton

the income statement for the 12 months to 31 December 2017 is a decrease of £11m to both reported and adjusted operating profit (31

December2016: decrease of £6m to reported operating profit).
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IFRS 16 - Leases [early adopted and therefore effective for the 2018 financial year)

IFRS 16 eliminates the distinction between operating and finance leases and requires lessees to recognise all leases with a lease term of
greaterthan 12 monthsin the statement of financial position. RELX has adopted this standard a year earlier than the mandatory effective
date of 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 has been adopted on a fully retrospective basis.

The changeinaccounting standard results in both an asset and liability being brought onto the statement of financial position for the
majority of leaseswhere RELXisalessee. The assetis thendepreciated, and interest expense recognised over the life of the lease. The
standardalso gives guidance on the recognition of subleases, which results in finance sublease receivables being recognised on the
balance sheet. Asat 31 December 2017, the restated statement of financial position includes additional right-of-use assets of £271m,
finance lease receivables of £57m and additional lease liabilities of £381m (31 December 2016:right-of-use assets of £306m, finance
lease receivables of £63m and lease liabilities of £430m).

Theimpactonthe income statement forthe 12 months to 31 December 2017 isan increase of £11m to both reported and adjusted
operating profit (31 December 2016: £6m increase to reported operating profit] offset by a netincrease to finance costs of £15m (31
December 2016: £16m). After taking into account additional gains from disposals of right-of-use assets, there is noimpact on reported
net profit.

Opening balance sheet adjustment

An opening balance sheetadjustment has been made at 1 January 2016 to reflect the impact of adoption on prioryears. The adjustment
reduces opening retained earnings by £36m. This mainly relates to the recognition of lease expense earlier onin the lease under IFRS 16
and the deferral of revenue into future periods under IFRS 15.

Additionally, the otherinterpretations and amendments to IFRS effective for 2018 have not had a significantimpact on the Group’s
accounting policies or reporting.

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective
Anumberof amendments and interpretations have been issued which are not expected to have any significantimpact on the accounting
policiesand reporting.

Accounting policy
The Group’sreported segments are based on the internalreporting structure and financial information provided to the Board.

Adjusted operating profitis the key segmental profit measure used by the Group in assessing performance. Adjusted operating
profitis reconciled to operating profiton page 131.

Revenue arises from the provision of products and services under contracts with customers. Inall cases, revenue is recognised
to depictthe transfer of promised goods or services to customersin an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expectstobe entitled in exchange for those goods or services, and is recognised when the customer obtains control of the good
orservice.

Revenueis stated at the transaction price, which includes allowance for anticipated discounts and returns and excludes customer
sales taxes and other amounts to be collected on behalf of third parties.

Where the goods or services promised within a contract are distinct, they are identified as separate performance obligations and are
accounted for separately.

Where separate performance obligations are identified, total revenue is allocated on the basis of relative stand-alone selling prices
or management’s best estimate of relative value where stand-alone selling prices do not exist. Management estimates may include
a cost-plus method or comparable product approach, but must be supported by objective evidence. Aresidual approach may be
appliedwhereitis not possible to derive areliable management estimate for a specific component.

Revenueisrecognised for the various categories as follows:

Subscriptions - revenue comprises income derived from the periodic distribution or update of a product. Subscription revenue is
generallyinvoiced in advance and recognised systematically over the period of the subscription. Recognition is eitheron a
straight-line basis where the transaction involves the transfer of goods and services to the customerin a consistent manner over
a specific period of time; or based on the value received by the customerwhere the goods and services are notdeliveredina
consistent manner.

Transactional - revenue is recognised when control of the product is passed to the customer or the service has been performed.
Forexhibitions, revenue primarily comprisesincome from exhibitors and attendees at exhibitions. Exhibition revenueis
recognised on occurrence of the exhibition.

Advertising - revenue is recognised on publication or over the period of online display.
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RELXis a global provider of information-based analytics and decision tools for professional and business customers. Operating in four
major market segments: Scientific, Technical & Medical provides information and analytics that help institutions and professionals
progress science, advance healthcare and improve performance; Risk & Business Analytics provides customers with information-
based analytics and decision tools that combine public and industry-specific content with advanced technology and algorithms to assist
themin evaluating and predicting risk and enhancing operational efficiency; Legal provides legal, regulatory and business information
and analytics that helps customersincrease their productivity, improve decision-making and achieve better outcomes; and Exhibitions
isaleading global events business. It combines face-to-face with data and digital tools to help customers learn about markets, source
productsand complete transactions at over 500 events in almost 30 countries, attracting more than 7m participants.

Revenue Adjusted operating profit
Restated Restated Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m £m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,538 2,473 2,318 914 854
Risk & Business Analytics 2,117 2,073 1,905 760 685
Legal 1,618 1,686 1,619 328 312
Exhibitions 1,219 1,109 1,047 287
Sub-total 7,341 889 2,289
Total 7,492 7,341 6,889 2,284 2,114
Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m

North America
Europe
Rest of world

Total

4,013 3,998 3,697
2,790 2,644 2,568

. AU LA AU
7,492 7,341 6,889

Revenue by geographical origin from the United Kingdom in 2018 was £1,144m (2017: £1,085m; 2016: £1,048m).

Scientific, Technical &

Risk & Business

Medical Analytics Legal Exhibitions Total
Revenue by geographical market
North America 1,118 1,669 1,083 221 4,091
Europe 61 322 340 535 1,808
Totalrevenue 2,538 2,117 1,618 1,219 7,492
Revenue by format
Electronic 2,094 2,030 1,338 51 5,513
Face-to-face 7 36 10 1,168 1,221
Totalrevenue 2,538 2,117 1,618 1,219 7,492
Revenue by type
Subscriptions 1,877 765 1,247 - 3,889
Transactional 615 1,322 365 1,219 3,521
Advertising o4 .30 & T 82
Totalrevenue 2,538 2,117 1,618 1,219 7,492

Revenue by geographical market from the United Kingdom in 2018 was £527m (2017: £521m; 2016: £502m).
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Scientific, Technical &

Risk & Business

Medical Analytics Legal Exhibitions Total
Revenue by geographical market
North America 1,045 1,658 1,145 230 4,078
Europe 617 308 340 429 1,694
Totalrevenue 2,473 2,073 1,686 1,109 7,341
Revenue by format
Electronic 1,995 1,967 1,384 42 5,388
Face-to-face 10 38 7 1,067 1,122
Totalrevenue 2,473 2,073 1,686 1,109 7,341
Revenue by type
Subscriptions 1,776 732 1,291 1 3,800
Transactional 646 1,301 389 1,108 3,444
Advertising O B0 b T T
Totalrevenue 2,473 2,073 1,686 1,109 7,341

Scientific, Technical & Risk & Business

Medical Analytics Legal Exhibitions Total
Revenue by geographical market
North America 960 1,499 1,106 210 3,775
Europe 605 322 330 454 1,711
Totalrevenue 2,318 1,905 1,619 1,047 6,889
Revenue by format
Electronic 1,834 1,758 1,321 35 4,948
Face-to-face 10 37 7 1,012 1,066
Totalrevenue 2,318 1,905 1,619 1,047 6,889
Revenue by type
Subscriptions 1,628 684 1,299 1 3,612
Transactional 631 1,172 314 1,046 3,163
Totalrevenue 2,318 1,905 1,619 1,047 6,889

Around half of RELX's revenue comes from subscription arrangements, and revenue for these is generally recognised on a straight line
basis overthe time period covered by the agreement, in line with the provision of services. There are anumber of multi-year contracts,

mainly in Risk & Business Analytics, where revenue is recognised on the achievement of delivery milestones or other specified
performance obligations. Asat 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of the transaction price of such contracts which relates to

performance obligations which have notyet been delivered was approximately £210m. It is expected that revenue will be recognised in
relation to thisamount over the next tenyears.
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Expenditureon

acquired goodwilland Capital expenditure Amortisation ofacquired Depreciationand other
intangible assets additions intangible assets amortisation
Restated Restated Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 106 94 19 100 95 85 58 77 88 109 100 100
Risk & Business Analytics 852 - 288 92 83 67 161 141 147 73 A 56
Legal 30 6 83 145 153 154 33 52 73 147 142 135
Exhibitions . 61 .33 .21 28 2 2 36 44 38 35 37 . 34
Total 1,049 133 411 365 355 332 288 314 346 364 343 325

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plantand equipment and internally developed intangible assets. Depreciation and
otheramortisation includes depreciation on right-of-use assets. Amortisation of acquired intangible assets includes amounts in
respect of joint ventures of nil (2017: nil; 2016: £3m) in Legaland £1m (2017: £1m; 2016: £1m) in Exhibitions.

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016

£m £m £m

North America 8,692 7,408 8,307
Europe 1,996 2,016 1,987
Rest of world 461 459 489
Total 11,149 9,883 10,783

Non-currentassets held in the United Kingdom totalled £988m (2017: £1,026m; 2016: £961m). Non-current assets by geographical location

exclude amountsrelating to deferred tax, pension assets and derivative financialinstruments.

Operating profitis reconciled to adjusted operating profit as follows:

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m

Operating profit

Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
Acquisition-related costs
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures
Reclassification of finance income in joint ventures

Adjusted operating profit

1,964 1,905 1,708

288 314 346
84 56 51
1" 10 10
(1 (1) (1)

The share of post-tax results of joint ventures of £32m (2017: £37m; 2016: £37m] included in operating profit comprised nil
(2017: £5m; 2016: £10m) relating to Legal, £31m (2017: £32m; 2016: £27m)] relating to Exhibitions and £1m (2017: nil; 2016: nil] relating to

Risk & Business Analytics.

Accounting policy

Share based remuneration

The fairvalue of share based remuneration is determined at the date of grantand recognised as an expense in the income statement
on astraight-line basis over the vesting period, taking account of the estimated number of shares that are expected to vest. Market
based performance criteria are taken into accountwhen determining the fair value at the date of grant. Non-market based performance
criteriaare taken into account when estimating the number of shares expected to vest. The fair value of share based remuneration
is determined by use of a binomial or Monte Carlo simulation model as appropriate. All of the Group’s share based remuneration is

equity settled.
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Operating profitis stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Note £m £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,959 1,926 1,767
Social security costs 215 213 198
Pensions 6 135 95 m
Sharebasedremuneration e B30 38
Total staff costs 2,350 2,273 2,114
Depreciationand amortisation
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 15 287 313 342
Share of joint ventures” amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1 1 4
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 15 225 203 189
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 17 62 65 62
Depreciation of right-of-use@ssets | ... SO A SN NN . 3
Total depreciationand amortisation 652 657 671
Other expensesandincome
Costof salesincluding pre-publication costs and inventory expenses 2,638 2,628 2,488
Operating lease rentals expense 18 28 35
Operating lease rentalsincome (3) (3) (6)

The amortisation of acquired intangible assets is included within administration and other expenses.

The Group provides a number of share based remuneration schemes to Directors and employees. The principal share based remuneration
schemes are the Executive Share Option Schemes (ESQS), the Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP), the Retention Share Plan (RSP) and the
Bonus Investment Plan (BIP). Share options granted under ESOS are exercisable after three years and up to ten years from the date of
grantata price equivalent to the market value of the respective shares at the date of grant. Conditional shares granted under LTIP, RSP
and BIP are exercisable after three years for nil consideration if conditions are met. Other awards principally relate to allemployee
share based saving schemesinthe UKand the Netherlands. Furtherdetails are provided in the remuneration report on pages 85to 105.

2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m
Auditor’'sremuneration
Payable to the auditors of RELXPLC 0.9 0.9 0.9
Payable to the auditors of the Group's subsidiaries %9 59 b3
Audit services e B8 68 62
Audit-related assurance services .09 08 06
Totalauditand audit-related assurance services 17 76 68
Taxservices - - 0.4
Other services: Consulting - - 0.1
Otherservices: Due diligence and other transaction-related services 27 03 04
Totalnon-auditrelated services e 200309
Totalauditor’s remuneration 10.4 7.9 7.7

Amounts payable to the auditors of the Group’s subsidiaries include amounts for the audit of internal controls over financial reporting
inaccordance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Included in audit related assurance services for 2018 are £0.1m in fees for services relating
to RELX pension plans (2017: £0.1m). The amounts payable in 2017 and 2016 to the auditors of RELX PLC also reflect amounts payable to the
auditors of RELXNV.The previously reported 2017 fees paid to EY for audit services have been revised toinclude additionalamounts for
expensesincurred and final fees for statutory audits which took place subsequent to the audit of the RELX consolidated accounts.
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At31December Average during theyear

2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
Business segment
Scientific, Technical & Medical 7,900 7,500 7,500 7,700 7,500 7,300
Risk & Business Analytics 8,700 8,100 8,200 8,600 8,200 7,900
Legal 10,500 10,600 10,700 10,600 10,700 10,600
Exhibitions ...4200 4000 4000 4,100 4000 3,900
Sub-total ..31,300 30,200 30,400 31,000 30,400 29,700
Corporate/shared functions .80 80 80 800 80 900
Total 32,100 31,000 31,200 31,800 31,200 30,600
Geographical location
North America 13,800 13,500 13,700 13,700 13,600 13,500
United Kingdom 5,200 5,000 4,900 5,100 5,000 4,800
The Netherlands 1,200 1,300 1,400 1,300 1,400 1,500
Rest of Europe 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800
Rest of world ...2100 8400 8400 8900 8400 8000
Total 32,100 31,000 31,200 31,800 31,200 30,600

Accounting policy

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other post-retirement employee benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method and charged in the income statement as an operating expense, based on actuarial assumptions reflecting market
conditions at the beginning of the financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in fullin the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.

Past service costs and credits are recognised immediately at the earlier of when planamendments or curtailments occur and when
related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Settlements are recognised when they occur.

Net pension obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are included in the statement of financial position at the present value
of scheme liabilities, less the fair value of scheme assets. Where schemes are in surplus, i.e. assets exceed liabilities, the net
pension assets are separately included in the statement of financial position. Any net pension asset is limited to the extent that the
assetisrecoverable.

The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and other employee benefits is charged in the income statementas incurred.

Criticaljudgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

At 31 December 2018, the Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in the UKand the US. These schemes require management
toexercise judgementin estimating the ultimate cost of providing post-employment benefits, especially given the length of each
scheme’s liabilities. Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes involves judgement about uncertain events, including the life
expectancy of the members, salary and pensionincreases, inflation, the future operation of each scheme and the rate at which the
future pension payments are discounted. Estimates for these factors are used in determining the pension cost and liabilities
reportedinthe financial statements. The estimates made around future developments of each of the criticalassumptions are made
in conjunction with independent actuaries, and each scheme is subject to a periodic review by independent actuaries. Information
regarding the more significant assumptions used for valuation is provided below, together with a sensitivity analysis.

Anumber of pension schemes are operated around the world. The largest defined benefit schemes as at 31 December 2018 are in the UK
and the US.

Major defined benefit schemes in place at 31 December 2018

The UKschemeisafinal salary schemeandis closed to new hires. Members accrue a portion of their final pensionable earnings based
onthe number of years of service. The US schemeis a cash balance scheme andis closed to new hires. Members earn pay credits
dependent onage andyears of service up to certain limits which are added to an account balance that accruesinterest at specified
minimum rates. The US scheme was closed to future accruals effective 1 January 2019.

Each of the major defined benefit schemesis administered by a separate fund that is legally separated from the Group. The trustees

of the pension funds inthe UK and plan fiduciaries of the US scheme are required by law to act in the interest of the funds’ beneficiaries.
Inthe UK, the trustees of the pension fund are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund. The board of
trustees consists of an equal number of company-appointed and member-nominated Directors. In the US, the fiduciary duties for the
scheme are allocated between committees which are staffed by senior employees of the Group; the investment committee has the
primary responsibility for the investmentand management of plan assets. The funding of the Group’s major schemes reflects the
different rules within each jurisdiction.
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Inthe UK, the level of funding is determined by statutory triennial actuarial valuations in accordance with pensions legislation. Where the
scheme falls below 100% funded status, the Group and the scheme trustees must agree on how the deficitis to be remedied. The UK
Pensions Regulator has significant powers and sets outin codes and guidance the parameters for scheme funding.

The US scheme has an annual statutory valuation which forms the basis for establishing the employer contribution each year (subject
to ERISAand IRS minimums). Should the statutory funded status fall to below 100%, the US Pension Protection Act requires the deficit
to be rectified with additional contributions over a seven-year period.

The Group and the scheme trustees have completed the 2018 triennial valuation under which the Group has committed to providing
£176m of deficit funding contributions to the scheme over the period 2019 to 2022. Employer cash contributions to defined benefit
pension schemes inrespectof 2019 are expected to be approximately £62m including a £44m pension deficit funding contribution
relatingtothe UKscheme recovery plan.

The pension expenseintotal, includingamountsinrelation to the UKand US defined benefit schemes, defined contribution schemes
and GMP equalisation cost, recognised in the income statement consists of:

2018 2017 2016

£m £m £m

Defined benefit pension expense (including past service cost for GMP equalisation in 2018) 47 4 36

Defined contribution pension expense 95 91 75
Total S

£135m (2017: £95m; 2016: £111m) of the total pension cost is recognised within operating profit. In 2018 a past service cost was
recognised to account for the impact of GMP equalisation in the UK. In 2017 settlement and past service credits primarily relate to
changestothe UKscheme.

The amountsrecognisedintheincome statementin respect of defined benefit pension schemes during the year are presented by major
scheme as follows:

2018 2017 2016

UK Us  Total UK US  Total UK US  Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Service cost 27 9 36 33 14 47 27 14 41
Settlement and past service cost/(credits) Moo Mo w0 43) RN G N (o)}
Defined benefitpensionexpense 38 9 47 (9) 13 4 27 9 36
Netinterest on net defined benefit obligation =~~~ 6. 3. 9. 10, 5.0 9. SHL L
Netdefined benefit pension expense [2A 12 56 1 18 19 36 14 50

Netinterest on net defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is presented within net finance costs in the income statement.

The significant valuation assumptions, determined for each major scheme in conjunction with the respective independentactuaries,
are presented below. The net defined benefit pension expense for each yearis based on the assumptions and scheme valuations set at
31 December of the prioryear.

2018 2017 2016
UK us UK us UK us
Discountrate 2.85% 4.20% 2.60% 3.55% 2.65% 4.00%
Inflation 3.15% 2.50% 3.15% 2.50% 3.25% 2.50%

Discountrates are set by reference to high-quality corporate bondyields.

Mortality assumptions make allowance for future improvements in longevity and have been determined by reference to applicable
mortality statistics. The average life expectancy assumptions are set out below:

Male average life Femaleaverage

expectancy life expectancy
UK us UK us
Member currently aged 60 years 85 86 88 88

Member currentlyaged 45years 87 87 90 89




RELX Annual report and financial statements 2018 | Notes to the consolidated financial statements 135
The amountrecognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the startand end of the
year and the movements during the year were as follows:
2018 2017

UK us Total UK us Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation
Atstartof year (3,854) (1,075) (4,929) (3,883) (1,120) (5,003)
Service cost (27) (9) (36) (33) (14) (47)
Past service (cost)/credits (11) - (11) 42 1 43
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (98) (38) (136) (101) (42) (143)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on financialassumptions 91 85 176 45 (61) (16)
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from experience assumptions 4 2 6 (39) 1 (38)
Contributions by employees (8 - (8 (8] - (8)
Benefits paid 131 56 187 123 60 183
Exchange translation differences s de0 (6N - 100 100
Atend of year (3,77 (1,040) (4,812) (3,854) (1,075) (4,929)
Fair value of scheme assets
Atstartofyear 3,589 1,012 4,601 3,390 977 4,367
Interestincome on planassets 92 35 127 91 37 128
Return on assets excludingamountsincludedininterestincome (184) (89) (273) 181 106 287
Contributions by employer 39 7 46 42 43 85
Contributions by employees 8 - 8 8 - 8
Benefits paid (131) (56) (187) (123) (60) (183)
Exchange translation differences S 2 A A 4 10
Atendofyear 3,413 966 4,379 3,589 1,012 4,601
Opening net deficit (265) (63) (328) (493) (143) (636)
Service cost (27) 9 (36) (33) (14) (47)
Netinterest on net defined benefit obligation (6) (3) (9) (10) (5) (15)
Settlementand past service (cost)/credits (11) - (11) 42 1 43
Contributions by employer 39 7 46 42 43 85
Actuarial (losses)/gains (89) (2) (91) 187 46 233
Overallnet pension obligation (359) (74) (433) (265) (63) (328)

Asat 31 December 2018, the defined benefit obligations comprised £4,582m (2017: £4,690m) in relation to funded schemes and £230m

(2017:£239m) in relation to unfunded schemes.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit scheme liabilities is 19 years in the UK (2017: 20 years) and 12 years in the US

(2017: 13 years). Deferred tax assets of £86m (2017: £66m) are recognised in respect of the pension scheme deficits.

Anetpensionasset has beenrecognisedin relation to the US funded scheme after considering the guidance in IAS 19 - Employee
Benefitsand IFRIC 14. The split between net pension obligations and net pension assets is as follows:

2018 2017

£m £m

Net pension asset 6 22
Net pension obligation (439) (350)
Overallnetpensionobligaton 433) (328]
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Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are set out below:

2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m
Gainsand losses arising during the year:
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme liabilities 6 (38) 25
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme assets (273) 287 548
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on the present value of scheme liabilities due to changesiin:
-discountrates 242 (102) (873)
—inflation - 69 (96)
- other actuarial assumptions o lee) a7 134
(91) 233 (262)
Net cumulative losses at start of year (613) (846) (584)
Net cumulative losses atend of year (704) (613) (846)
The major categories and fair values of scheme assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2018 2017
UK us Total UK us Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 1,128 115 1,243 1,252 143 1,395
Government bonds 1,224 224 1,448 1,395 221 1,616
Corporate bonds - 607 607 - 622 622
Property funds and ground leases 723 - 723 620 - 620
Structured debtanddirect lending 290 - 290 253 - 253
Cashand cash equivalents 26 4 30 46 18 b4
Other 22 16 38 23 8 31
Total 3,413 966 4,379 3,589 1,012 4,601

Assets and obligations associated with the schemes are sensitive to changes in the market values of assets and the market-related
assumptions used tovalue scheme liabilities. In particular, adverse changes to asset values, discount rates or inflation could increase
future pension costs and funding requirements.

Typically, the Group’'s schemes are exposed to: investment risks, whereby actual rates of return on plan assets may be below those
rates used to determine the defined benefit obligations, and interest rate risks, whereby scheme deficits may increase if bond yields
inthe UKand the US decline and are not offset by returns in government and corporate bond portfolios. The schemes are also exposed
tootherrisks, such as unanticipated future increasesin member longevity patterns and inflation, all potentially leading to anincrease
in scheme liabilities.

Investment policies of each scheme are intended to ensure continuous payment of defined benefit pensions in the short-term and
long-term. Efforts are made to limit risks on marketable securities by adopting investment policies that diversify assets across
geographiesand among equities, government and corporate bonds, property funds and cash. Asset allocations are dependent on
avariety of factors including the duration of scheme liabilities and the funded position of the plan.

Allequities, governmentand corporate bonds have quoted prices in active markets.

Sensitivity analysis

Thevaluation of the Group’s pension scheme liabilities involves significant actuarial assumptions, being the life expectancy of the
members, inflation and the rate at which the future pension payments are discounted. Differences arising from actual experience or future
changesinassumptions may materially affect future pension charges. In particular, changes in assumptions for discount rates, inflation
and life expectancies thatare reasonably possible would have the following approximate effects on the defined benefit pension obligations:

£m
Increase/decrease of 0.25% in discount rate 207
Increase/decrease of 0.25% in the expected inflation rate 94
Increase/decrease of one year in assumed life expectancy 177

The above analysis has been calculated on the same basis used to determine the defined benefit obligation recognised in the statement
of financial position. There has been no change in the methods used to prepare the analysis compared with prioryears. This sensitivity
analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changesin the above
assumptions would occurinisolation as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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Accounting policy

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial period of
timeto bring to use are capitalised. All other interest on borrowings is expensed as incurred. The cost of issuing borrowings is generally
expensed over the period of borrowing so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge.

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016

£m £m £m

Interest on short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper (22) (10) (15)
Interest onterm debt (161) (154) (161)
Intereston lease liabilities e VAL ) 18]
Total borrowing costs (197) (181) (194)
Losses on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges (10) (9) (15)

Fairvalue losses on designated fair value hedge relationships ()] - -
Netfinancing charge on defined benefitpensionschemes e 90 18] (4]
Financecosts e eos) (23)

Interest on bank deposits 4 3 6

Interestincome on netfinance lease receivables 2 2 2

Fairvalue gains on designated fair value hedge relationships - 1 -
Gains onloansand derivatives notdesignatedashedges e e
Financeincome T e e 0
Net finance costs (211) (199) (213)

Losses of £8m (2017: gains of £63m; 2016: losses of £26m) on interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow hedges were recognised
inother comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedge reserve, and may be reclassified to the income statementin future
periods. Gains of £3m (2017: gains of £65m; 2016: losses of £27m]) in total were transferred from the hedge reserve in the period. The
movementsin 2017 included gains of £78m (2016: losses of £18m) related to foreign exchange movements on debt hedges which were
reclassified immediately to the income statement and offset £78m (2016: £18m gains) of foreign exchange losses on the related debt.

Accounting policy

Assets of businesses that are available forimmediate sale in their current condition and for which a sales process is considered
highly probable to complete are classified as assets held for sale and are carried at the lower of carrying value and fair value less
coststosell. Fairvalue is based on anticipated disposal proceeds, typically derived from firm or indicative offers from potential
acquirers. Non-currentassets are notamortised or depreciated following their classification as held for sale. Liabilities of
businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the statement of financial position. Fair value movements in the venture
capital portfolio are reported within disposals and other items - see note 16.

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016

£m £m £m

Revaluation of investments (11) 5 (13)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of businesses and assets held for sale 220 10 (28]

Net (loss)/gain ondisposals and other non-operating items (33) 15 (36)
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Accounting policy

Tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are charged or credited in the income statement except
tothe extentthatthe taxarises from a transaction or event whichis recognised, in the same or a different period, outside the income
statement (eitherin other comprehensive income, directly in equity, or through a business combination), in which case the tax
appearsin the same statement as the transaction that gave rise to it.

Currenttaxisthe amount of corporate income taxes expected to be payable or recoverable based on the profit for the period as
adjusted foritems that are not taxable or not deductible, and is calculated using tax rates and laws that were enacted or substantively
enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulationis subject to interpretation. Provisions are established where appropriate
onthe basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Currenttaxincludes amounts provided in respect of uncertain tax positions when management expects that, upon examination
of the uncertainty by a tax authority in possession of all relevant knowledge, itis more likely than not that an economic outflow will
occur. Changesinfacts and circumstances underlying these provisions are reassessed at the date of each statement of financial
position, and the provisions are remeasured as required to reflect currentinformation.

Deferred taxis recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position. Deferred taxis calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset
isrealised orthe deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences but not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures where the reversal of the temporary difference
can be controlled anditis probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised on temporary differences that arise from goodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes.

Deferred taxassets arerecognised to the extentitis probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporarydifferences can be utilised, and are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxassets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of temporary differences that arise on initial recognition of assets
and liabilities acquired otherthanin a business combination. Deferred tax is not discounted.

Criticaljudgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Groupis subject to taxin numerous jurisdictions, giving rise to complex tax issues that require management to exercise
judgementin making tax determinations. As a multinational enterprise, our tax returnsin the countries in which we operate are
subject to tax authority audits as a matter of routine. While the Group is confident that tax returns are appropriately prepared and
filed, amounts are provided in respect of uncertain tax positions that reflect the risk with respect to tax matters under active
discussion with tax authorities, or which are otherwise considered to involve uncertainty.

Provisions against uncertain tax positions are measured using one of the following methods, depending on which of the methods
management expects will better predict the amount it will pay over to the tax authority:

The Single Best Estimate - where there is a single outcome thatis more likely than not to occur. This will happen, for example,
where the tax outcome is binary (such as whether an entity can deduct an item of expenditure) or the range of possible outcomes
is narrow or concentrated on a single value. The most likely outcome may be that no tax is expected to be payable, in which case
the provision is nil; or

A Probability-Weighted Expected Value - where, on the balance of probabilities, something will be paid to the tax authority but
the possible outcomes are widely dispersed with low individual probabilities (i.e. there is no single outcome more likely than not
to occur). Inthis case, the provision is the sum of the probability-weighted amounts in the range.

Inassessing provisions against uncertain tax positions, management uses in-house tax experts, professional firms and previous
experience toinform the evaluation of risk. However, it remains possible that uncertainties will ultimately be resolved at amounts
greater or smaller than the liabilities recorded.

In particular, although we report cross-border transactions undertaken between Group subsidiaries onan arm’s-length basis in
taxreturnsinaccordance with OECD guidelines, transfer pricing relies on the exercise of judgementanditis frequently possible
forthere to be arange of legitimate and reasonable views. This means thatitisimpossible to be certain that the returns basis will be
sustained on examination. Discussions with tax authorities relating to cross-border transactions and other matters are ongoing in
each of our majortradingjurisdictions. Although the timing and amount of final resolution of these uncertain tax positions cannot
be reliably predicted, no significantimpact on the profitability of the Group is expected in the near term.

Estimation of income taxes alsoincludes assessments of the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable based on existing tax laws and forecasts of future taxable profits
againstwhich the underlying tax deductions can be utilised. The recoverability of these assets is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period, and changesin recognition of deferred tax assets will affect the tax liability in the period of that reassessment.
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Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m

Current tax
United Kingdom (71) (104) (80)
The Netherlands (72) (77) (51)
"""""""""""""""""""" (154) (258) (243)

Tax expence g g

Cash tax paidinthe yearwas £415m (2017: £449m; 2016: £402m), which is different to the tax expense for the year set out above.
There areanumber of reasons why the cash tax paymentsin a particularyear will be different from the tax expense in the accounts:
Deferred tax:

Tax expense includes deferred tax, whichisan accounting adjustment arising from temporary differences;

Temporary differences occurwhenanitem has to be included in theincome statementin oneyear butis taxed in anotheryear; and

Forthe purposes of acquisition accounting only, the Group recognises deferred tax liabilities arising on intangible assets. Any unwind
of these deferred tax liabilities from the amortisation of intangible assets does not result in cash tax payments.

Timing differences:

Tax paymentsrelating to a particularyear’s profits are typically due partly in the year and partly in the following year.
Prior period adjustments:

Currenttax expenseisthe best estimate at the end of the period of cash tax expected to be paid; and

To the extent the final liability is higher or lower than that estimate, any cash taximpact will occurin a later period.
Items recorded in equity and other comprehensive income:

Some of the benefits of tax deductions related to share based payments, pensions and hedging are credited to equity or other
comprehensive income rather than to tax expense, and so the cash tax liability will be different to the current tax expense in the
income statementinyears when those deductions are available.

Setout belowisareconciliation of the difference between tax expense for the period and the theoretical expense calculated by
multiplying accounting profit by the applicable tax rate.

We believe the most meaningfulapplicable rate is that obtained by multiplying the accounting profits and losses of all consolidated
entities by the applicable domestic rate in each of those entities’ jurisdictions.

The nettax expense charged on profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average of tax
rates applicable to accounting profits and losses of the consolidated entities, as follows:

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016

£m % £m % £m %
Profitbeforetax A0l gy
Tax ataverage applicable rates (342) 19.9% (389) 22.6% (326) 22.4%
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 8 (0.5)% 7 (0.4)% 7 (0.5)%
Expenses notdeductible for tax purposes (24) 1.4% (15) 0.9% (19) 1.3%
US state taxes (19) 1.1% (18) 1.0% (13) 0.9%
Non-deductible costs of share based remuneration (1) 0.1% (1) 0.1% (1) 0.1%
Non-deductible disposal-related gains and losses - 0.0% (36) 2.1% (8) 0.5%
Deferred tax assets of the period not recognised (24) 1.4% (10) 0.6% (2) 0.1%
Change inrecognition of deferred tax assets or liabilities (15) 0.9% 16 (0.9)% 33 (2.3)%
Other adjustmentsin respect of prior periods 13 (0.8)% 35 (2.1)% 28 (1.9)%
Exceptionaltax credit 112 (6.5)% 346 (20.1)% - 0.0%
Taxexpense (292) 17.0% (65) 3.8% (301) 20.6%

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the yearwas 19.9% (2017: 22.6%, 2016: 22.4%), reflecting the applicable ratesin the
countries where the Group operates. The Group’s future tax charge will be sensitive to the geographic mix of profits and losses and the
taxratesand lawsinforcein the jurisdictions inwhich we operate.
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Inthe UK, areductioninthe corporate tax rate from 19% to 17% from April 2020 was enacted in September 2016. Inthe US, the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Actwhichincluded areductioninthe federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% from January 2018 was enacted in December 2017. In
the Netherlands, areductioninthe corporate tax rate from 25%to 22.55% from 2020 and to 20.5% from 2021 was substantively enacted in
December 2018. In total, the deferred tax effect of changesin tax rates for the year was a tax credit of £8m (2017: £346m, 2016: £1m).

The effective tax rate of 17% (2017: 3.8%, 2016: 20.6%) is lower than the weighted average applicable tax rate mainly because of an
exceptionaltax creditarising from the substantial resolution of certain prioryear tax matters and the deferred tax effect of tax rate
reductionsinthe Netherlands and the US. In 2017, the exceptional tax credit related to a one-off non-cash credit from a deferred tax
adjustmentarising from the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. On the basis of their size and non-recurring nature, the exceptional tax credits
have been excluded from adjusted earnings.

The following tax has beenrecognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity during the year:

2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m

Taxonitems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Taxonactuarial movements on defined benefit pensionschemes e N8 AB9) 45

Taxon items th‘é“t"r'hay be redéésified to proflt orloss

Taxonfairvalue movementsoncashflowhedges SR S .t) I L A

Nettax credit/[debit] recognised in other comprehensiveincome . b (89) 6

Tax [(debit)/credit on share based remuneration recognised directly in equity (3) 8 10

The measurement of the US deferred tax assets and liabilities has also resulted ina charge of £1min other comprehensive income.

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Deferredtaxassets 455 431
Deferred tax liabilities ~(830)  (738)
Total (375) (307)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets [before taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction)
are summarised as follows:

Deferred taxliabilities Deferredtaxassets
Excess of tax Excess of
allowances Acquired Other amortisation Taxlosses Other
over intangible  temporary over tax carried Pension  temporary
amortisation assets differences allowances forward balances differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
1 January 2017 (restated) (393) (767) (338) 263 70 145 352 (668)
Credit/(charge) to profit 97 298 2 (15) 22 - (30) 374
Credit/(charge) to equity/other
comprehensive income - - 7 - - (76) (20) (89)
Acquisitions - (2) - - - - - (2)
Exchangetranslation differences 29 45 27 9 ) @ (4 78
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
1January 2018 (restated) (267) (426) (302) 257 87 66 278 (307)
Credit/(charge] to profit 75 13 13 (51) (32) 3 (16) 5
Credit/(charge) to equity/other
comprehensive income - - - - - 15 (3) 12
Acquisitions - (88) - - 37 - - (51)
Exchangetranslationdifferences (2] (2¢) 07 o1 4 2 1 [34)
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
31 December 2018 (204) (527) (306) 207 96 86 273 (375)

Other deferred tax liabilities include temporary differences in respect of property, plantand equipment, capitalised development spend
and financialinstruments. Other deferred tax assetsinclude temporary differencesin respect of share based remuneration provisions
and financialinstruments.

As aresult of exemptions on dividends from subsidiaries and capital gains on disposal there are no significant taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates and interests injointarrangements.
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Deferred taxassetsinrespectoftax losses and other deductible temporary differences have only been recognised to the extent thatitis
more likely than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset
hasbeen recognisedinrespect of unused trading losses and interest expenses of approximately £213m (2017: £143m) carried forward
atyearend. The deferred tax asset not recognised in respect of these losses and interest expenses is approximately £52m (2017: £34m).
Ofthe unrecognised losses and interest expenses, £93m (2017: £30m) will expire if not utilised within ten years and £121m (2017: £113m)
will expire after more than tenyears.

Deferred tax assets of approximately £4m (2017: £4m] have not been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary
differences carried forward of £24m (2017: £23m), which can only be used to offset future capital gains.

Accounting policy
Earnings per share (‘EPS’) is calculated by taking the reported net profit attributable to shareholders and dividing this by the total
weighted average number of shares.

Adjusted earnings per share is calculated by dividing adjusted net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders by the total weighted
average number of shares.

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016

Net profit Weighted Netprofit ~ Weighted Net profit Weighted

attributable average attributable average attributable  average

toRELXPLC  number toRELXPLC number toRELXPLC  number
shareholders ofshares EPS shareholders ofshares EPS shareholders ofshares EPS
£€m (millions)  (pence) £m  (millions) (pence) £m  (millions) (pence)
Basicearnings pershare 1,422 1,977.2 71.9p 1,648 2,019.4  81.6p 1,150 2,062.3  55.8p
Diluted earnings per share 1,422 1,990.8 71.4p 1,648 2,0352 81.0p 1,150 2,079.8  55.3p

The diluted figures are calculated after taking account of potential additional ordinary shares arising from share options and
conditional shares.

Since 2016, earnings per share has been calculated by taking the total Group net profit attributable to shareholders, and dividing this by
the total weighted average numberof sharesinissue. As the corporate simplification was done on the basis of a 1:1 share exchange, this
has notimpacted the calculation of earnings per share in 2018, or the comparatives presented.

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Adjusted net Adjusted net Adjusted net
profit Weighted profit Weighted profit Weighted
attributable average attributableto  average attributableto  average
toRELXPLC  number Adjusted RELXPLC numberof Adjusted RELXPLC numberof Adjusted
shareholders ofshares EPS shareholders shares EPS shareholders shares EPS
£m (millions)  (pence) E£m  (millions) [pence) £m  (millions) [pence)
Adjusted earnings per share 1,674 1,977.2 84.7p 1,620 2,019.4  80.2p 1,473 2,0623  71.4p
Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m
Net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,422 1,648 1,150
Adjustments (post-tax):
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 322 356 364
Acquisition-related costs 7 43 38
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 7 " 10
Disposals and other non-operating items 19 1 2
Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets* (55) (93) (91)
Exceptionaltaxcredit 2y sae) -
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1,674 1,620 1,473

* Movements ondeferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for tax amortisation.
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Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments and are held in the

statement of financial position at fair value.

Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m
Profit before tax 1,720 1,721 1,459
Disposals and other non-operating items 33 (15) 36
Net finance costs e 213
Operating profit Cages 19051708
Share of results of joint ventures 320 @7 37
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 287 313 342
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 225 203 189
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 62 65 62
Depreciation of right of use assets 77 75 74
Share based remuneration - - -5
Total non-cashitems Ce2 g5 0s
(Increase)/decreaseininventories and pre-publication costs (7) 2 (24)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (89) 37 (145)
Increase/(decreaselin payables 2 e 104
Increaseinworking capital e e el
Cash generated from operations 2,555 2,526 2,311
2018 2017 2016
Note £m £m £m
Purchase of businesses 12 (919) (117) (336)
Investmentin joint ventures - (1) (1)
Deferred payments relating to prioryearacquisitions e s (24
Total (935) (131) (361)
Related
Cashand derivative Finance
cash financial lease Restated Restated
equivalents Borrowings instruments receivable 2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Atstart of year m (5,253) 43 57 (5,042) (5,050) (4,095)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 - - - 1 (45) 9
(Increase)/decrease in short-term bank loans,
overdrafts and commercial paper - (147) - - (147) 148 (271)
Issuance of term debt - (958) - - (958) (873) (603)
Repayment of term debt - 21 - - 21 712 474
Repaymentofleases s s ha 8T8 TA
Changeinnetborrowings resultingfromcashflows 1 (799) - (4812l 20 @17
Borrowingsinacquired businesses - (12) - - (12) - -
Remeasurement and derecognition of leases - (12) - - (12) (6) (14)
Inception of leases - (31) - 3 (28) (36) (49)
Fairvalue and other adjustments to borrowings
and related derivatives - (7) (18) - (25) (11) (24)
Exchangetranslation differences 2. (280 -3 (248 M [51)
Atend ofyear 114 (6,365) 25 49 (6,177) (5,042) (5,050)

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital, lease liabilities and receivables, promissory notes, bank and other

loans, derivative financialinstruments that are used to hedge certain borrowings and adjustments in respect of cash collateral

received/paid. The Group monitors net borrowings as part of capital and liquidity management.
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During theyear,anumber of acquisitions were made. The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair value to the
Group. Provisional fair values of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilities acquired are summarised below.

Fairvalue Fairvalue Fairvalue

2018 2017 2016

£m £m £m

Goodwill 626 77 222

Intangible assets 423 56 189

Property, plantand equipment 5 - 1

Currentassets 24 3 12

Non currentassets 12 - -
Current liabilities (72) (16) (20)

Borrowings (12) - -
D T X e S (-1 S v B 1)}
Netassetsacquired e e 395 N8 369

Consideration (after taking account of £27m (2017: £7m; 2016: £10m) net cash acquired) 955 118 369
Less: consideration deferred to future years (36) (1) (15)
Less:acquisitiondate fairvalue of equityinterest R 1)1

Net cash flow 9219 117 336

On 21 February 2018 RELX acquired 100% of the share capital of ThreatMetrix. ThreatMetrix’s technology analyses connections among
devices, locations, anonymised identity information and threat intelligence, and combines this data with behavioural analytics to identify
high-risk digital behaviourand transactions in real time. The total consideration for this acquisition, net of cash acquired, was £585m,
which represents the fair value of the consideration translated at the acquisition date foreign exchange rate. The main assets and
liabilities recognised on acquisition were £373m relating to goodwill, £279m relating to intangible assets, £41mrelating to trade and
other payablesand £34m of net deferred tax liability. These balances are included in the table above.

Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the net tangible and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits which do not
qualify for recognition as intangible assets, including: the ability of a business to generate higher returns than individual assets; skilled
workforces; and acquisition synergies that are specific to the Group. In addition, goodwill arises on the recognition of deferred tax
liabilitiesinrespect of intangible assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions.

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired in the last 12 months are provisional pending the completion of the valuation
exercises. Finalfairvalues will be incorporated in the 2019 consolidated financial statements. There were no significant adjustments
tothe provisional fair values of prior year acquisitions established in 2017.

The businesses acquiredin 2018 contributed £98m to revenue, increased adjusted operating profit by £7m, decreased net profit by
£34m (after charging £41m of integration costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles) and contributed £4m to net cash outflow from
operating activities for the partyear under the Group’s ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs. Had the
businesses been acquired atthe beginning of the year, on a pro forma basis the Group revenues, adjusted operating profit and net profit
attributable to RELXPLC shareholders for the year would have been £7,531m, £2,347m and £1,420m respectively, before taking account
of acquisition financing costs.

Subsequenttothe 31 December 2018, Reed Exhibitions acquired Mack Brooks.

2018 2017 2016

£m £m £m

RELXPLC 420 400 356
RELXNV o.....376 362 327

Total 796 762 683

The RELXNVamount shown relates to dividends paid prior to the corporate simplification.

Ordinarydividends declared and paid in the year ended 31 December 2018, inamounts per ordinary share, comprise:a 2017 final
dividend of 27.7p (2017: 25.7p; 2016: 22.3p) and a 2018 interim dividend of 12.4p (2017: 11.7p; 2016: 10.25p), giving a total of 40.1p (2017: 37.4p;
2016:32.55p) for RELX PLC shareholders. Former shareholdersin RELXNV received a 2017 final dividend of €0.316 (2017: €0.301; 2016:
€0.288) and a 2018 interim dividend of €0.140 (2017: €0.132; 2016: €0.122).

The Directors of RELX PLC have proposed a final dividend of 29.7p (2017: 27.7p; 2016: 25.7p), giving a total for the financial year of 42.1p
(2017:39.4p; 2016: 35.95p). The total cost of funding the proposed final dividend is expected to be £583m, for which no liability has been
recognised at the statement of financial position date.
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The Employee Benefit Trust has currently waived the right to receive dividends on RELXPLC shares. This waiver has been applied to
dividends paidin 2018, 2017 and 2016.

Accounting policy

On the acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase considerationis allocated between the net tangible and intangible
assetsonafairvalue basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill. Goodwill arising on acquisitions also
includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of acquired intangible assets.

Goodwillisrecognised as an asset and reviewed forimpairment when there is an indicator that the asset may be impaired and
atleastannually. Anyimpairmentis recognised immediately in the income statement and not subsequently reversed.

Ondisposal of asubsidiary or business, the attributable amount of goodwillis included in the determination of the profit or loss
ondisposal.

At each statement of financial position date, the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed to
determine whetherthereis any indication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent, if any, of theimpairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, value
inuse estimates are made based on the cash flows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life are tested forimpairment at least annually and whenever there is any indication that the asset may be impaired.

Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unitis estimated to be less thanits net carryingamount, the net carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unitis reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised immediately
inthe income statementinadministration and other expenses.

Criticaljudgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The carryingamounts of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets in each business are reviewed forimpairment at least
annually. The carryingamounts of all otherintangible assets are reviewed where there are indications of possible impairment.
Animpairmentreview involves a comparison of the carrying value of the asset with estimated values in use based on the latest
management cash flow projections, approved by the Board. Key areas of judgement in estimating the values in use of businesses are
the growth in cash flows overaforecast period of up to five years, the long-term growth rate assumed thereafter and the discount
rate applied to the forecast cash flows. Adescription of the key assumptions and sensitivities is provided below.

2018 2017

£m £m

Atstart of year 5,965 6,392

Acquisitions 626 77
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (25) (72)

Transfers - "
Exchangetranslationdifferences e 338 (443)

Atendof year 6,899 5,965

Transfers relate to movementsin goodwill as a result of the finalisation of the accounting for prioryear acquisitions.

The carryingamount of goodwillis after cumulative amortisation of £1,222m (2017: £1,173m), which was charged prior to the adoption
of IFRS, and £9m (2017: £9m) of subsequent impairment charges recorded in prioryears.
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Impairmentreview
Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets is performed at least annually in accordance with the methodology
described above. There were no charges forimpairment of goodwill in 2018 (2017: nil).

Goodwillis compiled and assessed among groups of cash generating units, which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored by management. Typically, acquisitions are integrated into existing business units, and the goodwill arising is allocated to the
groups of cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. As the business areas have
becomeincreasingly integrated and globalised, the current CGU allocation reflects the global leverage of assets, skills, knowledge and
technology platforms, and the monitoring of goodwill by management.

2018 2017

£m £m

Scientific, Technical & Medical 1,620 1,479

Risk & Business Analytics 3,283 2,595

Legal 1,465 1,390
Exhibitions B30 80T

Total 6,899 5,965

The key assumptions used for each group of cash generating units are disclosed below:
2018 2017

Nominal Nominal

Pre-tax long-term long-term

discount market Pre-tax market

rate growthrate discountrate growthrate

Scientific, Technical & Medical 10.0% 3% 10.1% 3%

Risk & Business Analytics 11.5% 3% 12.3% 3%

Legal 12.2% 2% 12.7% 2%

Exhibitions 12.7% 3% 12.6% 3%

The pre-taxdiscount rates used are based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, adjusted to reflect a risk premium specific to
each business. Nominal long-term market growth rates, which are applied after the forecast period of up to five years, do not exceed the
long-term average growth prospects for the sectors and territories in which the businesses operate.

Asensitivity analysis has been performed based on changesin key assumptions considered to be reasonably possible by management:

anincreasein the discount rate of 0.5%, a decrease in the compound annual growth rate for cash flow in the five-year forecast period of

2.0%, and a decrease in the nominal long-term market growth rates of 0.5%. The sensitivity analysis shows that no impairment charges
would result from these scenarios.
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Accounting policy

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the statement of financial position at their fair value as
atthe date of acquisition, less accumulated amortisation. Internally generated intangible assets are stated in the statement of
financial position at the directly attributable cost of creation of the asset, less accumulated amortisation.

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise: market-related assets (e.g. trademarks, imprints, brands);
customer-related assets (e.g. subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationships); editorial content; software and systems
(e.g. applicationinfrastructure, product delivery platforms, in-process research and development]; contract-based assets

(e.g. publishing rights, exhibition rights, supply contracts); and other intangible assets. Internally generated intangible assets
typically comprise software and systems development where anidentifiable asset is created that is probable to generate future
economic benefits.

Intangible assets, other than journal titles determined to have indefinite lives, are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets with finite lives are as follows: market and customer-related
assets - 3to 40years; content, software and other acquired intangible assets - 3to 20 years; and internally developed intangible
assets-3to 10years. Journaltitles determined to have indefinite lives are notamortised and are subject to impairment review
atleastannually, including a review of events and circumstances to ensure that they continue to support an indefinite useful life.

Criticaljudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

On acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase considerationis allocated between the net tangible and intangible assets
otherthan goodwill on a fair value basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill. The valuation of acquired
intangible assets represents the estimated economicvalue in use, using standard valuation methodologies, including as
appropriate, discounted cash flow, relief from royalty and comparable market transactions. Acquired intangible assets are
capitalised and amortised systematically over their estimated useful lives, subject toimpairment review. The assumptions used
are subject to management judgement.

Appropriate amortisation periods are selected based on assessments of the longevity of the brands and imprints, the strength
and stability of customer relationships, the market positions of the acquired assets and the technological and competitive risks
thatthey face. Certainintangible assetsinrelation to acquired science and medical publishing businesses have been determined
to have indefinite lives. The longevity of these assets is evidenced by their long-established and well-regarded journal titles, and
their characteristically stable market positions. The assumptions used are subject to management judgement.

Development spend encompasses investment in new products and other initiatives, ranging from the building of online delivery
platforms, to launch costs of new services, to building new infrastructure and applications. Launch costs and other ongoing
operating expenses of new products and services are expensed as incurred. The costs of building product applications, platforms
and infrastructure are capitalised as intangible assets, where the investment they represent has demonstrable value and the
technicaland commercial feasibility is assured. Costs eligible for capitalisation must be incremental, clearly identified and directly
attributable to a particular project. The resulting assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives. Impairment reviews are
carried out at least annually where indicators ofimpairment are identified. Judgement is required in the assessment of the potential
value of a development project, the identification of costs eligible for capitalisation and the selection of appropriate asset lives.
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Total Internally
Marketand Content, acquired developed
customer- software intangible intangible
related andother assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost N
At 1January 2017 3,872 3,679 7,551 2,550 10,101
Acquisitions 32 24 56 - 56
Additions - - - 304 304
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (26) (76) (102) (42) (144)
Transfers (50) 27 (23) - (23)
Exchange translation differences L 809 ey ) 121 (592)
At 1January 2018 3,519 3,492 7,011 2,691 9,702
Acquisitions 310 113 423 - 423
Additions - - - 304 304
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (15) (11) (26) (148) (174)
Exchange translation differences L2 130 34199 44D
At31December 2018 4,025 3,724 7,749 2,946 10,695
Accumulated amortisation B
At 1January 2017 1,893 3,139 5,032 1,465 6,497
Charge fortheyear 188 125 313 203 516
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (16) (72) (88) (43) (131)
Exchange translation differences L8 ae) o 1804) L T0) L (BT4).
At1January 2018 1,907 3,046 4,953 1,555 6,508
Charge fortheyear 169 118 287 225 512
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (15) (11 (26) (111) (137)
Exchange translation differences o 1s o om3 218 60 278
At 31 December 2018 2,166 3,266 5,432 1,729 7,161
Netbook amount
At31 December 2017 0612 446 2058 1136 3,19%
At 31 December 2018 1,859 458 2,317 1,217 3,534

Transfersrelate to movementsinintangible assets as a result of the finalisation of the accounting for prioryear acquisitions.

Included in content, software and other acquired intangible assets are assets with a net book value of £80m (2017: £120m) that arose
onacquisitions completed prior to the adoption of IFRS that have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets. Internally

developed intangible assets typically comprise software and systems development where anidentifiable assetis created that is
expected to generate future economic benefits.

Included in marketand customer-related intangible assets are £119m (2017: £112m) of journaltitles relating to Scientific, Technical &
Medical determined to have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market positions. Indefinite

lived intangibles are tested forimpairment at least annually.
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Accounting policy

Investments, other than investments in jointarrangements and associates, are stated in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changesinthe fairvalue of investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio are reported in disposals and other
non-operatingitemsinthe income statement. Allitems recognised in the income statement relating to investments, other than
investmentsinjointarrangements and associates, are reported as disposals and other non-operating items.

Venture capitalinvestments and equity investments representinterests in unlisted securities. The fair value of unlisted securities is
based on management’s estimate of fair value based on standard valuation techniques, including market comparisons and discounts of
future cash flows, having regard to maximising the use of observable inputs and adjusting for risk. Advice from valuation experts
isused asappropriate.

Alljointarrangements are classified as joint ventures because the Group shares joint control and has rights to the net assets of the
arrangements. Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method and stated in the statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets, less any impairmentin value.

2018 2017

£m £m

Investmentsinjointventures 104 102

Equityinvestments - 2
Venturecapitalinvestments e 1O 139

Total 255 243

Thevalue of venture capitalinvestments and equity investments has been determined by reference to other observable market inputs
or,whenthese are notavailable, by reference to inputs we believe would reflect the assumptions market participants would use. Gains
and lossesincluded in the consolidated income statement are provided in note 8.

Ananalysis of changes in the carrying value of investments in joint ventures is set out below:

2018 2017
£m £m
Atstartofyear 102 102
Share of results of joint ventures 32 37
Dividends received from joint ventures (30) (38)
Additions 2 2
Atend of year 104 102
Summarised aggregate information in respect of the Group’s share of joint ventures is set out below:
RELX'sshare
2018 2017
£m £m
Revenue 101 101
Net profit for the year 32 37
Totalassets 96 85
Totalliabilities e 62)
Netassets 47 43
L BT 59
Total 104 102

The Group’s consolidated other comprehensive income includes noincome or losses relating to joint ventures in either period.
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Accounting policy

Property, plantand equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation. No depreciation
is provided on freehold land. Freehold buildings and long leaseholds are depreciated over their estimated useful lives up toa
maximum of 50years. Short leases are written off over the duration of the lease. Depreciation is provided on otherassetsona
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

-land and buildings: land - not depreciated; leasehold improvements - shorter of life of lease and 10years;

—fixtures and equipment: plant - 3to 20 years; office furniture, fixtures and fittings - 5 to 10 years; computer systems,
communication networks and equipment - 3to 7 years.

Restated
2018 2017
Landand Fixturesand Landand Fixturesand
buildings  equipment Total buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At startof year 217 599 816 231 630 861
Acquisitions - 5 5 - - -
Capital expenditure 5 51 56 5 46 51
Disposals/reclassified
as held for sale (8) (40) (48) (3) (40) (43)
Exchange translation differences 925 36 el B 183)
Atend ofyear 223 640 863 217 599 816
Accumulated depreciation
At start of year 137 485 622 139 499 638
Charge forthe year 9 53 62 9 56 65
Disposals/reclassified
as held forsale (6) (40) (46) (1) (39) (40)
Exchange translation differences b2 e o) B ()
Atend ofyear 146 519 665 137 485 622
Net book amount 77 121 198 80 114 194

No depreciationis provided on freehold land of £14m (2017: £14m).

Amountsrelating toright of use assets under IFRS 16 can be found in note 23.
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Accounting policy
Financialinstruments comprise investments (other than investments in joint ventures or associates), trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, payables and accruals, borrowings and derivative financialinstruments.

Investments (other than investments in joint ventures and associates) are described in note 16. The fair value of such investments is
based on standard valuation techniques, including market comparisons and discounts of future cash flows, having regard to
maximising the use of observable inputs and adjusting for risk. (These investments are typically classified as either Level 2 or 3in
the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy).

Tradereceivables are carried in the statement of financial position at invoiced value less allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Irrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the ageing of trade receivables, experience and circumstance. Borrowings
and payables are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost (other than fixed rate borrowingsin
designated hedging relationships for which the carryingamount of the hedged portion of the borrowings is subsequently adjusted
forthe gain or loss attributable to the hedged risk).

Derivative financialinstruments are used to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks. Where an effective hedge is in place
against changesin the fair value of fixed rate borrowings, the hedged borrowings are adjusted for changes in fair value attributable
totherisk being hedged with a correspondingincome or expense included in the income statement within finance costs. The
offsetting gains or losses from remeasuring the fair value of the related derivatives are also recognised in the income statement
within finance costs. When the related derivative expires, is sold or terminated, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the
cumulative change in fairvalue of the hedged borrowing is amortised in the income statement over the period to maturity of the
borrowing using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financialinstruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are
recognised (net of tax) in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedge reserve. With effect from 1 January 2018, the
fairvalue amounts relating to foreign currency basis spreads are recorded in a separate component of equity in the cost of hedging
reserve. If ahedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, then, at
the time thatthe asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised
inother comprehensive income are included in the initial measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in the
recognition of an asset ora liability, amounts deferred in the hedge reserve are recognised in the income statementin the same
period inwhich the hedged item affects net profit or loss. Any ineffective portion of hedges is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging instrument expires oris sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in other
comprehensiveincomeis eitherretained in the hedge reserve until the firm commitment or forecasted transaction occurs, or,
where a hedged transactionis no longer expected to occur, isimmediately credited or expensed in the income statement.

Derivative financialinstruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are recorded in the statement of financial position
atfairvalue, with changesin fair value recognised in the income statement.

The fairvalues of derivative financialinstruments represent the replacement costs calculated using observable market rates of
interestand exchange. The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at observable
market rates. (These instruments are accordingly classified as Level 2in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.)

The mainfinancial risks faced by the Group are liquidity risk, market risk - comprising interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk -
and creditrisk. Financialinstruments are used to finance the Group's businesses and to manage interest rate and foreign exchange
risks. The Group’s businesses do not enter into speculative derivative transactions. Details of financial instruments subject to liquidity,
marketand credit risks are described below.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains arange of borrowing facilities and debt programmes to fund its requirements at competitive rates.

The balance of long-term debt, short-term debt and committed bank facilities is managed to provide security of funding, taking into
account the cash generation cycle of the business and the uncertain size and timing of acquisition spend. Toaccommodate the significant
free cash flow generated by the Group and to capitalise on an inexpensive source of funding, a meaningful portion of the overall debt
portfoliois typically kept short-term as long as there exists acceptable liquidity in the commercial paper markets and sufficient capacity
under committed credit lines. The Group's treasury policies ensure adequate liquidity by requiring that (a] no more than $1.5bn of term
debtmaturesinany 12-month period, (b) the sum of term debt maturing over the ensuing 12 months plus short-term borrowings is less
than the sum of available cash plus committed facilities and (c) minimum levels of borrowing with maturities over three and five years
are maintained.

The treasury policies ensure debt efficiency by (a) targeting certain levels of short-term borrowings across a given year, (b) maintaining
aweighted average maturity of the gross debt portfolio of approximately five years and (c) minimising surplus cash balances. From
time totime, based on cash flow and market conditions, the Group may redeem term debt early or repurchase outstanding debtin the
open market.
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Debtisissuedto meetthe funding requirements of various jurisdictions and in the currencies that are needed. It isrecognised that debt
canactasanaturaltranslation hedge of earnings, netassets and net cash flow in currencies other than the reporting currency. For this
reason, the majority of the Group’s net debtis denominated in US dollars and euros, reflecting the Group’s largest geographical markets.

There were no changes tothe Group's long-term approach to capital and liquidity management during the year.

The remaining contractual maturities for borrowings and derivative financialinstruments are shownin the table below. The table shows
undiscounted principaland interest cash flows and includes contractual gross cash flows to be exchanged as part of cross-currency
interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts where thereis a legal right of set-off.

Contractual cash flow
Carrying Within Morethan
amount 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years Syears Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings (5,315) (752) (610) (552) (879) (732)  (2,555)  (6,080)
Floating rate borrowings (690) (686) - - - - (4) (690)
Lease liabilities (360) (104) (92) (75) (47) (30) (63) (411)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate derivatives (15) (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (8) (19)
Cross-currencyinterest rate swaps (1 (48) (21) (21) (21) (39 (557) (707)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (53) (1,498) (375) (181) (25) - - (2,079)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 21 12 13 3 1 5 3 37
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 13 33 8 8 8 25 553 635
Forwardforeignexchangecontracts 13 1,473 361 173 26 - - 2,033
Total (6,387) (1,572) (718) (647) (939) (774) (2,631) (7,281)
Contractual cash flow
Carrying Within More than
amount 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years Syears Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings (4,393) (331) (703) (575) (518) (805) (2,198) (5,130)
Floating rate borrowings (469) (464) - - - - (5) (469)
Lease liabilities (391) (100) (91) (79) (64) (34) (82) (450)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate derivatives (13) (1) (1) (2) (2) (4) (8) (18)
Cross-currencyinterest rate swaps (2) (258) (17) (18) (18) (18) (541) (870)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (42) (2,148) (418) (188) (41) - - (2,795)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 20 13 11 10 1 - - 35
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 42 246 7 7 7 7 554 828
Total (5,195) (904) (790) (652) (593) (854) (2,280) (6,073)

The carrying amount of derivative financial liabilities comprises £15m (2017: £15m]) in relation to fair value hedges, £41m (2017: £30m) in
relation to cash flow hedges and £13m (2017: £12m) not designated as hedging instruments. The carrying amount of derivative financial
assets comprises £33m (2017: £20m) in relation to fair value hedges, £7m (2017: £81m] in relation to cash flow hedges and £7m (2017:

£14m) not designated as hedging instruments.
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At31December 2018, the Group had access toa $3,000m committed bank facility, consisting of a $1,750m tranche maturing in July 2023
anda$1,250mtranche maturingin July 2021, which was undrawn. This facility backs up short-term borrowings. All borrowings that
mature within the next two years can be covered by the facility and by utilising available cash resources.

The committed bank facility is subject to a financial covenant typical to the Group’s size and financial strength. The Group had significant
headroom within this covenant for the year ended 31 December 2018. There are no financial covenants in any outstanding public bonds.

Marketrisk

The Group’s primary market risks are interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements. Derivatives are used to manage the
risks associated with interest rate and exchange rate movements and the Group does not enter into speculative derivatives. Where the
impact of derivatives on the income statement and the statement of financial position could be significant, hedge accounting is applied
(subject to satisfying the required criteria) as described in ‘Hedge accounting’ below. Derivatives used by the Group for hedging a
particularrisk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources. The impact of market risks on net post-
employment benefit obligations and taxation is excluded from the following market risk sensitivity analysis.

Interest rate exposure management

The Group’sinterest rate exposure management policy aims to minimise interest costs with an acceptable level of year on year volatility.
Toachieve this, the Group uses fixed rate term debt and interest rate swaps to give a target mix of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings.
Interest rate derivatives are used only to hedge an underlying risk and no net market positions are held.

At 31 December 2018, 45% of gross bank and bond borrowings were at fixed rate. A 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would
resultinan estimated decrease in net finance costs of £32m (2017: £26m), based on the composition of financialinstruments including
cash, cash equivalents, bank loans and commercial paper borrowings at 31 December 2018. A 100 basis point rise in interest rates would
resultinan estimatedincrease in net finance costs of £32m (2017: £26m).

Theimpacton netequity of atheoretical changeininterestratesasat 31 December 2018 is restricted to the changein carrying value

of floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge relationship and undesignated interest rate derivatives.
A 100 basis point reductionininterest rates would resultin an estimated increase in net equity of £1m (2017: £2m) and a 100 basis point
increase ininterest rates would reduce net equity by an estimated £1m (2017: £2m). The impact of a change in interest rates on the carrying
value of fixed rate borrowingsin a designated fair value hedge relationship would be offset by the change in carrying value of the related
interest rate derivative. Fixed rate borrowings not in a designated hedging relationship are carried atamortised cost.

Foreign currency exposure management

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of individual businesses whose operational currencies are other than sterling.
Some of these exposures are offset by denominating borrowings in US dollars, euros and other currencies. Currency exposures on
transactions denominatedinaforeign currencyare generally hedged using forward contracts. In addition, recurring transactions and
future investment exposures may be hedged, inadvance of becoming contractual. The precise policy differs according to the specific
circumstances of the individual businesses. Highly predictable future cash flows may be covered for transactions expected to occur during
the next 24 months (50 months for the Scientific, Technical & Medical subscription businesses) within limits defined according to the period
before the transaction is expected to become contractual. Cover takes the form of foreign exchange forward contracts. Further information
is providedin ‘Cash flow hedges’ below.

Atheoretical weakening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2018 would decrease the carrying value of net
assets, excluding net borrowings, by £782m (2017: £650m). This would be offset to a degree by a decrease in net borrowings of £625m
(2017: £473m). A strengthening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2018 would increase the carrying value of net
assets, excluding net borrowings, by £782m (2017: £650m) and increase net borrowings by £625m (2017: £473m).

Aretranslation of the Group's net profit for the year, assuming a 10% weakening of all foreign currencies against sterling but excluding
transactional exposures, would reduce net profit by £127m (2017: £147m). A 10% strengthening of all foreign currencies against sterling
on this basiswould increase net profit for the year by £127m (2017: £147m).
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Creditrisk

The Group seeks to manage interest rate risk and limit foreign exchange risks described above by the use of financialinstruments

and asaresult hasacreditrisk from the potential non-performance by the counterparties to these financialinstruments, which are
unsecured. The amount of this credit risk is normally restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principalamount being
hedged. The Group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full principalamount of cash and cash equivalents. Credit risks
are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties, principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks
with strong long-term credit ratings, and the amounts outstanding with each of them.

The Group has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual counterparties and do not allow
significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A-/A3 by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.
At31December 2018, cash and cash equivalents totalled £114m (2017: £111m), of which 93% (2017: 90%) was held with banks rated A-/A3
or better.

The Group also has creditrisk with respect to trade receivables due fromits customers, which include national and state governments,
academicinstitutions and large and small enterprisesincluding law firms, book stores and wholesalers. The concentration of credit risk
fromtrade receivablesis limited due to the large and broad customer base. Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the
business units where they arise. Where appropriate, business units seek to minimise this exposure by taking payment in advance and
through management of credit terms. Allowance is made for bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the risk
takinginto account the ageing profile, experience and circumstance. The maximum exposure to creditrisk is represented by the
carryingamount of each financial asset, including derivative financialinstruments, recorded in the statement of financial position.

Included within trade receivables are the following amounts which are past due, before considering loss allowance: past due up to one
month £181m (2017: £220m); past due two to three months £93m (2017: £97m); past due four to six months £37m (2017: £44m); and past
due greater than six months £35m (2017: £40m).

Hedge accounting
The hedging relationships that are designated under IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments with effect from 1 January 2018, and/or that were
previously designated under IAS 39 - Financial Instruments are described below.

Fair value hedges

The Group has entered into interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair
value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movements which could affect the income statement. The table
below details the designated fair value hedge relationships that were in place at 31 December 2018, swapping fixed rate term debtissues
denominated in US dollars (USD) and euros to floating rate USD and euro debt respectively for the whole or part of their term, together
with the related fixed and floating rates.

31December 31 December

2018 2017

Principal Principal

amount amount
£m £m Fixed rate Floating rate
€550m loan notesand €550m interest rate swaps maturing 2020 (494) (489) 2.5% LIBOR+1.1%
€500m bond and €500m interest rate swaps maturing 2021 (449) (444) 0.4% LIBOR+0.3%
$700m bond and $700m interest rate swaps maturing 2023 (549) 0 3.5% LIBOR+0.8%
€500m bond and €500m interest rate swaps maturing 2024 (449) (444) 1.0% LIBOR+0.7%
€600m bond and €600m/$669.3m cross-currency interest rate swaps maturing 2025 (525) (495) 1.3% LIBOR+1.3%
$200mbond and $200m interest rate swaps maturing 2027 . W87 (148]  7.2% LIBOR+5.8%

(2,623) (2,020)
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The gains and losses on the borrowings and related derivatives designated as fair value hedges, which are included in the income
statement as part of finance costs, together with the total carrying values of the borrowings and related derivatives included in the
statement of financial position, for the three years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Fairvalue
1January movement Exchange 31December Carrying
2018 gain/(loss) gain/(loss) 2018 values
£m £m £m £m £m
USD debt 12 - 1 13 (701)
Relatedinterestrateswaps b ) m_ . na 14l

S|

B

718)

EUR debt (17) (21) (1) (39) (1,952)
Relatedinterestrateswaps .. LY Y L N . - AR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e £ 1)1 ) §
Totalrelating to USD and EUR debt (5) (21) - (26) (2,653)
Totalrelatedinterestrateswaps S S < SO Y < S -
Net loss on borrowings and related derivatives/ total carrying valu - (1) - (1) (2,628)
Fairvalue
1January movement Exchange 31 December

2017 gain/(loss) De-designated gain/(loss) 2017 Carryingvalues

£m £m £m £m £m £m

USD debt 16 (1) (2) (1) 12 (147)
Relatedinterestrateswaps e 2 LI 12 B 4}
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e T Do T T 1199).
EUR debt (33) 17 - (1) (17) (1,922)
Relatedinterestrateswaps 32 e s AT A7

(1) 1

1,905)
(2,069)

Totalrelatedinterestrateswaps L TN L) S 2 T I
Net (loss)/gain on borrowings and related derivatives/
total carrying value (1) 1 - - - (2,064)
Fairvalue
1January movement Exchange 31 December
2016 gain/(loss) De-designated gain/(loss) 2016 Carryingvalues
£m £m £m £m £m £m
USD debt 13 - 1 16 (387)
L L) R S el el
- T - T 1403
- 14 - - -
- 4] - - -
(21) - (3) (33) (1,011)
T T T A (979),
(8) 14 (2) (17) (1,398)

nborrowings and related derivatives/ total
carrying value

(1) -

(1

8.

(1,382)

Allfairvalue hedgeswere highly effective throughout the three years ended 31 December 2018.
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Gross borrowings asat31 December2018included £23m (2017: £24m) in relation to fair value adjustments to borrowings previously
designatedin afairvalue hedge relationship whichwere de-designated in 2008. The related derivatives were closed out on de-designation
with a cash inflow of £62m. £3m (2017: £3m) of these fair value adjustments were amortised in the year as a reduction to finance costs.

Cash flow hedges

As partof the Group’s interest rate exposure management, it has entered into certain cross-currency interest rate derivatives,
individual components of which have been accounted for as cash flow hedges (with the remaining components accounted for as fair
value hedges, as described above). These comprised the following:

1 Interestrate derivatives which swapped a fixed rate CHF 275m bond, issued in June 2013 and maturing in December 2018, to floating
rate USD debt for the whole of its term. The component relating to the swap of fixed rate CHF coupons to fixed rate USD cash flows was
accounted forasa cash flow hedge under IAS 39 and was de-designated on 31 December 2017. The gains which had accumulated in the
cash flow hedge reserve up to the date of de-designation were reclassified to the income statement as part of finance costs during 2018.

2 Interestrate derivatives which swapped a fixed rate €600m bond, issued in May 2015 and maturing in May 2025, to floating rate USD
debtfor the whole of its term. The component relating to the swap of floating rate euro cash flows to floating rate USD cash flows
(including credit margin) was accounted for as a cash flow hedge under IAS 39 up to 31 December 2017. From 1 January 2018 the
componentrelating to the swap of the euro credit margin to USD is being accounted for a cash flow hedge under IFRS 9, with the
amount associated with foreign currency basis spreads recorded in the cost of hedging reserve.

As partof the Group’s foreign currency exposure management, it has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts which fix the
exchange rate onaportion of future foreign currency subscription revenues forecast by the businesses for up to 50 months. These have
been accounted for as cash flow hedges under IAS 39 and under IFRS 9 of the forecast foreign currency revenues, with gains and losses
onthe forward contracts deferredinthe hedge reserve until the related revenue is recognised, at which time the accumulated gains and
losses are reclassified to the income statement.

Movementsinthe hedge reservein 2017 and 2018 and, with effect from 1 January 2018, the cost of hedging reserve, including gains and
losses on cash flow hedginginstruments, were as follows:

Foreign
Costof currency
Interestrate hedging hedge
hedgereserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
Hedge reserve at 1 January 2017: gains/(losses) deferred 8 - (169) (161)
Gainsarisingin 2017 63 - 74 137
Amountsrecognised inincome statement (65) - 90 25
Exchange translation differences (1) - (2) (3)
Hedge reserve at 31 December 2017: gains/(losses] deferred 5 - (7) (2)
Reclassification on 1 January 2018 )] 1 - -
Lossesarisingin 2018 - (8) (51) (59)
Amounts recognised inincome statement (3) - 20 17
Exchange translation differences e
Hedgereserve at 31 December 2018: gains/(losses) deferred 1 (7) (38) (44)

Allcash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2018.

Adeferredtax credit of £8m (2017: charge of £1m) in respect of the above gains and losses at 31 December 2018 was also deferred in the
hedgereserve.

Ofthe amounts recognised inthe income statementin the year, losses of £20m (2017: £90m) were recognised in revenue, and gains
of £3m (2017: £65m]) were recognised in finance costs. A tax credit of £3m (2017: £1m]) was recognised in relation to these items.

The deferred gains and losses on foreign currency cash flow hedges at 31 December 2018 are currently expected to be recognised in the
income statementin future years as shownin the table below, together with the principalamount of hedges relating to each year and
their total carryingvaluesincluded within derivative assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position:

Foreign Principal

currency amount of Carrying

hedgereserve hedges values

£m £m £m

2019 (14) 481 (20)
2020 (13) 486 (13)
2021 (10) 228 (10)
2022 e wmoes )
Total (38) 1,259 (44)

The cash flows for these hedges are expected to occurin line with the recognition of the gains and losses in the income statement, orin
the precedingyear. These cash flows are included in the table on page 151.
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Accounting policy
Inventories and pre-publication costs are stated at the lower of cost, including appropriate attributable overhead, and estimated net
realisable value. Such costs typically comprise direct internal labour costs and externally commissioned editorial and other fees.

Pre-publication costs, representing costs incurred in the origination of content prior to publication, are expensed systematically
reflecting the expected sales profile over the estimated economic lives of the related products, generally up to five years.

Annualreviews are carried out to assess the recoverability of carryingamounts.

2018 2017

£m £m

Raw materials 2 2
Pre-publication costs 171 157
Total 212 197
Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Trade receivables 1,829 1,682
Prepaymentsandaccrued income 224 213
Total 2,015 1,873

Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carryingamounts approximate to their fair value.

Tradereceivables are stated net of a loss allowance for expected credit losses. The movements in the loss allowance during the year
were as follows:

2018 2017

£m £m

Atstartofyear 79 56
Charge for the year 14 39
Trade receivables written off (8) (15)
Atend of year 87 79

Accounting policy
Deferredincomeisrecognised when eithera customer has paid consideration, or RELX has an unconditional right to an amount of
consideration, in advance of the goods and services being delivered.

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Trade payables 187 240

Accruals Ak 663

Social security and other taxes 127 M4

Other payables 407 371
Deferredincome e 20001970

Total 3,432 3,298

Trade and other payables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair value.
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Accounting policy
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently carried atamortised cost, other than fixed rate borrowings in
designated hedging relationships for which the carrying amount of the hedged portion of the borrowings is subsequently adjusted
forthe gain or loss attributable to the hedged risk. When the related derivative in such a hedging relationship expires, is sold or
terminated, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged borrowingis amortised
intheincome statement over the period to maturity of the borrowing using the effective interest method.
Restated
2018 2017
Fallingdue Fallingdue Fallingdue Fallingduein
within inmorethan within morethan
Tyear Tyear Total 1year lyear Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost:
Short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 686 - 686 464 - 464
Term debt 614 1,808 2,422 209 1,682 1,891
Lease liabilities 92 268 360 89 302 391
Term debtin fairvalue hedging relationships - 2,652 2,652 - 2,069 2,069
Termdebt previously in fair value hedging relationships R Y - SO - S ..: SR .-
Total 1,392 4,973 6,365 762 4,491 5,253

The total fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (excluding lease liabilities) is £3,254m (2017: £2,522m). The total fair
value of term debt in fairvalue hedging relationshipsis £2,742m (2017: £2,148m). The total fair value of term debt previously in fair value

hedging relationshipsis £283m (2017: £501m).

RELXPLC has given guaranteesin respect of certain long-term and short-term borrowings issued by subsidiaries. Included within term
debtabove are debt securitiesissued by RELX CapitalInc.,a 100% indirectly owned finance subsidiary of RELX PLC, which have been
registered with the US Securities and Exchange Commission. RELXPLC has fully and unconditionally guaranteed these securities,

which are not guaranteed by any other subsidiary of RELXPLC.

Analysis by year of repayment

Restated
2018 2017
Short-term Short-term
bankloans, bank loans,
overdrafts overdrafts
and and
commercial Lease commercial Lease
paper Termdebt liabilities Total paper Termdebt liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Withinlyear L.....b86 614 92 1,392 464 209 89 762
Within 1to 2years - 508 87 595 - 593 85 678
Within 2to 3years - 451 70 521 - 508 74 582
Within 3to 4years - 688 42 730 - Lb4 58 502
Within 4to 5years - 669 27 696 - 630 28 658
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, -..2%389 42 2431 - 2014 57 2071
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, .7 4705 268 4973 - 4187 302 4491
686 5,319 360 6,365 464 4,398 391 5,253

Short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper were backed up at 31 December 2018 by a $3,000m (£2,354m) committed
bank facility, consisting of a $1,750m (£1,373m) tranche maturing in July 2023 and a $1,250m (£981m) tranche maturing in July 2021,

whichwas undrawn.
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Analysis by currency

Restated
2018 2017
Short-term Short-term
bankloans, bankloans,
overdrafts overdrafts
and and
commercial Term Lease commercial Term Lease
paper debt liabilities Total paper debt liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
US dollars 19 2,493 177 2,689 103 2046 187 2,334
£ sterling 317 300 66 683 262 299 69 630
Euro 318 2,526 85 2,929 76 2,055 97 2,228
Othercurrencies . .2 -8 6k 2B o386l
Total 686 5,319 360 6,365 464 4,398 391 5,253

Included inthe US dollar amounts for term debt above is £544m of debt denominated in euros (€600m) (2017: £742m of debt
denominated in euros (€600m) and Swiss francs (CHF 275m)) that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are
related derivative financial instruments, which, as at 31 December 2018, had a fair value of £19m (2017: £38m).

Accounting policy

Allleases where RELX s the lessee (with the exception of short-term and low-value leases) are recognised in the statement of
financial position. A lease liability is recognised based on the present value of the future lease payments, and a corresponding

right-of-use assetis recognised. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the
asset. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction of the lease liability.

Low-value items and short-term leases with aterm of 12 months or less are not required to be recognised on the balance sheetand
payments made in relation to these leases are recognised on a straight-line basis in the income statement.

The leases held by the Group can be splitinto two categories: property and non-property. The Group leases various properties,
principally offices, which have varying terms and renewal rights that are typical to the territory in which they are located.

Non-propertyincludes all other leases, such as cars and printers.

Right-of-use assets

Non- Non- Restated

Property property 2018 Property property 2017

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Atstartof year 264 23 287 298 27 325

Additions 26 5 31 41 5 46

Acquisitions 7 5 12 - - -

Remeasurement 13 - 13 8 - 8
Disposals (2) (8) (10) (8) - (8)
Depreciation (68) 9 (77) (67) (8) (75)
Exchange translation differences 6 1 7 (8) (1) (9)
P P TV St
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Lease liability
Restated
2018 2017
£m £m
Current
Property (83) (81)
O D OO Y e A9 8
Non-current
Property (260) (295)
O D O O Y e e 8 T
Total (360) (391)

Interest expense on the lease liabilities recognised within finance costs was £14m (2017: £17m, 2016: £18m).

Asat 31 December 2018, RELXwas committed to leases with future cash outflows totalling £40m which had not yet commenced and as
such are notaccounted for as a liabilityas at 31 December 2018. A liability and corresponding right-of-use asset will be recognised for
these leases at the lease commencement date.

RELX subleasesvacant space available withinits leased properties. IFRS 16 specifies conditions whereby a sublease is classed as a
finance lease for the sub-lessor. The finance lease receivable balance held is as follows:

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Netfinance lease receivable 49 57

Interestincome recognisedinrelationto finance lease receivablesis disclosed in note 7.

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when a present obligation exists as aresult of a past event, the obligation is reasonably estimable, and it
is probable that settlement will be required. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the statement of financial position date.

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Atstartofyear 63 86
Utilised (14) (17)
Exchangetranslationdifferences e B 6]

Total 51 63

The Group has exposures to shortfalls in respect of certain property leases for periods up to 2024. Provisions are recognised for net
liabilities expected to arise on the exposures relating to non-rent costs on these properties.

At 31 December 2018, provisions are included within currentand non-current liabilities as follows:

Restated

2018 2017

£m £m

Current liabilities 15 12
Non-current liabilities 36 51

Total S
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Accounting policy

Shares of RELXPLC thatare repurchased and not cancelled are classified as shares held in treasury. The consideration paid,

including directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Shares of RELX PLC that are purchased by the

Employee Benefit Trust are also classified as shares held in treasury, with the cost recognised as a deduction from equity.

RELXPLC
2018 2017
No.of shares £m No. of shares £m
Atstartofyear 1,123,682,106 162 1,144,122,623 165
Issue of ordinary shares 1,580,885 - 2,019,483 -
Issue of ordinary sharesin exchange for RELXNV shares 930,780,110 134 - -
Cancellationof shares ~ [45,000,0000 (é) ~ [22,460,0000 (3]
Atend of year 2,011,043,101 290 1,123,682,106 162
RELXNV
2018 2017
No.of shares €m No. of shares €m
At start of year 999,961,098 70 1,019,893,404 71
Issue of ordinary shares 888,128 - 2,067,694 -
Cancellation of shares - - (22,000,000) (1)
Cancellation of ordinary shares on completion
of the corporate simplification (930,780,110) (65) - -
Cancellation of treasury shares on completion
...of the corporate simplification ....170,069116) (5] e e T
Atend of year - - 999,961,098 70
Year ended 31 December
2018 2017
Sharesin Sharesin
issuenetof issuenetof
Sharesin Treasury treasury treasury
issue shares shares shares
(millions) (millions) (millions) (millions)
RELXPLC
Atstart of year 1,123.6 (63.5) 1,060.1 1,080.5
Issue of ordinary shares 1.6 - 1.6 2.0
Issue of ordinary sharesin exchange for RELXNV shares 930.8 (3.5) 927.3 -
Repurchase of ordinary shares - (26.9) (26.9) (23.1)
Net (purchase)/release of shares by the Employee Benefit Trust - (0.2) (0.2) 0.7
Cancellationofshares o Wso) 450 - -
Atend of year 2,011.0 (49.1)  1,961.9 1,060.1
RELXNV
Atstartofyear 1,000.0 (56.4) 943.6 962.2
Issue of ordinary shares 0.9 - 0.9 2.1
Repurchase of ordinary shares - (17.5) (17.5) (21.4)
Net release of shares by the Employee Benefit Trust - 0.3 0.3 0.7
Cancellation of ordinary shares on completion of the corporate simplification (930.8) 3.5 (927.3) -
Cancellation of treasury shares on completion of the corporate simplification AT T e T
Atendofyear - - - 943.6
Atend of year 2,011.0 (49.1)  1,961.9 2,003.7
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During theyear, RELXPLC repurchased 26.9m (2017: 23.1m; 2016: 29.2m) RELX PLC ordinary shares for an average price of 1,578p;
these sharesare held intreasury.

On completion of the corporate simplification RELXNV shares were cancelled and replaced with RELX PLC shares. Thisamounted to
930,780,110 RELX NV shares being cancelled and the same number of RELXPLC sharesissued in exchange. The RELXNV treasury
shares were cancelled as part of the simplification. Prior to the corporate simplification, RELX NV repurchased 17.5m (2017: 21.4m;
2016:26.1m) RELX NV ordinary shares for an average price of €17.73. These shares were held in treasury until their cancellation.

The total consideration for RELXPLC and RELX NV repurchases was £700m (2017: £700m; 2016: £700m).

The Employee Benefit Trust purchases RELXPLC shares which, at the trustees’ discretion, can be used in respect of the exercise of
share options and to meet commitments under conditional share awards. During the year, the Employee Benefit Trust purchased 2.9m
shares for atotal cost of £43m (2017: £39m; 2016: £29m). At 31 December 2018, shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust were £90m
(2017: £82m; 2016: £81m) at cost.

Theissue of ordinary sharesin the year relates to the exercise of share options. Details of share option and conditional share schemes
are setoutinnote 7on page 137.

Allof the RELXPLC ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting rights and rights to receive dividends, except for shares held in
treasury, which do not attractvoting or dividend rights. There are no restrictions on the rights to transfer shares.

At31 December 2018, RELXPLC shares held intreasuryrelated to 7,130,366 (2017: 3,493,817; 2016: 4,229,442) RELX PLC ordinary
shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust; and 42,023,020 (2017: 60,077,786; 2016: 59,415,287) RELX PLC ordinary shares held by the
parent company. During December 2018, 45m (2017:22.5m) RELX PLC ordinary shares held in treasury were cancelled.

On7December 2018, RELXPLC announced a non-discretionary programme to repurchase further ordinary shares up to the value of
£100m. At 31 December 2018, an accrual of £100m was recognised in respect of this non-discretionary commitment. Afurther 6.0m
RELXPLC ordinary shares have beenrepurchasedin Januaryand February 2019 under this programme.

Hedge Other Restated

reserve reserves Total Total

2018 2018 2018 2017

£m £m £m £m

Atstartofyear (3) 428 425 (215)
Profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders - 1,422 1,422 1,648
Dividends paid - (796) (796) (762)

Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes - (91 (91) 233
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges (59) - (59) 137

Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve 17 - 17 25
Taxrecognised in other comprehensive income 9 15 24 (89)

Increase in share based remuneration reserve (net of tax) - 35 35 42

Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses - (227) (227) -
Cancellation of shares - 262 262 (566)
Settlement of share awards - (35) (35) (37)
Exchangetranslationdifferences S Y A,

Atend of year (36) 1,020 984 425

Otherreserves principally comprise retained earnings and the share based remuneration reserve.

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ Ssaulsng

MBIABJ BIDUBUL

90UBUJIBA0G



162 RELX Annual report and financial statements 2018 | Financial statements and other information

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Transactions between RELXPLC and subsidiaries of the Group have been eliminated within the consolidated financial statements.
Transactions with joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales of goods and services of £3m (2017:
£16m; 2016: £2m) and the rendering and receiving of goods and services of £0.1m (2017: £0.1m; 2016: nil). As at 31 December 2018, amounts
owed by jointventures were £2m (2017: £2m; 2016: nil) and amounts due to joint ventures were £0.9m (2017: £1m; 2016: nil). See note 6 for
details of the Group’s participation in defined benefit pension schemes.

Key management personnelare also related parties as defined by IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures and comprise the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors of RELXPLC. Key management personnelremunerationis set out below. For reporting purposes, salary,
benefitsand annualincentive payments are considered short-term employee benefits.

2018 2017 2016
£m £m £m
Salaries, other short-term employee benefits and non-executive fees 7 5 5
Post-employment benefits 1 1 1
Share based remuneration* D 812
Total 15 14 18
Costofshare Costof
Annual based pension
Salary Benefits incentive  remuneration* provision* Total
£000 £000 €000 £000 £000 €000
Total Executive Directors 2018 1,935 99 3,033 7,003 741 12,811
2017 1,889 101 1,964 8,205 983 13,142
2016 1,843 88 1,881 12,038 1,052 16,902

*

Thefigures for share based awards are calculated inaccordance with the methodology set outin the UKRegulations. The figure for performance-related share
based awardsincludes share price appreciation since the date the award was granted. Please see page 87 for further details. The cost of pension provisionis
calculatedinaccordance with the methodology set outinthe UK Regulations. The amountisreduced by the Directors’ contributions and participation fee for
defined benefit schemes and reduced by the payments made to defined contribution schemes orin lieu of pension.

2018 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000
Fees and benefits 1,634 1,396 1,364

The remuneration of non-executive directors comprises fees for services, and benefits primarily relating to tax filing supportin respect
of filings resulting from their directorships. No deemed benefits were provided during 2018 to former Directors (2017: £2,460; 2016: nil).
No loans, advances or guarantees have been provided on behalf of any Director. The aggregate gains made by Executive Directors on the
exercise of options during 2018 were nil (2017: £2,804,358; 2016: £3,082,715).

The following exchange rates have been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements:

Statement of
Income statement financial position
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017
Eurotosterling 113 1.14 1.22 11 1.12
USdollarto sterling 1.34 1.29 1.36 1.27 1.35

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised forissue by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2019.
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Afulllist of related undertakings (comprising subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings) is set out below.
Allare 100% owned directly or indirectly by the Group except where percentage ownership denoted in (x%).
Share Reg Share Reg
Companyname class office Companyname class office
Australia Reed Huaqun Exhibitions Co., Ltd (52%) Registered Capital CHN4
Adaptris Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS1 Reed Kuozhan Exhibitions (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (60%) Registered Capital CHN12
Elsevier (Australia) Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS3 Reed Sinopharm Exhibitions Co., Ltd (50%) Registered Capital CHN4
Fair Events Pty Ltd (49%) Ordinary AUS4 RELX(China) Investment Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN15
Fitness Show Pty Ltd (80%) Ordinary AUSH Shanghai Datong Medical Information Technology Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN17
Reed Business Information (Australia) Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS1 ShanghaiSinoReal Exhibitions Co., Ltd (27.5%) Registered Capital CHN18
Reed Exhibitions Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS2
Reed International Books Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS3  Colombia
Reed 0z Comic-Con Pty Ltd (80%) Ordinary AUS2 LexisNexis Risk SolutionsS.A.S. Ordinary coL1
RELXAustraliaPtyLtd Ordinary AUS2
SSTSoftware Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS7 Denmark
Symbiotic Technologies Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS8 ElsevierA/S Ordinary DNK1
Symbiotic Technologies Operation Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS8 ReedElsevier Denmark ApS Ordinary DNK1
ThreatMetrix Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS8
Dubai, UAE
Austria Reed Exhibitions Free Zone-LLC Ordinary UAE1
ExpoxxMessebau GmbH Registered Capital AUT1 RELXMiddle EastFZ-LLC Ordinary UAE2
LexisNexis Verlag ARD ORAC GmbH & Co KG Registered Capital AUT2
ORAC Gesellschaft m.b.H. Registered Capital AUT2 Egypt
Reed CEE GmbH Registered Capital AUT1 Elsevier EgyptLLC Ordinary EGY1
Reed Messe Salzburg GmbH Registered Capital AUT3
Reed Messe Wien GmbH Registered Capital AUT1 France
RELX Austria GmbH Registered Capital AUT3  EisevierHolding France SAS Registered Capital FRA1
System StandBau GmbH Registered Capital AUT4  ElsevierMassonSAS Registered Capital FRA1
_ EvoluprintSAS Ordinary FRA2
Belgium FircosoftSAS Ordinary FRA3
LexisNexisBVBA Ordinary BEL1 Gie Edi-Data (83%) Ordinary FRA4
First4Farming Europe NV Ordinary BEL2 GieJuris-Data Ordinary FRA4
_ GIEPRK-Publicite RobertKrier Registered capital FRAS
Brazil LexisNexis Business Information SolutionsS.A. Ordinary FRA4L
Elsevier Editoraltda Quotas BRA1 LexisNexis Business Information Solutions Holding S.A. Ordinary FRA6
FircosoftBrazilConsultoriaeServicosde InformaticaLtda  Ordinary BRA2 LexisNexis International DevelopmentServicesS.A. Ordinary FRA4
LexisNexis Informacoes e Sistemas Empresariais Ltda Quotasshares BRA3 LexisNexisSA Ordinary FRA4
LexisNexis Servicosde Analisede Risco Ltda Quotasshares BRA3 Reed ExhibitionsISGSARL Registered capital FRA7
MLex Brasil MidiaMercadologica Ltda (91%) Quotas BRA4 Reed Expositions France SAS Ordinary FRA5S
Reed Exhibitions AlcantaraMachado Ltda Quotasshares BRA3 Reed Midem SAS Registered capital FRA7
SSTSoftwaredoBrasil Ltda Ordinary BRAS ReedOrganisation SAS Ordinary FRAS
RELXFranceS.A. Registered capital FRA7
Canada SAFISA(50%) Ordinary FRA8
LexisNexis Canadalnc ClassAordinary CAN1
RELXCanadaltd Unlimited ClassA, CAN3 Germany
Unlimited Class B, AriesMedical Knowledge GmbH & CoKG Registered Capital DEU9
Unlimited Class C, AriesMedical Knowledge VerwaltungsgesellschaftGmbH  Registered Capital DEU9
Unlimited Class D, Elsevier GmbH Registered Capital DEU3
Unlimited ClassE, Elsevier Information Systems GmbH Registered Capital DEU3
Unlimited ClassF, LexisNexis GmbH Registered Capital DEUS
Unlimited Class G, PatentSight GmbH Registered Capital DEU8
Unlimited Class H REC Publications GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
Science-MetrixInc ClassAcommon CAN4  ReedExhibitions (Germany) GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
shares Reed Exhibitions Deutschland GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
Class Bcommon ReedTravelGroup (Germany) GmbH Ordinary DEU6
shares RELXDeutschland GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
ClassApreferred Tschach Solutions GmbH Ordinary DEU7
shares
Class B preferred HongKong
gl‘aresc ferred Ascend ChinaHolding Ltd Ordinary HNK1
shiers preferre Reed Business Information (China) Ltd Ordinary HNK2
Class D preferred JCExhibitionand Promotion Ltd (65%) Ordinary HNK1
s " MisxamLals %) Ordinary FNKE
. exAsialLt o rdinary
ThreatMetrix(Canada)Inc Commonshares CAN2 Reed ExhibitionsLtd Ordinary HNKS
China RELX(Greater China) Ltd Ordinary HNK?7
Beijing Bakery China Exhibitions Co., Ltd (25%) Registered Capital CHN1 India
Beijing Medtime Elsevier Education TechnologyCo.,Ltd (49%) Registered Capital CHN2 n P -
BeijingReed Elsevier Scienceand Technology Co., Ltd Registered Cazital CHN3 (I-E_omlgcfor; |n5§|l?)PlrIVatT_Ltd (36%] grd!nary :mgg
Beijing Reed Guanghe Exhibition Co., Ltd (80%) Registered Capital CHN4 R'ngET t n_dlaP rl;‘l’?thg td“ dialPutLtd Org!nary INDZ
C-OneEnergyCo., Ltd Registered Capital CHN6  peedtser e g India L\gwtocy] orinary NDE
GenilexInformation Technology Co., Ltd (40%) Registered Capital CHN7 Ree anch =xhi mor_15 rivate to ° rcinary
ICIS Consulting (Beijing] Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN8 Reeds'.E"h'b'“‘?".s!’”"a"e."tdm o Ordinary IND6
KeAiCommunicationsCo., Ltd (49%) Registered Capital CHng  ReedTriuneExhibitions PrivateLtd (72%) Ordinary IND7
Hommur 50 ! ) gt P! RELXIndiaPrivate Ltd Ordinary IND1
LexisNexis Risk Solutions (Shanghai) Information Registered Capital CHN10
.I\rllec::gt)ongsiﬁlstﬁlz‘llé?ijing]m Ltd (91%) Registered Capital cHnyy  Indonesia
. o —— -
Reed Business Information (Shanghai) Co Ltd Registered Captial CHN20 PTReedExhibitionsIndonesia (70%) gt:zzé IDN2Z
Reed Elsevier Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN3 I X
ReedExhibitions (Chinal Co. Ltd Registered CaSital CHN4  PTReedPanoramaExhibitions(50%) Ordinary IDN1
Reed Exhibitions Henjin Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN19
Reed Exhibitions (Shanghai) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN12
Reed Hongda Exhibitions (Henan) Co., Ltd (51%) Registered Capital CHN13
Reed Huabai Exhibitions (Beijing) Co., Ltd (51%) Registered Capital CHN4
Reed Huabo Exhibitions (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (65%) Registered Capital CHN14
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Share Reg Share Reg
Companyname class office Company name class office
Ireland RELX(Pty) Ltd Ordinary ZAF3
Butterworth (Ireland) Ltd Ordinary, AOrdinary IRL2 ReedExhibitions (Pty) Ltd (90%) A-shares ZAF4
ElsevierServiceslreland Ltd Ordinary IRL4 Reed Events Management (Pty) Ltd (90%) A-shares ZAF4
LexisNexis Risk Solutions (Ireland) Ltd Ordinary IRL1 Reed Exhibitions Group(Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF4
LexisNexis Risk Solutions (Europe) Ltd Ordinary IRL1 ReedVenue Management (Pty) Ltd (90%) A-shares ZAF4
WinsearchServices (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3
Israel
LexisNexislsrael Ltd Ordinary ISR1 Spain
ElsevierEspana,S.L. Participations ESP1
Italy
Elsevier SRL Registered Capital ITAT  Switzerland
ICISItaliaSRL Ordinary ITA2 Elsevier FinanceSA Ordinary CHE1
Reed ExhibitionsISG Italy SRL Ordinary ITA1 FircosoftSchweizGmbH Ordinary CHE2
Reed ExhibitionsItaliaSRL Ordinary ITA1 RELXRisksSA Ordinary CHE1
RELXSwissHoldings SA Ordinary CHE1
Japan
Ascend Japan KK Ordinary JPN1 Taiwan
Elsevier JapanKK Ordinary JPN2 Elsevier TaiwanLLC Registered Capital TWN1
LexisNexis Japan KK Common Stock JPN3
PatentSight JapanInc Common Shares JPN6  Thailand
Reed Exhibitions Japan KK Ordinary JPN4 Reed Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd Ordinary THA2
ReedISG Japan KK Ordinary JPNS Reed Tradex Company Ltd (49%) Preference shares THA1
ThreatMetrixGK Membership Interest JPN7
TheNetherlands
Korea(South) AGRMSolutionsC.V. Partnership Interest NLD1
Elsevier KoreaLLC Ordinary KOR1 ElsevierB.V. Ordinary NLD1
LexisNexis Legaland Professional Service Korea Ltd Ordinary KOR2 Elsevier EmploymentServicesB.V. Ordinary NLD1
Reed Exhibitions KoreaLtd Ordinary KOR3 LexisNexis Business Information Solutions B.V. Ordinary NLD1
Reed Exporum Ltd (60%) Ordinary KOR4 LexisNexis Univentio B.V. Ordinary NLD2
ReedK.FairsLtd (70%) Ordinary KOR3 Misset UitgeverijB.V.(49%) Ordinary NLD4
OneBusinessB.V. Registered Capital NLD5S
Luxembourg ReedBusinessB.V. Ordinary NLD1
FIRCOSOFT LuxembourgSarl Ordinary LUX1 RELXFinanceB.V. Ordinary NLD1
RELXHoldingsB.V. Ordinary NLD1
Malaysia RELXNederlandB.V. EShares/RE Shares NLD1
LexisNexis Malaysia Sdn Bhd Ordinary MYS1 RELXOverseasB.V. EShares/RE Shares NLD1
Reed Exhibitions Sdn Bhd Ordinary MYS1 RELXUS Holdings (Amsterdam)B.V. Ordinary NLD1
ThreatMetrix BV Ordinary NLD3
Mexico
Masson-DoymaMexico,S.A. Ordinary MEX1 Turkey
Reed Exhibitions MexicoS.A.deC.V. Ordinary MEX1 Elsevier STM Bilgi HizmetleriLimited Sirketi Ordinary TUR1
Reed Tiiyap Fuarcilik A.S.(50%) A-shares/B-shares TUR2
Morocco _ _
Reed ExhibitionsMorocco SARL Ordinary MAR1 United Kingdom
AdaptrisGroup Ltd Ordinary GBR2
NewZealand AdaptrisLtd Ordinary GBR2
LexisNexis NZ Ltd Ordinary NZL1 Bradfield BrettHoldings Ltd 71/2% Preferred GBR1
Income, Ordinary
Philippines Butterworth &Co. (Overseas) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Reed Elsevier Shared Services [Philippines) Inc. Ordinary PHL1 Butterworth & Co. (Publishers) Ltd 4.5% Cum. GBR1
Preference,
‘A Ordinary,
Polan'd i ‘B’ Ordinar);/
Elseviersp.z.o0.0. Ordinary POL1 ButterworthsLtd Ordinary GBR5
= CorderyCompliance Ltd (72%) Ordinary GBR5
Russia CorderyLtd(72%) Ordinary GBRS
EcwatechCompanyZAO Ordinary RUS1 Credivaltd Ordinary GBRé6
LexisNexis000 Registered Capital RUS2 DewEventsLtd Ordinary GBR4
Real Estate Events Direct 000 (80%) Registered Capital RUS3  pjgital Foundry Network (50%) Ordinary GBR4
RELX000 Registered Capital RUSZ praytonLegalRecoveriesLtd Ordinary GBR7
§ § E&PEventsLLP(50%) NoShares GBR4
SaudiArabia Elsevier Ltd Ordinary GBR8
Reed SunaidiExhibitions (50%) Ordinary SAU1 Elsevier Life SciencesIPLtd Ordinary GBRS
_ Formpart(EPS) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Singapore Formpart(HPL)Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Elsevier (Singapore) PteLtd Ordinary SGP1 Gamer Edition Ltd Ordinary GBR4
F4F Agriculture (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP2 GamerEventsLtd Ordinary GBR4
Lexis-Nexis Philippines Pte Ltd (75%) Preference shares SGP3 GamerNetwork Ltd Ordinary GBR4
Reed Business Information Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP4 GamermanialLtd Ordinary GBR2
RE(HAPL)Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP1 HallplazaLtd Ordinary GBR4
RELX(Singapore) Pte. Ltd Ordinary SGP3 Imbibe Media Ltd Ordinary GBR4
SAFIAsiaPte Ltd (50%) Ordinary SGP4  IndiciumFinancial Ltd Ordinary GBR10
ThreatMetrix PTE Ltd Ordinary SGP5  Information Handling Ltd (85%) Ordinary GBR1
Insurance Initiatives Ltd Ordinary GBR10
SouthAfrica Legend Exhibitions Ltd Ordinary GBR4
FircosoftSouth Africa (Pty) Ltd Ordinary ZAF1 LexisNexis Risk Solutions UK Ltd Ordinary GBR11
Globalrange SA(Pty) Ltd Ordinary ZAF2 MCM_Central Ltd Ordinary GBR2
Korbitec (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 MCMExpo Ltd Ordinary GBR2
LegalPerfectTSoftware Solutions (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 MCM Stategy Ltd Ordinary GBR2
LexisNexis Academic (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 MendeleyLtd Ordinary GBR8
LexisNexis (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 MLexLtd (91%) AOrdinary Shares, GBR5
LexisNexis Risk Management (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Ordinary
Property Payment Exchange (SA) (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Moreover Technologies Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Mosby International Ltd Ordinary GBR1
NewsfloLtd Ordinary GBR1
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Share Reg Share Reg
Company name class office Company name class office
NLife Ltd (23.5%) Ordinary GBR14 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2005 PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4
Offshore Europe (Management) Ltd Ordinary GBR4 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2006 PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4
Offshore Europe Partnership (50%) Partnership Interest GBR4 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2008 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
OutThere Gaming Ltd (70%) Ordinary GBR4 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2009 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
Oxford Spires Management Co; Ltd (55%) Ordinary GBR12 TheReedElsevierVentures 2010 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
PeopletracerLtd Ordinary GBR6 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2011 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
PreanHoldingsLtd Deferred, Ordinary GBR1 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2012 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
REDirectors (No.1) Limited Ordinary GBR1 TheReedElsevier Ventures 2013 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
REDirectors (No.2) Limited Ordinary GBR1 The Remick Publishers (50%) Partnership Interest USA8
RE(SOE) Ltd Ordinary GBR4 ThreatMetrix, Inc. Common USA2
RESecretariesLtd Ordinary GBR1 Ordinary
ReedAll-EnergyLtd Ordinary GBR4 World Compliance, Inc Common Stock USA4
Reed Business Information (Holdings) Ltd Ordinary GBR2
ReedBusiness Information Ltd Ordinary GBR2 Vietnam
Reed Consumer Books Ltd Ordinary GBR1 Reed TradexVietnam LLC (49%) Ordinary VIE1
ReedElsevier (UIG) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
ReedElsevier Pension Trustee Ltd Ordinary GBR1
ReedEventsLtd Ordinary GBR4
ReedExhibitions Ltd Deferred, Ordinary GBR4
Reed Midem Ltd Ordinary GBR4
ReedNomineesLtd Ordinary GBR1
Reed Overseas Corporation Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Reed Publishing Corporation Ltd Ordinary GBR1
RELX(Holdings) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
RELX (Investments) plc Ordinary GBR1
RELX(UK)Ltd Ordinary GBR1
RELXFinanceLtd Ordinary GBR1
RELXGroupplc Ordinary GBR1
‘R’ Ordinary
RELXOverseasHoldings Ltd Ordinary, GBR1
REVVenturePartnersLtd Ordinary GBR1
RPSGamingLtd Ordinary GBR4
Symbiotic Technologies Operations Ltd Ordinary GBR11
TracesmartGroup Ltd Ordinary GBRé6
TracesmartLtd Ordinary GBR6
VG247 Ltd Ordinary GBR4
WaunelliLtd Ordinary GBR13
United States
AccuityAsset VerificationServicesInc Common Stock USA1
AccuityInc Common Stock USA1
AriesSystems Corporation Common USA3
Ordinary
Derman, Inc Common Stock USA4
Dunlap-HannaPublishers (50%) Partnership Interest USAS8
Elsevierinc Common Stock USA3
Elsevier HoldingsInc Common Stock USA3
Elsevier Medical Information LLC Membership Interest USA3
ElsevierSTMInc Common Stock USA3
Enclarity, Inc Common Stock USA2
ExitCareLLC Membership Interest USA3
Flightstats, Inc Common Stock USAS5
GamerNetworkInc. Common Stock USA3
GamingBusinessAsiaLLC (50%) Membership Interest USA3
Health Market Science, Inc Common Stock USA2
IDG-RBI ChinaPublishers LLC (50%) Membership Interest USA3
Intelligize, Inc Common Stock USA3
Knovel Corporation Common Stock USA3
LexMachinalnc Common Stock USA3
LexisNexis Claims Solutions Inc Common Stock USA2
LexisNexis Coplogic SolutionsInc Common Stock USA2
LexisNexis of Puerto RicoInc Common Stock USA10
LexisNexis RiskAssetsInc Common Stock USA2
LexisNexis Risk DataManagementInc Common Stock USA2
LexisNexis Risk Holdings Inc Common Stock USA2
LexisNexis Risk Solutions Inc Common Stock USA2
LexisNexis Special ServicesInc Common Stock USA6
LexisNexis Rule of Law Foundation Non stock USA10
corporation
LexisNexisVitalChek Network Inc Common Stock USA2
Managed Technology Services LLC (51%) Membership Interest USA9
MatthewBender & Company, Inc. Common Stock USA3
MLexUS, Inc(91%) Common Stock USA3
PoliceReports.US,LLC Membership Interest USA2
Portfolio Media, Inc Common Stock USA3
ReedBusiness InformationInc Common Stock USA5
Reed Technologyand InformationServicesInc. Common Stock USA3
RELXCapitalInc Common Stock USA4
RELXInc Common Stock USA3
RELXUSHoldingsInc Common Stock USA3
Reman, Inc Common Stock USA3
REVIVPartnershipLP Noshares USA4
SAFIAmericasLLC(50%) Membership Interest USA3
Science-Metrix Corporation Common Stock USA3
Symbiotic Technologies OperationsInc. Common USA2
TheElsevier Foundation No Shares USA3
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Registered offices

Registered offices

Australia

France

AUS1:

Building B, Level 2, Unit 11, 1 Maitland Place, Baulkham Hills NSW 2153, Australia

FRA1:

65,rue Camille Desmoulins, 92130, Issy les Moulineaux, France

AUS2: Level 10, 10 Help Street, Chatswood NSW 2067, Australia FRA2: ParcEuronord-10,rueduParc-31150Bruguieres
AUS3: ‘Tower?2 Level 10,475 VictoriaAvenue, Chatswood NSW 2067 FRA3: 247ruedeBercy75012Paris
AUS4:  GrantThornton, Level 17,393 Kent St, Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia FRA4: 141ruedeJavel, 75015 Paris
AUS5: KPMG, 147 Collins Street, Melbourne, Vic, 3000 FRA5: 52Quaide DionBouton 92800 Puteaux
AUS6: Fordham Business Advisors Pty Ltd, Rialto South Tower Level 35,525 Collins FRA6: |Immeuble « Technopolis », 350 rue Georges Besse -Nimes (30000)
Street, Melbourne, Vic, 3000 FRA7: 27quaiAlphonse Le Gallo, 92100, Boulogne-Billancourt, France
AUS7: Level1,439Gympie Road, Strathpine, QLD 4500 FRA8: 6-8RueChaptal, 75009 Paris
AUS8: 1303, 799 Pacific Highway, Chatswood, NSW 2067
_ Germany
Austria DEU1: Vélklinger Strasse4, 40219, Diisseldorf, Germany
AUT1:  Messeplatz1,1020, Wien, Austria DEU3: Theodor-Heuss-Allee 108, D-60488, Frankfurtam Main, Hesse, Germany
AUT2: Marxergasse 25,1030, Wien, Austria DEU4: Hackerbriicke 6,80335, Munich, Germany
AUT3: AmMessezentrum 6,5020, Salzburg, Austria DEUS: Heerdter Sandberg 30, 40549, Diisseldorf, Germany
. DEUé6: Schwannstr.é,40476 Disseldorf
Belgium DEU7: Steinhduserstrasse9, 76135, Karlsruhe, Germany
BEL1: Grotesteenweg-Zuid 39,9052 Gent, Belgium DEUS8: Joseph-Schumpeter-Allee 33,53227, Bonn
BEL2: Leernseteenweg128BoxE, 9800Deinze, Belgium DEU9: Hauptstrasse47,40764,Lagenfeld
BEL3: 67ruedelaloi, 1040 Etterbeek, Belgium
Hong Kong
Brazil HNK1: 20/F AlexandraHouse, 18 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong
BRA1: RuaSetedeSetembro,n®111,salas 601,1501/1502,1601/1602,1701/1702 e 802 - 8° HNK2: Level28,Building8,3 Pacific Place, 1 Queens Road East, HONG KONG, Hong Kong
Andar, Centro, cidade do Rio de Janeiro, estado do Rio de Janeiro, CEP 20.050-006 HNK3: Unit2042/F, MalaysiaBldg., 50 Gloucester Rd, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BRA2: S&oPaulo, State of Sao Paulo, at RuaBela Cintra, n®1.200, 8th floor, CEP 01415-002 HNK4: Level54Hopewell Center, 183 Queens Road East (Tricor Office), Hong Kong
BRA3: RuaBelaCintrano. 1200, 10th floor, So Paulo, 01415-001, Brazil HNKS5: Flat2, 19/F Henan Building 90-92, Jaffe Road Wanchai, Hong Kong, Hong Kong
BRA4: Avenida paulista, 2300-Piso Pilotis room 28, Sao Paulo, Sao Paulo 01310-300 HNKé: 703 Silvercord, Tower 2,30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRAS5: RuaCelFonseca, 203 A-Centro, Botucatu, SP, 18600-200 HNK?7: 3901,39th Floor Hopewell Center, 183 Queens Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
Hong Kong
Canada
CAN1: 123 Commerce Valley Drive East, Suite 700, Markham, Ontario, L3T 7W8, Canada India
CAN2: 160Elgin Street, Suite 2600,0ttawa, Ontario, KIP 1C3, Canada IND1: 818, 8th Floor, Indraprakash Builing, 21 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi, 110001,
CAN3: 555Rlichmond Street West, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5V 3B1 India
CAN4: 26E-1501av. McGillCollege, Montreal, Quebec, H3A3N9, Canada IND2: B9/5VasantVihar, New Delhi, 110057, India
_ IND3: n°664Level6-ChennaiRegus - CitiCentre - 10/11 Dr Radhakrishnan Salai,
China Mylapore - Chennai 600004
CHN1: Zhongkun Building, Room 612, Gaolianggiaoxie Street, No. 59, Haidan District, IND4: 18, Kotla Lane, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi, 110002, India
Beijing, 100044, China IND5:  B-15/192, Pharma Apartments, Patparganj, |.P. Extension, New Delhi, 110092, India
CHN2: WestBuilding of Administration Building, Xueyuan Road No. 38 Peking University INDé:  B-9,"A"Block, LSC, NarainaVihar, Ring Road, New Delhi, 110028, India
Health Science Center, Haidan District, Beijing, 100191, China IND7:  #25,3rd floor, 8th Main Road, Vasanthnager, Bangalore, 560052, India
CHN3: Oriental Plaza, No. 1 East Chang An Ave, Tower W1, 7th Floor, Unit 1-7, Dong Cheng
District, Beijing, 100738, China Rdonesn
CHNé: fPllngAr?InternatlonalFlnanceCenter,Room1504:.15thFloor,TowlerA»1U1.3-24 IDN1:  Panorama Building, 5th Floor, Jalan Tomang Raya No. 63, Jakarta, 11440, Indonesia
oor, Xinyuan South Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, 100027, China o - : e
CHNS: 4/F Block C, No 999 Jingzhong Road, Changning District, Shanghai, China IDN2: MenaraC Citicon Level8.Unit8011 &801_2Jl. LetjenS. Parman No. 8 Kav 72 Slipi
] Palmerah JakartaBarat 11410 Indonesia
CHNé: 9/F,No3Zhongshan Er Road, Guangzhou, China
CHN7: Unit2480, Building 2, No. 7, Chuangxin Road, Science Park of Changping District,
Beijing, China Ieland -
CHN8: Room 12B, 7th Floor, Oriental Plaza, 1 East Chang An Avenue, Beijing, China IRL1: 80Harcourt$t.re.et,Dubl|n2,|reland .
CHN9: 16Donghuangchenggen North Street, Beijing, 100717, China IRL2: ArthurCoxBulldmg,Earl.sfortTe.rrace,Dublan,Ireland )
CHN10: Room 5106, Raffle City, 268 Middle Xizang Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai, IRL3:  (A&L GoodbodySecretarial Services), 25/28 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1,D01 H104,
200001, China Ire.land ) .
CHN11: Room A 100 of Room 0307, Floor 3, Building 3, 7 MiddLe Dongsanhuan road, IRL4:  Suite 4320, Atlantic Avenue, Westpark Business Campus, Shannon, Clare, Ireland
Chaoyang District, Beijing
CHN12: Intercontinental Center, 42F, 100 Yutong Road, Zhabei District, Shanghai, 200070, Israel
China ISR1:  Meitar, attorneysat Law, 16 Abba HillelRoad, Ramat Gan, 5250608, Israel
CHN13: World ExpoMansion, 14F, No.04-05, No.8 Business Out Ring Road, Zhengzou New
District, Zhengzou, 450000, China Italy
CHN14: Shenzhen International Chamber of Commerce Tower, Room 1801-1802, 1805, ITA1:  ViaMarostica 1,20146, Milan, Italy
Fuhua 3rd Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, 518048, China ITA2:  Studio Colombo e Associati, ViaCinodel Duca5,20122, Milano, Italy
CHN15: Room 319,238 Jiangchangsan Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China
CHN16: Room 702-2,200 Huiyuan Road, Jiading Industrial Area, Shanghai Japan
CHN17: No 498, GouShoulJing Road, Building 6 Unit 12502-505, Shanghai, Pudong New JPN1:  Kyodo Tsushin Kaikam 2F, 2-2-5 Toronomon, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 105-0001
District, 201203, China JPN2:  ArkMoriBuilding, 1-12-32 Akasaka, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 107-6029, Japan
CHN18: Building 2, Room No. 3895, Changjiang Avenue, No. 161, Changliang Farm, JPN3: 1-9-15, HigashiAzabu, Minato-ku Tokyo Japan
Chongming County, ShanghaiMunicipality JPN4:  Shinjuku-Nomura Bldg., 1-26-2 Nishi-shinjuku, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, Japan
CHN19: FL2,N0.979,Yunhan Road, Nicheng Town, Pudong New Area JPN5:  13-12 Rokubancho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
CHN20: 4/F Block C, No 999 Jingzhong Road, Changning District, Shanghai, China JPN6: _7F Cross Office Uchisaiwaicho, 1-18-6 Nishi-Shinbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo
JPN7: 2-6,Kasumigaseki3-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
Colombia
COL1: Philippe Prietocarrizosa & Uria Abogados, Carrera 9 No. 74-08 Oficina 105, Bogota, Korea (South)
d.c., 76600, Colombia KOR1: Chunwoo Building, 4th floor, 534 Itaewon-dong, Yongsan-gu, Seoel, 140-861,
Korea, Republic of
Denmark KOR2: 206 Noksapyeong-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoel, Korea, Republic of
DNK1: NielsJernesVej 10,9220, Aalborg @st, Denmark KOR3: Room 4401, Trade Tower, 159-1, Samseong-dong, Gangnam-gu Seoul, 135-729,
Republic of Korea
Dubai, UAE KOR4: 1324 Block ATera Tower 1,201, Songpa-daero, Songpa-gu, Seoul, 05854
UAE1: Office No.328, Building 02, third floor, P.0. Box 502425, Dubai, United Arab Emirates
UAE2: AlSufouhComplex, Floor3,No.304, Dubai, United Arab Emirates Lu b g
LUX1: BlocB19-21, Route d’Arlon, L-8009 Strassen, Luxembourg
Egypt
EGY1: LandMarkOffice Building, 2nd Floor, 90th Street, City Center, 5th Settlement,

New Cairo, Cairo, Egypt
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Registered offices

Registered offices

Malaysia

United Kingdom

MYS1: 6th Floor, Akademi Etiga, No. 23 Jalan Melaka, 50100 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Mexico

MEX1: InsurgentesSur #1388 Piso8, Col. Actipan, Deleg. Benito Juarez, C.P.03230 Ciudad
de México, México

Morocco

MAR1: ForumBabAbdelazizau 62, Angle Blvd. d’Anfa, 6eme étage, Apt 61, Casablanca,
Morocco

New Zealand

NZL1: Level1,138TheTerrace, P.0.Box472, Wellington 6011, New Zealand

Philippines

PHL1: BuildingH, 2nd Floor, U.P. Ayalaland TechnoHub, Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon
City, Metro Manila, 1101, Philippines

Poland

POL1: Natpoll Building, ul. Migdalowa 4/59, 02-796, Warsaw, Poland

Russia

RUS1: PokrovkaStreet27, Building 1, Moscow, Russian Federation

RUS2: 24BolshayaNikitskayaStr., bldg. 5, Moscow 125009, Russian Federation

RUS3: Petrozavodskaya street28/4, Building VI, room 2, 125475, Moscow, Russian
Federation

SaudiArabia

SAU1: AlFadlCommercial Center, Jeddah, 21411, SaudiArabia

Singapore

SGP1: 3KillineyRoad, #08-01Winsland House 1, Singapore, 239119, Singapore

SGP2: 16RafflesQuay, #33-03Hong Leong Building, Singapore, 048581, Singapore

SGP3: 80Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore, 068898, Singapore

SGP4: 1ChangiBusinessPark Crescent, #06-01Plaza8 & CBP, Singapore, 48602551,
Singapore

SGP5: 8RobinsonRoad #03-00AS0 Building Singapore 048544

South Africa

ZAF1: RegusBrooklynBridge, 3rd Floor Steven House, Brooklyn Bridge Office Park,
Fehrsen Street, Brooklyn, Pretoria

ZAF2: FourwaysGold Park, 1st Floor - Wentworth Building, 32 Roos Street, Fourways,
2191, South Africa

ZAF3: 215Peter Mokaba Road (North Ridge Road), Morningside, Durban, Kwa-Zulu Natal,
4001, South Africa

ZAF4: ThebeHouse, 2nd Floor, 166 Jan Smuts Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196,
South Africa

ZAF5: 14HertzogStreet, Oranjeville, 9415

Spain

ESP1: C/Josep Tarradellas20-30,1°/20029, Barcelona, Spain
ESP2: CalleZancoeta0009,48013, Bilbao, Viscaya, Spain

Switzerland

CHE1: Espacedel'Europe3,2002Neuchatel, Switzerland
CHE2: Bahnhofstrasse 100-8001 Zurich

Taiwan

TWN1: Suite N-818,8/F, Chia Hsin CementBuilding, 96 Zhong Shan North Road, Section 2,
Taipei, 10449, Taiwan

Thailand

THA1: SathornNakorn Building, Floor 32, No. 100/68-69 North Sathon Road, Silom,
Bangrak, Bangkok, 10500, Thailand

THA2: 540MercuryTower, 22nd Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok
10330

The Netherlands

NLD1: Radarweg29,1043NXAmsterdam, Netherlands

NLD2: Galileiweg8,2333BD Leiden, Netherlands

NLD3: EvertvandeBeekstraat1TheBase3/F, 1118CL Schiphol
NLD4: PrinsHendrikstraat 17, 7001GK Doetinchem

NLD5: Spaklerweg53, 1114 AE Amsterdam-Duivendrecht

Turkey

TUR1T: Maslak Mah. Bilim Sokak Sun Plaza Kat:13 Sisli-Maslak, Istanbul, Turkey
TUR2: Tiyap Fuarve Kongre Merkezi, E-5Karayolu Uzeri, Glrpinar Kavsagi 34500,
Biyiikcekmece, Istanbul, 34500, Turkey

GBR1: 1-3Strand, London, WC2N5JR, United Kingdom

GBR2: QuadrantHouse, The Quadrant, Sutton, Surrey, SM25AS, United Kingdom

GBR3: AG GatewayGlobal Network, 85Great Portland Street, First Floor, London,
W1IWT7LT, United Kingdom

GBR4: GatewayHouse 28The Quadrant, Richmond, Surrey, TW9 1DN, United Kingdom

GBR5: LexisHouse,30Farringdon Street, London, EC4A4HH, United Kingdom

GBRé: GlobalReach, Dunleavy Drive, Cardiff, CF11 0SN, United Kingdom

GBR7: TheEye, 1ProcterStreet, London, WC1V6EU, United Kingdom

GBR8: TheBoulevard, Langford Lane, Kidlington, Oxford, 0X5 1GB, United Kingdom

GBRY9: c/oRELX(UK)Limited, Butterworths Limited, 4 Hill Street, Edinburgh,
EH23JZ, Scotland

GBR10: 35-37St. Marys Gate, Nottingham, United Kingdom, NG1 1PU

GBR11: 1stFloor80Moorbridge Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire, SL6 8BW

GBR12: 40Kimbolton Road, Bedford, England, MK40 2NR

GBR13: 1000 Lakeside, Western Road, Portsmouth, P06 3EN, United Kingdom

GBR14: Unit 18-19 Loughborough Technology Centre, Epinal Way, Loughborough,
England, LE113GE

United States

USA1: 1007 Church Street, Evanston|L 60201

USA2: 1000Alderman Dr., Alpharetta, GA30005

USA3: 230ParkAve, NewYork, NY 10169

USA4: 1105 North Market St, Wilmington, DE 19801

USA5: 3355WestAlabama Street, Houston, TX77098

USAé6: PuertaDelCondado #1095, Wilson Ave, Local #3, San Juan, PR00907
USA7: N909N.SepulvedaBlvd., 11th Floor, ELSegundo, CA90245

USA8: 313Washington Street, Suite 400, Newton, MA02458

USA9: 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, DE 19801

USA10: 9443Springboro Pike, Miamisburg, OH 45342

Vietnam

VIE1: 78 Nguyen Bieu,Ward 1, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City
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O year summary

Restated?
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Note £m £m £m £m £m
RELX consolidated financialinformation
Revenue 7,492 7,341 6,889 5,971 5,773
Reported operating profit 1,964 1,905 1,708 1,497 1,402
Adjusted operating profit 1 2,346 2,284 2,114 1,822 1,739
Reported net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1,422 1,648 1,150 1,008 955
Adjusted net profitattributable to RELX PLC shareholders e NETA 1620 1473 1275 1213
RELXPLC financialinformation
Reported earnings per ordinary share (pence) 71.9p 81.6p 55.8p 46.4p 43.0p
Adjusted earnings perordinary share (pence) 84.7p 80.2p 71.4p 60.5p 56.3p
Dividend perordinary share (pence) 2 42.1p 39.4p 35.95p 29.7p 26.0p

(1) Adjustedfigures are presented as additional performance measures used by management. A reconciliation of the adjusted measures to the comparable GAAP
measures can be found on page 176. Adjusted measures are stated before amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, the net
financing cost on defined benefit pension schemes and acquisition-related costs, exceptionaltax creditsand in respect of attributable net profit, reflect a tax
rate that excludes the effect of movementsin deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the near termandincludes the benefit
oftaxamortisation where available onacquired goodwilland intangible assets. Acquisition-related financing costs and profitand loss from disposal gains and
lossesand other non-operatingitems are also excluded from the adjusted figures.

(2) Dividend perordinaryshareis based ontheinterim dividend and proposed final dividend for the relevantyear.

(3) 2017and 2016 numbers have been restated to reflect the adoption of newaccounting standards. See note 1 on page 126 for further details.
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RELX PLC statement of financial position

2018 2017
Note £m £m
Non-currentassets
Investmentsin subsidiary undertakings 1 18,314 -
Investmentsinjointventures - 3,027
18314 3,027
Currentassets
Cashand cash equivalents 1

Trade and otherreceivables

Receivables: amounts due from subsidiary undertakings

Receivables: amounts due from joint venture

Totalassets

Current liabilities

Taxation 4 2
Other payables 109 56
L T
Netassets 19,739 3,174
Capitalandreserves
Share capital 290 162
Share premium 1,415 1,309
Sharesheldintreasury (643) (753)
Capital redemption reserve 31 25
Otherreserves 164 160
Mergerreserve 15,150 -
Net profit 2,063 817
Reserves 0269 1454
Shareholders’ equity 19,739 3,174

The RELXPLC Company financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 20 February 2019.

Theywere signed on its behalf by:

AJHabgood
Chairman

Chief Financial Officer
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RELX PLC statement of changes in equity

Shares Capital
Share Share heldin redemption Other Merger Net

capital premium treasury reserve” reserves?reserve!”  profit Reserves® Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2017 165 1,295 (645) 22 158 - 7 1,400 3,112

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 817 - 817
Dividends paid “ - - - - - - - (400)  (400)
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (371) - - - - - (371)

Cancellation of shares (3) - 263 3 - - - (263) -

Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses - 14 - - - - - - 14

Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group - - - - 2 - - - 2
Transferof netprofittoreserves e e I = A7) I

Balance at 1 January 2018 162 1,309  (753) 25 160 - 817 1,454 3,174

Totalcomprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 2,063 - 2,063
Dividends paid - - - - - - - (420) (420)
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - 472) - - - - (472)

Cancellation of shares (6) - 582 6 - - - (582) -

Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses - 13 - - - - - - 13

Issue of ordinary sharesin exchange for

RELXNVshares 134 93 - - - 15,150 - - 15,377

Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group - - - - - - - 4
Transferof netprofittoreserves e T, -...1817) 817 .7

Balance at31 December 2018 290 1,415 (643) 31 164 15,150 2,063 1,269 19,739

(1) The capitalredemption and merger reserve do not form part of the distributable reserves balance.
[2) Otherreservesrelate to equityinstruments granted to employees of the Group under share based remuneration arrangements, and do not form part of the

distributable reserves balance.

(3) Distributable reservesat31 December 2018 were £2,689m (2017: £1,518m) comprising net profitand reserves, net of shares held in treasury.
(4) Refertonote 13 of the RELX consolidated financial statements on page 143 for further dividend disclosure.

RELXPLC accounting policies

Basis of preparation

RELXPLC meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100
(Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council (FRC). Accordingly, the financial statements
are prepared inaccordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting
Standard 101) - Reduced Disclosure Framework as issued by the
Financial Reporting Council, incorporating the Amendments to
FRS 101issued by the FRCin July 2015 and the amendments to
company law made by The Companies, Partnerships and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015.

As permitted by FRS 101, RELXPLC has taken advantage of the
disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to
share based payments, financialinstruments, capitalmanagement,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certain
assets, presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet
effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions.

The RELXPLC financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

Unlessotherwise indicated, allamountsin the financial statements
areinmillions of pounds.

The RELXPLC financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the Group consolidated financial statements and notes
presented on pages 121to 167, which are also presented as the
RELXPLC consolidated financial statements. See the Basis of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements on page 126.

The RELXPLC financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as explained on page 111.

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, and in
compliance with The Companies, Partnerships and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015, the Company has not
presented its own profitand loss account but has presented the
net profitfor the year on the statement of financial position.

The RELXPLC accounting policies under FRS 101 are set out below.

Investments

Fixed assetinvestments are stated at cost, less provision, if
appropriate, foranyimpairmentinvalue. The fair value of the
award of share options and conditional shares over RELXPLC
ordinary shares to employees of the Group are treated as a
capital contribution.

Otherassets and liabilities are stated at historical cost, less
provision, if appropriate, forany impairmentinvalue.

Shares heldintreasury

The consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, for
sharesrepurchasedis recognised as shares held in treasuryand
presented as adeduction from total equity. Details of share capital
and shares heldintreasuryare setoutin note 25 of the Group
consolidated financial statements.

Foreign exchange translation
Transactions entered intoin foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction.

Taxation
Referto note 9 on pages 138to 141 of the consolidated financial
statements for the taxation accounting policies.
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Notes to the RELX PLC financial statements

Subsidiary Joint

undertaking venture Total

£m £m £m

At 1 January 2017 77 3,025 3,102
Impairment (77) - (77)
Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group e

At 1January 2018 - 3,027 3,027

Acquisition of interestin RELX Group plc not already owned 18,310 (3,027) 15,283
Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group L .

At 31 December 2018 18,314 - 18,314

The acquisition of the remaining RELX Group plcinterest relates to the transfer of RELXNV’s previously held interestin RELX Group plc
asaresultof the corporate simplification. Following the simplification, RELX Group plcis recognised as a 100% owned subsidiary of
RELXPLC.

Alltransactions with joint ventures, subsidiaries and the Group’s employees, which are related parties of RELXPLC, are reflected in
these financial statements. Transactions with key management personnelincluding share based remuneration costs are set out in note
27 of the Group consolidated financial statements and details of the Directors’ remuneration are included in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 85to 105.

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of subsidiaries guaranteed by RELXPLC as follows:

2018 2017
£m £m
Contingent liabilities guaranteed by RELXPLC 5,775 4,644

Financialinstruments disclosuresin respect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are given in note 18 of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Summary financial informationin euros

Basis of preparation
The Group’s consolidated financialinformation is presented in sterling. The summary financialinformation is a simple translation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statementsinto euros at the stated rates of exchange.

Statement of
Income statement financial position

2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016

Eurotosterling 113 1.14 1.22 1.11 1.12 1.17

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016

€m €m €m

Revenue 8,466 8,369 8,405

Operating profit 2,219 2,172 2,084

Profit before tax 1,944 1,962 1,780
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1607 1879 1403

Adjusted operating profit 2,651 2,604 2,579

Adjusted profit before tax 2,424 2,395 2,338

Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1,892 1,847 1,797
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share _€0957  €0.915 €081

Basic earnings perordinary share €0.813 €0.930 €0.680

Net dividend per ordinary RELXPLC share paid inthe year €0.453 €0.426 €0.397

Net dividend per ordinary RELXPLC share paid and proposed in relation to the financial year €0.476 €0.449 €0.439

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016

€m €m €m

Net cash from operating activities 2,243 2,182 2,124
Net cash usedininvesting activities (1,436) (473) (805)
Net cash used in financing activities 1808l (1,760)  [1,308)

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 (51) 1

Movementin cash and cash equivalents

At start of year 124 190 166

Increase/(decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 1 (51) 1
Exchange translation differences e 2 18) 18
Atend ofyear 1272190

Adjusted cash flow 2,535 2,505 2,463

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016

€m €m €m

Non-current assets 12,928 11,673 13,223

Currentassets 2,609 2,475 2,815
Total assets 15538 14148 16,045

Current liabilities 5,906 5,224 6,274

Non-current liabilities 7,010 6,333 7,065
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale . -
Total liabilities 12920 115857 13345

Netassets 2,618 2,591 2,700
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Summary financial information in US dollars
§.
Basis of preparation
The Group’s consolidated financialinformation is presented in sterling. The summary financialinformation is a simple translation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statementsinto US dollars at the stated rates of exchange. It does not represent a restatement under
US GAAP which would be different in some significant respects.
Statement of
Income statement financial position
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
USdollarstosterling 1.34 1.29 1.36 1.27 1.35 1.23
@
c
3
:
Restated Restated 2
2018 2017 2016
us$m US$m Us$m
Revenue 10,039 9,470 9,369
Operating profit 2,632 2,457 2,323
Profit before tax 2,305 2,220 1,984
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 1905 2126 1564
Adjusted operating profit 3,144 2,946 2,875
Adjusted profit before tax 2,874 2,710 2,606
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC shareholders 2,243 2,090 2,003
Adjusted earnings per American Depositary Share (ADS) ~ $1134  $1.035  $0.971 -
Basic earnings per ADS $0.963 $1.053 $0.758 3
Net dividend per RELXPLC ADS paidin theyear $0.537 $0.482 $0.443 §
Net dividend per RELXPLC ADS paid and proposed in relation to the financialyear $0.564 $0.508 $0.489 5
§.
Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Us$m Us$m US$m
Net cash from operating activities 2,660 2,469 2,368
Net cash used ininvesting activities (1,703) (535) (898)
Net cash used in financing activities L l956)  1992)  (1.458)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 (58) 12
@
Movementin cash and cash equivalents 2
Atstartofyear 150 199 179 3
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 (58) 3
Exchange translation differences e
Atend of year s s
Adjusted cash flow 3,006 2,834
Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016
Us$m Us$m US$m
Non-current assets 14,792 14,070 13,902 e
Currentassets 2,986 2,984 2,959
Assets held for sale T R
Totalassets L1779 17054 16,868
Current liabilities 6,758 6,296 6,595
Non-current liabilities 8,020 7,635 7,428
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale . -
Totalliabilities 14783 13931 14,029

Netassets 2,996 3,123 2,839
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Reconciliation of adjusted to GAAP measures

The Group uses adjusted figures, which are not defined by generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") such as IFRS, as additional
performance measures. These measures are used by management, alongside the comparable GAAP measures, in evaluating the business

performance. The measures may not be comparable to similarly reported measures by other companies.

Areconciliation of non-GAAP measures to relevant GAAP measures is as follows:

Restated
2018 2017
£m £m
Operating profit 1,964 1,905
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 288 314
Acquisition-related costs 84 56
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 11 10
. Reclassification of financeincome injointventures o W )
Adjusted operating profit 2,346 2,284
Profit before tax 1,720 1,721
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 288 314
Acquisition-related costs 84 56
Reclassification of taxinjoint ventures 11 10
Netinterest on net defined benefit pension obligation 9 15
Adjusted profit before tax 2,145 2,101
Taxcharge (292) (65)
Adjustments:
Deferred tax movements on goodwill and acquired intangible assets 34 42
Taxon acquisition-related costs (13) (13)
Reclassification of tax in joint ventures (1) (10)
Taxonnetinterest on net defined benefit pension obligation (2) (4)
Tax ondisposals and other non-operating items (14) 16
Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets* (55) (93)
Adjusted tax charge (465) (473)
Net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,422 1,648
Adjustments (post-tax):
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 322 356
Acquisition-related costs 71 43
Netintereston netdefined benefit pension obligation 7 "
Disposals and other non-operating items 19 1
Otherdeferredtax credits fromintangible assets* (55) (93)
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELX PLC shareholders 1,674 1,620
Cash generated from operations 2,555 2,526
Adjustments:
Dividends received from joint ventures 30 38
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (56) (51)
Proceeds ondisposals of property, plantand equipment 4 1
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (306) (303)
Paymentsin relation to acquisition-related costs/other 97 62
Repayment of lease principal (82) (76)
.Sublease payments received e T
Adjusted cash flow 2,243 2,197

* Movementsondeferred tax liabilities arising onacquired intangible assets that do not qualify for taxamortisation.

** In2018 relatesto the substantial resolution of certain prioryear tax matters and deferred tax effect of tax rate reductions in the Netherlands and US. In 2017

relatestoaone-off non-cash credit from a deferred tax adjustment arising from the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
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Shareholderinformation

Annual Reportand Financial Statements 2018

The Annual Reportand Financial Statements for RELX PLC for the

yearended 31 December 2018 are available on the Group's

website, and from the registered office of RELX PLC shown

on page 180. Additional financialinformation, including the

interim and full-year results announcements, trading updates

and presentations, is also available on the Group’s website,
www.relx.com

The consolidated financial statements set outin the Annual Report
and Financial Statements are expressed in sterling, with summary
financialinformation expressedin eurosand US dollars.

Share price information
RELXPLC’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock
Exchange.

PLC
Tradingsymbol . o REL
ISIN . GB0OOB2BODGY7
RELXPLC’sordinaryshares are also traded on the Euronext
Amsterdam Stock Exchange.

PLC
Tradingsymbol ... e REN
ISIN : GBO0OB2BODGY97 :

The RELXPLC ordinary shares are traded on the New York Stock
Exchangeinthe form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs),
evidenced by American Depositary Receipts (ADRs).

PLCADRSs
Ratio to ordinary shares o
Trading symbol o RELX
CUSIP code 759530108 :

The RELXPLC ordinary share price and the ADS price may be
obtained from the Group’s website, other online sources and the
financial pages of some newspapers.

For furtherinformation visit the ‘Investor Centre’ section
of the Group’s website www.relx.com/investorcentre

Shareholder services

The RELXPLC ordinary share registeris administered by Equiniti
Limited. Equiniti provides a free online portal for shareholders at
www.shareview.co.uk. Shareview allows shareholders to monitor
the value of their shareholdings, view their dividend payments and
submit dividend mandate instructions. Shareholders canalso
submit their proxy voting instructions ahead of company meetings,
aswellas update their personal contact details. Shareview
Dealing provides ashare purchase and sale facility. Equiniti’'s
contact details are shown on page 180.

Electroniccommunications

While hard copy shareholder communications continue to be
available to those shareholders requesting them, inaccordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s articles of
association, the Company uses the Group’s website as the main
method of communicating with shareholders. By registering their
details online at Shareview, shareholders can be notified by email
when shareholder communications are published on the Group’s
website. Shareholders can also use the Shareview website to
appointa proxy tovote on their behalf at shareholder meetings.

Shareholderswho hold their Company shares through CREST
may appoint proxies for shareholder meetings through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service by using the procedures
describedinthe CREST manual.

Dividend mandates

Shareholders are encouraged to have their dividends paid
directly intoa UK bank or building society account. This method
of paymentreduces the risk of delay or loss of dividend cheques
inthe postand ensuresthe accountis credited on the dividend
payment date. Adividend mandate form can be obtained online
atwww.shareview.co.uk, or by contacting Equiniti at the address
shown on page 180.

Equiniti has established a service for overseas shareholders
inover 90 countries, which enables shareholders to have their
dividends automatically converted from sterling and paid
directly into their nominated bank account. Further details

of this service, and the fees applicable, are available at
www.shareview.co.uk/info/ops or by contacting Equiniti
atthe address shown on page 180.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Shareholders can choose to reinvest their Company dividends

by purchasing further shares through the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan [DRIP) provided by Equiniti. Further information
concerning the DRIP facility, together with the terms and
conditions and an application form can be obtained online at
www.shareview.co.uk/info/drip or by contacting Equiniti at the
address shown on page 180.
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Share dealing service

Atelephone andinternetdealing service is available through
Equiniti, which provides a simple way for UK resident shareholders
tobuyorselltheirshares. Fortelephone dealing call 0345 603
7037 between 8.30am and 5.30pm (UK time), Monday to Friday
(excluding public holidays in England and Wales), and for internet
dealing log on towww.shareview.co.uk/dealing. You will need your
shareholder reference number shown on your dividend
confirmation.

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operates a charity share donation
scheme for shareholders with small parcels of shares whose
value makesituneconomic to sell them. Details of the scheme
can be obtained from the ShareGift website at www.sharegift.org,
or by telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737.

Sub-division of ordinary shares and share consolidation

On 28 July 1986, each RELXPLC ordinary share of £1 nominal
value was sub-divided into four ordinary shares of 25p each.
On2May 1997, each 25p ordinary share was sub-divided into two
ordinary shares of 12.5p each. On 7 January 2008, the ordinary
shares of 12.5p each were consolidated on the basis of 58 new
ordinary shares of 1451/116p nominal value for every 67 ordinary
shares of 12.5p each held.

Capital gains tax

The mid-market price of RELXPLC's £1 ordinary shares on 31
March 1982 was 282p. Adjusting for the sub-divisions and
share consolidation referred to above results in an equivalent
mid-market price of 40.72p for each existing ordinary share
of 1451/116p nominal value.

From time to time shareholders may receive unsolicited calls
from fraudsters

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure
investorsinto scams, sometimes known as boiler room scams

They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non-existent, orto buy shares atan inflated price inreturn for
an upfront payment

While high profits are promised, if you buy or sell shares in this
way you will probably lose your money

Thousands of people contact the Financial Conduct Authority
aboutinvestment fraud each year, with victims losing an
average of £32,000

How to avoid share fraud and boiler room scams
The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) hasissued some guidance
on howtorecognise and avoid investment fraud:

Legitimate firms authorised by the FCAare unlikely to contact
you unexpectedly with an offer to buy or sell shares

Ifyou receive an unsolicited phone call,do not getintoa
conversation, note the name of the person and firm contacting
you and then end the call

Check the Financial Services Registeravailable at
https://register.fca.org.uk/to seeif the personand firm
contactingyou is authorised by the FCA. If you wish to call the
person or firm back, only use the contact details listed on the
Register

Callthe FCAon 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have any
contact details onthe Register, orif you are told that they are
outof date

Searchthe list of unauthorised firms to avoid at
https://www.fca.org.uk/consumers/unauthorised-firms-
individuals#list

Ifyoudo buyorsell shares through an unauthorised firm, you
will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service or the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

Consider obtaining independent financial and professional
advice before you hand overany money. If it sounds too good
tobetrueitprobablyis.

Howtoreportascam

Ifyou are approached by fraudsters, please tell the FCA using
the share fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk/consumers/
report-scam-unauthorised-firm, where you can find out more
aboutinvestment scams. You canalso callthe FCAConsumer
Helplineon 0800 111 6768.

Ifyou have already paid money to share fraudsters, you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or use their online tool:
http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/report_fraud
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Shareholder information and contacts

Shareholders with enquiries concerning RELXPLC ordinary
sharesthatare not held directly on the Register of Members and
are ultimately held through Nederlands Centraal Instituut voor
Giraal Effectenverkeer BV (Euroclear Nederland)] should direct
theirenquiries to the broker, financial intermediary, bank or other
financialinstitution that holds the shares on their behalf.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Shareholders can choose to reinvest their dividends by purchasing
sharesthrough the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) provided
by ABN AMRO Bank NV. Further information concerning the DRIP
facility can be obtained online at www.securitiesinfo.com.

ADR shareholder services

Enquiries concerning RELXPLC ADRs should be addressed
tothe ADR Depositary, Citibank NA, at the address shown below.
Dividend payments on RELXPLC ADRs are converted into US
dollars by the ADR Depositary.

Annual ReportonForm 20-F

The RELXAnnual Reporton Form 20-F is filed electronically with
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. A copy of
the Form 20-F is available on the Group’s website, or from the ADR
Depositaryat the address shown below.

RELXPLC

Head Office and Registered Office
1-3 Strand

London WC2N 5JR

United Kingdom

Tel: +44(0)20 7166 5500

Fax: +44(0)207166 5799

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place
London SE12AF
United Kingdom

Registrar

Equiniti Limited
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing BN99 6DA
West Sussex
United Kingdom

www.shareview.co.uk

Tel: 03713842960 (UK callers)
Tel: +44 121 4150165 (callers outside the UK)

Following the completion of the corporate simplificationin
September 2018, shareholders appearing on the Register of
Members or holding their shares through CREST will continue to
receive theirdividends in Pounds Sterling, but will have the option
toelecttoreceive theirdividendsin Euro. Euro paymentswill be
made by cheque only.

Shareholderswho appearonthe Register of Members and wish
toreceive theirdividendin Euro should contact our Registrar,
Equinition 0371384 2960 (UK) or +44 (0) 121 4150165 (from outside
the UK] for a dividend election form and furtherinformation
regarding the Euro dividend option. Alternatively, shareholders
canviewand update their current dividend elections by registering
foraShareview Portfolio at www.shareview.co.uk/register.

Shareholders who hold their shares through CREST and wish to
receive their dividend in Euro, must do so by following the CREST
Elections process.

Former RELXNV shareholders who now hold RELXPLC shares
through Euroclear Nederland (via banks and brokers), will
automatically receive their dividends in Euro, but will have the
optionto elect toreceive theirdividends in Pounds Sterling.

Shareholderswho hold their shares through Euroclear Nederland
and wish toreceive their dividends in Pounds Sterling should
contact their broker, financialintermediary, bank or other financial
institution that holds the shares on their behalf.

Listing/paying agent for shares listed on Euronext Amsterdam
held through Euroclear Nederland

ABN AMRO Bank NV

Department Corporate Broking HQ7212

GustavMahlerlaan 10

1082 PP Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Email: corporate.broking@nl.abnamro.com

www.securitiesinfo.com

RELXPLCADR Depositary

Citibank Depositary Receipt Services
PO Box 43077

Providence, RI02940-3077

USA

www.citi.com/dr

Email: citibank(@shareholders-online.com
Tel: +1877 248 4327
+1 7815754555 (callers outside the US)



2019 financial calendar

21February Resultsannouncementfortheyearended31December2018

25 April Trading update issuedin relation to the 2019 financial year

25 April Annual General Meeting - Amba Hotel, Strand, London WC2N 5HX
2May Ex-dividend date - 2018 final dividend, ordinary shares and ADRs
3May Record date - 2018 final dividend, ordinary shares and ADRs

20 May Dividend currency and DRIP election deadline

23 May Euro dividend equivalentannouncement

4June Payment date - 2018 final dividend, ordinary shares

7 June Payment date - 2018 final dividend, ADRs

25 July Interim results announcement for the six months to 30 June 2019

1 August* Ex-dividend date - 2019 interim dividend, ordinary shares and ADRs
2 August * Record date - 2019 interim dividend, ordinary shares and ADRs

* Please note thatthese dates are provisional and subject to change. The 2019 Interim Dividend payment dates in respect of ordinary
sharesand ADRs will be confirmed by the Company inits 2019 Interim Results announcement, currently scheduled for release on

25 July 2019.

Dividend history
The following tables set out dividends paid (or proposed) in relation to the three financial years 2016-2018.

pence per PLCordinary share Paymentdate
Finaldividend for 2018** 29.70 4 June 2019
Interim dividend for 2018 12.40 24 August 2018
Finaldividend for 2017 27.70 22May 2018
Interim dividend for 2017 11.70 25August 2017
Finaldividend for 2016 25.70 22 May 2017
Interim dividend for 2016 10.25 26 August 2016
**Proposed dividend, to be submitted forapprovalatthe Annual General Meeting of RELXPLC in April 2019.

$per PLCADR Paymentdate

Final Dividend for 2018*** X 7June 2019
Interim Dividend for 2018 0.15914 29 August 2018
Finaldividend for 2017 0.37159 25May 2018
Interim dividend for 2017 0.15085 30 August 2017
Finaldividend for 2016 0.33387 25May 2017
Interim dividend for 2016 0.13452 31 August 2016
***Paymentwill be determined using the appropriate £/US$ exchange rate on 4 June 2019.
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